
           

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

AUGUST 24, 2021
9:30 A.M.

           

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular session
in the Commissioners Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown, Texas to
consider the following items:

  

 

1. Review and approval of minutes.   

 

2. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county.

  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that
the court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
( Items 3 – 32 )

  

 

3. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Mobile
Outreach Team.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0341-005700 Vehicles $1,500
To 0100-0341-004415 Vehicle Insurance Deductible $1,500
 

4. Dsicuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for EMS.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0540-003307 Pharmaceuticals $15,000
To 0100-0540-003200 Medical Supplies $15,000
 

5. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Jail.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0570.004544 Repairs to Office Equipment $750.00
To 0100.0570.004543 Repairs to Equipment $750.00



 

6. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a Line Item Transfer for the District
Courts.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0435.003006 Office Equipment $300
From 0100.0435.003100 Office Supplies $400
From 0100.0435.003120 Printer Supplies $500
From 0100.0435.003900 Membership Dues $300
To 0100.0435.003005 Furniture $1,500
 

7. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Road and
Bridge Division. 

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0200-0210-005200 Right of Way $2,000.00
To 0200-0210-003318 Janitorial Supplies $2,000.00
 

8. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Road and
Bridge Division.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0200-0210-005200 Right of Way $2,500.00
To 0200-0210-004543 Repairs to Equipment $2,500.00
 

9. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the District
Attorney's Office.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0440-003010 Computer Equipment < $5000 $5,500.00
To 0100-0440-003005 Office Furniture < $5,000.00 $5,500.00
 

10.
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Parks
Department. 

 

Fiscal Impact



From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0510-004111 Special Events $500.00
From 0100-0510-004311 Advertising $2,700.00
From 0100-0510-004509 Facility Enhancements $10,300.00
From 0100-0510-004621 Copier Rental $1,000.00
From 0100-0510-004962 Janitorial Services $3,300.00
From 0100-0510-004500 Maintenance Services $3,800.00
From 0100-0510-003554 Chemicals, Roadside Spraying $7,500.00
To 0100-0510-003318 Janitorial Supplies $3,300.00
To 0100-0510-003010 Computer Equipment $11,300.00
To 0100-0510-005003 Equipment $11,800.00
To 0100-0510-004100 Professional Services $2,700.00
 

11. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.
 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0509.003105 Paper Supplies $3,700.00
To 0100.0509.003102 Safety Supplies $1,200.00
To 0100.0509.004541 Vehicle Repairs & Maint $2,500.00
 

12. Take action to approve and note in the official minutes the L chart, with changes
effective 10/1/2021.

 

13. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various
county vehicle and equipment assets through Auction including One (1) 2000 Shop
Built Utility Trailer and One (1) 1998 Massey Ferguson 4243 Tractor #6117, pursuant
to Tx. Local Gov’t Code 263.152.

 

14. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various
county assets through Sale to Insurance of One (1) 2019 Kubota M5-111D Tractor
#58561, pursuant to Tx. Local Gov’t Code 263.152. 

 

15. Discuss, consider, and take approrpriate action to approve the County Attorney July
2021 Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure 103.005.

 

16. Discuss and consider confirming the appointment of Elizabeth Ewald as a Pct. 1
Deputy Constable.

 

17. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on re-appointing Susan Komandosky
and Ranjit Chhabra to the Williamson County Child Welfare Board for another
three-year term, October 2021-September 2024. 

 



 

18. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an agreement between
TransUnion Risk and Alternative Data Solutions, Inc. and Williamson County for a
research database subscription in the amount of $280.00 per month, and authorizing
execution of the agreement.

 

19. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Agreement between
Williamson County and Idemia Identity & Security USA LLC for the purchase of
LiveScan for a total of $2,937.00, and authorizing the execution of the Agreement. 

 

20. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the agreement between
Thomson Reuters and Williamson County for a Westlaw Proflex Subscription Upgrade
pursuant to DIR-LGL-CALIR-02 in the amount of $2,361.60 per month, for 36 months,
and authorize execution of the agreement.

 

21. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding RFP #T3838, for Queuing
Software to Nemo-Q, Inc. for the Williamson County Tax Accessor Collector's
Officeand authorizing the execution of the agreement.

 

22. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the proposal between
Williamson County and Knight Security Systems for the installation of one (1) additional
surveillance camera in the Cedar Park Tax Office Annex in the total amount of
$1,844.76, per the terms of the DIR CPO 4494 Co-op contract, and authorize the
execution of the agreement.

 

23. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the execution of a Deed
without Warranty from Williamson County, Texas, acting as Trustee, to JJ Service and
Septic Service, LLC, pursuant to Section 34.05 (a) and (h) of the Texas Property Tax
Code pertaining to Part of Lots 11 and 12, Block 75, City of Taylor, Williamson County,
Texas being more particularly described in Document #2011028180 of the Official
Public Records, Williamson County, Texas (Tax Account #R311277).

 

24. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on: (1) purchasing cash drawers and
receipt printers through ActiveNet for the Parks Department for a one-time fee of
$5,714.50, and (2) authorize the execution of the agreement for the ActiveNet - Public
Interface - Online Transaction Fee.

 

25. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase and
installation of office furniture at the Williamson County District Attorney's Office from
Facilities Resource, Inc. in the amount of $18,874.50 per the terms of
Omnia Cooperative Contract #R191811 and authorizing execution of the proposal.  

 

26. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the extension of ATM
Services Contract #1806-243, renewal option 3, for the same pricing, terms and
conditions as the existing contract for the term of September 11, 2021 - September 10,
2022 with Preferred ATM Services, LLC. 

 

27. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Contract Amendment No 2 under



27. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Contract Amendment No 2 under
Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services between Alliance Transportation
Group and Williamson County dated March 10, 2020 for Traffic Engineering Services.
Funding source: 01.0200.0210.004100.

 

28. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 27 in the
amount of $25,000.00 to expire on August 31, 2022 under Williamson County Contract
for Public Involvement Services between Rifeline, LLC and Williamson County dated
March 26, 2019 for Subdivision Regulations. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.004100.

 

29. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Change Order No. 1, to contract number #T2910 –
County Road Seal Coat FY 21, in the amount of $12,904.80. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.003599 

 

30. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed qualifications for Small Drainage and Small Roadway
Projects for Williamson County under RFQ 21RFSQ14.

 

31. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Piper
Run subdivision – Precinct 4.

 

32. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the preliminary plat for
the Northgate Ranch Phase 2, Sections 6-10 subdivision – Precinct 2.

 

REGULAR AGENDA   

 

33. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on funding matters relating to
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act and the American
Rescue Plan Act of 2021 to include, but not be limited to hearing an update on the
Wilco Forward grant program, setting budget priorities in relation to remaining
CARES Act funds and American Rescue Plan funding, as well as possible future
funding and allocation plans in relation to CARES Act and American Rescue Plan
funds.

  

 

34. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to replace Andrea Schiele with Ed
Tydings to serve as a Director on the Williamson County Board of Health for the
Williamson County & Cities Health Department (WCCHD).

 

35. Discuss and take appropriate action to amend the 2020 Community Development
Block Grant Annual Action Plan by reallocating $22,134 from Hope Alliance/Crisis
Center Shelter Rehab to Hope Alliance/Crisis Center counseling services for victims of
family or sexual violence.

 

36. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional revenues for Park Donations. 

 

Fiscal Impact



From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $227.00

 

37. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional expenditures for Park Donations. 

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0510.003670 Use of Donations $227.00

 

38. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and grave necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge the additional expenditures for the Radio Communication
System (RCS).

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0507.0507.004545 Tower Maintenance $13,920.25

 

39. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency
and a grave necessity due to an unforeseeable circumstance and approve a budget
amendment to acknowledge additional revenues for Radio Communication System
(RCS).

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.364100 Insurance Proceeds $13,920.25

 

40. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on adding salary dollars for retention to
several Court Administrators, including but not limited to, the 425th District Court, the
26th District Court, the 368th District Court, County Court at Law #2 and County Court
at Law #3. 

 

41. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Chapter 381 Economic Development
Program and Agreement between Williamson Couty and Upper Forty, LLC.

 

42. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Statewide Automated Victim
Notification Service (SAVNS) Maintenance Grant Contract with the Office of the
Attorney General for SAVNS grant program funding for Fiscal Year 2022.

 

43. Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues. 
 

44. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #T4442 S. San



44. Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #T4442 S. San
Gabriel Ranches Subdivision Road & Drainage Improvements to Terra Path, Inc. and
authorizing the execution of the agreement. 

 

45. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the
necessity and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn (0.744 acres)
required for the construction of SE Loop, and take appropriate action. (Diane Barr,
Clyde Barr, Charles R. Barr and Edna Guenzel Barr/ Parcel 69)

 

46. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Rule 11 Condemnation Settlement
Agreement with John W. Speck III and Glenda Neans-Speck for right of way needed
on the Sam Bass Road Project. (Parcel 35) Funding Source: Road Bonds P462

 

47. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a claim for actual moving expenses
with Travis and Jennifer Betak for ROW acquired for the SE Loop project (Parcel 95).
Funding Source: Road Bonds P463

 

48. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Letter Agreement with D&L Land
Development, LLC for a waterline easement needed on CR 366 (Parcel 7WE). Funding
Source: Road Bonds P296

 

49. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Bill of Sale with Fidel Loza for
retained improvements in the acquired right of way for the Williamson County Parkland
acquisition. 

 

50. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on 3 separate relocation claims with
Bryant Peck, Phillip Sharpnack and Lisa Turner for moving expenses in relation to the
right of way acquisition on Parcel 13 (Sam Bass Storage). Funding Source: Road
Bonds P 462.

 

51. 2021 - 2022 Budget Modification Voting Session
 

52. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the FY 21/22 Budget Order.
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting
to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts
and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations regarding
Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations)." 

  

 

53. Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.



53. Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.072 Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in
negotiations with third person.)

A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of
property owned by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    h)    Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    i)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    j)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at
IH 35.
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of real property near Justice Center. 
    s)    Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North
of WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    u)    Discuss acquisition of drainage easement in relation to County Road 176
    v)    Discuss acquisition of right of way for Corridor E. 
B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
      Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property
owned by the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and
interests.
    b)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St.
between 3rd and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)
    c)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    d)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    e)    Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
    f)     Discuss the sale of property located at 900 S Main St., Taylor, 76574
C.     Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of
San Gabriel Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1
D.     Discuss the Cobb Cavern Conservation Easement Amendment and potential
acquisition. 

 

54. Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas



54. Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Section 551.087:
    a)   Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)   Project Crystal
    c)   Project Winston
    d)   Project Solo
    e)   Project Stamp
    f)    Project Cutting Edge
    g)   Project Red Hot Chili Pepper
    h)   Project Nirvana
    i)    Project Soundgarden
    j)    Project Darwin
    i)    Project Flex Power

 

55. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential
attorney-client legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.071 consultation with attorney.), including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
g)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
h) Claim of Regina Wright.
i) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
j) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
k) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, ,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
l) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
m)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
n) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).
o) Case 1:21-cv-00388-RP; Ramsey Mitchell vs. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Zachary Camden, Mark Luera, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.

  



p) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-74; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
q) Shamona Harris - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00812.
r) Legal matters and claims relating to the City of Austin purchasing property in
Williamson County for purposes of operating temporary or permanent housing of
homeless in Williamson County.
s) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00172-LY; Charles William Thornburg v. Williamson
County, Texas; Robert Chody, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
t) Cause No. D-1-Gn-21-000215; Mohammad Mahmood v. Williamson County
Constable Office; In the 353rd Judicial District of Travis County, Texas.
u) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00275; Big Fish Entertainment LLC v. Williamson County
Sheriff’s Office et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District Of
Texas, Austin Division.
v) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #451-2021-01357 – Jesse Gomez.
w) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Imani Nembhard v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody and Christopher Pisa; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.
x) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.
y) Kelli Bomer - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00920.
z) Gary Haston - EEOC Charge #451-2021-01145.
aa) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-480; Gloria Cowin, Individually and on behalf of the
Estate Of Patrick Dupre, v. Williamson County; In the United States District Court for
the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
bb) Civil Action No. Civil Action No. 21-481; Marquina Gilliam-Hicks v. Sean
Feldman, In his individual capacity, and Williamson County; In the United States
District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
cc)  EEOC Charge of Discrimination #450-2021-00854 - Donald L. Foiles, Jr.
dd) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-615; Bernardo Acosta v. Williamson County; In the
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
ee) Jacqueline Robinson -  EEOC Charge # 451-2021-01742.
ff) Williamson County Landfill Operation Agreement Terms and Conditions.

 

56. Discuss security assessments or deployments relating to information resources
technology; network security information as described by Texas Gov’t Code Section
2059.055(b); and/or (3)  the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of
security personnel, critical infrastructure, or security devices. (Executive Session as
per Texas Gov’t. Code § 551.089).

  

 

57. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees
and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting deliberation and discussion
pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials (Executive
Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters).

  

 

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)   

 

58. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.   



 

59. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.   

 

60. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation,
settlement matters and other legal matters, including the following:

a)  Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County
b)  Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c)  Employee/personnel related matters
d)  Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
e)  Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
f) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.
g)  Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.
h) Claim of Regina Wright.
i) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.
j) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
k) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas, ,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
l) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.;   In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
m)  Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.
n) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).
o) Case 1:21-cv-00388-RP; Ramsey Mitchell vs. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Zachary Camden, Mark Luera, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
p) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-74; Scott Phillip Lewis v. Williamson County, Texas; In
the United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
q) Shamona Harris - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00812.
r) Legal matters and claims relating to the City of Austin purchasing property in
Williamson County for purposes of operating temporary or permanent housing of
homeless in Williamson County.
s) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00172-LY; Charles William Thornburg v. Williamson
County, Texas; Robert Chody, et al.; In the United States District Court for the
Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
t) Cause No. D-1-Gn-21-000215; Mohammad Mahmood v. Williamson County
Constable Office; In the 353rd Judicial District of Travis County, Texas.
u) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00275; Big Fish Entertainment LLC v. Williamson County

  



u) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00275; Big Fish Entertainment LLC v. Williamson County
Sheriff’s Office et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western District Of
Texas, Austin Division.
v) EEOC Charge of Discrimination #451-2021-01357 – Jesse Gomez.
w) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Imani Nembhard v. Williamson County, Robert
Chody and Christopher Pisa; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.
x) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-00350; Gary Watsky v. Williamson County, Robert Chody,
Mark Luera, Steve Deaton, et al.; In the United States District Court for the Western
District Of Texas, Austin Division.
y) Kelli Bomer - EEOC Charge #451-2021-00920.
z) Gary Haston - EEOC Charge #451-2021-01145.
aa) Civil Action No. 1:21-CV-480; Gloria Cowin, Individually and on behalf of the
Estate Of Patrick Dupre, v. Williamson County; In the United States District Court for
the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
bb) Civil Action No. Civil Action No. 21-481; Marquina Gilliam-Hicks v. Sean
Feldman, In his individual capacity, and Williamson County; In the United States
District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
cc)  EEOC Charge of Discrimination #450-2021-00854 - Donald L. Foiles, Jr.
dd) Civil Action No. 1:21-cv-615; Bernardo Acosta v. Williamson County; In the
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas, Austin Division.
ee) Jacqueline Robinson -  EEOC Charge # 451-2021-01742.
ff) Williamson County Landfill Operation Agreement Terms and Conditions.

 

61. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or
employees, including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual reviews
of department heads and appointed officials.

  

 

62. Comments from Commissioners.   

 

63. Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow
members of the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson
County but that do not appear as an Agenda Item on a meeting’s Agenda.  During such Public
Comment Period, speakers shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her remarks
and the maximum overall discussion time allowed for the Public Comment Period, regardless of the
number of members of the public wishing to address the Court during such period, shall be limited to
ten (10) minutes.  Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be evenly allocated among speakers
should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public Comment Period.  Please note
that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the
agenda.

  

 

_________________________
Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson
County Courthouse, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 20th day
of August, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 3.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Line Item Transfer for Mobile Outreach Team
Submitted For: Annie Burwell  Submitted By: Jeanne Williby, Outreach
Department: Outreach
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Mobile Outreach Team.

Background
Increase Vehicle Insurance Deductible budget line from $1,000 to the recommended deductible
amount of $2,500.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0341-005700 Vehicles  $1,500
To 0100-0341-004415 Vehicle Insurance Deductible $1,500

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/16/2021 08:47 AM
Budget Office Sarah Crain 08/16/2021 08:49 AM
Form Started By: Jeanne Williby Started On: 08/13/2021 02:17 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/16/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 4.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

LIT - Medical Supplies
Submitted By: Michael Knipstein, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Dsicuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for EMS.

Background
Line item transfer for medical supplies for the remainder of the fiscal year.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0540-003307 Pharmaceuticals $15,000
To 0100-0540-003200 Medical Supplies $15,000

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/16/2021 08:47 AM
Budget Office Sarah Crain 08/16/2021 08:49 AM
Form Started By: Michael Knipstein Started On: 08/16/2021 08:40 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/16/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Line Item Transfer for the County Sheriff, Corrections Bureau
Submitted For: Mike Gleason  Submitted By: Abigail Dass, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Jail.

Background
Transferring funds to provide funding to repair walk behind floor scrubber and cleaner used in
the Williamson County Jail.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0570.004544 Repairs to Office Equipment $750.00
To 0100.0570.004543 Repairs to Equipment $750.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 08:15 AM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 08/17/2021 08:27 AM
Form Started By: Abigail Dass Started On: 08/16/2021 04:41 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 6.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a Line Item Transfer for the District Courts
Submitted By: Ronald Morgan, All District Courts
Department: All District Courts
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a Line Item Transfer for the District Courts.

Background
Line item transfer requested to fund unexpected need to replace broken items of furniture. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0435.003006 Office Equipment  $300
From 0100.0435.003100 Office Supplies $400
From 0100.0435.003120 Printer Supplies $500
From 0100.0435.003900 Membership Dues $300
To 0100.0435.003005 Furniture  $1,500

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 01:35 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 08/17/2021 01:44 PM
Form Started By: Ronald Morgan Started On: 08/17/2021 10:31 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Line item transfer for the Road and Bridge Division
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Kelly Murphy,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Road and Bridge
Division. 

Background
These supplies are used by the Paving Crew.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0200-0210-005200 Right of Way $2,000.00
To 0200-0210-003318 Janitorial Supplies $2,000.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 04:46 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 08/18/2021 03:35 PM
Form Started By: Kelly Murphy Started On: 08/17/2021 03:13 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/18/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Line item transfer for the Road and Bridge Division
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Kelly Murphy,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Road and Bridge
Division.

Background
This transfer is necessary in order to continue repairing small equipment as needed.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0200-0210-005200 Right of Way $2,500.00
To 0200-0210-004543 Repairs to Equipment $2,500.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 04:57 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 08/17/2021 05:00 PM
Form Started By: Kelly Murphy Started On: 08/17/2021 03:17 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Line Item Transfer for District Attorney
Submitted By: Ronnie Simek, District Attorney
Department: District Attorney
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the District Attorney's
Office.

Background
This transfer is neccessary to help cover the office furniture expenses of the District Attorney's
Office.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0440-003010 Computer Equipment < $5000 $5,500.00
To 0100-0440-003005 Office Furniture < $5,000.00 $5,500.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 04:29 PM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 08/18/2021 03:36 PM
Form Started By: Ronnie Simek Started On: 08/17/2021 03:59 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/18/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 10.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Line Item Transfer for the Parks Department
Submitted For: Russell Fishbeck  Submitted By: Russell Fishbeck, Parks
Department: Parks
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for the Parks Department. 

Background
Transfer of funds is necessary to (1) purchase hardware to support the park
registration/reservation system conversion and upgrade from MaxGalaxy to Active Network
Software, (2) purchase time clocks to accurately record/report employee work hours for field
based staff, (3) restock janitorial supplies due to increased visitation/usage, (4) purchase tractor
shredder and skid-steer sweeper attachment for park operation needs, and (5) contract
professional services to conduct geological assessment for future projects.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100-0510-004111 Special Events $500.00
From 0100-0510-004311 Advertising $2,700.00
From 0100-0510-004509 Facility Enhancements $10,300.00
From 0100-0510-004621 Copier Rental $1,000.00
From 0100-0510-004962 Janitorial Services $3,300.00
From 0100-0510-004500 Maintenance Services $3,800.00
From 0100-0510-003554 Chemicals, Roadside Spraying $7,500.00
To 0100-0510-003318 Janitorial Supplies $3,300.00
To 0100-0510-003010 Computer Equipment $11,300.00
To 0100-0510-005003 Equipment $11,800.00
To 0100-0510-004100 Professional Services $2,700.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:12 AM



Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 08/19/2021 11:43 AM
Form Started By: Russell Fishbeck Started On: 08/18/2021 09:25 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 11.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Line Item Transfer
Submitted For: Dale Butler  Submitted By: Gina Wrehsnig, Building

Maintenance
Department: Building Maintenance
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a line item transfer for Facilities.

Background
Need additional funds for the remainder of the FY for Safety Supplies and Vehicle
Maintenance/Repair.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
From 0100.0509.003105 Paper Supplies $3,700.00
To 0100.0509.003102 Safety Supplies $1,200.00
To 0100.0509.004541 Vehicle Repairs & Maint $2,500.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 10:12 AM
Budget Office Ashlie Holladay 08/19/2021 10:43 AM
Form Started By: Gina Wrehsnig Started On: 08/19/2021 09:45 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

L chart
Submitted For: Rebecca Clemons  Submitted By: Rebecca Clemons,

Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Take action to approve and note in the official minutes the L chart, with changes effective
10/1/2021.

Background
The attached chart refelects the 6% increase to the minimum of all levels for Law Enforcement,
as well as the deletion of the L.2 line previously for Detectives. Detectives will now be paid
through a stipend the Commissioners Court approved on 8/17/2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Lchartproposal 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 01:36 PM
Form Started By: Rebecca Clemons Started On: 08/17/2021 12:59 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 



DEPUTY

DEPUTY CONSTABLE
L1-1

L1-2 

(Const min)
L1-3 L1-4 L1-5 L1-6 L1-7 L1-8 L1-9 L1-10 L1-11 L1-12 L1-13 L1-14 L1-15 L1-16 L1-17 L1-18

Annual $56,519.82 $57,650.17 $58,803.01 $59,979.18 $61,178.69 $62,402.37 $63,650.50 $64,923.38 $66,221.83 $67,546.43 $68,897.18 $70,275.19 $71,680.75 $73,114.42 $74,576.48 $76,068.06 $77,589.44 $79,141.18

Hourly $27.17 $27.72 $28.27 $28.84 $29.41 $30.00 $30.60 $31.21 $31.84 $32.47 $33.12 $33.79 $34.46 $35.15 $35.85 $36.57 $37.30 $38.05

SERGEANT

SERGEANT INVESTIGATOR

CONSTABLE SERGEANT

L3-1 L3-2 L3-3 L3-4 L3-5 L3-6 L3-7 L3-8 L3-9 L3-10 L3-11 L3-12 L3-13 L3-14 L3-15 L3-16 L3-17 L3-18

Annual N/A $65,997.51 $67,317.33 $68,663.57 $70,037.09 $71,437.59 $72,866.48 $74,323.76 $75,810.28 $77,326.60 $78,873.00 $80,450.60 $82,059.40 $83,700.54 $85,374.56 $87,082.03 $88,823.80 $90,600.43

Hourly N/A $31.73 $32.36 $33.01 $33.67 $34.34 $35.03 $35.73 $36.45 $37.18 $37.92 $38.68 $39.45 $40.24 $41.05 $41.87 $42.70 $43.56

LIEUTENANT

CONSTABLE LIEUTENANT

DEPUTY CHIEF INVESTIGATOR

L4-1 L4-2 L4-3 L4-4 L4-5 L4-6 L4-7 L4-8 L4-9 L4-10 L4-11 L4-12 L4-13 L4-14 L4-15 L4-16 L4-17 L4-18

Annual N/A N/A $73,802.30 $75,278.42 $76,783.78 $78,319.49 $79,885.85 $81,483.69 $83,113.29 $84,775.51 $86,471.18 $88,200.58 $89,964.55 $91,763.95 $93,599.05 $95,471.26 $97,380.57 $99,328.11

Hourly N/A N/A $35.48 $36.19 $36.92 $37.65 $38.41 $39.17 $39.96 $40.76 $41.57 $42.40 $43.25 $44.12 $45.00 $45.90 $46.82 $47.75

COMMANDER

CHIEF DEPUTY CONSTABLE
L5-1 L5-2

L5-3 

(Const min)
L5-4 L5-5 L5-6 L5-7 L5-8 L5-9 L5-10 L5-11 L5-12 L5-13 L5-14 L5-15 L5-16 L5-17 L5-18

Annual N/A N/A $80,394.72 $87,824.76 $89,581.30 $91,372.97 $93,200.35 $95,064.33 $96,965.80 $98,905.05 $100,883.27 $102,900.74 $104,958.94 $107,057.88 $109,199.02 $111,383.26 $113,610.89 $115,883.09

Hourly N/A N/A $38.65 $42.22 $43.07 $43.93 $44.81 $45.70 $46.62 $47.55 $48.50 $49.47 $50.46 $51.47 $52.50 $53.55 $54.62 $55.71
**Minor variations may occur due to rounding

L STEP CHART FY22

EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 2021



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

V/E Assets for Auction 8.24.21
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county
vehicle and equipment assets through Auction including One (1) 2000 Shop Built Utility Trailer
and One (1) 1998 Massey Ferguson 4243 Tractor #6117, pursuant to Tx. Local Gov’t Code
263.152.

Background
Please see the attached list for details.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
V/E Assets for Auction 8.24.21 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 10:33 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:06 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 08/16/2021 11:06 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 14.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

V/E Assets Sale to Insurance 8.24.21
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county
assets through Sale to Insurance of One (1) 2019 Kubota M5-111D Tractor #58561, pursuant to
Tx. Local Gov’t Code 263.152. 

Background
Please see the attached list for details. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
V/E Assets for Sale to Insurance 8.24.21 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 10:34 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:07 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 08/16/2021 11:07 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

County Attorney July 2021 Monthly Report
Submitted For: D. Hobbs  Submitted By: Stephanie Lloyd, County

Attorney
Department: County Attorney
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take approrpriate action to approve the County Attorney July 2021
Monthly Report in compliance with Code of Criminal Procedure 103.005.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
July report 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 04:46 PM
Form Started By: Stephanie Lloyd Started On: 08/17/2021 04:40 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 





CA - AR Receipts

GL Revenue
Object

GL Revenue Fund Receipt Source Receipt Date Receipt Number Receipt Comment

207015 0100 CO ATTY 07-Jul-2021 30273 2020-0594

08-Jul-2021 30278 REC 2019-1072

14-Jul-2021 30294 2020-0235

20-Jul-2021 30318 2019-4508; 2020-2568

27-Jul-2021 30347 2018-6439 2020-3470 2018-6476

30-Jul-2021 30364 2020-1975 2020-2961 2020-3332

CO ATTY 2 16-Jul-2021 30302 2020-1481; 2020-0468

22-Jul-2021 30331 2019-5486 2020-0039

207015 Total

341300 0406 CO ATTY HC FEES 09-Jul-2021 30283 HOT CK RESTITUTION

341300 Total

351000 0364 CO ATTY 19-Jul-2021 30309 2019-6177; 2020-3096

CO ATTY 1 16-Jul-2021 30302 2020-1481; 2021-0711

CO ATTY 3 16-Jul-2021 30302 2019-4508; 2020-2568; 2020-2622; 2020-3791

CO ATTY INTERVENTION 02-Jul-2021 30261 2020-0594

08-Jul-2021 30278 2020-2121 2019-1072REC

22-Jul-2021 30331 2020-1401

26-Jul-2021 30343 2019-5486 2020-1967 2020-1988 2020-2875 2020-2961 2020-
3561 2021-0194

27-Jul-2021 30347 202-0361 2020-3470

28-Jul-2021 30354 2018-6476 2019-4207 2020-1500 2020-1975 2020-3198 2020-
3257 2020-3470

30-Jul-2021 30364 2019-3421 2019-5691 2020-0039 2020-3055 2020-3332

351000 Total

352200 0100 CO ATTY 12-Jul-2021 30286 21-0737-CC2/NIKOLAI NNAEMEKA HYKEL

21-0740-CC2/JUSTIN E ARCHULETA

21-0769-CC2/PEDRO CRISTIAN ROMAN-CASTORENA

352200 Total

Grand Total

Receipt Amount

$ 60.00

$ 60.00

$ 60.00

$ 285.00

$ 275.00

$ 180.00

$ 260.00

$ 120.00

$ 1,300.00

$ 335.00

$ 335.00

$ 860.00

$ 860.00

$ 1,860.00

$ 500.00

$ 860.00

$ 500.00

$ 2,940.00

$ 800.00

$ 2,780.00

$ 2,080.00

$ 14,040.00

$ 150.00

$ 2,400.00

$ 175.00

$ 2,725.00

$ 18,400.00

Page 2 of 4



Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/1/2021 Sean Soto 60.00$  2020-0594 7/6/2021

60.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/6/2021 Gavino Lucio 60.00$  2019-1072 7/8/2021

60.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/12/2021 Alexander Blair 60.00$  2020-0235 7/13/2021

60.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/13/2021 Gustavo Mederos-Juarez 200.00$  2020-0468 7/15/2021

7/13/2021 Willie Paul Parker 60.00$  2020-1481 7/15/2021

260.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/15/2021 Ronald Lee McCreery 225.00$  2019-4508 7/20/2021

7/15/2021 Clinton Robert Bradley 60.00$  2020-2568 7/20/2021

285.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/21/2021 Aaron Keith Lawson 60.00$  2019-5486 7/22/2021

7/21/2021 Gina Duran 60.00$  2020-0039 7/22/2021

120.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/22/2021 John Douglas Sharp 155.00$  2018-6439 7/27/2021

7/23/2021 Sheila Diane Thomas 60.00$  2020-3470 7/27/2021

7/26/2021 Kendra Grimshaw King 60.00$  2018-6476 7/27/2021

275.00$  

Date Payor Amount Case # Deposit Date

7/27/2021 Adriana Covarrubias 60.00$  2020-1975 7/29/2021

7/27/2021 Allison Miranda McCullough 60.00$  2020-2961 7/29/2021

7/28/2021 Philip Dover Jensen 60.00$  2020-3332 7/29/2021

180.00$  

Criminal Restitution July 2021



Disbursement Summary

Code Word Description
(+) Collection
Amount

(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

CHKFEE Check Fee 335.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 335.00

Disbursement Summary Totals 335.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 335.00

(+) Collection
Amount

(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

Check ID Number Defendant Code

Disbursement Detail
(+) Collection
Amount

(+) Previous
Escrow

(-) Escrow
Deductions

(-) Escrow
Held

Disbursement
Amount

CHKFEE 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.0019-00214 Ellner, Kevin (PID #: 1602814)
CHKFEE 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.0020-00074 Blazer, Tracey (PID #: 981926)
CHKFEE 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.0021-00006 Whelan, Michael (PID #: 1746334)
CHKFEE 75.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75.0021-00011 Woodall, David A (PID #: 1757074)
CHKFEE 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.0021-00012 Zaid, Johnny (PID #: 1757474)
CHKFEE 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.0021-00014 Palla, James M. (PID #: 434535)
CHKFEE 15.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15.0021-00017 Marquez, Alma (PID #: 1759847)

Totals: 335.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 335.00

Disbursement Summary

Collection Date Range:

TXWILLIAMSONP
ROD

06/01/2021 - 06/30/2021

County Attorney

Williamson County Treasurer - HC

County Attorney Bank

Final CopyIgnore Tender Holds: No

Printed on 07/01/2021 at 2:50 pm Page 10 of 12

Hot Check Restitution July 2021



7/1/2021 Sean Soto 500.00$     2020-0594 7/2/2021

500.00$     

7/6/2021 Gavino Lucio 500.00$     2019-1072 7/7/2021

7/6/2021 Victoria Celeste Guadalupe Nieto 360.00$     2020-2121 7/7/2021

860.00$     

7/13/2021 Willie Paul Parker 360.00$     2020-1481 7/14/2021

7/13/2021 Jennifer Sugg Hill 500.00$     2021-0711 7/14/2021

860.00$     

7/14/2021 Ernesto Rene Gonzalez 500.00$     2020-2622 7/16/2021

7/14/2021 Trenten Lee Spilman 360.00$     2020-3791 7/16/2021

7/15/2021 Clinton Robert Bradley 500.00$     2020-2568 7/16/2021

7/15/2021 Ronald Lee McCreery 500.00$     2020-4508 7/16/2021

1,860.00$  

7/16/2021 Sergio O'Connor Hernandez 360.00$     2019-6177 7/19/2021

7/16/2021 Jacob Walter Martin 500.00$     2020-3096 7/19/2021

860.00$     

7/20/2021 Hunter Ryan Blish 500.00$     2020-1401 7/21/2021

500.00$     

7/21/2021 Aaron Keith Lawson 500.00$     2019-5486 7/23/2021

7/22/2021 Keeshaun Daishad Sonnier 360.00$     2020-1967 7/23/2021

7/22/2021 Michael Robert Watkins 500.00$     2020-1988 7/23/2021

7/21/2021 Garety Paul Prati 360.00$     2020-2875 7/23/2021

7/21/2021 Allison Miranda McCullough 500.00$     2020-2961 7/23/2021

7/22/2021 Jacob Ryan Cook 360.00$     2020-3561 7/23/2021

7/21/2021 Taylor Marie McGinnis 360.00$     2021-0194 7/23/2021

2,940.00$  

7/23/2021 Edwin D Vigil 500.00$     2020-0361 7/26/2021

7/23/2021 Sheila Diane Thomas 300.00$     2020-3470 7/26/2021

800.00$     

7/26/2021 Sheila Diane Thomas 60.00$       2020-3470 7/28/2021

7/26/2021 Kendra Grimshaw King 360.00$     2018-6476 7/28/2021

7/26/2021 Joseph Mathew Tinoco 360.00$     2019-4207 7/28/2021

7/26/2021 Timothy Kamau Nyenjeri 500.00$     2020-1500 7/28/2021

7/27/2021 Adriana Covarrubias 500.00$     2020-1975 7/28/2021

7/27/2021 Megan Divine Harrison 500.00$     2020-3198 7/28/2021

7/27/2021 Holden Guillermo Ovalle 500.00$     2020-3257 7/28/2021

2,780.00$  

7/28/2021 Crystal Yvonne Rosales 360.00$     2019-3421 7/30/2021

7/28/2021 Joel Adam Cruz 500.00$     2019-5691 7/30/2021

7/29/2021 Gina Duran 500.00$     2020-0039 7/30/2021

7/28/2021 Aaron Joseph Martin 360.00$     2020-3055 7/30/2021

7/28/2021 Philip Dover Jensen 360.00$     2020-3332 7/30/2021

2,080.00$  

PTI Fees July 2021



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 16.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Deputy Appointment
Submitted By: Mickey Chance, Constable Pct. #1
Department: Constable Pct. #1
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and consider confirming the appointment of Elizabeth Ewald as a Pct. 1 Deputy
Constable.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/18/2021 12:35 PM
Form Started By: Mickey Chance Started On: 08/18/2021 09:28 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/18/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 17.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Child Welfare Reappointment
Submitted By: Becky Pruitt, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on re-appointing Susan Komandosky and Ranjit
Chhabra to the Williamson County Child Welfare Board for another three-year term, October
2021-September 2024. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Letter 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. (Originator) Becky Pruitt 08/18/2021 12:37 PM
Form Started By: Becky Pruitt Started On: 08/18/2021 12:26 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/18/2021 



 
 
August 17, 2021 
 
 
Judge Bill Gravell Jr. 
Williamson County Courthouse 
710 Main Street, Suite 101 
Georgetown, TX 78626 
 
The Honorable Bill Gravell and Williamson County Commissioners, 
 
As we near the end of fiscal year 2021, the Williamson County Child Welfare Board has three board 
members up for re-appointment – Susan Komandosky (our current board vice-president), Ranjit (Randy) 
Chhabra and Jen Davis.   
 
Due to numerous competing priorities, Ms. Jen Davis has decided to step down from the board as an 
official member, however, she plans to continue to support the board by participating in fundraising and 
community events and helping to celebrate children and youth in foster care that are adopted. 
 
I am requesting that the Commissioner’s Court approve the reappointment of Susan Komandosky and 
Randy Chhabra to the Williamson County Child Welfare Board for another three-year term, October 
2021 to September 2024.  Ms. Komandosky and Mr. Chhabra are both actively engaged with the board 
in supporting Williamson County children in foster care. 
 
Please place the request for the reappointment of Ms. Komandosky and Mr. Chhabra to the board on 
your agenda at your earlier convenience.  If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 
 
Thank you for your support of the board and the privilege you afford us to support Williamson County 
children in foster care. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Kim 
 
Kim Gibbons 
WCCWB President 
512-415-9609 
kimlgibbons@gmail.com 
 

 

 

mailto:kimlgibbons@gmail.com


   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Constable Pct 3 Agreement with TransUnion Risk and Alternative Data Solutions, Inc.
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an agreement between TransUnion
Risk and Alternative Data Solutions, Inc. and Williamson County for a research database
subscription in the amount of $280.00 per month, and authorizing execution of the agreement.

Background
Approval of this agreement will support the operations of the Williamson County Constable
Precinct 3's office.  TransUnion will provide real time data that is updated daily to help locate
persons, assets, and addresses with support through Social Media Search, Reverse Phone
Lookup, Real-time Phone Carrier Search, and more.  The attached supplement provides
additional detail.  The subscription will be on a month-to-month basis which can be terminated
at anytime prior to the beginning of the subsequent month's billing cycle. The monthly billing rate
is $280.00 for a yearly total of $3,360.00 per fiscal year.    The Department point of contact is
Patrick Hurley.  This expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0553.004210.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Pct 3 Constable TRADS 
TransUnion Redacted 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/18/2021 06:34 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:40 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 08/18/2021 02:40 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



                          



 
 

PRICING SUPPLEMENT 
 

This Pricing Supplement and attached Pricing Sheet (collectively, the “Supplement”) is 
incorporated into and supplements the then-current Law Enforcement Agency Subscriber Agreement 
(“Agreement”) between TransUnion Risk and Alternative Data Solutions, Inc. (“TRADS”) and the below-
identified Agency (“Agency”). The Agency agrees as follows: 

 

1. Effective Date; Term. The Effective Date of this Supplement is specified in the Pricing 
Sheet. This Supplement shall commence upon the Effective Date and continue for the 
period specified in the Pricing Sheet (“Supplement Term”). Upon expiration of the 
Supplement Term, the Agreement will continue in effect in accordance with the terms 
therein, absent this Supplement, subject to TRADS’s then-current fees and charges for the 
TRADS Services accessed thereafter. TRADS reserves the right to terminate this 
Supplement for convenience at any time. 

 
2. Fees and Charges. Agency agrees to be bound by this Supplement and agrees to pay all fees 

and charges set forth in the Pricing Sheet during the Supplement Term. 
 

3. Miscellaneous. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Pricing Supplement and any 
prior pricing supplement, agreement or understanding with respect to the TRADS Services 
identified herein, the terms of this Pricing Supplement shall supersede, control and otherwise 
replace. In the event any one or more provisions of this Supplement, or the Pricing Sheet, is 
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the enforceability of any remaining provision(s) shall be 
unimpaired. All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Supplement will have the same 
meanings given to them in the Agreement. Except as provided in this Supplement, all other 
terms the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. In the 
event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement and this Supplement, the terms of this 
Supplement will apply. 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank. Signature page follow on the attached Pricing Sheet] 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 250CF890-2B24-40DB-826F-39CFEF46EFF7



 
PRICING SHEET to Pricing Supplement 

 

“Agency”:  Williamson County Constable PCT 3 
 

  Agency ID:  

 
TRADS Services: TLOxp® Online - Non-Batch LE Flat Rate. 

 

  Effective Date: 10/01/2021 
 

Supplement Term:  12 month(s) without auto-

renewal. 
 

 

“Monthly Fee”: USD 280.00 
 

“Number of Monthly Transactions”:  500 
 

The Monthly Fee includes the Number of Monthly Transactions, 
subject to the Excluded Items and Overage Transaction pricing. 
Unused Number of Monthly Transactions do not rollover into a 
subsequent month. 

INCLUDED SEARCHES AND REPORTS: 

The Monthly Fee includes all searches and reports currently offered through the TRADS Services as of the Effective Date, 

with the exception of the searches and reports listed below (“Excluded Items”), unless checked below, in which case, the 

checked items are included in the Monthly Fee. 

 Social Media Comprehensive Report    X  Comprehensive Report – Person 

  X  Social Media Basic Search    X  Comprehensive Report – Business 

  X  Super Reverse Phone Lookup    X  Address Report 

  X  Relationship Report    X  Locate/Asset Report 

  X  Real-Time Phone Carrier Search    X  Phone Report 

 Real-Time Arrests & Incarcerations    

The Excluded Items are subject to TRADS’ then-current fees and charges (unless a price is specified above) on a per Transaction 
basis, subject to Agency’s data access rights. The fees and charges for Excluded Items are in addition to the Monthly Fee. TRADS 
reserves the right to exclude (as Excluded Items) future released searches and/or reports from the Monthly Fee. 

OVERAGE TRANSACTION PRICING: 

Transactions exceeding the Number of Monthly Transactions are subject to TRADS’ then-current fees and charges on a per 
Transaction basis, except as specified otherwise below (“Overage Transactions”) and subject to Agency’s data access rights. 
Fees and charges for Overage Transactions are in addition to the Monthly Fee. 

“Transactions” means any information returned by TRADS in response to a search query (whether in the form of search results or 
reports). 

 

Agency acknowledges and agrees that Agency’s signature on this page constitutes agreement to and acceptance of 
this Supplement in its entirety. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Williamson County Constable PCT 3 ("Agency") 

 By:   \sign1\ 
 

Representative 
 

\fullname1\ 

 
 

   

Full Name 
 

 

 

Title 

 
\date1\ 

 
 

 

Date Signed 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 250CF890-2B24-40DB-826F-39CFEF46EFF7



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Juvenile Justice LiveScan Ruggedized Mugshot Capture and Printer
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the Agreement between Williamson
County and Idemia Identity & Security USA LLC for the purchase of LiveScan for a total of
$2,937.00, and authorizing the execution of the Agreement. 

Background
The approval of this agreement will benefit the Williamson County Juvenile Justice Center with
the extension of the LiveScan Ruggedized Mugshot Capture and Printer.  The system captures
biometric identity information such as finger prints, palm prints, and mugshots.  The attached
agreement has more detailed information regarding the equipment and use. The extension will
extend the agreement though 2/23/2022. The total cost is $2,937.00. The original equipment
was installed on 2/24/2020. The point of contact is Roberto Lopez.  The line item expenditure is
being charged to 01.0100.0576.004500. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Idemia Redacted Agreement 
Idemia 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 10:49 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:11 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 08/18/2021 03:16 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 





























   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

District Attorney Westlaw Subscription Upgrade
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the agreement between Thomson
Reuters and Williamson County for a Westlaw Proflex Subscription Upgrade pursuant to
DIR-LGL-CALIR-02 in the amount of $2,361.60 per month, for 36 months, and authorize
execution of the agreement.

Background
Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County District Attorney's
Office by providing access to caselaw and cutting-edge research tools.  The agreement
attached outlines the details of the subscription.  This will upgrade all 25 attorney subscriptions
at the District Attorney's Office starting in FY22.  Agreement is for a term of 36 months. 
Department contact is Grace Frias.  This expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0440.004210. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/18/2021 06:22 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:34 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 08/18/2021 11:16 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 





 

Page 2 of 3 

 

eBilling Contact. All invoices for this account will be emailed to your e-Billing Contact(s) unless you have notified us that you would like to be 

exempt from e-Billing.  
 

Credit Verification. If you are applying for credit as an individual, we may request a consumer credit report to determine your creditworthiness. If 

we obtain a consumer credit report, you may request the name, address and telephone number of the agency that supplied the credit report. If you 

are applying for credit on behalf of a business, we may request a current business financial statement from you to consider your request. 
 

Returns and Refunds. You may return a print product to us within 45 days of the original shipment date if you are not completely satisfied. 

Please see http://static.legalsolutions.thomsonreuters.com/static/returns-refunds.pdf or contact Customer Service at 1-800-328-4880 for additional 

details regarding our policies on returns and refunds.  
  

Transportation Charges.  Print products are shipped F.O.B. origin. Transportation charges will be added for expedited shipments made at your 

request and for international product delivery.  Expedited shipments and international product shipments will be charged at then-current carrier 

rates 
 

 

Product Specific Terms. The following products have specific terms which are incorporated by reference and made part of this Order Form if 

they apply to your order. They can be found at https://static.legalsolutions.thomsonreuters.com/static/ThomsonReuters-General-Terms-Conditions-

PST.pdf. If the product is not part of your order, the product specific terms do not apply. If there is a conflict between product specific terms and 

the Order Form, the product specific terms control. 

 Campus Research 

 Contract Express  

 Hosted Practice Solutions 

 ProView eBooks 

 Time and Billing 

 West km Software 

 West LegalEdcenter 

 Westlaw 

 Westlaw Doc & Form Builder 

 Westlaw Paralegal 

 Westlaw Patron Access 

 Westlaw Public Records 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

Acknowledgement: Order ID:  
 

 

 

 

Signature of Authorized Representative for order Title 

  

 Printed Name  Date 

© 2021 West, a Thomson Reuters business.  All rights reserved. 

 

 

This Order Form will expire and will not be accepted after 10/10/2021.   





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Award RFP #T3838 Queuing Software to Nemo-Q, Inc.
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding RFP #T3838, for Queuing Software
to Nemo-Q, Inc. for the Williamson County Tax Accessor Collector's Officeand authorizing the
execution of the agreement.

Background
Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Tax Accessor
Collector's Office.  The Purchasing Department solicited sealed proposals for RFP T3838
Queuing Software.  Twenty-five (25) vendors participated in the RFP, two (2)  vendors
sumbitted proposals.  Nemo-Q was found to be the best overall respondent.  Nemo-Q's
proposal included a web-based solution that allows for Williamson County customers to get in
line as walk-ins, same day planned appointments or for scheduling days or weeks in advance. 
The Nemo-Q system includes current wait time information by office location and transaction
type.  The software also seamlessly integrates with existing workstations and customer kiosks. 
The contract and addendum are attached, outlining the details of the software. Contract term is
for one-year (1) with two (2) optional one-year renewals.  Year one costs are $5,680.  Recurring
annual costs starting year two are $18,280 which include annual hosting, 20,000 SMS per
month, annual maintenance and hardware.  Department contact is Matt Johnson.  This
expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.0499.004500 and 01.0100.0499.004505. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Evaluation Scores 
Recommendation Letter 
Sales Agreement 
Addendum 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 11:04 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:07 AM
Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 08/16/2021 01:27 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 





Evaluation Criteria Maximum Points Nemo-Q Whyline
Business Service 30 20 20
Software and Technology 20 10 10
Training Licensing Maintenance Support 20 10 10
Price 30 30 4.32
Total: 100 70 44.32

RFP T3838 Queuing Software



MISSION STATEMENT 
Our dedicated team is committed to providing innovative and exceptional 
customer service in the assessment, collection, and distribution of taxes and fees.  

Main Office:                                                  Annex Locations:  
904 South Main Street                                      1801 E Old Settlers Blvd, Ste 115     350 Discovery Blvd,  Ste 101         412 Vance St, Ste 1 
Georgetown, TX 78626                                      Round Rock, TX 78664                     Cedar Park, TX 78613                  Taylor, TX 76574 
Telephone : 512.943.1601                      
   
www.wilco.org/tax 

  

 
 

Larry Gaddes PCAC, CTA 
Tax Assessor/Collector 

 

 
  
 
 
August 12, 2021 
 
 
To:          Mrs. Erica Smith – Purchasing 
 
From:      Matt Johnson - Tax Office 
 
Subject:  Queuing Software 
   
                T3838 
 
Re:          RFP Evaluation 
 
 
In response to Solicitation T3838, the Purchasing Department received two responsive bids 
desiring to provide queuing service for Williamson County. 
 
The Evaluation Committee, with Purchasing Department overview, reviewed the bids. 
 
After reviewing the bids and considering pricing, Nemo Q is the best overall selection for queuing 
service for Williamson County. 
 
The Williamson County Tax Office recommends that Nemo Q be awarded the queuing service 
contract for Williamson County.  Solicitation T3838 
 
Thank you, 
 
Matt Johnson 
Williamson County  
Chief Deputy 
Tax Assessor/Collector 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Cedar Park Tax Annex Camera Installation with Knight Security Systems
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving the proposal between Williamson
County and Knight Security Systems for the installation of one (1) additional surveillance
camera in the Cedar Park Tax Office Annex in the total amount of $1,844.76, per the terms of
the DIR CPO 4494 Co-op contract, and authorize the execution of the agreement.

Background
The approval of this proposal will benefit the Cedar Park Tax Office Annex with the installation
of one (1) new indoor camera for surveillance of the cash room needed for security purposes. 
The cost of this installation is a total of $1,844.76, with an annual recurring amount of $300.00. 
The department contact is Matt Johnson.  The line item expenditure being charged is
01.0100.0499.003006. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Cedar Park Tax Office Camera Addition 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/18/2021 06:50 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:31 AM
Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 08/13/2021 08:40 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



  
     (512) 590-7886  | kgarlick@knightsecurity.com |  www.knightsecurity.com 

 
1 of 3 

Confidential - Do not duplicate or distribute without written permission from Knight Security Systems, Inc. 
 

8/3/2021  | Proposal   | Wilco-Cedar Park Annex-Tax office-Camera add 

Client Initials:__________ 

  
  

  

Kevin Garlick 

kgarlick@knightsecurity.com 

(512) 590-7886 

  

  
Name: Williamson County - Cedar Park Annex 

Site   Billing   Contact 
350 Discovery Blvd, #202 

Cedar Park, TX 78613 

  350 Discovery Blvd, #202 

Cedar Park, TX 78613 

  Don Heflin, IT-Systems 
P (512) 409-6222 

E don.heflin@wilco.org 

   
  
PROJECT NAME: Wilco-Cedar Park Annex-Tax office-Camera add 
  
PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 
DIR-CPO-4494  
Knight Security Systems (KSS) will provide and install Security additions for Wilco-Cedar Park Annex-Tax office 

location. 
  
System installation includes hardware, system licenses, programming, and configuration unless 
otherwise stated. 
  
General Scope of Work : Video Surveillance System additions 
• One new indoor camera(ceiling mounted) and associated cable back to IDF in the following locations: 
- Mail-room 
   
New camera license(s) will be added to the existing video server and will impact the available storage 
KSS will enroll the cameras and set up basic motion detection. 
  
Customer Provided Items 

• Existing recording server with storage space to accommodate the new devices 

• PoE switches and patch panels 

• Network configurations for connection of devices to Customer's network 

• IP address assignments 
  
Finance    
Purchaser hereby agrees to pay KSS the following terms:           
  
Project Milestones and Invoicing Procedures 

• An invoice will be submitted after completion of scope and is due and payable within 15 days of receiving 

• The Customer is required to pay every invoice in full within 30 days of receiving the invoice. 
• Refer to the Standard Terms and Conditions sections 8H, 8I, and 8J. 

  
Any changes from the base price will be adjusted with approved change orders from the Customer. 
  
Engineering - Not included with this scope. 
  
Cabling & Wiring 
KSS will be responsible to install all the wiring and connections providing communication and/or control between KSS 
supplied devices and central control equipment. 



  
     (512) 590-7886  | kgarlick@knightsecurity.com |  www.knightsecurity.com 

 
2 of 3 

Confidential - Do not duplicate or distribute without written permission from Knight Security Systems, Inc. 
 

8/3/2021  | Proposal #   | Wilco-Cedar Park Annex-Tax office-Camera add 

Client Initials:__________ 

  
  

  
Field Devices 
KSS will provide all necessary devices and hardware included on the equipment list attached. The devices on the 
security plans will be installed and programmed into the system according to the system matrix. 
  
Programming 
KSS trained personnel will program the security system to provide a functioning operational system. KSS will program 
each device according to the system matrix provided in the security plans or to match the existing naming convention. 
  
Rental Equipment - Not included with this scope. 
  
Testing 
KSS will perform acceptance testing in the presence of the appointed Customer representative to ensure proper 
operation and communication of all integrated systems. The final system test report will be sent to all parties. 
  
Training - Not included with this scope. 
  
Conditions and Qualifications 
• Customer shall designate a single point of contact for Knight Security.  Designated person will coordinate among all 

departments or agencies and will have authority to make project related decisions and provide final acceptance. 

• Work provided by Knight Security, including training, is assumed to be during normal business hours; 7a-5p M-F 
excluding holidays. 

• 120vac, space for control panels, switch, and UPS in a centrally located closet in a climate controlled space 
provided by Owner. 

• Cables will be routed in the accessible ceilings or exposed when attached to building structure.  Conduit or other 
metallic raceway is not included in this proposal unless stated above. 

• KSS is not responsible for any existing devices being reused. A quote will be provided to the customer for any 

devices that are found to be defective or inoperable. 

• KSS is not responsible for any damages left from the removal of existing devices. The Customer is responsible for 

patching and repairing any damages left from the removal of existing devices. 

  
DIR CPO-4494 
  

• Termination for Convenience:  This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of either party, 
without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty (30) days written notice thereof.  In the 
event of termination, The County will only be liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods 
actually received. 

  

• Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of 
the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date 
licensee receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the contract 
is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. 
Interest charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by licensee in accordance with Texas Government 
Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate 
in effect on September 1 of licensee’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect 
on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall 
Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday. 

  

• Mediation: The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior to and formal legal action being taken 
on this Contract. 

  

• Venue and Governing Law: Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County, Texas, and the law of the State 
of Texas shall govern. 

  



  
     (512) 590-7886  | kgarlick@knightsecurity.com |  www.knightsecurity.com 

 
3 of 3 

Confidential - Do not duplicate or distribute without written permission from Knight Security Systems, Inc. 
 

8/3/2021  | Proposal # | Wilco-Cedar Park Annex-Tax office-Camera add 

Client Initials:__________ 

  
  

• Right to Audit: Knight Security Systems, LLC agrees that licensee or its duly authorized representatives shall, 
until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right 
to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Knight Security Systems, 
LLC which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of 
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Knight Security Systems, LLC agrees that licensee 
shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary Knight Security Systems, LLC facilities and 
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the 
provisions of this section.  licensee shall give Knight Security Systems, LLC reasonable advance notice of 
intended audits. 

 

• Texas Law Applicable to Indemnification: All indemnifications or limitations of liability or statutes of limitations 

shall be to the extent authorized under Texas law and shall follow Texas law without modifying the County’s 

rights. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
     (512) 590-7886  | kgarlick@knightsecurity.com |  www.knightsecurity.com 

 
4 of 3 

Confidential - Do not duplicate or distribute without written permission from Knight Security Systems, Inc. 
 

8/3/2021  | Proposal #   | Wilco-Cedar Park Annex-Tax office-Camera add 

Client Initials:__________ 

  
  

PROJECT INVESTMENT 
  

 Estimate  
 

QTY Description Unit Price Ext.Price 
0.5 23-4P UNS SOL CMP C6 Ylw Jkt - 500 ft $260.00 $130.00 
1 1 camera connection $176.31 $176.31 
1 DIR- Project Install Kit $53.85 $53.85 
1 PANDUIT CBL ASSY MOD 28-4PR STRANDED 1ft thin Cat6 $11.22 $11.22 
1 Mini-Com Module, Category 6, UTP, 8-Position 8-Wir $14.86 $14.86 
1 AXIS M3066-V is an ultra-compact, indoor fixed min $286.26 $286.26 
1 GenetecAdvantage for 1 OmnicastEnterprise Camera   $35.26 $35.26 
 

Annual Recurring: 
Description Annual Recurring Ext.Price 
Secure Plan Premium Service Level Agreement $300.00 

Investment Summary 

  
Total Equipment $707.76 

Total Labor $837.00 

Total Proposal Amount $1,544.76 

Note: Sales tax, if applicable, is not included on this proposal and will be added to the 
total upon invoicing.   

  
Investment Total 
  
Knight Security Systems will provide the proposed system as described in this proposal for the sum of: $1,544.76 

Annual Recurring $300.00 

 
The price above includes: material, equipment and labor as described within this proposal.  
   
 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and Service Provider have duly executed this Agreement to be effective as of 

the date of the last party’s execution below. 
  

  
           COUNTY: 
  
            WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
  
By: ________________________________ 
            
Printed Name:  _______________________ 
  
Representative 
Capacity: _________________________ 
  
Date: ______________________ _____, 20_____ 
     
 

 
 

  
  

SERVICE PROVIDER: 
  
________________________________________ 
                                                            
By: ____________________________________ 
  

Printed Name: 
____________________________ 

 

Representative 

Capacity:      ___________________________ 

  

Date:  __________________ _____, 20_____ 

Knight Security Systems

Kevin Garlick

Account Manager

August 12 21



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Deed without Warranty
Submitted For: Bill Gravell  Submitted By: Becky Pruitt, County

Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the execution of a Deed without
Warranty from Williamson County, Texas, acting as Trustee, to JJ Service and Septic Service,
LLC, pursuant to Section 34.05 (a) and (h) of the Texas Property Tax Code pertaining to Part of
Lots 11 and 12, Block 75, City of Taylor, Williamson County, Texas being more particularly
described in Document #2011028180 of the Official Public Records, Williamson County, Texas
(Tax Account #R311277).

Background
The property subject of the deed is being held in trust by Williamson County for the use and
benefit of itself and other taxing entities that the property is subject to. The consideration paid by
the grantee is equal to the total amount of the judgment against the subject property and this
conveyance is being made pursuant to Section 34.05(a) and (h) of the Texas Property Tax
Code. Section 34.05 (h) In lieu of a sale pursuant to Subsections (c) and (d) of this section, the
taxing unit that purchased the property may sell the property at a private sale. Consent of each
taxing unit entitled to receive proceeds of the sale under the judgment is not required. Property
sold under this subsection may not be sold for an amount that is less than the lesser of: (1) the
market value specified in the judgment of foreclosure; or (2) the total amount of the judgments
against the property. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. (Originator) Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 08:15 AM
Form Started By: Becky Pruitt Started On: 08/16/2021 03:57 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 24.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Consider Authorizing Active Network Purchase and Online Transaction Fee Agreement
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on: (1) purchasing cash drawers and receipt
printers through ActiveNet for the Parks Department for a one-time fee of $5,714.50, and (2)
authorize the execution of the agreement for the ActiveNet - Public Interface - Online
Transaction Fee.

Background
The Parks Department is transitioning their reservation software from MaxGalaxy to ActiveNet.
 The Parks Department was required to upgrade the existing software to ActiveNet after the
current platform was acquired earlier this year.  On March 30, 2021, the Commissioners Court
approved a county addendum for the data-conversion and upgrade for the ActiveNet Software
under agenda item #13.  With this conversion it is also necessary to upgrade cash drawers and
receipt printers to ensure functionality with the ActiveNet software.  The public interface online
transaction fee was part of the original agreement, but the specific line item reference was
inadvertently omitted from the original ActiveNet data-conversion and upgrade invoice
schedule. Russell Fishbeck is the Point of Contact. Funding Source: 01.100.0510.003010 FY
2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
transaction fee agreement 
Hardware agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 10:51 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:09 AM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 08/18/2021 11:37 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



Signature: ______________________________________________________

Printed Name: ___________________________________________________

Title: __________________________________________________________

Date: __________________________________________________________

PO# (if applicable): _______________________________________________

Active reserves the right, and may take additional measures to verify Client’s account which may consist of reviewing publicly
available data and/ confirmation of Client provided information. Such verification measures will be completed in advance of
remittance.

All fees described herein are in consideration of the Software and Services that Active provides. Active and Client acknowledge that certain
credit card network rules and laws prohibit imposing a surcharge that is based on the type of payment method used (e.g., having a different fee
for the use of a credit card vs. debit card), and therefore, each agree not to impose such a surcharge on any End User. The payment options
we offer may include MasterCard, Visa, American Express and Discover.

*Sales tax and shipping not included in total price. Sales tax and shipping, where applicable, will be added to your invoice.

301 SE Inner Loop Ste 105 
Georgetown, TX 78626 United States

Ship To Address

Alison GleasonShip To Contact

219 Perry Mayfield Blvd 
Leander, TX 78641 United States

Bill To Address

Alison GleasonBill To Contact

Williamson CountyBill To Name

mbeteille@wilco.orgEmail

(512) 943-1448Phone

Minnie BeteielleContact Name

nicola.leblanc@activenetwork.comOwner Email

Nicola LeBlancOpportunity Owner

Sharon KramerPrepared By

USDCurrency

Quote Number

8/10/2021Created Date717 North Harwood Drive, Suite 2500
Dallas, TX 75201
US

Company Address

This is a Schedule pursuant to that certain County Addendum (Agreement) entered into between ActiveNetwork (Active)
and Williamson County (Client) with an effective date as of 03/30/2021.

Product
Product
Type

Description Quantity
Total

Price*
Sales
Price

Fee
%

ACTIVENet - Public Interface
- Online Transaction Fee

SaaS
Migration Loyalty Rates for first term of contract for U.S. organizations
exceeding $30,000,000 in annual revenue through ACTIVE Net.

1
USD
0.00

USD
0.00

3.00

Quote Acceptance Information



Signature: ______________________________________________________

Printed Name: ___________________________________________________

Title: __________________________________________________________

Date: __________________________________________________________

PO# (if applicable): _______________________________________________

Active reserves the right, and may take additional measures to verify Client’s account which may consist of reviewing publicly
available data and/ confirmation of Client provided information. Such verification measures will be completed in advance of
remittance.

All fees described herein are in consideration of the Software and Services that Active provides. Active and Client acknowledge that certain
credit card network rules and laws prohibit imposing a surcharge that is based on the type of payment method used (e.g., having a different fee
for the use of a credit card vs. debit card), and therefore, each agree not to impose such a surcharge on any End User. The payment options
we offer may include MasterCard, Visa, American Express and Discover.

*Sales tax and shipping not included in total price. Sales tax and shipping, where applicable, will be added to your invoice.

5,714.50Hardware Total

USD 5,714.50Total Price

301 SE Inner Loop Ste 105 
Georgetown, TX 78626 United States

Ship To Address

Alison GleasonShip To Contact

219 Perry Mayfield Blvd 
Leander, TX 78641 United States

Bill To Address

Alison GleasonBill To Contact

Williamson CountyBill To Name

bbonner@wilco.orgEmail

(512) 943-1926Phone

Benita BonnerContact Name

nicola.leblanc@activenetwork.comOwner Email

Nicola LeBlancOpportunity Owner

Sharon KramerPrepared By

USDCurrency

Quote Number

8/10/2021Created Date717 North Harwood Drive, Suite 2500
Dallas, TX 75201
US

Company Address

This is a Schedule pursuant to that certain COUNTY ADDENDUM FOR ACTIVENET SaaS RESERVATION SYSTEM
AND RELATED PRODUCTS (Agreement) entered into between ActiveNetwork (Active) and Williamson County (Client)
with an effective date as of 03/30/2021.

Product
Product
Type

Quantity
Total

Price*
Sales
Price

Total
Price

Total Discount
Amount

ACTIVENet - APG S4000 Cash Drawer MultiPro Int - need
printer (cable incl)

Hardware 10
USD

1,892.00
USD

189.20
1,892.00 USD 0.00

ACTIVENet - Epson T-88V (USB) Thermal Receipt Printer Hardware 10
USD

3,542.00
USD

354.20
3,542.00 USD 0.00

ACTIVENet - Epson Thermal Receipt Paper Hardware 3
USD

280.50
USD

93.50
280.50 USD 0.00

Quote Acceptance Information



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 25.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Authorize Purchase of Office Furniture for District Attorney's Office from Facilities Resource, Inc.
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Kim Chappius,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase and installation of
office furniture at the Williamson County District Attorney's Office from Facilities Resource, Inc.
in the amount of $18,874.50 per the terms of Omnia Cooperative Contract #R191811 and
authorizing execution of the proposal.  

Background
Facilities Resource, Inc. will provide furniture and installation services for (1) 84" Diameter
Round Conference Table and (10) High Back wood arm chairs. Quotes attached. Department
Point of Contact is Tom Stanfield.  Funding Source is P515.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
QUOTE 
QUOTE 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 08:47 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:58 AM
Form Started By: Kim Chappius Started On: 08/17/2021 08:03 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



Facilities Resource Inc. 

111 00 Metric Blvd 

Suite 450 

QUOTATION & CONTRACT 

Austin, TX 78758 

PH: 512-371-1232 
FX: 512-371-9155 

08/04/21 

.. 

General Sales Per Contract 

Williamson County 

710 S. Main Street 

Georgetown, TX 78626-5703 

PH: 512.943.1611 

FX: 512.930.3313 

OMNIA Partners Contract#R191811 

• 

District Attorney's Office 

Williamson County 

405 Martin Luther King Jr. Street 
Georgetown, TX 78626-4901 

PH: 512.943.1611 

FX: 512.930.3313 

10.00 89X-EWECC 3 41309 MH C3 $ 652.95 $6,529.50 

2 

TRIUMPH.HIGH BACK.WOOD ARM.URETHANE ARM CAP 
3 = GRADE 3 
41309 = SILVERTEX STORM 
MH = MOCHA 
C3 = BLACK HARD DUAL WHEEL 
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $1,451.00 

1.00 [No Product Number] 
Receipt Delivery Installation 
-- ITEM LIST PRICE: $350.00 

$ 350.00 

1 •�r••·�-
•storage of product for up to 2 weeks is included in the proposal cost. Storage commences the date the product is received.

*Additional storage will be calculated on a weekly basis and charged on a change order until the products leave the warehouse.
Any outstanding storage change order older than 15 days will cause a hold on product release.

**Facilities Resource, Inc. will assess a 3.5% convenience fee on all credit card transactions. 

Page 1 of 2 

$ 350.00 



Facilities Resource Inc. 
11100 Metric Blvd 
Suite 450 

Austin, TX 78758 

PH: 512-371-1232 

FX: 512-371-9155 

QUOTATION & CONTRACT 

08/04/21  

. .

General Sales Per Contract 

WE ARE PLEASED TO QUOTE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS FOR YOUR APPROVAL. THESE ITEMS ARE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SALE WHICH ARE PART OF THIS 

AGREEMENT. THE MERCHANDISE WILL BE ORDERED UPON RECEIPT OF THIS SIGNED CONTRACT AND DEPOSIT. THIS OFFER WILL EXPIRE 30 DAYS FROM THE QUOTATION DATE. THIS 

QUOTATION, WHEN ACCEPTED IS A CONTRACT BINDING ON BOTH PARTIES AND IS NOT SUBJECT TO CHANGE OR CANCELLATION EXCEPT BY WRITTEN CONSENT BY BOTH PARTIES. 

Date 08/04/21 
SUBTOTAL I 

FREIGHT 

$6,879.501 

$0.00 

Facilities Resource Inc. DELIVERY /SET-UP $0.00 

SALES TAX (0%) $0.00 

X Date 

Trtle 

TOTALI $6,879.501 

Williamson County DEPOSIT REQUESTED $0.00 

BALANCE' $6,879.501 

Page 2 of2 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

facilities 
resource inc. 

1. The_ �_uyer's signatur_e on a Facilities Resource, Inc. proposal or the issu�nce of a purchase order from the Buyer to
Fac1ht1es Resource, Inc. constitutes acceptance and a binding purchase agreement for services. On all orders over
$1,000.00 a hard copy PO is requested.

2. Ch'.3_nges requested by Buyer subsequent to manufacturer acknowledgement are subject to Facilities Resource, lnc.'s
ability to conform and upon factory approval. All such requests shall be delivered to Facilities Resource, Inc. in writing
and accepted by Facilities Resource, Inc. in writing. Resulting additional charges shall be paid by the Buyer.

3. The Buyer warrants that the credit application and other financial statement submitted to Facilities Resource, Inc. are
true and correct. ... -

4. In the event construction delays or other causes not within Facilities Resource, lnc.'s control force postponement of
the delivery and/or installation, the merchandise can be sored at a rate of $211-.00 per GMA pallet until installation will
ta�e place. The Buyer shall pay any demurrage charges incurred.

5. Client must hold property insurance for replacement value on merchandise stored in Facilities Resource, Inc.
warehouse. FRI will not be responsible for damage due to fire, flood or any other uncontrolled circumstance, for client
owned property stored in its warehouse and does not hold insurance for such.

6. Claif!]S for damage in transit will be processed by Facilities Resource, Inc. and damaged merchandise shall be
repaired or replaced to the reasonable satisfaction of the Buyer. · :

7. Whe_rein product deliveries and labor at site are affected by stairs and no other means (elevator or mechanical lift) of
moving products is available, an additional fee will be applied.

8. Storage of product for up to (2) weeks is included in the proposal cost. Storage fees commence the date the product
is received.

9. Additional Storage will be calculated on a weekly basis and charged on a change order until the product leaves the
warehouse. Any storage change order out-standing more than (15) calendar days will cause a hold on the product
release.

10. Deli'."ery and installation will be made during Facilities Resource, Inc. regular business hours and according to the
serv(Ce schedule pr�V:ided to the Buyer. Regular busiml5s hours are Monday - Friday, 7:00am - 5:00pm. Buyer will
be billed for any add1t1onal labor costs resulting from overtime work performed at the Buyer's request. If the space
provided is inadequate or requires excessive sorting or storage costs, Buyer shall reimburse Facilities Resource, Inc.
for the cost of same. If the space provided is inconveniently located or on a floor different from the installation site,
Buyer shall reimburse Facilities Resource, Inc. for the extra costs of transporting merchandise to and from storage.
If the merchandise must be moved due to activity of other trades or other reasons, Buyer shall reimburse Facilities 
Resource, Inc. for the cost of same.

11. Facilities Resource, Inc. shall not be responsible for manufacturer's inability to meet their estimated ship dates.
Estimated ship dates are for manufacturers time allowances '.©nly and do not.include any time allowance for actual
shipping and delivery of merchandise.

12. Buyer must keep the job· site free and clear of debris before and during the installation. Hoisting or elevator service
and adequate facilities for off-loading, staging, moving, and handling of merchandise must be provided by the Buyer
and without charge to Facilities Resource, Inc. The Buyer is also responsible for securing all necessary building
permits and licenses.

13. After arrival of the merchandise at the site, any loss or damage by weather, trades working at the site, or otherwise,
shall be the fesponsibility of the Buyer.

14. Merchandise will be invoiced upon shipment from the manufacturer. Buyer agrees to pay each invoice within the
Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the
Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date licensee
receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the contract is completed; or
(3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any
overdue payments shall be paid by licensee in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.0�5. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of licensee's
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum �f
one percent (1 %); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding
fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

15. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Contract or any breach thereof shall be settled in accordance
with the Rules of the American Arbitration Association and judgment upon the award may be entered in any court
having jurisdiction thereof.

16. In the event of default under this agreement, the prevailing piarty shall be allowed to recover attorney fees in
accordance with the determination of the court. · 

17. In no event shall either party be liable for any special indirect, consequential, incidental damages including, without
limitation, damages for loss of business profits, business interruptions or loss of information, even if the other Party
has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

18. Facilities Resource, Inc. will provide certificate of insurance acceptable to buyer and insurance that it maintains
adequate workers compensation, general liability & property coverage at all times. If a waiver is requested as part of
the insurance requirements, a $350.00 fee per waiver will be charged.

11100 Metric Blvd., Building 7, Suite 450 • Austin, TX 78758 • p 512.371.1232 • f512.371.9155 • www.fri-texas.com 



facilities 
resource inc. 

19. Unless otherwise specified, all furniture is warranted by Facilities Resource, Inc. to be free from defects in materials
and workmanship for the period of time each manufacturer provides on its product from date of delivery. Facilities
Resource, Inc. will repair, adjust, or take corrective action on any problem free of charge within 30 days of purchase
or manufacturers earliest notification. Manufacturer's warranties will apply with any charges for labor at the prevailing
rates. It is expressly agreed that this warranty is in place and in lieu of all warranties of fitness and merchantability.
All used or rental return merchandise is sold on an "AS IS" basis.

20. It shall be understood and agreed that during the term of this agreement and for a period of 12 (twelve) months,
thereafter, the Buyer will not directly nor indirectly recruit and/or hire any employee of Facilities Resource, Inc., unless
mutually agreed upon between Officers of the Buyer and Facilities Resource, Inc.

21. All additional costs listed above shall include a 25% administrative fee.
22. Facilities Resource, Inc. will assess a 3.5% convenience fee on all credit card transactions.
23. The above is the entire agreement between the Buyer and Facilities Resource, Inc. It may not be changed without

mutual written authorization. These terms apply to the initial order and any subsequent orders.

I have read and understand all of the terms and conditions contained herein. 

Agreed: 

Signature Date 

D:\Downloads\!ThrowAway\FRl_20210413_TermsWithHelloSign.docx 



July 27, 2021 

Mr. Grace Frias 
Williamson County 
3101 SE Inner Loop 
Georgetown, TX 78626 

Re: Williamson County District Attorney's Office 405 Martin 
Luther King Jr. Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 

Dear Grace: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Facilities Resource, Inc. is pleased to respond to your request for a fee proposal for furniture and services for the 
Williamson County District Attorney's Office located in Williamson County, Texas. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

FRI will provide furniture and services options as outlined below. 

- (1) 84" Diameter round conference table
(2) section top with center panel
Top Halves, laminate with 3" wide x 1 ½" solid wood edge
Tri Pod base with steel strut supports
Base with levelers and removable access panels
Final finishes: TBD
""Pricing Includes Receipt, Delivery and Installation 

$11,995.00 

Furniture Delivery and Installation Services are costed to be completed during regular business hours, two weeks 
storage is in this proposal, if additional storage is required additional costs with apply. 

GRAND TOTAL $11.995,00 

If this proposal is acceptable, please indicate by signing below and returning to me. This fee proposal is valid for 60 days from the 
date of this letter. We appreciate the opportunity to work with you and anticipate a successful project. If there is any further 
information we can provide, please contact me. 

Agreed: 

Date: 
----------

Williamson County 

11100 Metric Blvd., Building 7, Suite 450 • Austin, TX 78758 • p 512.371.1232 • f 512.371.9155 • www.fri-texas.com 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

facilities 
resource inc. 

1. The Buyer's signature on a Facilities Resource, Inc. proposal or the issuance of a purchase order from the Buyer to 
Facilities Resource, Inc. constitutes acceptance and a binding purchase agreement for services. On all orders over 
$1,000.00 a hard copy PO is requested.

2. Changes requested by Buyer subsequent to manufacturer acknowledgement are subject to Facilities Resource, lnc.'s
ability to conform and upon factory approval. All such requests shall be delivered to Facilities Resource, Inc. in writing
and accepted by Facilities Resource, Inc. in writing. Resulting additional charges shall be paid by the Buyer.

3. The Buyer warrants that the credit application and other financial statement submitted to Facilities Resource, Inc. are
true and correct.

4. In the event construction delays or other causes not within Facilities Resource, lnc.'s control force postponement of
the delivery and/or installation, the merchandise can be stored at a rate of $24.00 per GMA pallet until installation will
take place. The Buyer shall pay any demurrage charges incurred.

5. Client must hold property insurance for replacement value on merchandise stored in Facilities Resource, Inc.
warehouse. FRI will not be responsible for damage due to fire, flood or any other uncontrolled circumstance, for client
owned property stored in its warehouse and does not hold insurance for such.

6. Claims for damage in transit will be processed by Facilities Resource, Inc. and damaged merchandise shall be
repaired or replaced to the reasonable satisfaction of the Buyer.

7. Wherein product deliveries and labor at site are affected by stairs and no other means (elevator or mechanical lift) of
moving products is available, an additional fee will be applied.

8. Storage of product for up to (2) weeks is included in the proposal cost. Storage fees commence the date the product
is received.

9. Additional Storage will be calculated on a weekly basis and charged on a change order until the product leaves the
warehouse. Any storage change order out-standing more than (15) calendar days will cause a hold on the product
release.

10. Delivery and installation will be made during Facilities Resource, Inc. regular business hours and according to the
service schedule provided to the Buyer. Regular business hours are Monday- Friday, 7:00am - 5:00pm. Buyer will
be billed for any additional labor costs resulting from overtime work performed at the Buyer's request. If the space
provided is inadequate or requires excessive sorting or storage costs, Buyer shall reimburse Facilities Resource, Inc.
for the cost of same. If the space provided is inconveniently located or on a floor different from the installation site,
Buyer shall reimburse Facilities Resource, Inc. for the extra costs of transporting merchandise to and from storage.
If the merchandise must be moved due to activity of other trades or other reasons, Buyer shall reimburse Facilities
Resource, Inc. for the cost of same.

11. Facilities Resource, Inc. shall not be responsible for manufacturer's inability to meet their estimated ship dates.
Estimated ship dates are for manufacturers time allowances only and do not include any time allowance for actual
shipping and delivery of merchandise.

12. Buyer must keep the job site free and clear of debris before and during the installation. Hoisting or elevator service
and adequate facilities for off-loading, staging, moving, and handling of merchandise must be provided by the Buyer
and without charge to Facilities Resource, Inc. The Buyer is also responsible for securing all necessary building
permits and licenses.

13. After arrival of the merchandise at the site, any loss or damage by weather, trades working at the site, or otherwise,
shall be the responsibility of the Buyer.

14. Merchandise will be invoiced upon shipment from the manufacturer. Buyer agrees to pay each invoice within the
Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance: Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the
Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of ( 1) the date licensee
receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the contract is completed; or
(3) the date the Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any
overdue payments shall be paid by licensee in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of licensee's
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal to the sum of
one percent (1 %); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding
fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

15. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Contract or any breach thereof shall be settled in accordance
wrth the Rules of the American Arbitration Association and judgment upon the award may be entered in any court
having jurisdiction thereof.

16. In the event of default under this agreement, the prevailing party shall be allowed to recover attorney fees in
accordance with the determination of the court.

17. l_n �o �vent shall either party be liable for any special indirect, consequential, incidental damages including, without
hm1tat1on, damages for loss of business profits, business interruptions or loss of information, even if the other Party
has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

18. Facilities Resource, Inc. will provide certificate of insurance acceptable to buyer and insurance that it maintains
adequate workers compensation, general liability & property coverage at all times. If a waiver is requested as part of
the insurance requirements, a $350.00 fee per waiver will be charged.

11100 Metric Blvd., Building 7, Suite 450 • Austin, TX 78758 • p 512.371.1232 • f 512.371.9155 • www.fri-texas.com 



facilities 
resource inc. 

19. Unless otherwise specified, all furniture is warranted by Facilities Resource, Inc. to be free from defects in materials
and workmanship for the period of time each manufacturer provides on its product from date of delivery. Facilities
Resource, Inc. will repair, adjust, or take corrective action on any problem free of charge within 30 days of purchase
or manufacturers earliest notification. Manufacturer's warranties will apply with any charges for labor at the prevailing
rates. It is expressly agreed that this warranty is in place and in lieu of all warranties of fitness and merchantability.
All used or rental return merchandise is sold on an "AS IS" basis.

20. It shall be understood and agreed that during the term of this agreement and for a period of 12 (twelve) months,
thereafter, the Buyer will not directly nor indirectly recruit and/or hire any employee of Facilities Resource, Inc., unless
mutually agreed upon between Officers of the Buyer and Facilities Resource, Inc.

21. All additional costs listed above shall include a 25% administrative fee.
22. Facilities Resource, Inc. will assess a 3.5% convenience fee on all credit card transactions.
23. The above is the entire agreement between the Buyer and Facilities Resource, Inc. It may not be changed without

mutual written authorization. These terms apply to the initial order and any subsequent orders.
24. Mediation: The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior to and formal legal action being taken on

this purchase agreement.
25. Venue and Governing Law: Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County, Texas, and the law of the State of

Texas shall govern. 
26. Termination for Convenience: This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of either party, without

future or prospective liability for performance upon giving ten (10) days written notice thereof. In the event of
termination, Customer will only be liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually received.

I have read and understand all of the terms and conditions contained herein. 

Agreed: 

Williamson County Date 

8-/2-2( 
Date 

P:\Forms\FRI - Forms\Terms & Conditions\Terms & Conditions Williamson County 071420 (prompt pay compliance).docx 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 26.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

1806-243 Renewal 3 - ATM Services with Preferred ATM Services, LLC
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Dianne West, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the extension of ATM Services
Contract #1806-243, renewal option 3, for the same pricing, terms and conditions as the existing
contract for the term of September 11, 2021 - September 10, 2022 with Preferred ATM
Services, LLC. 

Background
This agreement with Preferred ATM Services, LLC is for the purpose of operating eight (8)
automatic teller machines within the county.  Location details are provided on the supporting
renewal contract documents.  The Facilities Department points of contact are Shantil Moore and
Christi Stromberg.  This is a revenue contract with deposits going into the General Fund 0100.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
1806-243 Automated Teller Machine Location Agreement - original 
1806-243 - renewal 1 
1806-243 - renewal 2 
1806-243 - renewal 3 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 08:29 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:40 AM
Form Started By: Dianne West Started On: 08/18/2021 02:43 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 27.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Alliance 2576 Traffic Engr Contract Amendment No 2
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Contract Amendment No 2 under Williamson
County Contract for Engineering Services between Alliance Transportation Group and
Williamson County dated March 10, 2020 for Traffic Engineering Services. Funding source:
01.0200.0210.004100.

Background
This Contract Amendment No 2 is to amend the Senior Engineer and Project Administrator
rates.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Alliance 2576 Traffic Engr Contract Amendment No 2 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 08/18/2021 02:56 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:37 AM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 08/18/2021 12:30 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. __2___ 
TO 

WILLIAMSON COUNTY CONTRACT FOR 
ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
 
This Contract Amendment No. _2___ to Williamson County Contract for Engineering Services 
(“Amendment No. __2__”) is by and between Williamson County, Texas, a political 
subdivision of the State of Texas, (the "County") and Alliance Transportation Group, Inc. 
(the “Engineer”).   
 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the County and the Engineer previously executed that certain Contract for 
Engineering Services (the “Contract”), being dated effective March 10, 2020, wherein Engineer 
agreed to perform certain professional engineering services in connection with the Road & 
Bridge On Call Traffic Engineering Services (“Project”); 
 
WHEREAS, it has become necessary to supplement, modify and amend the Contract in 
accordance with the provisions thereof. 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, premises considered, the County and the Engineer agree that the 
Contract is supplemented, amended and modified as follows: 
 
I. Amendment to Exhibit ___D___ - Rate Schedule 
 

Pursuant to the CPI Rate Adjustments provisions set forth in the original Rate Schedule of 
the Contract, County and Engineer hereby agree the Rate Schedule attached hereto as 
Attachment 1 shall supplant and replace the current Rate Schedule and become effective 
as of the last party’s execution below. 

 
II. Terms of Contract Control and Extent of Amendment No. __2____ 
 

All other terms of the Contract and any prior amendments thereto which have not 
been specifically amended herein shall remain the same and shall continue in full force 
and effect. 

 
 
 



 
 
III. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Engineer have executed this 

Amendment No. __2___, in duplicate, to be effective as of the date of the last party’s 
execution below. 

 
Engineer:  COUNTY: 

 
___________________________  Williamson County, Texas 

 
 
By: ____________________________   By: __________________________ 
 
Printed Name:  ___________________   Printed Name: _Bill Gravell, Jr.____ 
 
Title:  __________________________   Title: __County Judge____________ 
 
Date:  _______________ ____, 20____   Date: _____________ ____, 2021 
 
 

Alliance Transportation Group, Inc.

Clint Jumper

Sr. Vice President

August 18 21



 

 
Exhibit D 

 
Please see next page. 

 
 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 28.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Rifeline 1812-284 WA27 Subdivision Regulations
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Work Authorization No 27 in the amount of
$25,000.00 to expire on August 31, 2022 under Williamson County Contract for Public
Involvement Services between Rifeline, LLC and Williamson County dated March 26, 2019 for
Subdivision Regulations. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.004100.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Rifeline 1812-284 WA27 Subdivision Regulations 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 08/17/2021 10:12 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 01:34 PM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 06/18/2021 11:01 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 



















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 29.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

T2910 County Road Seal Coat Change Order No 1
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Change Order No. 1, to contract number #T2910 – County Road
Seal Coat FY 21, in the amount of $12,904.80. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.003599 

Background
Contract amount is $849,561.96.  With the addition of this change order, of $12,904.80, the new contract amount
will be $862,466.76.  The change order removes a roadway from the contract damaged by recent heavy rainfall
events and replaces it with a roadway suitable for seal coat resurfacing.  The damaged roadway will be repaired by
Road & Bridge crews. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
T2910 County Road Seal Coat Change Order No 1 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:13 AM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 08/19/2021 10:17 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 





Change Order 1  Project # #T2910
 TABLE A: Force Account Work and Materials Placed into Stock             

LABOR HOURLY RATE HOURLY RATE

 TABLE B:  Contract Items

ADD  or (DEDUCT)

DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY ITEM COST QUANTITY QUANTITY ITEM COST OVERRUN/ 
UNDERRUN

316 6175 AGGR (TY-B GR-4 SAC-B) CY $80.00 3,278.00 $262,240.00 54.00 3,332.00 $266,560.00 $4,320.00
316 6466 ASPH (CHFRS-2P OR CRS-2P) GAL $2.92 188,463.00 $550,311.96 2,940.00 191,403.00 $558,896.76 $8,584.80

$812,551.96 $825,456.76 $12,904.80

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

ITEM

ORIGINAL + PREVIOUSLY 
REVISED NEW



CHANGE ORDER REASON(S) CODE CHART

  1.  Design Error or Omission 1A. Incorrect PS&E 
1B. Other

  2.  Differing Site Conditions 2A. Dispute resolution (expense caused by conditions and/or resulting delay)
       (unforeseeable) 2B. Unavailable material

2C. New development (conditions changing after PS&E completed)
2D. Environmental remediation
2E. Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable)(Item 9)
2F. Site conditions altered by an act of nature
2G. Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable)
2H. Unacquired Right-of-Way (unforeseeable)
2I. Additional safety needs (unforeseeable)
2J. Other

  3.  County Convenience 3A. Dispute resolution (not resulting from error in plans or differing site conditions)
3B. Public relations improvement
3C. Implementation of a Value Engineering finding
3D. Achievement of an early project completion
3E. Reduction of future maintenance
3F. Additional work desired by the County
3G. Compliance requirements of new laws and/or policies
3H. Cost savings opportunity discovered during construction
3I. Implementation of improved technology or better process
3J. Price adjustment on finished work (price reduced in exchange for acceptance)
3K. Addition of stock account or material supplied by state provision
3L. Revising safety work/measures desired by the County
3M. Other

  4.  Third Party Accommodation 4A. Failure of a third party to meet commitment
4B. Third party requested work
4C. Compliance requirements of new laws and/or policies (impacting third party)
4D. Other

  5.  Contractor Convenience 5A. Contractor exercises option to change the traffic control plan
5B. Contractor requested change in the sequence and/or method of work
5C. Payment for Partnering workshop
5D. Additional safety work/measures desired by the contractor
5E. Other

  6.  Untimely ROW/Utilities 6A. Right-of-Way not clear (third party responsibility for ROW)
6B. Right-of-Way not clear (County responsibility for ROW)
6C. Utilities not clear
6D. Other



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 30.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Authorize issuing 21RFSQ14 RFQ Design Engineering Services for Small Drainage and Small
Roadway Projects f
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Johnny Grimaldo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed qualifications for Small Drainage and Small Roadway Projects for
Williamson County under RFQ 21RFSQ14.

Background
Williamson County is soliciting qualifications of engineering firms interested in providing
as-needed engineering services to assist Williamson County staff in the development of small
drainage and small roadway projects for the Williamson County Road & Bridge Division.
Williamson County will select three to five of the top-ranking firms from this solicitation to provide
the engineering services. Est. $1,500,000.00.  Kon Kwon is the Point of contact. Funding source
for FY2022: 01.0200.0210.004100 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 10:45 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:08 AM
Form Started By: Johnny Grimaldo Started On: 08/18/2021 11:37 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 31.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Final plat for the Piper Run subdivision – Pct 4
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Adam

Boatright,
Infrastructure

Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Piper Run
subdivision – Precinct 4.

Background
This subdivision consists of 4 lots and no new roads. 

Timeline
2021-06-23 – initial submittal of complete final plat application
2021-07-21 – 1st review complete with comments
2021-07-26 – 2nd submittal of final plat
2021-08-06 – 2nd review complete with comments 
2021-08-11 – 3rd submittal of final plat with signatures
2021-08-17 – 3rd review complete with comments clear
2021-08-19 – final plat placed on the August 24, 2021 Commissioners Court agenda for
consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
final plat - Piper Run 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:25 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 08/19/2021 10:58 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



100 

E 

s 

SCALE: 1 • = 100' 

0 100 200 300 FEET 

LEGEND 
W.C.0.P.R. - WILLIAMSON COUN'TY omCIAL PUBLIC RECORDS 

W.C.P.R. - WILLIAMSON COUNTY PLAT RECORDS 

W.C.O.R. - WlLLIAMSON COUN'TY omCIAL RECORDS 

P.O.B. - POINT OF BEGINNING 

F.F.E. - FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION 

P.U.E. - PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 

E.S.LE. - ELECTRIC SUPPLY UNE EASEMENT 

O.S.S.F. - ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY 

- BUILDING LINE B.L 

( ) 

[ l 
11 

- RECORD INFORMATION - DOC. NO. 2019047973, w.c .O.P.R. 

- RECORD INFORMATION - DOC. NO. 2004069460, W.C.O.P.R. 

- RECORD INFORMATION - DOC. NO. 1991005511, W.C.O.P.R. 

<> - RECORD INFORMATION - DOC. NO. 2003057143, W.C.O.P.R. 

- FOUND 3/8" IRON ROD 

- FOUND 1 /2" IRON ROD 

- FOUND CAPPED 1 /2" IRON ROD 

- SET CAPPED 1/2" IRON ROD "Wt.SA 10110400" 

- MAG NAJL FOUND FOR 
TEMPORARY BENCHMARK 

NOTE: 
THE ELEVATION OF THE TEMPORARY BENCHMARK SHOWN HEREON 
IS BASED ON NAV088 VERTICAL DATUM. 

/ 

/ 

LINE TABLE 

LINE BEARING DISTANCE 

L1 
N 01"55'11" W 88.83' 

(N 00"32'30" W) (88.63') 

L2 
N 28"24'13" E 232.51' 

(N 31"02'30" E) (232.77') 

L3 
N 14•00151 • W 61 .46' 

(N 35"57'30" W) (61.68') 

L4 
N 12"46'16" W 104.23' 

(N 10"29'30" W) (104.46') 

L5 
N 28"43'20" E 233.00' 

(N 31"16'30" E) (233.25') 

L6 
N 68"36'02" E 87.88' 
(N 71"02' E) (87.91 ' ) 

Ove ral l Runoff Cales 

Modeled 

Scenario Area (mi112 NRCSCN 

Existing 0.0384 79.3 

Proposed 0.0384 79.3 

MINIMUM LOWEST 
FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION 

LOT MINIMUM f.f .E. 

1 731.0' 

2 730.0' 

3 728.0' 

4 728.0' 

Percent 

Lag Time (min Impervi ous Cove 2 yr 

10.8 10.6 26.5 

10.8 10.8 26.6 

5yr 

47 

47 

- -

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

40.0' 

r--

Peak Flow Rates 

FINAL PLAT OF PIPER RUN 
CONSISTING OF 5.017 ACRES OUT OF THE 

WILLIAM DUNN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 196, 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

\ 
\ 

80.0' 
40.0' 

\ 

\ 
\ 

( 

\ 
\ 

I 

( f390 

LOT 4 
\1.162 AC. 

I 

l Oyr 25 yr SO yr l OOyr SOD yr 

62.2 83.5 100.6 119.1 164.8 

62.2 83.5 100.6 119.1 164.8 

SHEET 1 OF 2 

/ 
FlELDED BY: Rf 04/ 09/2020 
DRAWN SY: JC 07/17/2020 
CHECKED BY: RW 07/17/ 2020 

JOB NO. 37073 

VICINITY t.AAP 
NOT TO SCALE 

NOTES: 

1. A TEN FOOT (10') P.U.E. IS HEREBY DEDICATED ADJACENT 
TO ALL STREET R.O.W. LINES ON ALL LOTS. 

2 . NO OBSTRUCTIONS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO 
FENCING OR STORAGE, SHALL BE PERMITTED IN ANY 
DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON. 

OWNER: 
NORTHWIND HOMES, LLC 
300 CARMEL CREEKSIDE DR. 
HUTTO, TX 78634 

OVERALL ACREAGE: 5.017 ACRES (218,535 SQ. FT.) 

LOT 1: 1.082 ACRES (47.129 SQ. FT.) 

LOT 2: 1.522 ACRES (66,278 SQ. FT.) 

LOT 3: 1.138 ACRES (49,573 SQ. FT.) 

LOT 4: 1.162 ACRES (50,628 SQ. FT.) 

RIGHT-OF- WAY DEDICATION: 0.113 ACRE (4,927 SQ. FT.) 

NUMBER OF LOTS: 4 

SURVEYOR: WINDROSE LAND SERVICES - AUSTIN 
PHONE: (512) 326-2100 

H¥/7d'r#.re ~~.N La/78 
fe/'Y/~e.r M'/ Z~i:;.~ r -.A~.rl*..M 
4120 Commercial Center Or ?;z < Telephone. (512) 326-2100 
Suite .300 Fax {512) 326-2no 
Austin, Texas 78744 <X>P"ntlOKT 2020 WINDftOSE I.AND 
FlRM REGISTRATION NO. 10110400f S£IMCES AUSTIH, AU. -.TS otS£RYrn 



STATE OF TEXAS § 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

WE, NorthWind Homes, LLC, o Texas limited liability company, sole owner of the certain 5.028 acre tract of land 
described in o deed recorded in Document No. 2019047973 of the Official Public Records of Williamson County, 
Texas, SAVE AND EXCEPT that certain tract of land described as 1.000 acre in a deed recorded in Document No. 
2019115067, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, and corrected in a deed recorded in Document 
No. 2020017117, Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, do hereby join with Jerrie Ann Inmon, bein9 
the sole owner of said 1.000 acre tract of land, and do hereby state that there ore no lien holders of the 
certain tract of land, and do hereby subdivide said tract as shown hereon, and do hereby consent to all plat 
note requirements shown hereon, and do hereby dedicate to the County of Williamson the streets, alleys, 
rights-of-way, easements and public places shown hereon for such public purposes as the County of Williamson 
may deem appropriate. This subdivision Is to be known as ANAL PLAT OF PIPER RUN. 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

TO C~.ffTIFY WHICH, ~ESS by my hond 

~= ..,- ~a . wn ." 
'ff!.- ~rt~ 

errie Ann Inmon 300 ;.rmel Creekside Dr. 
Hutto, Tl< 786J4 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared David McKenzie, representing NorthWind 
Homes, LLC, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that they executed the some for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, in the 
capacity therein stated. 

UNDER MY HAND and seal of office this ~ day of • 20.l::.1.. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

My commission expires on: "'J M J z.:Z. 
I 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

5lA.7~ 11v1f SCu:-J.~0on 
Notary Public printed or typed name 

SUSANNE SANDERSON 
My Nolary ID # n94229 
Expires March 24, 2022 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Jerrie Ann Inman, known to me to be the 
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that they executed the 
some for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein stated. 

MY HAND and sool of office t h;s ~ doy of Au~;.\- , 20 "?.- f. 

otory Public in and for the State of T./exos 

My commission expires on: ) \ :z.Jf Z..\ 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

~ ?Cl IHU 'Jqr)-e t?ovi 
Notary Public printed or typed name 

SUSANNE SANDERSON 
My Notary ID # n94229 
Expires March 24, 2022 

I, Michael Turner, Registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Texas, do hereby certify that thi1 plot is 
true and correctly mode from on actual survey mode on the ground of the property legally described hereon, and 
that there ore no apparent discrepancies, conflicts, overlapping of improvements, visible utility lines or roods in 
place, except as shown on the accompanying plot, and that the corner monuments shown thereon were properly 
placed under my supervision in accordance with the subdivision regulations of Williamson County, Texas. 

This tract is not located within the Edwards Aquifer Recharge Zone. 

my hond end sool ot f\µ:;.-\-j V\ :rrav t s 
of ~kl.~.\- , 20kl_. 

Michael Tumer 
Registered Professional urveyor 
No. 6441 State of T as 
Windrose Land Servi s - Austin 
4120 Commercial Center Drive, Suite 300 
Austin , Texas 78744 
Firm Registration No. 10110400 

Based upon the above representations of the engineer or surveyor whose seal is affixed hereto, and ofter a 
review of the survey as represented by the said engineer or surveyor, I find that this blue line {survey) complies 
with the requirements of Edwards Aquifer Re9ulotions for Williamson County and Williamson County On-Site Sewage 
Facility Regulations. This certification is made solely upon such representations and should not be relied upon for 
verifications of the facts alleged. The Williamson County Engineer's office and Williamson County disclaim any 
responsibility to any member of the public for independent verification of the representations, factual or otherwise, 
contained in this blue line (survey) and the documents associated with it. 

the City of Hutto, Texas. 

Rood nomo end address os~;gnments verified th;s the J'.Q.doy of fn';!j W , 2~A.D. 

NG COORDINATOR 

GENERAL NOTES: 

FINAL PLAT OF PIPER RUN 
CONSISTING OF 5.017 ACRES OUT OF THE 

WILLIAM DUNN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 196, 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

1) NO LOT IN THIS SUBOMSION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO THE WATER SYSTEM. WATER SERVICE WILL BE 
PROVIDED BY JONAH WATER DISTRICT. 

2) SEWER SERVICE FOR THIS SUBOMSION WILL BE PROVIDED BY ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITIES. 

3) WATER AND WASTEWATER SYSTEMS SERVING THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH STATE HEALTH DEPARTMENT PLANS ANO SPECIFICATIONS. 

4) NO OBJECTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, BUILDINGS, FENCES OR LANDSCAPING, SHIAl.L BE PERMITTED WITHIN 
ANY DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON, EXCEPT AS APPROVED BY WILLIAMSON COUNTY. 

5) ALL EASEMENTS ON PRIVATE PROPERTY SHALL BE MAINTAJNED BY THE PROPERTY OWNER OR HIS/HER ASSIGNS. 

6) PROPERTY OWNER ANO HIS/HER ASSIGNS SHALL PROVIDE FOR ACCESS TO DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AS MY BE 
NtCESSARY ANO SHALL NOT PROHIBIT ACCESS BY GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORmEs. 

7) THE DEVELOPER. BUILDER, SELLER, OR AGENT SHIAl.L INFORM. IN WRmNG, EACH BUYER OF SUBOMSION LOTS OR 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN FLOOD HAZARD AREAS THAT SUCH PROPERTY IS IN AN IDENTIFIED FLOOD HAZARD AREA ANO 
THAT A FLOOD PLAJN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WILL BE REQUIRED BEFORE A STRUCTURE CAN BE PLACED ON THE 
PROPERTY. THE WRITTEN NOTICE SHALL BE FILED FOR RECORD IN THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS. A 
COPY OF THIS WRITTEN NOTICE SHALL BE PROVIDED WHEN APPLICATIONS ARE MADE FOR FLOOD PLAJN DEVELOPMENT 
PERMITS. 

8) PRIOR TO ANY CHANNEL ALTERATIONS, BRIDGE CONSTRUCTON. FILL, DREDGING, GRADING, CHANNEL IMPROVEMENT, OR 
s'rORAGE OF MATERIAl.S OR ANY OTHER CHANGE WITHIN THE 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN LOCATED WITHIN THIS SURVEY, AN 
APPLICATION FOR FLOOD PLAJN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WITH A DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT AND THE EXTENT OF 
CHANGES, IF ANY, TO THE WATER COURSE OR NATURAL DRAINAGE AS A RESULT OF THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT MUST 
BE SUBMITTED TO AND APPROVED BY THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY FLOOD PLAJN ADMINISTRATOR. ALL SPECIFICATIONS AND 
DETAJLS NECESSARY FOR COMPLETE REVIEW MUST BE PROVIDED. 

9) PRIOR TO ANY CHANNEL ALTERATION OR BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION WHICH WILL CHANGE EXISTING FLOOD PAmRNS OR 
El.EvATIONS, A LETTER OF MAP AMENDMENT MUST BE SUBMlmD TO AND APPROVED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT AGENCY. 

10) A 75' SETBACK FROM CREEKS, LAKES, DRAINAGE- WAYS. AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, A 25' SETBACK FROM BREAKS IN 
GRADE ANO A 25' SETBACK FROM RECHARGE FEATURES. 

11) THE SUBJECT PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER CONTRIBUTING ZONE, 
RECHARGE ZONE. OR TRANSmON ZONE. 

12) ALL BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS LAMBERT STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM. CENTRAL ZONE, NA08J. A 
SCALE FACTOR OF 1.00012491 HAS BEEN APPLIED TO OBTAJN SURFACE DISTANCES. 

13) IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER, NOT THE COUNTY, TO ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF ALL 
APPLICABLE STATE. FEDERAL ANO LOCAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO THE PLATTING ANO DEVELOPMENT OF THIS 
PROPERTY. 
THE COUNTY ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF REPRESENTATIONS BY OTHER PARTIES IN THIS PLAT. 
FLOOD PLAJN DATA. IN PARTICULAR, MAY CHANGE. IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD THAT THE OWNERS OF THE TRACT OF 
LAND COVERED BY THIS PLAT MUST INSTALL AT THEIR OWN EXPENSE ALL TRAmc CONTROL DEVICES AND SIGNAGE THAT 
MAY BE REQUIRED BEFORE THE ROADS IN THE SUBDMSION HAVE FINALLY BEEN ACCEPTED FOR MAINTENANCE BY THE 
COUNTY. 

14) RURAL MAIL BOXES SHALL BE SET THREE FEET FROM THE EDGE OF THE PAVEMENT OR BEHIND CURBS, WHEN USED. 
ALL MAILBOXES WITHIN COUNTY ARTERIAl. RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL MEET THE CURRENT Tl<OOT STANDARDS. ANY MAILBOX 
THAT DOES NOT MEET THIS REQUIREMENT MAY BE REMOVED BY WILLIAMSON COUNTY. 

15) EXCEPT IN CERTAJN ISOLATED AREAS REQUIRED TO MEET ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS. THE MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR 
El.tvATION SHALL BE ONE FOOT HIGHER THAN THE HIGHEST SPOT ELEVATION THAT IS LOCATED WITHIN FIVE FEET OUTSIDE 
THE PERIMETER OF THE BUILDING. OR ONE FOOT ABOVE THE BFE. WHICHEVER IS HIGHER. FOR LARGER LOTS WHERE THE 
BFE VARIES, AN FFE SHALL BE ESTABLISHED AT THE UPSTREAM ANO DOWNSTREAM LOT UNE. 

16) THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED WITH INFORMATION CONTAJNED IN ffiLE COMMITMENT GF NO. 194J625-BCP OF 
INOEPENOENCE TITLE, EFFECTIVE DATE OF JANUARY 27, 2020. SURVEYOR DID NOT ABSTRACT SUBJECT PROPERTY. THE 
FOLLOWING NOTES ARE BASED ON SAJO ffiLE COMMITMENT: 

A) A PARENT TRACT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON IS SUBJECT TO AN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION ANO/OR 
DfSTRIBUTION LINE EASEMENT TO TEXAS POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY BY VOL. 282, PG. 432, W.C.D.R. THERE IS 
INSUFFICIENT INFORMATION IN SAJD DOCUMENT TO DETERMINE EXACT LOCATION OF SAJD EASEMENT. 

B) A PARENT TRACT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY SHOWN HEREON IS SUBJECT TO AN ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION ANO/OR 
O[STRIBUTION LINE EASEMENT TO TEXAS POWER ANO LIGHT COMPANY BY VOLUME 299, PAGE 506, W.C.O.R. THERE IS 
INSUFFICIENT INFORMATION IN SAID DOCUMENT TO DETERMINE EXACT LOCATION OF SAJD EASEMENT. 

C) SUBJECT TO A PIPE LINE EASEMENT (BLANKET IN NATURE) BEING 15' IN WIDTH CENTER LINE THEREOF BEING THE 
Pf PE LINE AS INSTALLED TO JONAH WATER SUPPLY CORP. BY VOLUME 563, PAGE 515, VOLUME 563, PAGE 516, 
VOLUME 563, PAGE 517, W.C.O.R., ANO VOLUME 1057, PAGE 27J, W.C.O.R. SAJD EASEMENT IS NOT PLOTTABLE DUE 
TO BEING BLANKET IN NATURE. 

0) SUBJECT TO AN 80' WIDE DRAINAGE EASEMENT SHOWN HEREON AS EVIDENCED BY DOCUMENT NO. 9809953 ANO 
DOCUMENT NO. 199970471, W.C.O.P.R. 

E) SUBJECT TO 15' WIDE ELECTRIC SUPPLY LINE EASEMENT SHOWN HEREON TO TEXAS POWER & LIGHT COMPANY BY 
Vol. 18J5, PG. 663, W.C.O.R. 

17) SUBJECT TO ALL APPLICABLE CITY ANO/ OR COUNTY DEVELOPMENT CODES ANO ORDINANCES. 

18) EXEMPTION: STORMWATER DETENTION IS NOT REQUIRED. SEE DRAINAGE REPORT. 

19) MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY FOR DRAINAGE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE COUNTY OTHER THAN THAT ACCEPTED 
IN CONNECTON WITH DRAINING OR PROTECTNG THE ROAD SYSTEM. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY FOR STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT CONTROLS WILL REMAIN WITH THE OWNER. 

20) NO LOT IN THIS SUBOMSION IS ENCROACHED BY A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA(S) INUNDATED BY THE 100-YEAR 
(lil CHANCE) FLOOD AS IDENTIFIED BY THE U.S. FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD INSURANCE RATE 
MAP NO. 48491 C0505F, EFFECTIVE DATE DECEMBER 20, 2019 FOR WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS. ZONE DETERMINATION 
WAS DONE BY GRAPHIC PLOTTING FROM THE FEMA MAP. SURVEYOR DOES NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXACT 
DETERMINATION. 

21) A FLOODPLAJN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT MAY BE REQUIRED FOR LOTS 1, 2, 3 ANO 4 PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTON OR 
DEVELOPMENT. THE NEED FOR A FLOODPLAJN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT WILL BE DETERMINED BY WLUAMSON COUNTY UPON 
REVIEW OF THE PROPOSED STRUCTURE LOCATION. 

22) THE MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS {FFE) FOR LOTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE DETERMINED BY A STUDY 
PREPARED BY RILEY MOUNTAJN ENGINEERING, DAITO APRIL 14, 2021. 

2J) THIS SUBDMSION IS SUBJECT TO STORMWATER MAJNAGEMENT CONTROLS AS REQUIRED BY WILLIAMSON COUNTY 
SUBOMSION REGULATIONS, SECTON Bl 1.1, ON NEW DEVELOPMENT THAT WOULD EVOKE SUCH CONTROLS BEYOND 20il 
IMPERVIOUS COVER PER LOT. 

24) THE 100-YEAR (1:1: CHANCE) FLOOOPLAJN SHOWN HEREON WAS ESTABLISHED BY AN ENGINEERING STUDY COMPLETED 
BY RILEY MOUNTAJN ENGINEERING, LLC, PROJECT NAME JOO CARMEL CREEKSIDE DRIVE, DATED APRIL 14, 2021. 

25) DRIVEWAYS FOR LOTS 1, 3 ANO 4: LOCATIONS USE DIP TYPE OF DRIVEWAYS ANO SHALL BE INSTALLED TO COUNTY 
ANb EMERGENCY REGULATIONS. IF THERE IS MINIMAL FLOW ANO LESS THAN 15:1: GRADE NO CULVERT IS NEEDED. 

26) DRIVEWAY SPACING ON WILLIAMSON COUNTY ROADS SHALL BE NO CLOSER THAN 1 OOFT MEASURED FROM CENTER TO 
CENTER. 

27) DRIVEWAY FOR LOT 2 EXISTS ON THE GROUND AT THE TIME OF FIELD INSPECTION. 

28) A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE IS HEREBY ISSUED FOR ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDMSION. THIS CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPLIANCE IS VALID UNTIL SUCH TIME AS FEMA OR THE COUNTY REVISES OR NEWLY ADOPTS FLOOOPLAJN BOUND 
AREAS IN THIS VICINITY. 

29) ALL PUBLIC ROADWAYS ANO EASEMENTS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE FREE OF LIENS. 

JO) THIS SUBOMSION IS LOCATED WITHIN THE EXTRATERRITORIAl. JURISOICTON (ETJ) OF THE CITY OF HUTTO, TEXAS. 

METES ANO BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

BEING A TRACT OR PARCEL OF LANO CONTAJNING 5 .017 ACRES (218,535 SQ. FT.) SITUATED IN THE WIWAM 
DUNN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 196, LOCATED IN WIWAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING THAT SAME TRACT OF 
LANO DESCRIBED AS 5.028 ACRES CONVEYED TO NORTHWINO HOMES, LLC BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT 
NO. 20 19047973, WIWAMSON COUNTY omcw. PUBUC RECORDS (W.C.O.P.R.), ALSO BEING KNOWN AS LOT 
30, CARMEL CREEK ESTATES, AN UNRECORDED SUBOMSION IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, ANO BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY MffiS ANO BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: ALL BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE TEXAS 
STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, CENTRAL ZONE, NAO 83. A SCALE FACTOR OF 1.00012491 HAS BEEN 
APPUEO TO OBTAJN SURFACE DISTANCES. 

BEGINNING AT A W IRON ROD FOUND IN THE WESTERLY RIGHT- OF-WAY (R.O.W.) UNE OF CARMEL CREEKSIDE 
DRIVE (50' R.O.W.), BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THAT CERTAJN TRACT OF LANO DESCRIBED AS 4.434 
ACRES CONVEYED TO ANTHONY C. MAXEY ANO VERONICA L. MAXEY BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 
9624245, WILLIAMSON COUNTY OFFlCIAL RECORDS (W.C.O.R.), ANO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT, FOR THE NORTHEAST CORNER ANO POINT OF BEGINNING HEREOF; 

THENCE SOUTH 21"24'52" EAST, WITH THE WESTERLY R.O.W. UNE OF SAJO CARMEL CREEKSIDE DRIVE, SAME BEING 
THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT, ANO BEING THE EASTERLY UNE HEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 
822.96' TO A CAPPED W IRON ROD FOUND AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THAT CEIRTAJN TRACT OF LANO 
DESCRIBED AS 5.009 ACRES CONVEYED TO ALAN ANO DIANA JOHNSON BY DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 1916, 
PAGE 289, WIWAMSON COUNTY omcw. RECORDS {W.C.O.R.) , ALSO BEING KNOWN AS LOT 29 OF SAJO CARMEL 
CREEK ESTATES, FOR THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 
HEREOF, FROM WHICH A W IRON ROD FOUND IN THE WESTERLY R.O.W. UNE OF CARMEL CREEKSIDE DRIVE, 
BEING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THAT CERTAJN TRACT OF LANO DESCRIBED AS 3.64 ACRES CONVEYED TO 
VENESSA RENEE HENSON BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2013019850, W.C.O.P.R., ALSO BEING KNOWN 
AS LOT 27-B OF SAJO CARMEL CREEK ESTATES, BEING THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF THAT CERTAJN TRACT 
OF LANO DESCRIBED AS 5.16 ACRES CONVEYED TO SIDNEY S. SPILLAR BY DEED RECORDED IN VOLUME 2194, 
PAGE 732, W.C.O.R., BEARS SOUTH 21"23'15" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 1351.83'; 

THENCE SOUTH 68"32'55" WEST, WITH THE NORTHERLY UNE OF SAJO JOHNSON TRACT, SAME BEING THE 
SOUTHERLY UNE OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO THE SOUTHERLY UNE HEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 413.94' 
TO A W IRON ROD FOUND IN THE EASTERLY UNE OF THAT CERTAJN TRACT OF LANO DESCRIBED AS 5.00 ACRES 
CONVEYED TO DAVID W. CROW BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 9809953, W.C.O.R., ALSO BEING KNOWN 
AS LOT 19 OF SAJO CARMEL CREEK ESTATES, BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAJO JOHNSON TRACT, FOR 
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER HEREOF; 

THENCE WITH THE WESTERLY UNE OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT, SAME BEING THE WESTERLY LINE HEREOF, 
THE FOLLOWING CALLS: 

•NORTH 01"55' 11" WEST, WITH THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO CROW TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 88.83' TO AW 
IRON ROD FOUND AT AN ANGLE POINT IN THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO CROW TRACT, FOR AN ANGLE POINT 
IN THE WESTERLY UNE OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY UNE 
HEREOF; 

• NORTH 28"24' 13" EAST, WITH THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO CROW TRACT A DISTANCE OF 169.25' PASSING A 
W IRON ROD FOUND AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THAT CEIRTAJN TRACT OF LANO DESCRIBED AS 5.00 
ACRES CONVEYED TO ROBEIRT PFERTNER JR. ANO JANETTE R. PFERTNER BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT 
NO. 2013082688, W.C.O.P.R., ALSO BEING KNOWN AS LOT 18 OF SAJO CARMEL CREEK ESTATES, BEING AT 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAJO CROW TRACT, CONTINUING A DISTANCE OF 63.26' WITH THE EASTERLY 
UNE OF SAJO PFERTNER TRACT, FOR A TOTAL DISTANCE OF 232.51' TO A W IRON ROD FOUND AT AN 
ANGLE POINT IN THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO PFERTNER TRACT, FOR AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY 
LINE OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY LINE HEREOF; 

• NORTH 38"16'02" WEST, CONTINUING WITH THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO PFERTNER TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 
288.55' TO A W IRON ROD FOUND AT AN ANGLE POINT IN THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO PFERTNER TRACT, 
FOR AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY UNE SAID NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE 
WESTERLY UNE HEREOF; 

• NORTH 14'00'51" WEST, CONTINUING WITH THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAID PFERTNER TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 
61.46' TO A 1'" IRON ROD FOUND AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAJO PFERTNER TRACT. BEING AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THAT CERTAJN TRACT OF LANO DESCRIBED AS 4.16 ACRES CONVEYED TO ROBERT 
EUGENE FREE ANO DIANA LOUISE FREE BY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 199970471 , W.C.O.P.R., ALSO 
BEING KNOWN AS LOT 17 OF CARMEL CREEK ESTATES, FOR AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY UNE SAJO 
NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY UNE HEREOF; 

• NORTH 12"46'16" WEST, WITH THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAJO FREE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 104.23' TO W 
IRON ROD FOUND AT AN ANGLE POINT IN THE EASTERLY UNE OF SAJO FREE TRACT. FOR AN ANGLE POINT 
IN THE WESTERLY UNE OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT, ANO AN ANGLE POINT IN THE WESTERLY UNE 
HEREOF; 

• NORTH 28"43'20" EAST. CONTINUING WITH THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAJO FREE TRACT, A DISTANCE OF 233.00' 
TO A \!" IRON ROD FOUND AT THE MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF SAJO MAXEY TRACT. BEING THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAJO FREE TRACT. FOR THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES 
TRACT ANO THE NORTHWEST CORNER HEREOF; 

THENCE NORTH 68"36'02" EAST, WITH THE SOUTHERLY UNE OF SAJO MAXEY TRACT, SAME BEING THE NORTHERLY 
UNE OF SAJO NORTHWINO HOMES TRACT ANO THE NORTHERLY LINE HEREOF. A DISTANCE OF 87.88' TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING ANO CONTAJNING 5.017 ACRES (218,5J5 SQ. FT.) AS SURVEYED ON THE GROUND. 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

I, Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge of Williamson County, Texas, do hereby certify that this mop or plot, with 
field notes hereon, for o subdivision having been fully presented to the Commissioner's Court of Williamson 
County, Texas, and by the said Court duly considered, were on this day approved and that this plot is 
authorized to be registered ond recorded in the proper records of the County Cieri< of Williamson County, 
Texas. 

Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge 
Williamson County, Texas 

Dote 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 

I, Nancy E. Rister, Cieri< of the County Court of said County, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
instrument in writing, with its certification of authentication, was filed for record in my office on the 
__ day of , 20 _ _ , A.O., at ___ o'clock __ .M. and duly recorded this __ _ 
day of , 20 __ , A.O., at ___ o'clock __ .M., in the Official Public Records of 
said County, in Instrument No .. _________ _ 

TO CERTIFY WHICH, WITNESS my hand and seal at the County Court of said County, at my office in 
Georoetown, Texas, the dote lost shown above written. 

Nancy E. Rister, Clerk County Court of Williamson County, Texas 

By: ------------, Deputy 

SHEET 2 OF 2 

Fn.DED BY: Rf 
DRAWN BY: JC 
CHECKED BY: RW 

04/ 09/ 2020 
07/1 7/2020 
07/ 17/ 2020 

JOB NO. 37073 

H?'.no"ro.re ~/ La.nd' 
ferv/ere.r *'/ Z~k,~ .F -.A~.rl*//7 
4120 Commerc!ol Center Or ~ Telephone. (512) 326-2100 
Suite JOO / c:::::: Fox {512) 326-2770 
Austin, Texas 78744 COf"\1tlOtfT 2020 WIMDftOSE LAND 
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 101104-00..r SDMCa AlJST1t4, AU. fllOHfS RtSDM:D 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 32.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Preliminary plat for the Northgate Ranch Phase 2 Sections 6-10 subdivision – Pct 2
Submitted For: Terron Evertson  Submitted By: Adam

Boatright,
Infrastructure

Department: Infrastructure Division: Road & Bridge
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the preliminary plat for the
Northgate Ranch Phase 2, Sections 6-10 subdivision – Precinct 2.

Background
This is the second preliminary plat for the Northgate Ranch Phase 2 development.  This
proposed subdivision consists of 694 single family lots, 29 open space lots and 27,796 linear
feet of new roads. 

Timeline
2021-05-20 – initial submittal of the preliminary plat
2021-06-18 – 1st review complete with comments
2021-07-27 – 2nd submittal of preliminary plat
2021-08-11 – 2nd review complete with comments
2021-08-12 – 3rd submittal of preliminary plat 
2021-08-16 – 3rd review complete with comments
2021-08-16 – 4th submittal of preliminary plat 
2021-08-19 – 4th review complete with comments clear
2021-08-19 – preliminary plat placed on the August 24, 2021 Commissioners Court agenda for
consideration

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
preliminary plat - Northgate Ranch Ph 2 Sec 6-10 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:26 AM
Form Started By: Adam Boatright Started On: 08/19/2021 11:08 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



THE HIDDEN CREEK ESTATES DOC. 2016032981

THE HIDDEN CREEK ESTATES
   DOC. 2016032981BLOCK A

PHAM
, DUC CONG

R546883

M. C. Huffstutler, Jr.
40.13 Acres

2541/236

BILL D. WARREN et. ux.
174.03 ac.

subject to LIfe Estate
(L.E.)

1010/502

BILL  D. WARREN et. ux.
232.61 AC. 845/441

TH
AD

 G
IL

LE
SP

IE
20

02
02

98
91

10
.1

2 
AC

TH
AD

 G
IL

LE
SP

IE
20

00
02

73
74

5.
29

 A
C

Pa
lm

or
e 

Cu
rry

 e
t. 

al.
8.

98
 a

c. 
 D

oc
.

20
02

06
15

31

DA
VI

D 
J. 

PA
RK

ER
et

. u
x.

99
03

91
8

8.
98

 A
C

PA
M

EL
A 

S.
 C

AR
DW

EL
L

C.
 o

f S
. 9

70
78

40
7.

66
5 

AC
 p

ar
t

of
 9

.2
55

 a
c.

DA
VI

D 
Q.

 C
AR

DW
EL

L
C.

 o
f S

.
97

21
39

1
pa

rt 
of

 9
.2

55
 a

c.

DON HART
681/877

302.93 AC.

WAYNE HURST
11.68 AC. DOC.

2007093376
16.68 AC. (less

exceptions)

DEBRA G. FLEMING
DOC. 2010082753
LOTS 6 & 7, LIBERTY OAKS
Plat Cab. D, Sl. 143

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.20.03 AcresDoc. 2008076591

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 Ac

Doc. 2008076591

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 Ac

Doc. 2008076591

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 AC

DOC. 2008076591

LOT 1 LONGHORN CAB.G, SL. 96

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
REMAINDER OF  77.5254 ACRES

DOC 2008093237
(32.16 ACRES)

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 AC

DOC. 2008076591

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
REMAINDER OF  77.5254 ACRES

DOC 2008093237
(32.16 ACRES)

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 AC

DOC. 2008076591

SUNDANCE RANCH NORTH

STRABLE, GEORGE
CHARLES JR & JAMI LEI

HESSKEW, TIMOTHY &
STEPHANIE

FILLMORE, SPENCER J &
ANDREA

LOCHTE, GLEN E &
REAGAN A

SHEARER, ERICA M &
GRANT

ETHEREDGE, JIM TOM &
ROSE MARIE

NICOLAS, PABLO ANTOLIN
& CATHLEEN

WALKER, HARRY C &
DENISE E

HAGERMAN ERIC &
WENDY

KUNZE, DANA P & HILARY
SCHRECKENBACH

R546884

DROSCHE, RENEE
& JASON
R546885

IRICK, JACK THOM
AS

& SHERYL
R546886

FILIPPO, JUSTIN SAN
R546887

KIELEY, BRIAN EDW
ARD

R546888

M
ANIACI, DAVE &

M
ICHELLE

R546889

CHAPM
AN BROTHERS

CUSTOM
 HOM

ES LLC
R546890

SINGH, GULAB &
POONAM
R546891

EL ESTYLO
HOM

ES LLC
R546892

HE
RN

AN
DE

Z,
 C

ES
AR

M
AR

GA
RI

TO
R5

46
88

2

SWERIC, CONRAD
R & DEBBIE

R546852

STEER,
GERDA F &

JOHN T
R557935

DACUS,
GAYLON M &
ROBERTA A

R557933

STEER,
GERDA F &

JOHN T
R557934

ABRAHAM,
NEIL &

MCCALL
R546848

SH
IP

P
EN

TE
RP

RI
SE

 L
LC

R5
46

85
3

UN
KN

OW
N

R5
46

85
5 WARREN, BILL D

R022449

W
ARREN,
BILL D

R022449

40 LOT

45 LOT

50 LOT

60 LOT

L16

3/4" N.P.T
. WATER

 SUPPLY

FOR THE
 SPRAY W

ASH

SYSTEM
 - BY OT

HERS

3/4" POL
YPROPY

LENE DIS
C

FILTER (
SHIPPED

 LOOSE)

BY LAKE
SIDE

LOCATIO
N, MOUN

TING,

AND INS
TALLATI

ON BY OTHE
RS

SEE DRA
WING B9

3262

TWO (2) 
FLOAT S

WITCHES

w/ 20ft O
F CABLE

 EACH BY LAKE
SIDE

WIRING 
AND CON

DUIT TO
 THE

MAIN CO
NTROL P

ANEL BY OTHE
RS

SEE DRA
WING A6

8270

3/4" HOLE 8 PROVID
ED

BY LAKE
SIDE

5/8" FAS
TENERS

BY OTH
ERS

BLOWER 1

BLOWER 2

PUMP 1PUMP 2

PUMP 3

JUNCTION BOX

2" ACTUATEDVALVES

FLOWMETER

TEE

3" BALL VALVES(TYP OF 6)

16.00'

8.50'

PUMP 4

2" BALL VALVES(TYP OF 3)

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
P-

PR
LM

.d
w

g 
  L

ay
ou

t: 
O

VE
R

AL
L 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 B

O
U

N
D

AR
Y 

  P
lo

tte
d:

 8
/1

6/
20

21
 1

1:
29

:4
4 

AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

O
VE

R
AL

L 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 B
O

U
N

D
AR

Y

NORTHGATE RANCH PHASE 2 SECTIONS 6,7,8,9,10
PRELIMINARY PLAT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

US HW
Y 183

STATE HWY 29

CR
21

4

FM1869

FM200

FM
20

1

SAN GABRIEL

RANCH RD
LOCATION MAP
SCALE: 1" = 5000'

PROJECT
LOCATION

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

0 500' 1,000'250'

SCALE: 1" = 500'

SECTION BOUNDARY

NOTES:
1. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY EACH OF THE

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS.
2. DRIVEWAYS SHALL CONNECT ONLY TO AN INTERNAL

PLATTED ROAD AND NOT TO CR 214, SAN GABRIEL
RANCH ROAD, THE ADJACENT COUNTY ROADWAYS.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN A "NOTICE OF
PROPOSED INSTALLATION OF UTILITY LINE" PERMIT
FROM WILLIAMSON COUNTY FOR ANY WORK
PERFORMED IN THE EXISTING COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY
(DRIVEWAY APRON, WATER MAIN TIE-IN, ETC.) THIS
PERMIT APPLICATION WILL REQUIRE A LIABILITY
AGREEMENT, A CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE FOR
WORK WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY INCLUDING PAVEMENT
REPAIR (IF NEEDED), A PERFORMANCE BOND,
CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND, IF NECESSARY, A TRAFFIC
CONTROL PLAN. AN INSPECTION FEE, AND A
RE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING MAY ALSO BE REQUIRED,
DEPENDING ON THE SCOPE OF WORK. THE PERMIT WILL
BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE COUNTY
ENGINEER AND MUST ALSO BE APPROVED BY THE
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT IF ANY
ROAD CLOSURE IS INVOLVED.

4. NO LOTS MAY BE FURTHER SUBDIVIDED.
5. THE ABANDONMENT AND DEDICATION OF CR 214 ROW

SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT.

6. THE FRONT BUILDING SETBACK LINE ON ALL PUBLIC
ROADS SHALL BE 25 FEET FROM THE EDGE OF THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY, 10 FEET FROM THE BACK OF LOT LINE
AND 5 FEET FROM THE SIDES OF LOT LINES. CORNER
LOTS WILL BE 15 FT ON THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SIDE INSTEAD
OF 5 FEET.

7. THE FOLLOWING LOTS ARE ALLEY LOADED LOTS:
BLOCK R, LOTS 5, 6, 8-23
BLOCK S, LOTS 1-23
BLOCK U, LOTS 1-24
BLOCK V, LOTS 35-43, 46-52
BLOCK AG, LOTS 1-6, 8-13, 15-20, 22-24
BLOCK AI, LOTS 1-8, 10-18
BLOCK AJ, LOTS 1-9, 11-19

8. ALL ALLEYS WILL BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE
HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION.

9. THE ABANDONMENT AND DEDICATION OF CR 214 RIGHT
OF WAY SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT.

10. CONSTRUCTION OF CR 214 SHALL BE DONE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT.

TOTAL NO. OF LOTS: 723
NO. OF BLOCKS:  23
NO. OF 40' LOTS: 366
NO. OF 45' LOTS: 68
NO. OF 50' LOTS: 172
NO. OF 60' LOTS: 88
NO. OF SINGLE FAMILY LOTS: 694
NO. OF OPEN SPACE LOTS: 29

TOTAL LINEAR FOOTAGE OF STREETS:  27,796 LF

ACREAGE THIS PHASE : 159.42 ACRES
ACREAGE ENTIRE SUBDIVISION: 678.09 ACRES

ORIGINAL SUBMITTAL DATE: MAY 20, 2021

OWNERS:
RANDY ROLLO
RIVER OAKS LAND PARTNERS, LLC.
3100 COUNTY ROAD 214
LIBERTY HILL, TX 78642
EMAIL: RROLLO@RANDOLPHTEXAS.COM
PHONE: 512-750-0896

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6, LP.
3200 SOUTHWEST FREEWAY
SUITE 3000
HOUSTON, TX 77027

ENGINEER:
JOSEPH YAKLIN
BGE, INC.
101 WEST LOUIS HENNA BLVD,
SUITE 400
AUSTIN, TX 78728
EMAIL: JYAKLIN@BGEINC.COM
PHONE: 512-879-0400

SURVEYOR:
FOREST SURVEYING & MAPPING COMPANY
1002 ASH STREET
GEORGETOWN, TX 78626
512-930-5927

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

PARENT TRACT BOUNDARY

SECTION 10

SECTION 8

SECTION 6
NORTHGATE

RANCH
(PHASE 2)
105.78 AC

COUNTY ROAD 214

SA
N 

GA
BR

IE
L 

RA
NC

H 
RO

AD

NORTH FORK

SAN GABRIEL RIVER

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F, DATED

DECEMBER 20, 2019

REMAINING
422.67 ACRES

SECTION 7

SECTION 9

C.R 214

1

WW TREATMENT PLANT

STREET DESIGN TABLE

STREET NAME CLASSIFICATION DESIGN
SPEED LENGTH ROW WIDTH PAVEMENT WIDTH RURAL / URBAN MAINTENANCE

AUTHORITY DRAINAGE TYPE SIDEWALK

COUNTY ROAD 214 ARTERIAL 45 1,660' 120' (VARIES) (2) 27' C&G (W/
MEDIAN) URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

LARIAT LOOP COLLECTOR 35 4,060' 70' 48' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
LEELAND DRIVE COLLECTOR 35 1,371' 60' 40' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
LEELAND DRIVE LOCAL 25 822' 50 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

TRAVIS LANE LOCAL 25 1,139' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
CLEMENS DRIVE LOCAL 25 552' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
BARRET DRIVE LOCAL 25 560' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
MCCRAE DRIVE LOCAL 25 788' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

WOODROW LANE LOCAL 25 1,024' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
TABLE TOP BEND LOCAL 25 562' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
ALFALFA DRIVE LOCAL 25 458' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

HIGH VALLEY DRIVE LOCAL 25 1,334' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
BALBOA DRIVE LOCAL 25 614' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
BALBOA COURT LOCAL 25 310' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

KIOWA BEND LOCAL 25 1,790' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
HATCREEK DRIVE LOCAL 25 722' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

CLOVER DRIVE LOCAL 25 606' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
CARR DRIVE LOCAL 25 739' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

CATTLE PASS LOCAL 25 592' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
FOUNDATION LANE LOCAL 25 676' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

GARY WAYNE DRIVE LOCAL 25 1,292' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
SHEEPDOG DRIVE LOCAL 25 1,400' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
SHEEPDOG COVE LOCAL 25 214' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
AUGUSTUS DRIVE LOCAL 25 575' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
RIGHTFIELD DRIVE LOCAL 25 1,131' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
NORTH RIVER WAY LOCAL 25 712' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

GREENBRUSH DRIVE LOCAL 25 997' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
TOPVIEW DRIVE LOCAL 25 537' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES
LARIAT COURT LOCAL 25 410' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

DANIELSON STREET LOCAL 25 149' 50' 33' F-F URBAN PUBLIC CURB & GUTTER 5' BOTH SIDES

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Title
1 OVERALL PROPERTY BOUNDARY
2 PRELIMINARY PLAT (SHEET 1 OF 3)

3 PRELIMINARY PLAT (SHEET 2 OF 3)

4 PRELIMINARY PLAT (SHEET 3 OF 3)

5 EXISTING DRAINAGE AREA MAP
6 PROPOSED DRAINAGE AREA MAP
7 PROPOSED UTILITIES (SHEET 1 OF 2)

8 PROPOSED UTILITIES (SHEET 2 OF 2)



W
W

W
W

5'
5'

10.0'

50' - 70' ROW VARIES

5'

TYPICAL UTILITY ASSIGNMENT
DETAIL N.T.S.

PROPOSED
STORMWATER

PROPOSED
WATER

ROAD
CENTERLINE

PROPOSED
WASTEWATER

C
&G

C
&G

SI
D

EW
AL

K

W
W

TH
E 

HI
DD

EN
 C

RE
EK

 E
ST

AT
ES

 D
OC

. 2
01

60
32

98
1 PHAM, DUC CONG

R546883

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.
84

6.
46

 A
c

Do
c. 

20
08

07
65

91

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.
84

6.
46

 A
C

DO
C.

 2
00

80
76

59
1

KUNZE, DANA P & HILARY
SCHRECKENBACH

R546884

DROSCHE, RENEE
& JASON
R546885

IRICK, JACK THOMAS
& SHERYL
R546886

FILIPPO, JUSTIN SAN
R546887

HERNANDEZ, CESAR
MARGARITO

R546882
UNKNOWN
R546855

975980

972973

974976977

978979

981

982

980

976

977

978

979

981

982

980

976

977

978

979

981

982

982

983

983

98
4

984

980

976

977 97
8

97
9 981 98
2

96
5 970

96
6 967 96
8

969 97
1

972 97
3

97
4 960965 956

957958

959961962963964966967

968969

955

952953

954

956
957

958

959

965 962963964

960

961

965

970

964

966
967

968
969

971

972

3 27 4569 8

11

8

16 13
1217 1415

N

12

22

15

14

17

18

16

8

9

10

11

1320

21

2

19

23

7
OPEN SPACE

0.23 AC

6

4
3

5

1

24

R

24

12

13

14

19

10

9

8

4

11

22

16

15

18

17
6

2

5

7

23

21

20

1

3

S

13

18

1 2

4

6

3

5

15

9

11

14

12

7

10

8

24
OPEN SPACE

1.03 AC

21

16

17

23

22

19

20

T

25

2423222116

12345912 11 10 678

13 14 15 1917 18 20

U40

25

47

46

45
OPEN SPACE

0.11 AC 43

42

41

38
50

36

37

52

39
49

48

51

35

32
33

34
OPEN SPACE

0.43 AC

4

2

31
5

6

7

8

9

11

20

10

12

13

14

22

21

19
15

28

27

26

29

44

30

3

1
OPEN SPACE
0.07 AC

23

V

67

64

65

66

69

68

15

38

14

37

32

13

36

31

12

35

30

10

33

29

4

26

16

39
34

8 9 11

21

20

2 65 7

18 17
19

24

25

23

22

40

27
OPEN SPACE

0.32 AC

1 3

X

3
5

2327

127 8 9

25

141311

2122 20

19
OPEN SPACE
0.11 AC

1815 17
Y

4

3
34

32

33

35

5

6

7
29

31

30

19

28

27

26

2 5431

2223

25
14

20 1618 17 15

13

21
OPEN SPACE

0.09 AC 11 151413

679

12

8 5 234

18

20
OPEN SPACE

1.19 AC1

19

10

AJ

L1

C1
L2

C2
L3

L4

C3

L5
L6

L7

C4

L8

C5

L9
C6

L10

L1
1

L12

L1
3

L1
4

C7

L15

L16

L1
7

L18C8
L19

C9

L2
0

L21
C10

L22

L2
4

C22

L47

L48
C23

16
4

6

1

70

2

18
OPEN SPACE

0.06 AC

10

6
7

OPEN SPACE
0.10 AC

8 9 10 11 12

16 17

24

29

L5
1

L52

L54

C27

L5
9

C2
8

18

24

9

3
6 5 4 2

17
OPEN SPACE
0.11 AC

16

14

6

23

13

5

22

12

4

21
11

3

20

10

2

19

9

1

18

8

25

1715

7 24

16
OPEN SPACE

0.17 AC

2

7

4652

31

39

59 51

32

40

58 50

33

41

57 49

34

42

56 48

35

28

55 47

36

54

29

37

4553

30

38

44

43

27

21

20

26

22
OPEN SPACE

0.43 AC

23

24

19

25

28

33

25

17
9

32

24

16

8

31
23

15

7

30 22

14

6

29 21

13

5

37

28 20

12

4

35

27

1911

3

34

26

1810

2426

63

60

62

61

1
OPEN SPACE
0.09 AC

O

O

O

O

W

2

36
1

OPEN SPACE
0.11 AC

Q

1
OPEN SPACE
0.10 AC

9' 38'

87'

41'

115'

48'

48'

115'

45'

45'

115'

45'

45'

115'

45'

45'

115'

45'

45'

115'

45'

45'

115'

45'

45'

115'

9' 35'

50'

11
4'

91
'

29
'

15'

29'

89
'

15'

11
3'

34' 11'

46'

11
7'

44'

33'17'

11
8'

44'

50'

11
6'

44'

50'

11
6'

44'

4'47'

12
4'

29'13'12'

61
'

71
'

44'
128'

3'
21

'

37'

92'

147'

37
'

140'

37'

29'
30'

9'

144'

37'

50'

13'

138'

37'

33'
16'18'

124'

37'

43'19'

12
0'

10' 30'

37'21'

12
0'

40'

25'15'

12
0'

40'

25'15'

12
3'

40'

25'15'60'

12
1'

21'

2'
39'

9'

50
'

95'

39'

25
' 120'

40
'

40
' 120'

120'

40
'

40
'

40
' 120' 9'

31
'

35
'

5' 120'

40
'

19
'

32
' 90'

40
'

37'

162'

2'5'44'

8'

159'

101'

38'

120'

7'

79
'

67'

2'34'137'

47
'

122'

42
'

40
' 129'

12
'

21
'

12
'40

' 145'

40
'

40
' 145'

40
'

40
' 145'

40
'

40
' 145'

40
'

40
' 145'

40
'

40
' 145'

40
'

40
' 145'

10'

30
'40

' 143'

38'

13'

40
' 113'

36
'

69
' 117'

32
'

12
0'

13'

171'

39'

8' 51' 9' 21'

132'

15
'41'

21' 49'

130'

125'

123'

7' 17' 16'
36'

120'

37'

12
0'

18'

12
0'

39' 1'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

40'

40'

12
0'

1' 39'

50'

12
3'

36'

52'

13
2'

37'

52'

12
7'

37'

14
5'

38'

57'21'

139'

163'

158'

210'

50'

65'

140'

42'
8'70'

131'

50'69'

132'

50
'50'

137'

50
'50'

142'

50
'50'

146'

50
'50'

151'

50
'50'

153'

31'
14'

13
'

50'

131'

95
'

39'

27'

12
0'

52'

42'

12
0'

42'

42'

12
0'

15'27'

42'

12
0'

13'29'

42'

12
0'

11'31'

42'

12
0'

9'32'

42'

12
0'

7'34'

42'

12
0'

5'36'

42'

12
0'

4'38'

42'

12
0'

2'40'

27' 39'
95

'

52'

10
0'

39'28'

12
5'

43'

12
5'

40'4'

12
5'

44'

12
8'

44'

13
8'

21'
26'

12
5'

46'

13
5'

39
'

21'

40
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

50'

9'

37'

120'

65'

36'

120'

65'

36'

120'

13
2'

35'
36'

36'

12
0'

44'

190'

19
'

65'

12
0'

65'

12
0'

65'

1'

12
6'

32'13'

39'

12
6'

40'

40'

12
6'

40'

40'

12
6'

40'

40'

12
6'

25'

50'

10
1'

39'

25' 39'
11

8'14
3'

40'

14
3'

40'

14
3'

14
1'

34' 7'
7' 34'

84'

38
'

18'15'

123'

67'

54'15'

12
5'

41'

40'

12
5'

28' 12'

40'

12
5'

40'

25'
39'

10
0'

50'

40
' 118'

40
'

40
' 118'

35
'

5'

40
' 118'

30
'

10
'

40
' 117' 25

'
15

'

40
' 117' 20

'
20

'

40
' 117' 15

'
25

'

40
' 117' 10

'
30

'

40
' 117' 5'

35
'

40
' 117'

40
'

45
'

117'

45
'

19'117'9'
39'

176' 24' 9'
1'

44
'

117'

45
'

117'

45
'

117'

45
'

117'

45
'

117'

45
'

117'
45

'

117'

25
'

20
'

118'

45'

2'

136'

11'

108'

24'2'
21'

52'

127'

44'52'

115'

45'

52'

115'

44'

52'

115'

4'
35'

5'

52'

115' 44'

52'

115' 30'
14'

52'

115' 33'
11'

25
' 115' 16
'

28
'

23
'

45
'

115' 10
'

35
'

45
'

115'

45
'

45
'

115' 5'
40

'

45
'

115' 10
'

35
'

45
'

115' 15
'

30
'

45
'

115' 20
'

25
'

44
'

1'

115' 25
'

20
'

28'117'

15
'

17
' 7'

22' 180'

29
'

120'

11'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

36'

123'

4'

40'

131'

146'

34'
6'

18
'

33
'

125' 36'

132'

37' 4'

34'

40'

40'
40'

48'

120'

40'

120'

40'

120'

40'

16'

105' 75'

15
9'

32'

130'

12
0'

63
'

44' 111'

57
'

14'

27
'

108'

40
'40

' 110' 13
'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

35
'60

'

85' 39'

85'

45
'

110'20
'

39'
40

'

40
'

110'

40
'

40
'

110'

40
'

40
'

110'

40
'

40
'

110'

40
'

40
'

110'

14
'

41
'

108'

43'
51'

32
'

83'

18'
24'

79'

44'

115
'

9'
21'

12
'2

4'

10'
34'

115
'

52'

52'

19'
25'

11
5'

52'

27'
16'

11
5'

52'

36'
8'

11
5'

52'

44'

11
5'

40'

1'
43'

11
5'

12'
52'

10' 34'

11
5'

52'

18' 26'

11
5'

52'

27' 17'
11

5'

52'

32' 12'

11
5'

52'

38' 6'

11
5'

52'

40' 4'

115'

7'

36' 9'

115'

28'11' 45'

31' 14'

115'

45'

26' 19'

115'

45'

21' 24'

115'

45'

15' 30'

115'

30'

9' 51'

66
'

25'

39
'

7'

12
9'

25' 39'

90
'

23'

13
3'

31'8'

133'

35'40'

133'

40'

133'

40'

133'

40'

133'

16'

13
1'

22'38'

12
9'

38'

12
7'

40'

12
6'

41'

12
5'

41'

12
5'

41'

12
5'

41'
12

5'

41'
12

6'
127'

41'103'

39'

24' 4'

31' 51'

128'

2'
24'

39
'

69'

56'

37'

12
8'

56'

37'

13
4'

56'

36'

13
5'

56'

38'

5'

11
5'

56'

40'

10
7'

61'

96'

76
'

36'16'

45
'

92'
42'

33'

6'

143'

40
'43

' 126'

40
'

5'
26

'
11

'

115'

40
'41

' 108'

40
'41

' 101'

40
'

31
'

10
'

94'

40
'

23
'

17
'

95'

49
'40
' 100'

23
'50

'

77' 42'37'
69'

50
'

97'28
'

36
'

57
'

7'

108'

43
'

21
'

27
'

0'

112'

38
'

58
'120'38
'

38
'

14
'

133'

38
'

7'
45

'

140'

38
'

9'
28

'

28
' 110'

42
'

82'

43'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

37'
88'

54
'

20
'

38'

56
'

110'

28
'

39'48'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

43
'43

' 110'

35
'

52
'

83' 42'

82
'

53'

10
8'

28'

39' 41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
8'

41'

41'

10
7'

37'26'

57'

1'
45

'
39

'
82

'

52'

10
7'

27' 39'

42'

42'

10
8'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

42'

42'

10
7'

27'

52'

83
'

39'
53'

115'

33'
39'

25'

65
'

45'

115'

45'

120'

38
'

22'

55
'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

40
'40

'

120'

43
'43

'

120'

43
'43

'

120'

43
'43

'

120'

43
'43

'

21'

52
'

120'

40
'

40
'

40
'

43
'

49
'

43'
43'

120'7'
39'

124' 25'

91
2'

11
5'

38
'

120'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

21
'

18
'

124'

31
'

11
'

122'

43
'

43
'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

40'

10
8'

40'

40'

10
8'

40'

40'

10
8'

40'

40'

10
8'

40'

40'

10
8'

40'

40'

10
8'

40'

83
'

53'

27'
39'

31'

13
6'

54'

11
1'

40'

40'

13
5'

40'

40'

13
5'

40'

40'

13
5'

40'

13
3'

40'

33' 7' 14'
39'

94
'

23'30'

23' 30'

10
9'

30'24'

96
'

30
'

59'

12
2'

40'

35'

110'

13
3'

40'

22'56'

30'

20
'

24'95'

50'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

38'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

40'

10
8'

50'

50'

13
7'

40'

13
7'

40'

13
8'

40'

13
8'

40'

13
8'

40'

12
0'

51
'

38'

10
4'

33
'

33
'

40'

10
6'

8'

20
'

40'

11
0'

32'

82
'

40'

40
'

38
'

39
'

17
'

55'

40'

130'

130'

40'

127'

40'

121'

40'

125'

22
'

40'

38
'

40'40'40'40'40'40'40'40'

40'

40'40'

40' 40'40' 39'25'

11
2'

39'

11
2'

40'

82
'

40'40'40'
39'

82
'

113'

11'

39
' 115' 10

'
40

'

50
'

115' 20
'

30
'

50
'

115'

30
'

20
'

53
'

115'

36
'

13
'

4'
58

'

115'

37
'

12
'

58
' 115'

39
'

10
'

39
'122'

39
'

122'

39
'

121'

39
'

120'

21
'

120'

18
'

40
'

120'

40
'

120'

119'

35
'

6'

180'22'

5'
9'

34'

13
9'

10'

45
'

60'

14
0'

50'

13
7'

5'37'
4'

30' 20'

12'14'

32'

50'

15
9'

50'

52'

14
6'

50'

52'

13
3'

50'

52'

12
0'

50'

50'

12
0'

50'

50'
12

0'

45'

45'

12
0'

46'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

4'

45'

4' 41'

12
0'

45'

9' 36'

12
0'

45'

14' 31'

12
0'

45'

19' 26'

12
0'

45'

24' 21'

12
0'

45'

29' 16'

12
0'

45'

34' 11'

12
0'

85
'

20
'

10'

24'
10'

44'

31' 40'

35
'

59
'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

49' 1'

12
4'

51'

13
5'

26' 23' 4'

12
3'13

7'

54'

50'
2'

12'38' 50' 50' 50' 35'
30'

22'

20'

15'

31'

20
8'

S22°55'03"E
45.00'N22°55'03"W

46.20'

N12°01'04"W50.36'

N17°13'50"W
46.99'N35°18'21"W

29.16'

N58°07'07"W

49.57'

N20°20'37"W
20.77'N31°32'54"W

60.10'S20°28'27"E
137.22'

S6
9°

41
'35

"W
40

.0
0'

S20°23'52"E
40.00'

S00°52'00"W52.15'

N15°36'42"W
56.76'

S17°36'43"W
138.72'

S32°41'40"W

163.28'

S64°11'46"W
50.22'

S7
2°

31
'56

"W
20

7.
71

'

S29°56'13"W

31.44'

L6
6 1

.8
9 '

R2
4 2

2 '

N7
4°

58
'36

"E
91

2.
09

'

N7
4°

58
'36

"E
91

2.
09

'

N7
4°

58
'36

"E
91

2.
09

'

10
OPEN SPACE
0.04 AC

1
OPEN SPACE

0.04 AC

L16

L6
2

R50'

R60'

R6
0'

50'

50
'

50'

70'

50'

60
'

50'

50'

50'
70'

50
'

50'
50

'

50
'

50'

50
'

70'

R60'
R50'

LARIAT LOOP

ALFALFA DRIVETA
BL

E 
TO

P 
BE

ND

WOODROW LANE

MCCRAE DRIVE

TR
AV

IS
 L

AN
E

CL
EM

EN
S 

DR
IV

E

BARRET DRIVE

LEELAND DRIVE

KI
OW

A 
BE

ND

LA
RI

AT
 L

OO
P

HIGH VALLEY DRIVE

BA
LB

OA
 D

RI
VE

BALBOA COURT

LEELAND DRIVE HA
T 

CR
EE

K 
DR

IV
E

KI
OW

A 
BE

ND

CLOVER DRIVE
CLOVER DRIVE

HA
T 

CR
EE

K 
DR

IV
E

LARIAT COURT

R50'

967

957

DA
NI

EL
SO

N 
ST

RE
ET

R60'

R31.5'

50'

R50'

120' C.R. 214 ROW TO
BE DEDICATED BY

FINAL PLAT

R60'

Line Table: Alignments

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

LENGTH

84.581

779.976

158.776

495.633

114.984

298.973

418.938

303.400

211.402

97.459

551.657

559.796

399.358

479.114

69.147

2193.550

613.910

76.051

DIRECTION

N67° 04' 56.59"E

N74° 58' 39.87"E

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N22° 55' 03.41"W

S69° 39' 23.20"W

S69° 39' 23.20"W

S60° 57' 44.39"E

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N23° 01' 11.60"W

N15° 01' 20.13"W

N74° 58' 39.87"E

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

S69° 36' 07.69"W

S50° 08' 19.43"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N34° 46' 40.75"W

Line Table: Alignments

LINE

L19

L20

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25

L29

L30

L31

L32

L37

L38

L39

L40

L41

L42

L43

LENGTH

397.412

313.910

66.645

245.905

601.530

449.656

210.100

392.803

298.961

116.238

128.398

111.657

373.376

439.004

110.076

574.527

1157.384

42.554

DIRECTION

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N01° 43' 07.25"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

S28° 04' 28.18"E

N69° 01' 18.14"E

N61° 55' 31.82"E

N28° 04' 28.18"W

N38° 26' 00.54"E

N34° 54' 07.59"E

N60° 11' 55.30"E

N22° 02' 26.66"E

N20° 23' 52.31"W

S69° 36' 07.69"W

S55° 13' 51.62"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

S28° 04' 28.18"E

S66° 20' 56.94"E

Line Table: Alignments

LINE

L44

L45

L46

L47

L48

L49

L50

L51

L52

L53

L54

L55

L56

L57

L58

L59

L60

L62

LENGTH

71.350

475.501

1257.659

188.578

161.568

322.895

798.647

78.182

73.836

81.870

606.000

166.528

535.482

256.917

213.916

448.256

654.808

148.950

DIRECTION

N53° 23' 44.43"E

N61° 55' 31.82"E

S28° 04' 28.18"E

N20° 20' 36.80"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N81° 28' 15.14"W

N29° 02' 15.61"E

N04° 46' 26.12"E

N19° 55' 53.87"W

S69° 01' 18.14"W

S61° 55' 31.82"W

N60° 58' 19.80"E

N60° 11' 55.30"E

N80° 27' 42.69"E

N59° 53' 03.89"E

S69° 54' 10.53"W

Curve Table: Alignments

CURVE
C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C14

C15

C18

C19

C20

C21

C22

C23

C24

C25

C26

C27

C28

DELTA ANGLE
7°53'43"

5°22'32"

92°31'11"

49°26'08"

52°03'27"

7°59'51"

19°27'48"

14°22'48"

90°00'00"

18°40'45"

82°19'24"

7°05'46"

82°19'24"

25°17'48"

42°26'19"

14°22'16"

38°16'29"

8°31'47"

61°07'38"

22°46'20"

25°10'18"

8°37'48"

7°05'46"

41°11'31"

20°34'39"

RADIUS
500.00'

500.00'

750.00'

350.00'

400.00'

300.00'

300.00'

300.00'

300.00'

300.00'

800.00'

500.00'

520.00'

300.00'

300.00'

500.00'

300.00'

300.00'

180.00'

300.00'

300.00'

500.00'

300.00'

1176.50'

2523.50'

ARC LENGTH
68.90'

46.91'

1211.08'

301.98'

363.43'

41.88'

101.91'

75.29'

471.24'

97.80'

1149.45'

61.93'

747.14'

132.45'

222.21'

125.41'

200.41'

44.66'

192.04'

119.24'

131.80'

75.31'

37.16'

845.83'

906.30'

CHORD DIRECTION
N71° 01' 48.23"E

N72° 17' 23.78"E

N23° 20' 32.14"E

S85° 40' 48.35"E

N03° 00' 32.01"E

N19° 01' 15.86"W

S59° 52' 13.56"W

N27° 35' 16.53"W

N24° 36' 07.69"E

N11° 03' 29.78"W

S69° 14' 10.24"E

N65° 28' 24.98"E

N69° 14' 10.24"W

N47° 33' 01.44"E

N00° 49' 17.17"E

S62° 24' 59.65"W

S47° 12' 42.56"E

N57° 39' 38.13"E

N50° 54' 25.97"W

N31° 47' 02.45"W

N07° 48' 43.09"W

N65° 17' 13.74"E

S65° 28' 24.98"W

N59° 51' 56.95"E

N70° 10' 23.29"E

CHORD DISTANCE
68.85'

46.89'

1083.72'

292.70'

351.06'

41.84'

101.42'

75.10'

424.26'

97.37'

1053.10'

61.89'

684.51'

131.38'

217.16'

125.08'

196.70'

44.62'

183.06'

118.45'

130.74'

75.24'

37.13'

827.73'

901.44'

984

L A
R I

A T
LO

OP

70' ROW

48' F-F

R15'

WOODROW LANE
R60'

R50'

R25'

R20'

R20'

R25'

R50'

974

LARIAT LOOP

LE
EL

AN
D 

DR
IV

E

R25'

33' F-F

50' ROW

48' F-F 70
' R

OW

R20'

R25'

R20'

R25'

R20
'

R25'

R20'

R25'

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
P-

PR
LM

.d
w

g 
  L

ay
ou

t: 
2 

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 (S
H

EE
T 

1 
O

F 
3)

   
Pl

ot
te

d:
 8

/1
6/

20
21

 1
1:

30
:1

2 
AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 (S
H

EE
T 

1 
O

F 
3)

2

0 100' 200'50'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

NORTHGATE RANCH PHASE 2 SECTIONS 6,7,8,9,10
PRELIMINARY PLAT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

MATCH LINE TO SHEET 3

TYPICAL ARTERIAL SECTION

C.
R.

 2
14

LARIAT LOOP - WOODROW LANE
ROUNDABOUT DETAILS

LARIAT LOOP - LEELAND DRIVE
ROUNDABOUT DETAILS

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
CLUSTER MAILBOXES

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
CLUSTER MAILBOXES

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
CLUSTER MAILBOXES

RI
VE

R 
OA

KS
(L

AN
D 

OW
NE

R)
R5

90
58

6

MAJOR ELEV. CONTOUR
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

MINOR ELEV. CONTOUR

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

SECTION BOUNDARY

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

BUILDING SETBACK

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

SECTION 6

SECTION 7

SECTION 10

SECTION 8



W
W

W
W

5'
5'

10.0'

50' - 70' ROW VARIES

5'

TYPICAL UTILITY ASSIGNMENT
DETAIL N.T.S.

PROPOSED
STORMWATER

PROPOSED
WATER

ROAD
CENTERLINE

PROPOSED
WASTEWATER

C
&G

C
&G

SI
D

EW
AL

K

W
W

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.

Do
c. 

20
08

07
65

91

W
AR

RE
N,

 B
IL

L 
D

R0
22

44
9

95
5 95

2953954

95
6

95
7958

960

965

959

961

962
963

964

960

956
957958959

96
1962

925

923

924
926

927

928
929

940

945

941

942

943

944

31 32
33

36
3941 40

30

34
35

38 37

61

59

62

58

60

56

68

76

62

69
65

72

77
81

75

78

74

79

73

80
82

56

58

67

66

52
54

48

55
53

50 51
49

47
OPEN SPACE

0.18 AC
45 46

44

41
42

43
40

37

39

38

3534
3632

33

31

30

28

29

26

25

24

21

19

5

1

14

8

3

4

2

17

16

15

11

9

13

12

10

6

7

18

57

Z

Z

5

2

4

3

1

15

16

17

18

12

8

14

10

7

136

9

11

AA

5

17

2

16

31

18

10
11

9

15

8
OPEN SPACE

0.51 AC

12

7

1314

4 6
AB

2

7

6

8 9

5 4

10

13

3
1

11

12

7

28

1

27 26

2 3

25

6

24

4

23

12

22

18

8

21 20

9 10

19
16

11
14

17

13
15

25

6

9

8

7
29

27

28

30

11

12

10

13

23

24

26

20

16

15

14 19

22
21

AF

34

32

31

30

28

27

35
OPEN SPACE

0.92 AC

4233

36

37

44

39

41

40

38

45

43

22

6

25
24

23

3
4

2

18
21 20

12

875

19
16

9
10

17
15

11
1413

AH

4 15

7

5

2

3

1 18

17

16

12

14

6

8

13

10

11

9

AI 28

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

20

59
OPEN SPACE

6.17 AC

L21
C10

L22

C1
1

L23

C12

L25

L29

C14

L30

L31

C15

L32

L37

C18
L38

L3
9

C19
L40

L4
1

L42

C20

L43

L44
C21

L45

L46

C24L49

L5
0

C25

23
OPEN SPACE

DRAINAGE/ POND LOT
1.29 AC

27
OPEN SPACE

DRAINAGE/ POND LOT
4.02 AC

14

29
OPEN SPACE

0.52 AC

5

63
64

61

4849

42

50

43

51

4452

45

46

53

47

70

71

29

57
OPEN SPACE

0.11 AC

L53

L54

L5
5

C26

L56

L57 L58

L60

18
OPEN SPACE

0.08 AC

17

15
OPEN SPACE

0.58 AC

26

1
OPEN SPACE
0.05 AC

18

19

20
OPEN SPACE

0.17 AC

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
29

30

31

32
33

34

35

60
OPEN SPACE

1.50 AC

36

22

63

55

54

10
OPEN SPACE

DRAINAGE/ POND LOT
6.25 AC

28 29

AE
AC

Z

AD

31'

40'

40' 40' 40' 33' 7' 14'
39' 23' 30'

30
'

59'

35'

110'

130'5'

36
' 131'

41
'

40
' 128' 25'

15
'

5' 123' 42'35
'

3' 120' 51'35'
40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

40'

120' 40'

33'

7' 119' 40'

32'
99' 38'

317'

662'

17'
16'

25
' 110'

52
'

85'
39'

40
' 110'

40
'

22'

110' 27'

17
'

17
'

43'

110' 51'

43'

110' 43'

44'

110' 44'

44'

110' 44'

85'

54'

29'

39
'

24'95'

46
'

110'

32
'

40
'

40
' 110'

40
'

23
'

17' 110'

14
'

39'

110'

5'
34'

40'

25'
15'

110'

40'40'

110'

40'40'

110'

40'40'

110'

25'

50'

85' 39'

95'

27
'

40'
27

'27
'27

'27
' 40

'40
'40

' 40
' 40

'40
' 12

'12
'

40'
30'

40'

53' 39'53'53'53'53'53'

51'

51
'

8'

32'17
'

55'

102'

121'

125'

22
'

131'

38
'

133'

37
'

131'

37
'

131'

37
'

128'

38
'

121'

40
'

137'

38'

129'

49'
40'

40'

14'33'

40'

125'

40'

124'

40'

123'26'

124'

40' 39'

123'16'
18'

25'

120'9'

27'

39'

120'

40
'

50
'

39'
14'

115'
50'

21'

122'

42'

28' 24'

121'

42'

25' 27'

121'

39'

22' 25'

120'

26'13'

24' 18'

120'

44'

32' 12'

120'

44'

38' 6'

120'

44'

44'

120'

40'

40'

120'

40'

10' 30'

120'

40'

20' 20'

120'

40'

30' 10'

120'

95'

39
'

25'

50'

35' 39'

90'

115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'
115'

33' 21'

115'

58'

115'

58'

115'

58'

115'

44'

109'

20
'20'

23'

183'

19'

4'

58
'

115'

37
'

58
' 115'

39
'

10
'

58
' 115'

41
'

8'

58
' 115'

42
'

7'

58
' 115'

44
'

5'

58
'

115'

45
'

4'

58
'

115'

47
'

2'

58
'

115'

1'

47
'

1'

58
'

115'

2'

47
'

58'

115'

4'

45'

58'

115'

5'

44'

112'

49'

46'
12'

121'

14
'

30'

124'

8'10' 21'

183'

24'

39'

125'

39'

125'

39
'

125'

39
'

125'

39
'

124'

39
'

124'

39
'

124'

39
'123'

39
'122'

39
'

122'

39
'

121'31'50'50'50'49' 1'
51'26' 23' 4'

54'

50'
2'

13
3'

15' 35'

14
5'

12'38'

15' 9' 27'

13
8'

50'

16' 37'

12
0'

50'

15' 35'

12
0'

50'

12' 38'

12
0' 10

1'

35'
30'

2' 74'

20' 23' 38'

84
'

13
8'

81'

14
7'

38' 20'

14
7'

50'

13
5'

50'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

50'

35'

12
0'

16' 21' 29'

50'

102'

50
'

120' 19'
31'

51
'

139'

41'50
'

123'

20
'

37
'50

'

27' 120'

49
'

1'

50
'

120'

50
'

30
'

20
' 120'

50
'

40
'

10
'

120'

95' 39'
35

'60
'

45
'

39'

95'

120'

60
'

120'

29
'

19
'

105'

212'

61'

46'

27'130'

60
'

129'

22'

221'

44
8'

52'

39'

84
'

60
'

177'

34
'

60
'

74' 120'

35
'

60
'

60
'

120'

120'

39
'

39
'

60
'

120'

60
'

60
'

120'

60
'

60
'

120'

60
'

59
'

120' 25'

41
'

58'

120'

77'

5'0'
41'

17'

59'

119'

35'
39'

95
'

60'

12
0'

50'

50'

12
0'

50'

50'

12
0'

50'

50'

12
0'

50'

50'

12
0'

12'38'

50'

12
0'

50'

50'

12
6'

38' 12'

12
0'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

50'

12
0'

39'

35'

95
'

81'

12
0'

45'

12
3'

44'
23'

12
0'

48'

30'

38'

97
'

66'

67'

57
'

38'
23'

80'

19'

12'

137'

71'

94'

16'20'

36'

23'

143'

47'81'

139'

14'
25'

17'
39'

141' 48'

48'

24
' 128'

59'

55'

50' 34'

126'

51'

16' 46'

119'

50'

4' 47'

116'

21'29'

3' 50'

115'

50'

50'

115'

90'

39
'

35'

60'

55'

120'

50'

120'

50'

120'

50'

120'

50'

120'

50'

120'

35' 39'

95'

50'

120'

50'

120'

50'

32
'

37'

144'

50'

29'21'

137'

50'

50'1'

131'

50'

50'

124'

36'

18'55'

93
'

36
'

95
'

12
0'

30'

39' 3'

12
5'

48' 50'

14
1'

50'

38
'

12
6'

50'

83'

59
'

75
'

43'

131'

35'

38'

53'

50'

1'

143'

50'

64'

116'

48'
21'

9'
18

'

1'

48' 23'

90'

143'

95'

39'
35

' 120'

60
'

55
'

120'

55
'

55
'

120'

55
'

55
'

120'

55
'

54
'

120'

54
'

51
'

120'

51
'

50
'

120'

50
'

50
'

120'

50
'

36
'

99'

75
'

37
'

92' 43'

62
'

120'

50
'

120'

50
'

120'

51
'

120'

54
'

120'

55
'

120'

55
'

120'

55
'

120'

35
'

39'95'

43'

12
0'

61'

69'

53'

138'

60
'

7'
58'

15
'

142'

1'
41'

24'

7'

35
'

34
'

141'

60'

20
'

54
'

126'

60'

54
'

20
'

120'

49
'

11
'

34
'

32
'

120'

60
'

22
'

38
'

120'

60
'

16
'

44
'

120'

95'

39'

45
'

10
'

60
' 35

'
39'95'

120'

54
'

120'

54
'

120'

54
'

120'

54
'

120'

54
'

120'

54
'

120'

54
'

120'

5'
45

'

120'

10'
66'

122'

60'

120'

60'

155'

2'
58'

60'

155'

60'

143'

79'

123'

48
'32'

64
'

39
'

124'
46'

34
'

112'

124'

46'
12

0'

60'

86'

135'

55'

102'

130'

22'

24
'

24
' 60'

156'

60'

61'

37'
120'

60'

60'

120'

39'

45'

72'

95'
60'

24'

131'

60'

60'

130'

61'

59'

60'
70'

94'

120' 44'

40
'

49'

118'

11'

12'62
'

127'

60'

46
'

76
'

24
'

108'
20'

38'

72
' 118'

44'

46'

12
7'

78'

65'

129
'

48'

92'

19'
20'

123'

46
'

60'

74'
82'

1'

24
'

96'

120'

54'39'
74'

120'

67'

67'

120'

60'

60'

120'

60'

60'

120'

60'

60'

120'

60'

60'

120'

60'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

22'

59'

147'

62'

93'

43'

150'

14
'

11'

60
'

123'

59
'

45'

94'

53'

12
3'

12
4'

72'

79'

125'

46'

140'

35'

154'

46
'

47'

26'

61'

61'22'
103'

11'
27'

35
'

85'

22' 14'

122'

26'
38' 41'

120'

60'

60'

120'

95'39'

45'

70'

6'54'

181'

66
'

28
'

126'

151'

65'

151'

50'10'

120'

15'
57'

60'

40'20'

120'

60'

30'30'

120'

60'

20'40'

120'

95'

39
' 45'

10'60'

35'39'

90' 115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'

115'

50'

50'

115'

43'

94
'

83'

459'

369'

40
'

10'

77'

55
0'

497'

162'

60'

20'

43'

17
9'

13
0'

774'

57'

18'

2' 22'

19
1'

18'
119'

75'

28
7'

24
1'

60'

92
'

61'

120'

48'43'
53'

23' 29'

120'

53'

31' 22'

120'

53'

38' 14'

120'

46' 7'

120'

53' 53'

53'

120'

53'

120'

53'

120'

53'

7' 46'

120'

53'

14' 39'

120'

53'

21' 32'

120'

53'

28' 26'

120'

53'

34' 19'

120'

53'

41' 12'

120'

53'

48' 5'

120'

39
'

38'

63'

95'
36'

120'

22' 14' 37'

23'
41'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

60'

120'

46'

99
'

36
'

94'

26'
68'

S7
5°

20
'39

"W
44

7.
82

'

N7
2°

06
'28

"E
60

.0
6'

S20°23'52"E
74.14'

N6
9°

36
'08

"E
60

.0
0'

N55°13'52"E

59.47'
S64°55'37"W

74.97'

N8
8°

24
'25

"W

28
7.1

5'

N8
0°

49
'24

"W

24
1.1

8'

S8
0°

49
'24

"E

17
8.6

2'

S7
2°0

8'1
4"E

13
0.1

4'

L774.31'R658'

S8
8°

50
'44

"E

55
0.4

6'

S02°56'59"W

496.99'

S12°55'33"W

162.48'

L459.50'

R1140'

N59°53'04"E
368.58'

S59°53'04"W
316.98'

L 661. 89'
R2422'

50
'

50
'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50'

50
'

50
'

R60'

R50'

R50'

R6
0'

R60
'

R6
0'

R60'

R60.0'

R60.0'

3/4" N.P.T. WATER SUPPLY

FOR THE SPRAY WASH

SYSTEM - BY OTHERS

3/4" POLYPROPYLENE DISC

FILTER (SHIPPED LOOSE)

BY LAKESIDE

LOCATION, MOUNTING,

AND INSTALLATION

BY OTHERS

SEE DRAWING B93262

TWO (2) FLOAT SWITCHES

w/ 20ft OF CABLE EACH

BY LAKESIDE

WIRING AND CONDUIT TO THE

MAIN CONTROL PANEL

BY OTHERS

SEE DRAWING A68270

3/4" HOLE

8 PROVIDED

BY LAKESIDE

5/8" FASTENERS

BY OTHERS

BL
OW

ER
 1

BL
OW

ER
 2

PU
MP

 1

PU
MP

 2

PU
MP

 3

JU
NC

TIO
N B

OX

2" 
AC

TU
AT

ED

VA
LV

ES

FL
OW

ME
TE

R

TE
E

3" 
BA

LL
 VA

LV
ES

(TY
P O

F 6
)

16
.00

'

8.50'

PU
MP

 4

2" 
BA

LL
 VA

LV
ES

(TY
P O

F 3
)

CLOVER DRIVE

CARR DRIVE

KIOWA BEND

CLOVER DRIVE

HA
T 

CR
EE

K 
DR

IV
E

FOUNDATION LANE

F OUNDATION
LANE.

LARIAT COURT

TOP VIEW DRIVE

RI
GH

TF
IE

LD
 D

RI
VE

NO
RT

H 
RI

VE
R 

W
AY

GREEN BRUSH DRIVE

AU
GU

ST
US

 D
RI

VE

GARY WAYNE DRIVE

SHEEPDOG DRIVE

SHEEPDOG COVE

LA
RI

AT
LO

OP

LARIAT LOOP

R31.5'

96
0

95
7958 95
9

96
1

96
2

963

945

950

943944

946

947948

949

96
0

965

958

95
9

961

962

963
964

966
967

940

945

938939941942943944

950

955

948949

951952

953

954

956

957

CATTLE PASS

70'

R31.5'

LOC

120' C.R. 214

ROW TO

BE DEDICATED

BY FINAL PLAT

120' C.R. 214

ROW TO

BE DEDICATED

BY FINAL PLAT

R60'

Line Table: Alignments

LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

LENGTH

84.581

779.976

158.776

495.633

114.984

298.973

418.938

303.400

211.402

97.459

551.657

559.796

399.358

479.114

69.147

2193.550

613.910

76.051

DIRECTION

N67° 04' 56.59"E

N74° 58' 39.87"E

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N22° 55' 03.41"W

S69° 39' 23.20"W

S69° 39' 23.20"W

S60° 57' 44.39"E

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N23° 01' 11.60"W

N15° 01' 20.13"W

N74° 58' 39.87"E

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

S69° 36' 07.69"W

S50° 08' 19.43"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N34° 46' 40.75"W

Line Table: Alignments

LINE

L19

L20

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25

L29

L30

L31

L32

L37

L38

L39

L40

L41

L42

L43

LENGTH

397.412

313.910

66.645

245.905

601.530

449.656

210.100

392.803

298.961

116.238

128.398

111.657

373.376

439.004

110.076

574.527

1157.384

42.554

DIRECTION

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N01° 43' 07.25"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

S28° 04' 28.18"E

N69° 01' 18.14"E

N61° 55' 31.82"E

N28° 04' 28.18"W

N38° 26' 00.54"E

N34° 54' 07.59"E

N60° 11' 55.30"E

N22° 02' 26.66"E

N20° 23' 52.31"W

S69° 36' 07.69"W

S55° 13' 51.62"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

S28° 04' 28.18"E

S66° 20' 56.94"E

Line Table: Alignments

LINE

L44

L45

L46

L47

L48

L49

L50

L51

L52

L53

L54

L55

L56

L57

L58

L59

L60

L62

LENGTH

71.350

475.501

1257.659

188.578

161.568

322.895

798.647

78.182

73.836

81.870

606.000

166.528

535.482

256.917

213.916

448.256

654.808

148.950

DIRECTION

N53° 23' 44.43"E

N61° 55' 31.82"E

S28° 04' 28.18"E

N20° 20' 36.80"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N20° 23' 52.31"W

N69° 36' 07.69"E

N81° 28' 15.14"W

N29° 02' 15.61"E

N04° 46' 26.12"E

N19° 55' 53.87"W

S69° 01' 18.14"W

S61° 55' 31.82"W

N60° 58' 19.80"E

N60° 11' 55.30"E

N80° 27' 42.69"E

N59° 53' 03.89"E

S69° 54' 10.53"W

Curve Table: Alignments

CURVE
C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C14

C15

C18

C19

C20

C21

C22

C23

C24

C25

C26

C27

C28

DELTA ANGLE
7°53'43"

5°22'32"

92°31'11"

49°26'08"

52°03'27"

7°59'51"

19°27'48"

14°22'48"

90°00'00"

18°40'45"

82°19'24"

7°05'46"

82°19'24"

25°17'48"

42°26'19"

14°22'16"

38°16'29"

8°31'47"

61°07'38"

22°46'20"

25°10'18"

8°37'48"

7°05'46"

41°11'31"

20°34'39"

RADIUS
500.00'

500.00'

750.00'

350.00'

400.00'

300.00'

300.00'

300.00'

300.00'

300.00'

800.00'

500.00'

520.00'

300.00'

300.00'

500.00'

300.00'

300.00'

180.00'

300.00'

300.00'

500.00'

300.00'

1176.50'

2523.50'

ARC LENGTH
68.90'

46.91'

1211.08'

301.98'

363.43'

41.88'

101.91'

75.29'

471.24'

97.80'

1149.45'

61.93'

747.14'

132.45'

222.21'

125.41'

200.41'

44.66'

192.04'

119.24'

131.80'

75.31'

37.16'

845.83'

906.30'

CHORD DIRECTION
N71° 01' 48.23"E

N72° 17' 23.78"E

N23° 20' 32.14"E

S85° 40' 48.35"E

N03° 00' 32.01"E

N19° 01' 15.86"W

S59° 52' 13.56"W

N27° 35' 16.53"W

N24° 36' 07.69"E

N11° 03' 29.78"W

S69° 14' 10.24"E

N65° 28' 24.98"E

N69° 14' 10.24"W

N47° 33' 01.44"E

N00° 49' 17.17"E

S62° 24' 59.65"W

S47° 12' 42.56"E

N57° 39' 38.13"E

N50° 54' 25.97"W

N31° 47' 02.45"W

N07° 48' 43.09"W

N65° 17' 13.74"E

S65° 28' 24.98"W

N59° 51' 56.95"E

N70° 10' 23.29"E

CHORD DISTANCE
68.85'

46.89'

1083.72'

292.70'

351.06'

41.84'

101.42'

75.10'

424.26'

97.37'

1053.10'

61.89'

684.51'

131.38'

217.16'

125.08'

196.70'

44.62'

183.06'

118.45'

130.74'

75.24'

37.13'

827.73'

901.44'

LARIAT LOOP

FO
UN

DA
TI

ON
 L

AN
E

33' F-F
50' ROW

R1
5'

95
0

949

958

R20'

R25' R20'

R2
5'

48' F-F

70' ROW

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
P-

PR
LM

.d
w

g 
  L

ay
ou

t: 
3 

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 (S
H

EE
T 

2 
O

F 
3)

   
Pl

ot
te

d:
 8

/1
6/

20
21

 1
1:

30
:3

5 
AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 (S
H

EE
T 

2 
O

F 
3)

3

MAJOR ELEV. CONTOUR
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

MINOR ELEV. CONTOUR

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

SECTION BOUNDARY

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

BUILDING SETBACK

0 100' 200'50'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

NORTHGATE RANCH PHASE 2 SECTIONS 6,7,8,9,10
PRELIMINARY PLAT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

MATCH LINE TO SHEET 2

TYPICAL ARTERIAL SECTION

LARIAT LOOP - FOUNDATION LANE
ROUNDABOUT DETAILS

C.
R.

 2
14

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
CLUSTER MAILBOXES

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
CLUSTER MAILBOXES

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
CLUSTER MAILBOXES

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
CLUSTER MAILBOXES

RI
VE

R 
OA

KS
(L

AN
D 

OW
NE

R)

WASTEWATER TREATMENT
PLANT

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F, DATED

DECEMBER 20, 2019

R.
O.

W
. D

ED
IC

AT
IO

N 
ON

LY

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019

SECTION 8

SECTION 10

LIMITS OF CR 214
CONSTRUCTION

MATCH LINE TO SHEET 4



W
W

W
W

5'
5'

10.0'

50' - 70' ROW VARIES

5'

TYPICAL UTILITY ASSIGNMENT
DETAIL N.T.S.

PROPOSED
STORMWATER

PROPOSED
WATER

ROAD
CENTERLINE

PROPOSED
WASTEWATER

C
&G

C
&G

SI
D

EW
AL

K

W
W

BI
LL

 D
. W

AR
RE

N 
et

. u
x.

17
4.

03
 a

c.
su

bje
ct 

to
 L

Ife
 E

sta
te

(L
.E

.)
10

10
/5

02

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.
20

.0
3 

Ac
re

s
Do

c. 
20

08
07

65
91

WARREN,
BILL D

R022449

120' C.R. 214

ROW TO

BE DEDICATED

BY FINAL PLAT

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
P-

PR
LM

.d
w

g 
  L

ay
ou

t: 
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
PL

AT
 (S

H
EE

T 
3 

O
F 

3)
   

Pl
ot

te
d:

 8
/1

6/
20

21
 1

1:
30

:4
5 

AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

 (S
H

EE
T 

3 
O

F 
3)

4

MAJOR ELEV. CONTOUR
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

MINOR ELEV. CONTOUR

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

SECTION BOUNDARY

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

BUILDING SETBACK

0 100' 200'50'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

NORTHGATE RANCH PHASE 2 SECTIONS 6,7,8,9,10
PRELIMINARY PLAT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019

MATCH LINE TO SHEET 3



19.82 AC.
DA - F

1.65 AC.
DA - OS1

4.46 AC.
DA - OS2

970

975

980

967 968 969

971
972

973

974

976

977

978
979

981

895

892

893

894

89
6

897

898

899

88
5

89
0 88
2

88388
4

88
6

88788
8

88
9

88
1

88
2

853

854

7.96 AC.
DA - OS3

0.
7%

955

960

965

970

975

980

956

957

958
959

961

962

963

964

966967968969

971972973974

976977978979

981982983

984

945

950

955

960

96
597

0

944
946

947
948

949
951952953954

956
957958

959

961

96
2

96396
496

696796
896
9

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
E-

H
YD

R
.d

w
g 

  L
ay

ou
t: 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E 
AR

EA
 M

AP
   

Pl
ot

te
d:

 8
/1

6/
20

21
 1

1:
30

:5
6 

AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E 
AR

EA
 M

AP

5

EDA F - 19.82 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 0.0%
LAG TIME = 10.39 MIN

MAJOR ELEV. CONTOUR
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

MINOR ELEV. CONTOUR
DRAINAGE AREA BOUNDARY

0 100' 200'50'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

LAG TIME FLOW PATH

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019

POA FLOA OS2

LOA OS1

EDA OS2 - 4.46 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 0.0%
LAG TIME = 10.50 MIN

EDA OS1 - 1.65 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 0.0%
LAG TIME = 8.98 MIN

LOA OS3

EDA OS3 - 7.96 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 0.0%
LAG TIME = 9.09  MIN

FLOW DIRECTION

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F, DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021



THE HIDDEN CREEK ESTATES DOC. 2016032981

PHAM
, DUC CONG

R546883

BILL D. WARREN et. ux.
174.03 ac.

subject to LIfe Estate
(L.E.)

1010/502

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.20.03 AcresDoc. 2008076591

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 Ac

Doc. 2008076591

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 Ac

Doc. 2008076591

LOT 1 LONGHORN CAB.G, SL. 96

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 AC

DOC. 2008076591

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
REMAINDER OF  77.5254 ACRES

TEXAS LAND FUND NO. 6 L.P.
846.46 AC

DOC. 2008076591

SHEARER, ERICA M &

KUNZE,DANA P &HILARYSCHRECKENBACH
R546884

DROSCHE, RENEE
& JASON
R546885

IRICK, JACK THOM
AS

& SHERYL
R546886

FILIPPO, JUSTIN SAN
R546887

KIELEY, BRIAN EDW
ARD

R546888

M
ANIACI, DAVE &

M
ICHELLE

R546889

CHAPM
AN BROTHERS

CUSTOM
 HOM

ES LLC
R546890

SINGH, GULAB &
POONAM
R546891

EL ESTYLO
HOM

ES LLC
R546892

HE
RN

AN
DE

Z,
 C

ES
AR

M
AR

GA
RI

TO
R5

46
88

2

R546848

SH
IP

P
EN

TE
RP

RI
SE

 L
LC

R5
46

85
3

UN
KN

OW
N

R5
46

85
5 WARREN, BILL D

R022449

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS SS SS SS

SS

SS

SS SS

SS
SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SSSS

SS

SS

SS SS
SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS SS

SS

SS

SS SS

L16

W
W > WW >

WW

>

WW

>

WW

>

W
W

>

W
W

>

WW

>

W
W

>

WW

>

WW

>
W

W
>

WW

10.38 AC.
DA - H

79.75 AC.
DA - D

29.08 AC.
DA - E

29.82 AC.
DA - F

56.43 AC.
DA - I

0.60 AC.
DA - OS 1

7.46 AC.
DA - G

1.95 AC.
DA - OS 3

96
5

970

964

966
967

968

969

971

972

973

97
598

0

97
6

97
7

97897
9

98
1982

983984

97
5 98
0

97
4

97
6977

978 97
9

98
1

98
2

98
3

975

980

973

974

97
6

977
978979

981

982

96
597

0

964
96696796

896
9971

95
5

960

95
395

4

956
957

95
895

9

961
96296

3964

94094
5 938

939
941
942
943
94494

6
94

7948949

96
0

959

96
1

962
963

96
4

960

965

957958959

961

962

963

964

96
6

1.55 AC.
DA - OS 2

87
5

88
0

874

876

87
7

87
8

879

88
1

88
2

950

955

949951952953

95
4

956

957

958

89
089
590090

591
091

592
092
593093

5940

92
593

093
594

094
595

0955

96096
597

0

880

88
5

89
0

895

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
P-

H
YD

R
.d

w
g 

  L
ay

ou
t: 

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 H

YD
R

O
LO

G
Y 

  P
lo

tte
d:

 8
/1

6/
20

21
 1

1:
31

:4
5 

AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

DA E (NORTHGATE
PHASE 2 SECTIONS 1-5
PRELIMINARY PLAT)

DA D (NORTHGATE
PHASE 2 SECTIONS 1-5
PRELIMINARY PLAT)

DA F - 29.82 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 45.2%
LAG TIME = 8.24 MIN

DA G - 7.46 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 45.4%
LAG TIME = 7.79 MIN

DA H - 10.38 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 40.5%
LAG TIME = 7.37 MIN

DA I - 56.43 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 40.5%
LAG TIME = 8.96 MIN

DA OS 1 - 0.60 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 49.7%
LAG TIME = 5.76 MIN

DA OS 2 - 1.55 AC
CN = 79
IC% = 46.7%
LAG TIME = 5.89 MIN DA OS 3 - 1.95 AC

CN = 79
IC% = 40.0%
LAG TIME = 6.09 MIN

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 D

R
AI

N
AG

E 
AR

EA
 M

AP

6

MAJOR ELEV. CONTOUR
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

MINOR ELEV. CONTOUR
DRAINAGE AREA BOUNDARY

0 100' 200'50'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

LAG TIME FLOW PATH
SS SS PROPOSED STORM SEWER

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019

LOA OS2

LOA OS1
STACKED DETENTION

POND F

BATCH DETENTION
POND G

BATCH DETENTION
POND H

BATCH DETENTION
POND I

FLOW DIRECTION

LOA OS3

POA F

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., JUNE, 2021

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F, DATED

DECEMBER 20, 2019

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MAY 2021



W
W

W
W

5'
5'

5.0'

50' - 60' ROW VARIES

5'

W
W

TYPICAL UTILITY ASSIGNMENT
DETAIL N.T.S.

PROPOSED
STORMWATER

PROPOSED
WATER

ROAD
CENTERLINE

PROPOSED
WASTEWATER

C
&G

C
&G

SI
D

EW
AL

K

TH
E 

HI
DD

EN
 C

RE
EK

 E
ST

AT
ES

 D
OC

. 2
01

60
32

98
1 PHAM, DUC CONG

R546883

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.

Do
c. 

20
08

07
65

91

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.
84

6.
46

 A
C

DO
C.

 2
00

80
76

59
1

KUNZE, DANA P & HILARY
SCHRECKENBACH

R546884

DROSCHE, RENEE
& JASON
R546885

IRICK, JACK THOMAS
& SHERYL
R546886

FILIPPO, JUSTIN SAN
R546887

HERNANDEZ, CESAR
MARGARITO

R546882
UNKNOWN
R546855

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W

WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW

WWWWW

W
W

W
W W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

WWWW
W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W W W W W W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
WW

WWWWWWWW

WW

WW

W
W

WWWWWW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

WW WW WW WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

WW

WW WW

W
W

W
W

WW

WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW WW WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW WW WW WW WW WW WW

WW

W
W

WW

L16

WW

WW

W
W

W
W

8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE
8" WASTEWATER LINE 8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

MCCRAE DRIVE

WOODROW
LA

NE

ALFALFA DRIVE

TA
BL

E 
TO

P 
BE

ND LARIAT LOOP

TR
AV

IS
 L

AN
E

CL
EM

EN
S 

DR
IV

E

BARRET DRIVE

LEELAND DRIVE

KI
OW

A 
BE

ND

HA
T 

CR
EE

K 
DR

IV
E

HIGH VALLEY DRIVE

BALBOA COURT

BA
LB

OA
 D

RI
VE

LEELAND DRIVE

AR
V

AR
V

16" OFFSITE WATER LINE

16" OFFSITE WATER LINE

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
P-

U
TI

L.
dw

g 
  L

ay
ou

t: 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 (S

H
EE

T 
1 

O
F 

2)
   

Pl
ot

te
d:

 8
/1

6/
20

21
 1

1:
33

:4
1 

AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 (S
H

EE
T 

1 
O

F 
2)

7

MAJOR ELEV. CONTOUR

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

MINOR ELEV. CONTOUR

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

SECTION BOUNDARY

BUILDING SETBACK

0 100' 200'50'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

NORTHGATE RANCH PHASE 2 SECTIONS 6,7,8,9,10
PRELIMINARY PLAT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

MATCH LINE TO SHEET 6

TYPICAL ARTERIAL SECTION

PROPOSED WASTEWATERWW

PROPOSED WATERW W

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MARCH 9, 2017

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019



W
W

W
W

5'
5'

5.0'

50' - 60' ROW VARIES

5'

W
W

TYPICAL UTILITY ASSIGNMENT
DETAIL N.T.S.

PROPOSED
STORMWATER

PROPOSED
WATER

ROAD
CENTERLINE

PROPOSED
WASTEWATER

C
&G

C
&G

SI
D

EW
AL

K

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.
20

.0
3 

Ac
re

s
Do

c. 
20

08
07

65
91

TE
XA

S 
LA

ND
 F

UN
D 

NO
. 6

 L
.P

.
84

6.
46

 A
c

Do
c. 

20
08

07
65

91

W
AR

RE
N,

 B
IL

L 
D

R0
22

44
9

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

WWWWW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

WWWWWWW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W W W W
W

W
W W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

WW

WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

WW

WW
WW

WW

WW

WW
WW

WW

WW

WW

WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
WWWWWWW

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW
WW

WW
WW

WW
WW

WW
WW

WW

WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

WW
WW

WW
WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW
WW

WW

WW
WW

W
W

W
W

WW WW WW WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW
WW

>

W
W

>

W
W

>

W
W

>
WW

>

W
W

>

W
W

>

W
W

>

W
W

>WW>WW>

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE

8" WASTEWATER LINE

HA
T 

CR
EE

K 
DR

IV
E

CLOVER DRIVE

CARR DRIVE

KIOWA BEND

FOUNDATION LANE

F O UNDAT ION
LANE.

LARIAT COURT

TOP VIEW DRIVE

RI
GH

TF
IE

LD
 D

RI
VE

NO
RT

H 
RI

VE
R 

W
AY

AU
GU

ST
US

 D
RI

VE

GARY WAYNE DRIVE

SHEEPDOG DRIVE

SHEEPDOG COVE

GREEN BRUSH DRIVE

LARIAT LOOP

HAT CREEK DRIVE
CATTLE PASS

AR
V

16" OFFSITE  WATER LINE

Xref P:\22000-22999\22747 N
orthgate R

anch W
W

TP\C
AD

\Plans\R
egenM

otor-plan.dw
g

Xref P:\22000-22999\22747 N
orthgate R

anch W
W

TP\C
AD

\Plans\R
egenM

otor-plan.dw
g

PROPOSED WASTEWATER
TREATMENT PLANT

TDM

JAY

LCG

G
:\T

XC
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

R
an

do
lp

h 
To

dd
 C

o\
87

12
-0

0-
N

or
th

ga
te

_P
h_

2-
Pr

el
im

_P
la

t_
Se

c_
6-

10
\L

D
\0

1_
C

AD
D

\0
1_

Sh
ts

\8
71

2-
C

-S
P-

U
TI

L.
dw

g 
  L

ay
ou

t: 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 (S

H
EE

T 
2 

O
F 

2)
   

Pl
ot

te
d:

 8
/1

6/
20

21
 1

1:
33

:4
8 

AM

N
O

R
TH

G
AT

E 
R

AN
C

H
 P

H
AS

E 
2 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

6,
7,

8,
9,

10
W

IL
LI

AM
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

AS

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

R
EV

DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

DRAWN BY:

D
AT

E
AP

R

SHEET

B
G

E,
 IN

C
.

10
1 

W
 L

ou
is

 H
en

na
 B

lv
d,

 S
ui

te
 4

00
AU

ST
IN

, T
X 

78
72

8
TB

PE
 R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
N

o.
 F

-1
04

6
TE

L:
 5

12
-8

79
-0

40
0 

w
w

w
.b

ge
in

c.
co

m

OF 8

8/12/2021

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 (S
H

EE
T 

2 
O

F 
2)

8

0 100' 200'50'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

NORTHGATE RANCH PHASE 2 SECTIONS 6,7,8,9,10
PRELIMINARY PLAT

WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS

MATCH LINE TO SHEET 7

TYPICAL ARTERIAL SECTION

MAJOR ELEV. CONTOUR

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

LEGEND

MINOR ELEV. CONTOUR

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

SECTION BOUNDARY

BUILDING SETBACK

PROPOSED WASTEWATERWW

PROPOSED WATERW W

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER STUDY
BY BGE, INC., MARCH 9, 2017

100-YR FLOODPLAIN PER FEMA
PANEL 48491C0235F DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2019



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 34.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

WCCHD Board Member Replacement 
Submitted For: Bill Gravell  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County

Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to replace Andrea Schiele with Ed Tydings to
serve as a Director on the Williamson County Board of Health for the Williamson County & Cities
Health Department (WCCHD).

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:41 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 08/18/2021 02:44 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 35.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Crisis Center Substantial Amendment
Submitted By: Sally Bardwell, HUD Grants
Department: HUD Grants
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action to amend the 2020 Community Development Block Grant
Annual Action Plan by reallocating $22,134 from Hope Alliance/Crisis Center Shelter Rehab to
Hope Alliance/Crisis Center counseling services for victims of family or sexual violence.

Background
Hope Alliance has requested the reallocation of $22,134.  Funding was originally awarded for
shelter rehab.  However, the need has shifted to counseling services for victims of family or
sexual violence. 
Approving this request will trigger a substantial amendment to the Annual Action Plan which will
require a 30-day public comment period.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:46 AM
Form Started By: Sally Bardwell Started On: 08/18/2021 02:34 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 36.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Park Donations BA Rev 08.24.21
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional revenues for Park Donations. 

Background
Donations include monies for general donations and firewood from various patrons. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367403 Park Donations $227.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 03:39 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 08/17/2021 11:23 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 37.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Park Donations BA Exp 08.24.21
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Melanie Denny, County

Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional expenditures for Park Donations. 

Background
Donations include monies for general donations and firewood from various patrons. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0510.003670 Use of Donations $227.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/17/2021 03:39 PM
Form Started By: Melanie Denny Started On: 08/17/2021 11:23 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/17/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 38.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Radio Communication System (RCS) Budget Amendment 8.24.21
Submitted By: Pam Navarrette, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge the additional expenditures for the Radio Communication System (RCS).

Background
To recognize insurance proceeds and the associate expenditures related to damaged towers
due to the winter weather storm in February 2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0507.0507.004545 Tower Maintenance $13,920.25

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:39 AM
Form Started By: Pam Navarrette Started On: 08/17/2021 03:17 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 39.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Radio Communication System (RCS) Budget Amendment 8.24.21
Submitted By: Pam Navarrette, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to an unforeseeable circumstance and approve a budget amendment to
acknowledge additional revenues for Radio Communication System (RCS).

Background
The budget amendment recognizes insurance proceeds for repairs to damaged towers due to
the winter weather storm in Februrary 2021.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.364100 Insurance Proceeds  $13,920.25

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:34 AM
Form Started By: Pam Navarrette Started On: 08/17/2021 03:23 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 40.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

retention
Submitted For: Rebecca Clemons  Submitted By: Rebecca Clemons,

Human Resources
Department: Human Resources
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on adding salary dollars for retention to several
Court Administrators, including but not limited to, the 425th District Court, the 26th District
Court, the 368th District Court, County Court at Law #2 and County Court at Law #3. 

Background
The request is for retention dollars for several of the Court Administrators at the Justice Center.
Retention dollars could be added to the salaries for the FY22 budget or I can place an item and
public hearing back on the agenda for a later date.  The request is being made on behalf of
several District and County Court at Law Judges due to a recent policy change in December
2020 and/or career ladder movement regarding Court Administrators. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/09/2021 12:19 PM
Human Resources (Originator) Rebecca Clemons 08/11/2021 11:21 AM
Form Started By: Rebecca Clemons Started On: 08/09/2021 11:11 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/11/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 41.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Upper Forty Economic Development
Submitted For: Cynthia Long  Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,

Commissioner
Pct. #2

Department: Commissioner Pct. #2
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Chapter 381 Economic Development Program
and Agreement between Williamson Couty and Upper Forty, LLC.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Chapter 381 Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:15 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 08/19/2021 10:38 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 





















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 42.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

SAVNS Maintenance Grant Contract FY'22
Submitted For: Mike Gleason  Submitted By: Starla Hall, Sheriff
Department: Sheriff
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Statewide Automated Victim Notification
Service (SAVNS) Maintenance Grant Contract with the Office of the Attorney General for
SAVNS grant program funding for Fiscal Year 2022.

Background
The purpose of the OAG Statewide Automated Victim Notification Service (SAVNS) grant
program is to assist Texas counties and other entities in maintaining a statewide system that will
provide relevant offender release information, notification of relevant court settings or events to
crime victims and other interested individuals, promote public safety and support the rights of
victims of crime. To ensure a standard statewide service to a variety of political subdivisions of
the State of Texas, including counties, county Sheriffs, clerks and attorneys, district attorneys
and courts (participating entities) including Williamson County, the OAG makes grant funds
available for eligible expenses related to SAVNS services delivered to Williamson County by
Appriss Inc., which is the vendor certified by the OAG. The grant contract shall begin on
September 1, 2021 and shall terminate on August 31, 2022 unless it it terminated earlier in
accordance with another provision of this grant contract.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
SAVNS Maint Grant Contract 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Hal Hawes Hal Hawes 08/18/2021 02:56 PM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:36 AM
Form Started By: Starla Hall Started On: 08/18/2021 11:17 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



������ ��������	
��	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������
�������������������������	����������������� �
�!�"��#���������$��!������%�!��&�
� '�
� 
!(�&�)�*++�� ���#,��� ���,�#-��
./0123/455678879:;<=�><?=@ABB2CD2E



����������	
��	�
����������������������

��������������� ��!"���� #��"� ����� � � � � #�!� $%&'()&��$*��� � ��+,-.��
��	����	
��	�/012345�674523859:�-.��;��<	�=�>�	?����	,��@��-������	,���		�
��A�B���
�C�D@�BE���=�FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�DBG��+HHE���
���
	�-���
��	��<�=.I��+,��@�B���=�BG��+HH�J�A�>��
���

�=�	��-��	,-.�B
��	����	
��	�K4LKMKLN3OOP�3Q�0R325P9�72�87OOS85KMSOP�3Q�0R325KSQT9����� ��#��U*� VW"V#���#X��Y�� #��"� ���+,��Z<
Z�.�����	,��@�B��	�	�?-=���<	�J�	�=��-�	-J���	-�-��	-�����
[-���D�����E��
��	�Z
��
�J�-.�	���..-.	�+�;�.���<�	-�.���=��	,�
���	-	-�.�-��J�-�	�-�-�����.	�	�?-=��.A.	�J�	,�	�?-CC�Z
�[-=��
�C�[��	������=�
�
�C��.��-���
J�	-��\���	-�-��	-������
�C�[��	���<
	�.�		-��.��
��[��	.�	���
-J��[-�	-J.���=��	,�
�-�	�
�.	�=�-�=-[-=<�C.\�Z
�J�	��Z<>C-��.���	A\���=�.<ZZ�
	�	,��
-�,	.����[-�	-J.�����
-J�I��+����.<
����.	��=�
=�.	�	�?-=��.�
[-���	����[�
-�	A����Z�C-	-��C�.<>=-[-.-��.����	,���	�	�����+�;�.\�-��C<=-�����<�	-�.\���<�	A��,�
-��.\��C�
].���=��		�
��A.\�=-.	
-�	��		�
��A.\���=���<
	.�D0��
	-�-̂35K4_�̀45K5KSQ9:\�-��C<=-���BG��+HH\�	,��@�B�J�]�.��
��	��<�=.��[�-C�>C����
��C-�->C���;Z��.�.�
�C�	�=�	��������.�
[-��.�=�C-[�
�=�	��BG��+HH�>A�	,��[��=�
���
	-�-�=�>A�	,��@�BI����+,��@�B�Z<>C-.,�=���G�a<�.	���
�@���
�DG�@E���
��	�	�?-=���<	�J�	�=��-�	-J���
[-��.�b�A���\����cI���	�
�����[�C<�	-����������
.\�	,��@�B�-=��	-�-�=\���
	-�-�=\���=���	�
�=�-�	�������	
��	�?-	,���.-��C��[��=�
�	��Z
�[-=��.	�	�?-=���<	�J�	�=�[-�	-J���	-�-��	-���.�
[-��.�/0defgd��S2MK8SQ9:I��+,��-�-	-�C�	�
J����	,��@�B����=�
���
	-�-��	-�����=���
[-�����
��J��	�/0he1�6S25KiK835K74�e_2SSjS459:�-.k?�.��
�J���Z	�J>�
��\����c�	���<�<.	���\������/0l4K5K3O�mS2j9:I��@��n<����o\�����\�@�B��;�
�-.�=�-	.�
-�,	�	��
���?�	,��@�B���
	-�-��	-�����
��J��	�?-	,�	,��
���?�C�	�
J�	��>��-�������Z	�J>�
��\��������=���=�����<�<.	���\����p�/0qK2Q5�rS4Ss3O�mS2j9:T��+,��[��=�
�8S25KiKSL�57�̂27MKLS�5tS�QS2MK8SQ�KQ�ê 2̂KQQu�l48Tu�/06S25KiKSL�fS4L729:u�3�vS45N8wP�872̂7235K74��<	,�
-x�=�	��=��><.-��..�-��+�;�.I����� ��#��y*����"��#X��Y�� #��"� ���+,-.�B
��	����	
��	�.,�CC�>��-�������Z	�J>�
��\��������=�.,�CC�	�
J-��	���<�<.	���\�����\�<�C�..�-	�-.�	�
J-��	�=���
C-�
�-������
=�����?-	,����	,�
�Z
�[-.-������	,-.�B
��	����	
��	I����� ��#��z*��!"�����{�� #��"� �W�|���"�� ����z*U*� !'(%&}}�V('&~)~�(&~%���%&~&���}'�~)}� $%&'()&*��BG��+HH�.,�CC��;��<	����.�
[-�����
��J��	�?-	,�	,����
	-�-�=����=�
�	��Z
�[-=��.�
[-��.����.-.	��	�?-	,\���=�.<>���	�	��	,��C-J-	�	-��.����	�-��=�-�\�	,��@�B���
	-�-��	-�����
��J��	���=�=��<J��	.�-���
Z�
�	�=�	,�
�-�I��

������������������������



����������	
��	�
����������������������

��������������	�����
	�����	������	�	����
��������	
��	��		��������
�	��� ��!��"�	�#� �����"��$ ���"��%&��'��������	�
������	�������	
��	$���
���	��� ����(�	��	�����
	�����������
)�������
��	��$�� ��
�������$���
�	�� �%
��	����	
��	� �����"�������	���������	���*+,-.//01�$ �����	����!�2���
���
	�����	������	�	����
��������	
��	��� ��		��������
�	��������������	����	������
�3$� �	���2���2��	��
���(�����
��!	�� ��� �2�����
��	��
(� ���!�
�� ���"��%&��'����$
 $��	�	�����	����4�	��
���)�%&��'����$
	��
���5��(����� �������
�� �	��	���������� ��
�2�������	��� �2���"��2����	��	�����
	�����	������	�	����
��������	
��	��
�	�������!��$	�����
	�����	������	�	����
��������	
��	�"�	(����%&��'�������	�����
	�����������
���!���	�� � �������������$	��
�6���(�	����	�� �%
��	����	
��	�������	�����)4)4�"���(��� ��	��
(� �� ���
�	�����$	��
�6���"��	���7�%����(
�	������
�	������2��� ������2���2��	��
���(�����
��!	�� ����2�����
��	��
(� ���!�
�� ���"��%&��'����$
 $��	�	�����	����4�	��
���)����	(�	� 	�������	�����
��������%&��'���� �����$
�����	������	��	����������$�������	������	�
2 ����������	��� ��������$�����	����
���	��2��	�89:�*+,-.//01�;<=>;:�<::?1�
���	���	��	����������
��
�2�������	��	����!	��	����� $�������	������	�
2 ����������	��� ������	���2�	��
��	��
(� ���������	�(�	��	����!�2���
���
	�����	������	�	����
��������	
��	�� ��		��������
�	��� ��!��"�	�#)���� @ABAB�CDEFGHIJKL�MGLINIOPEIGQR�EG�EFK�SPHEIOITPEIQU�VQEIEW�XKHYIOK�CUHKKZKQE)��%&��'���� ���
�"���$	��
�6����(�	��$	�����	���������
��������	���7�%��	������$�������	������	�
2 �������	��� ���
�
�3$�
�2��	 �
���	���	��	��������(���� ��	��� ����	�����
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	�� ��		��������
�	��� ��!��"�	�#[�� PA� \�����	��������
���� [�%&��'���2���
�3$�
�������	��	�����������$�������	������	�
2 ��
������	��� �
���	����	��	���2$	$�����
��2��	���
��� ������������2��	���
�����	��������
���� �	��	������	��	��
(� ��2��������2���	���
���2�	�	��� �
���� �
�3$�
���$���
�	����!�2���
���
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	]�Â� ���	����_)4���
��
2�����&���
	 [�%&��'���2���
�3$�
��
���
	 �
���	����	��	�����
��
2����� 	����
� �����
�3$�
�2��	 ����	��������� � 	�2�$���
�	����!�2���
���
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	]��OA� ���	����_)����
��
2�����&�2���� [�%&��'���2���
�3$�
������	������	�
2 ��
������	��� �
���	����	��	�������$��	��������(�	���������2������ 2���
���
	������̀:<?ab01�cd=e;b:�8a�f::8�=81�g:bcabfd<h:�b:>;=b:f:<81�	����!�2���
���
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	]���LA� ���	��� �i)�j�k�����i)�j"kj���k��	����
�������
�[�%&��'���2���
�3$�
����
	�����������
�	����2����(�	���	 ��(����	�
���� ��$
�	�� 	����
� ���������	����	������ ��$
�	�� 	����
� �����$�������	����!�2���
���
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	����������
��
�	�� $��� 	����
� ���	��	�����
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	�"��
���
����]��KA� ���	��� �i)�j"k��i)�j�k)�����i)�j�k�l���
2�	�������$
�	�[��%&��'���2���
�3$�
����
	�����������
�	����2����(�	���	 ��(����	�
���� ��$
�	�� 	����
� ���������	����	������ ��$
�	�� 	����
� �����$�������	����!�2���
���
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	����������
��
�	�� $��� 	����
� ���	��	�����
	�����	������	�	����
�������
��2��	�"��
���
����]�NA� ���	����i)mj"kj��k����$
�	��#
������
����$
� [��%&��'���2���
�3$�
��



����������	
��	�
����������������������

��
	�����������
�	�����������	���	��������	�
������� 
�	���	����
��!��������	����	��������� 
�	���	����
������� �������	����"�����
���
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	!���������
��
�	��� ����	����
�����	��	�����
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	�%��
���
����&�'(� ���	����)*+�,$�
����	������� 
�	������������-�./��0##�����
�1 �
����
	�����������
�	�����������	���	��������	�
������� 
�	���	����
��!��������	����	��������� 
�	���	����
������� �������	����"�����
���
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	!���������
��
�	��� ����	����
�����	��	�����
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	�%��
���
����&�2(� ���	����3�*4�#"�� �����-�./��0##�����
�1 �
����
	�����������
�	�����������	���	��������	�
������� 
�	���	����
��!��������	����	��������� 
�	���	����
������� �������	����"�����
���
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	!���������
��
�	��� ����	����
�����	��	�����
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	�%��
���
����&�5(� ���	����3�*3�6���	�	�������6��%���	�-��0�����
	�����������
�����
�1 ��	�������	�	����������%���	��	��%������ ���*��7	������� �%��	����	���./��0##�	����	�
��������	����
�����������	�	�������� �������	!���
�����%��� ���
��������%����	�	���������������!��������	��
��
���	�	������ �����������
��
�	��� �������	�	������	��	�����
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	&��8(� ���	����3�*��7����������	���-��./��0##�����
�1 �
�!�����	��	�!��������� �������	�������
���	�
��	�$�������������	�����
�$������!�	��	����"	��	�� ����
�$��������
����
�����%��� ���
��������%����	�	���������������!���	��
��������	����	���
������� ����	��������� ������	����	�����
	�����	����#�	�	����
$������
�����	&�����9(� ���	����34*+�:��� 	��/���� 	���-��./��0##�����
�1 �
��������������� 	��
���� 	�����
�$���������������	���	���	������������!�
�� ��	����!������	��
�����������������%���	��	���./��0##*�� �;(<(=�>?@ABC@D�EFGH�FI�J5KLKA5LM�NLOC5A5GLC5K'�>KC5CH�P@OQ5A@�EFKCOLAC�R@SB5O@D*�./��0##������
�%�������������������	����������������!�������	��	���	�����	����)*�����	����.
��	����	
��	!����������
������������������������ �	���,�.�
����$�������"�� 	�����������	�����
	�����	������
$�������	
��	���������	������
�1 ���	����������	!�
������!��
��"	��������������
��	��
������"�
������%��./��0##�� 
� ��	�	�����	����3�	��
�����������
��������	���������
�1 �
���%��	�������	���*�0��	����"	��	�	����"�� 	�����
	�����	����#�	�	����
$�������	
��	����� ������������	������	�
����
������	�����	��	�����	��
��	��
������������	���	��	����"�����
���
	�����	����#�	�	����
$�������	
��	�����		��������
�����#"��%�	�T!�	���./��0##���������	�� ��	��
������������������������ �	���./��0##��
�$�����,�.�����"�� 	�����
	�����	������
$�������	
��	��������
��������	���������
�1 �
���%��	�������	��������������	��	���	��	����"�����
���
	�����	����#�	�	����
$�������	
��	�����		��������
�����#"��%�	�T*���;(=� UOLKC@@�VL5KC@KLKA@�NMLK(��WXYZ[\\�]̂_̀̀a�bc�̀ab]defag�]hi�jceeck�]�lm]fhb̀h]hǹ�oe]hpq��[g̀�m]fhb̀h]hǹ�oe]hr�]b�]�sfhfstsr�kfee�d̀�ìaf̂h̀i�bc�]nncsuefag�bg̀�jceeckfĥv�s]ẁ�



����������	
��	�
����������������������

�����������������
�����
��	����	��	����	���� !����"
�	�!�����
������	�	���"##�
	�	�����������
�����$���
�� �	�����
	�����������
%��#�
��
����������
�����	��	�����
	���#�	����&�	�	 ���
��������	
��	'�()*+(,)-*./+01�2+(-3)/45�6789:;;%(�.<0+4)*+.=(�)(�25(-/+<52�+=�*35���
	���#�	����&�	�	 ���
��������	
��	$���������	�� �����������	��>?��@&&��	���!�
���"
���!������A"�#���	��������
 �	������	����	�����������
���������	�����
	���#�	����&�	�	 ���
��������	
��	B���CDC� EFGHIJJ�KLMNOPL�QLNLRSD��T������	����	���	��
���
������������	��	�	���>?��@&&��� ���#���!�>?��@&&�U�������#��	!�����	�
!�������
�� �	���#�
��
�������
�A"�
������	�����
	�����������
����#
����������	�����
	���#�	����&�	�	 ���
��������	
��	����U�������	����>
��	����	
��	B��>?��@&&�U�����V��"	������
	���#�	����&�	�	 ���
��������	
��	�U�	��	�����
	�����������
���
�	���	�
�����	����>
��	����	
��	B��>?��@&&�U������
�� �	��	���#"	���	��W	���X����������"
	���	��������	��"����� �	���������� �	��Y������	�
������"
�	�� ����������	���� ������B��>?��@&&�U��������U���
��	������	�
��������	��	���������"�	���� �Z�>��
��	���"	��
�[���
�#
����	�	���B��CD\� ]̂ _̂LM̀aÔb�cOad�KàaLcOeL�KàfLd̂ReLMSD��>?��@&&�U����
�������� ����#�
�	��U�	������#�
	���#�	������	�	�U�����	�g������
����	�������������
	��	������	�
�������#
����	�����������
������������	�	�U���������B��>?��@&&��� �
�������� ���
���	���������	��	��
�
#�
	����	�������	�	���Z�>!�>?��@&&!�����	����	��
��	�	�U�����	�g������
�����	������
��������	�
���!����#��	���!�������
�����	�������	�����
	�����������
%��#�
��
������B��CDh�� JijObL�k_lM̀eL�̀be�]̂ _̂LM̀aÔb�m̂M�no_RLoLbàaÔbD����#�
	����	���>
��	����	
��	��U�
��������
	�����	����� �	���Z�>!�	�����
	�����������
�U����������	
����	�������	������U�� �	���	��������
�*35�p8q9p�(5/r+-5(�s=.t=�)(�u;
q+=5v�t+*3�)=�5wx5-*52�-.yx05*+.=�<1�5)/01�z{�|}|~���&
�����U����#
������	���>?��@&&�����������"��	������	 �������
�������"����������
������
�����
���
��	�
 !����Z������
���	������	!������	��	����	!���A"��g�����#���"		�������T�	�
��	����������?��#�����@�������� B��@��������	�	��	����	
����	���!��"������
�	���&
�T�&�"#�
�������	������������������	��	����>
��	����	
��	B���@�����
	�����������
�U����#�
��
��U�
g����	���	
����	����	��&
�����	�
�"���"	�	�����V	�	�
��� ��
������U���������&
��������	�������A"�
	�
� ������������������	����	��	���
��"��
�����������	�����������B��@���Z�>�U�����������>?��@&&������ ��������	���	
����	������	���	������������������>?��@&&�������
�������� ����#�
�	��U�	��	�����
	�����������
����	�����	
����	������	���	���B����CD�� KP̂_L�̂m�KLMNOPLSD���
�	���#"
#�������	����>
��	����	
��	!�	���
�A"�
����	�!��"	���!�����������	��������	������������	���������	����>
��	����	
��	�)/5�-.005-*+r501�/5,5//52�*.�)(�*35�up-.x5������
�����Bv��8(�)�-.=2+*+.=�.,�/5+y<�/(5y5�	!�>?��@&&���
����	�����	��"�� !�	���� !�������������������U�
g���
��g�������
���#�����	���������	����	�����
������������#�������U�	��	������#�������
�����B��>?��@&&����������
��"������������
��#��������	 ���
�	�����	��
�	 ����	��������������#
��
����	������������	�����	��������#
��
��B��CD�� K_LPÒR�]̂beOaÔbSD��@���Z�>��� !��	��	�����������
�	���!���#��������	������
�A"�
����	����	��#��������� �#
���������
����	����>
��	��.=*/)-*�<)(52�.=�)�=552�,./�+=,./y)*+.=���upx5-+)0��.=2+*+.=(v�����>?��@&&!�U�	��"	���	��������U�	��"	����������	����>
��	����	
��	B��@���Z�>!�



����������	
��	�
����������������������

�	��	�����������
�	�����������  �����	����������
���!��	�	"��� �����������	��������	"���#
��	����	
��	$��%"���� ���	������������ �����������	����� ������#&��%''�����������	������������"�����������	��	�(�	"����	����)$���(�	"��	���
	"�
���	�������	�������� �����������	������
����	������$���*+,-./0�12��3450-++6*�/78.35-./0*�509�4+:;.4+9�4+</4-*��12=� 3>?>@AB�CADD>@E��12=2=�4>FGH@>I�4>JK@DEL�MK@N�KO�4>JK@DEL�MHBH?PE�QHDR�DR>�/532��#&��%''��"������
(�
��	��	"��S�#������  ����T���
� �
	��������
������� ��������T��	"��S�#$�#&��%''��"��������
��	"�	��	����������"��������	��
���
��
�U��
���T��	"��S�#�����������
�	������	�����������
$�V���������������	����
����W���"�
����������	"�
�
� �
	�������	"�
��������	��	"�	�#&��%''����
�U��
���	����
(�
��	��	"��S�#��"����T�� 
�� 	�����
(�
���$���
���	����	��	�����	"��S�#�����
�U��
������	����������
��	�����
���#&��%''$���12=2X�,KKJ>@ADHK?L�5IIHDHK?AB�.?OK@NADHK?2��#&��%''��"������� �
�	��������(�	"�	"��S�#$��Y������	����	��	"������
��	�������	���������	"��
�U��
���
� �
	����	"�
�����
��	��������T��
�U��
������
�U���	���T��	"��S�#$���12=2Z��0KDHOH[ADHK?�KO�,RA?P>E�H?�/@PA?H\ADHK?]�,RA?P>E�H?�5GDRK@H\>I�/OOH[HAB�K@�3@A?D�,K?DA[D2��#&��%''��"������T��	�(
�		�����	����	��	"��S�#���������"��������	"�������(���̂��_̀ abcddef�����g����	��	�����
��	���g�h��� �
��������������
����
��	�
��
� �
	��
g��
����i�	�������	
��	�
�g��������	������g��
���	"�
�	��	�����T�����������%�j��$����"���	�����"����T�� 
�W������("��� ����T���������W�����������"��"������T�	��������W��	���	�
�	"���	���kl�m�T���������������	�
�	"�������	�W����	��������"��"����$�a�nopqrs�tq�_̀ abcddef�qpus�vswxtvsf�pq�pusqyusqz�z{�zos�#
��	����	
��	$���%���"����������	"�
�i���S���������_̀ abcdd�uxfz�fx|utz�p�}vtzzsq�vswxsfz�{q�_̀ abcddef���		�
"�����(�	"�����
������������	�
�������������(�	"���	������	"�
�	��	����	����T�"�������#&��%''$��%���"�����	"���
��	����	��	��#&��%''����	���T��	���(
�		���
�U���	����_̀ abcddef�~szzsvospy�ftrqsy�|�������	"�
�i���S�������$��12=21�*DA?IA@IE�OK@�MH?A?[HAB�A?I�<@KP@ANNADH[�CA?AP>N>?D2��#&��%''������	����W�
�����T�����"����T��
���������������
�� ����T���	����
�	"����	��
�	�����	"������������� 
��
����	������������	����	"���
����i�	���������������������������� 
��
����	��� ������������ 
�����
���	������
��	"����	��
�	�����	"������������� 
��
����	������������	����	"���
����i�	���$������"������������ 
��
����	������������	��"������������T�	������	�����	���	��	"�������(���̂��������	�T���	����
�����������������	�
�����
����W����
���	"��S�#g���� �������(�	"�S�#�
������ ������������ 
�����
���������  ����T�������
��������	�	����(�������	"�
��  ����T���
�U��
����	�g�������

��	������������������ 
��
��������������������	������	"
���"�����
�W����	���������
�	"��S�#e������	�
���� 
�������$��Y���
���������������	
��	� 
�W��������
��	"�
�
�U��
����	��
���
���������	"���#
��	����	
��	��"������	�����	�	�	�������������
�T�������
�(��W�����
���������	����� ���(�	"����"� 
�W��������
�
�U��
����	�$���



����������	
��	�
����������������������

����������������� ���!"�#$!��$��	"�����$�#�	�#���!!
�!
#�	���#����#���$�����$��	��������	
����%�	�$�&�������%�	�$��$'�	�#���'���('���	��	��	����)'�	��%�
�����	������'��	#��������
���'
�����������
%�	����

%��'	��'	��
#*�����	# #	#�������	������)'�	����	�
$#��	#���������	�+����'
�	��������$!��	��!�%
���"�����'�	#��"������#����#���
�!�
	#���
���
��+����	���'
������'$��	�	#��+������	# ��#�	�
��������('���	�
%����	
���+�������	#���������	�+�����	#$��%������!!
�!
#�	���'�#	������
����'	#��������%��#��#���������!!�#��(������'����#����#����	�	�$��	�"�#���'�#����	�	�$��	������#����#���!��#	#��"���	# #	#��"�������������,�"�!
�!�
������������
'���(��#��#������
������,#	������
���%�����!	�������'�	#����
#��#!�����
��	��
�
�����#*�������'�	#���!
#��#!��&���-./.0�12345678�9:;�<=:>6;2:769?678�=>�@23=5;A.������������������	�(�#�����$�	����	�����'
��	�������#���	#��#	%����
���
���
�)'#
���	��(��B�!	�����#���	#���(%��!!�#��(�������
����
��	�	����,"�
'�����
�
��'��	#���&����#��!
� #�#�����������	�(������	
'������CDEDFDGH�FIJ�KLMNO�PQQJOO�FR�OSQI�
���
��������	��
�#���
$�	#��&���-./.T�U4V?63�W:>=5X976=:�Y37.��Z���
$�	#��"����'$��	�	#��"������	��
�$�	�
#���#��������	#���,#	��	�#�����	
��	��
�	���'���
�%#����
��	�$�%�(���'([��	�	��!'(�#���#�����'
��!'
�'��	�	�����!	�
�\\�����	�����]����� �
�$��	������̂	���_�'(�#��Z���
$�	#�����	_̀&�Z������
������,#	�����	#�����\�&a�b����	�����]����� �
�$��	�����"���������#��
�)'#
���	��$�B����%�#���
$�	#����
��	����
��]��������,#	��c��"�	����	�	�������]��"��
���%��	�	�������%�!'
�'��	�	��	������	
��	"�������	��	��
,#����]��!	����
�$��#�����'
��'���
�	�����]����'(�#��Z���
$�	#�����	"�� �#��(���#������
$�	�	��	�#��������#(���(%�	���!'(�#���	�������#	#��������
���	��c��"�	����	�	�������]��"��
���%��	�	�������%&��-.d� U5=e59XX9763�@2f=57A��-.d./�125g632�@2f=57A.�����������������'($#	���
 #������# �
%�
�!�
	�"�!
��
�$$�	#��!�
��
$�����
�!�
	�������	��
�
�!�
	��	��	����]	��	�
�)'��	���(%�c��"�#������
$�	����������	#$��%�(��#�"������	�(�#�����(%�	���c��&���������,#����'($#	��	��
�
�!�
	�����
�)'��	���(%�	���c��&���-.d.d�h56772:�ijf?9:976=:�=>�k9569:32.����������������!
� #�����,
#		����]!����	#���	��	���c��������)'�
	�
�%�(��#��	��	����]	��	�	��	�	���!�
��
$��������	����������%�	�$"�	�����
	#�#��������
"��
�	����������� �
#����
�$�	���!
�[��	���!�
��
$�����	��
�������!
� #����#��	���l�#�	������������
�)'#
���(%����	#����&����
�'���
&�Z�����#	#���	��	���,
#		����]!����	#��"���������������!
�$!	�%����,�
���%�)'��	#�����
�$�	���c��"�,��	��
�#��,
#	#����
��	��
,#��"�#��������	#���,#	��	���)'�
	�
�%��������'���
�!�
	��!
����	���	��	���c��&��-.d.m�n7o25�U5=e59X�@2f=57A.�������������������!�
�	���'��%�#����%����#����	'�#��"��#������
�!
��
�$$�	#��$��#	�
#��"��'�#	#��"�� ��'�	#��"������	��
�
� #�,��!�
	�#�#���	����
 #����
����
���(%��������"�,�#���$�%�(������'�	���(%�	���c����
�#	�����#�����&������������������'($#	���
 #������# �
%�
�!�
	��
�)'#
���(%�	������	
��	��
�����
� ��'�	#�������!�
��
$����������	��
�
�!�
	��
�)'��	���(%�	���c���#���!!
�!
#�	����
$�	����������	#$��%�(��#������$�B��� �#��(����	�
������(���	#$���������
�
������(���!�
#������#��	�
���
��������	��
�



����������	
��	�
����������������������

�
��
����	����
�����������
���
������� ���
���
	��������!���
	�������!���	����
�
�"��#�����������$�����$�	%��&�'��
��	�����������(��)*+*)�,-./0123�4/567��89:;<==�>?@AA�B>C@DAE>?�@�FGHIDABJ�KILM�C?@C�HBNIHO>�@AA�PHIDABJ>���	���#�	%�	%���������$�	��������!�������!	���	�����	���	����$�	�����#��	������$�	����!	�����������Q!�����	�����!
�(�R%���
������S���#�����
�"����#%���	%���
������#�������	�������	��#%���	%���
������#���
���

�����	����	� ���	��
����"��	%���
�����������#%���	%���
������#���
����"��(�'T��RUU��%�����
�"����V:8�WEC?�@XY�@XO�@AA�GHIDABJ�KIL>�@C�V:8Z>�HB[\B>C]���)*̂� _̀abac̀bd�ebffghi��)*̂*j�kaalbd�mlnogfi*��p�	%�
���
��	��	%��!�������!�����!
�!��	�	��	%���'
��	����	
��	��'T��RUU�#�����������	��$�
�"��#�	%���!���	���
�	%���������$��
�����	%������#������q�����	!
��������%�#�����Uq%���	��(���)*̂*+�rlbhfghds�tgulgifi�vwh�tg̀xylhigxgaf*�&�'��
��	��!����#��������������������	

����!
�����	������������
���
�Q!��	�$�	%���Q!�
	�
�$��!
�!��	�	��	%���
����������#(��R%��&�'��%�������$�
����!
�����	!�����������#������������������	�����!

�������������$�'T��RUU��!
����	%��	�
�����	%������	
��	(���R%��&�'������	�������	���	��
����!
����q�������	%�	�#�
�����!

����
��
�	��	%�������������	��
���	�
�	%��	�
����	�����
��q��
�	�������	%������	
��	(����$���$���	��������$�	%��&�'��%������	��q�����	%����	!�����������#������������������	�����'T��RUU�	����	������
"������
���	%����
	�����������
�zIH�>BH{ENB>�WEC?EX�C?B�F>NIPB�Iz�>BH{ENB>M�Iz�C?E>�NIX	
��	(��'T��RUU�#�����!���	�	��	%��&�'�
�Q!��	����
�
����!
�����	���
�	%����	!�����������#������������������	�����!

����$�89:;<==�CI�IDC@EX�>BH{ENB>�zHIJ�C?B�|BHCEzEBO�}BXOIH�zIH�>BH{ENB>�WEC?EX�C?B�F>NIPB�Iz�>BH{ENB>M�Iz�	%���'
��	����	
��	(�'T��RUU����
�������������
��!���		�����	����"������	��	%��&�'����������!
�	������	����$������
(�R%��
�Q!��	����
�
����!
�����	��!�	�����������������$��!���
	�������!���	�	�������
�Q!�
����$�	%��&�'(��R%��&�'���$��
���	����	��	����
�Q!�
�������
��	��
�����	�������!���
	�������!���	�	���(��� b*� 'T��RUU��%�����!���	���
�Q!��	���
�
����!
�����	�	��	%��&�'���
�	%���
��
�Q!�
	�
��$�	%�����	%�~�	%�����	%����q	����	%������#����	%������������%�Q!�
	�
(�R%����!
�Q!�
	�
����
����%��������$��
���"�
����$�	%��	�
�����	%���'
��	����	
��	�����
�����	�"��$������"����
��������
!�
$�������$����������!�!�	���(��� y*� 'T��RUU��%��������!�����"�
�����	����#�	%��	��
�Q!��	���
�
����!
�����	��	�	����	%�	�	%��'T��RUU�
����"���	%����
"������
���	%����
	�����������
��!
����	%���
��������Q!�
	�
��������!

���	%����	!�����������#������������������	����
�#%��%�'T��RUU���� ��
����!
�����	(�� c*� ���'T��RUU��������	��!���	�	%��
�Q!�
���
�Q!��	���
�
����!
�����	�����"�
�����	����	��	%��&�'�#�	%�����
	$
��"��~������$�����	%����q	����	%������#����	%�����������$�Q!�
	�
��	%��&�'�#������	�
�����#%�	��	����#�������	� �����q	������!�������������	%��'
��	����	
��	��������������%�����
�	�
����	����	%��'
��	����	
��	(��������&�'�'
��	����	
��	������������������������%�����
�	�
����	����	%��'T��RUU�
�������
�������������
���$����	
��	!���������	�����	�%���#�	%���
	�����������
(��R%��&�'�#������	����
�������������
�������	��������
	�������%�������	%����
	�����������
(�



����������	
��	�
����������������������

��������������� �!"�#$���%&"'���(��)&( �(*��+�,$-./001����	23	45	��63������	3���71�1���8�9�:�	4��;�<:�=�>:��	�3	5�5�?��635�
�	3��:�@
�936��?3=3	�6�@
�

�3=8A
5�=��	��A�63�����
�
�3=8A
5�8?���B@��5�5�	��<C��DEE1��D435�?3=3	�6��A�63���35���	�@
���

�6���6�=�>�8���??�2�6�A@���5A8=3553������	4����??�23���2
3		���6��A=��	�	3���5A@@�
	3���	4��
�FA�5	G��1� ���A??>��B��A	�6���
	3�3@�	3���E�	3	>���
93��5���
��=��	�23	4�	4����
	3�3�6����6�
���
�	4��	3=��@�
3�6���9�
�6�8>�	435�<
��	����	
��	H�81� ���3�9�3����
�=�	4����
	3�3�6����6�
�243�4�3��?A6�5�	4��6�	�5���9�
�6�A�6�
�	435�<
��	����	
��	H��1� I�JKLMNOPOQ�RIS�TKUL�VWOUXTXJYPXKZ�KT�[KZPXZ\XZ]�̂UKQ\JPXKZ�_OJKUQ̀�abXJb�54�??�8��@
�936�6�8>�	4��;�<�A@���
�FA�5	H��61� ���3�9�3���	��	4��;�<�	4�	���=@?3�5�23	4�	4��
�FA3
�=��	5����	4��;�<H���6���1� ��2
3		���cA5	3�3��	3��:�53���6�8>�	4���A	4�
3d�6�;��3�3�?��
�	4���A	4�
3d�6�RTTXJXYNef�QOfX]ZOOg�OhMNYXZXZ]�PbO�ZOOQ�TKU�MUO

�3=8A
5�=��	��A�63��1��������)�'ijk�l�j"�0( �$�m&�"� �$�n+"�'��<C��DEE�54�??�5A8=3	��35��?�>��

��6�
�FA3
�6�
�@�
	5�	4�	�54�??�8��
���39�6�8>�	4��;�<�����
�8���
��;�	�8�
�op�������4�>��
���9�
�6�8>�	4��	�
=����	435�<
��	����	
��	1��D4��>��

��6�
�@�
	5�54�??�3��?A6��	4����??�23��G�� j��$�i+" �+q�$���%&"'���(����<C��DEE�23??�5A8=3	���
�����3?�6�
���
6����3	5��B@��5�5���
�	4��@
3�
��35��?�>��
1�� %��0m&�n��(��r(s�(�+"t�$�n+"����D��	4���B	��	�	4��@A
�4�5������FA3@=��	�35��A	4�
3d�6�A�6�
�	435��
��	���6�<C��DEE�@A
�4�5�5��FA3@=��	�35�@A
�4�5�6�23	4��
��	��A�651���<C��DEE�23??�5A8=3	����EFA3@=��	�u�9��	�
>�C�@�
	�243�4�@
�936�5���
���
6����	4���A

��	�3�9��	�
>����3	�=5�@A
�4�5�6:�635@�5�6���:�
�@?���6��
�	
��5��

�6���
���>��FA3@=��	�	4�	�2�5�@A
�4�5�6�23	4��
��	��A�651��������v�-((&jk�r( �n�( �(��)�(j(i�jk�-& ���$�n+"����<C��DEE��	4�	��
��
�FA3
�6�	��A�6�
�����53��?���A63	��
����A�?�u�6�@��6��	��3����3�?��A63	�8>�5	�	A	�:�
��A?�	3��:��
��
���3d�	3���?�@�?3�>�=A5	���=@?�	����6�5A8=3	�	4���3��?���A63	��
����A�?��3����3�?��A63	����	4����=@?�	��@
��
�=���6w�
��
���3d�	3�����6�=�����=��	�?�		�
����	4���A63	��3�63��5�23	43���3���=��	45����	4����6����	4���35��?�>��
����	4�������>1�D4���A63	�23??�=��	�x�3��
=��6=3�35	
�	39��C�FA3
�=��	5:���5	��
3��3@?�5:���6��A63	�C�FA3
�=��	5���
���6�
�?��2�
65�����C�������6�D�B�5�<
��	�y�����=��	��	��6�
65�zDB<y�{�
�FA3
�=��	51��663	3���??>:�	4�����A�?�u�6�@��6��	��3����3�?��A63	�23??�=��	�<���
�??>�����@	�6�<�9�
�=��	��A63	3����	��6�
65�3��	4���9��	����3��?���A63	�35���	�
�FA3
�61�<C��DEE��24�5���B@��63	A
�5�
�FA3
��	4����=@?�	3���������3��?���A63	:�=A5	�5A8=3	����3��?���A63	�	��	4��;�<:�������A�?�u�6�@��6��	��3����3�?��A63	�23??���	�5�	35�>�	4���A63	�
�FA3
�=��	1�<C��DEE��24��6����	�=��	�	4���B@��63	A
��	4
�54�?6����	4���3��?���A63	���6��
����	�
�FA3
�6�8>�5	�	A	�:�
��A?�	3��:��
��
���3d�	3���?�@�?3�>�	����=@?�	��������A�?��A63	:��
����	�
�FA3
�6�	��5A8=3	�������A�?��A63	�	��	4��;�<1�� �����|�}k+'��~&��r(s+�i��<C��DEE�54�??�5A8=3	����3��?�3�9�3�����	�?�	�
�	4�����
	>
�39��z7p{�6�>5���	�
�	4����
?3�
����zo{�	4��	�
=3��	3������	435�<
��	����	
��	H��
�z�{�	4����6�������4�5	�	���35��?�



����������	
��	�
����������������������

���
�����
������	���	�
�����	���� 
��	����	
��	!��"#$#%�&'()*+,�-*+�.'+)/012*,#��3��	���4� ���	�
������	��	�������
5�����	�����
��	��6����6���
�	���� 
��	����	
��	��������6

��7��6������5�����	�������������
	��	8�7�5
�

����6
�����	�5�����	��	��	�9�
����	��:5�����7��
�5�����	��������6	�8�	�
���	�
��������	�	�������	6�8������88�9��8���88����8�����	�7�	���4� ��������;���
��6����
��� <��=>>����?�
�	�����
	�����������
!��=���4� 7�����	����8������
�	���7����������	��������6�	�	������6�	����	������
5�����	��
����������6�	��9��������
����6
�����	�6���
�	���� 
��	����	
��	7��
������������	��
�@6�
����5�����	���
��	8���
��� <��=>>����?�
�	�����
	�����������
�
�	��
�	���������	��������6�	��������6�	!�� <��=>>����?�
�	�����
	�����������
����88�5
��5	8��
��6����������
5�����	�	��	���4� �9�	����	��
	��A��B���8����
���������	���
����5	����	�����	�������	������
5�����	��
���	���4� �6�8��������8	�
��	��5�����	�58�������5�����������	���4� !���"#$#C�D)E/F-,'�2(�GH)1IJ'*0K�L-1*0'*-*/'�-*+�&'I-1EK�M10N'�)I2*�M'EJ1*-012*#�� <��=>>����88���	�������������6
�	����	�
��	7�8�����
��	��
9�������6���
������	�������@6�5���	�56
�������9�	�����	
��	��6���!�� <��=>>����88�5�
�����	8������	�����88��@6�5���	�56
�������6���
�	���� 
��	����	
��	�����55
�5
��	��	�����
�8���8������:���	��	����@6�5���	!�� <��=>>����88�����	�������6

��	������	�
������88��@6�5���	7�9��������88��������8��8��	��	���4� ��	��88�	�����65���
�@6��	O���9���
7������	9����	���4� ����� <��=>>�	�	8����
��@6�5���	�9�88�
������9�	�� <��=>>!�� <��=>>�9�88�����	���7�
�5��
7�����5
�	��	��88��@6�5���	�56
����������9��8���
����5�
	�9�	���
��	��6����6���
�	���� 
��	����	
��	�������	�����6
��	����688�����8���8�	������6���68���������6����@6�5���	!��3��	�������	� <��=>>���������������7�
����6
���7��
��	��
9�������5����	�����
�����8�����
����	
6�	������7��
��������	�7�	����@6�5���	�56
�������6���
�	���� 
��	����	
��	7��	����88�6���	���5
�������	��
�5��
��
�
�58����������@6�5���	!��"#$#P�.1E'/0�.'I2,10#�� <��=>>�������;����9
�		���
�@6��	�	��	���4� �	�����58��������Q�
��	�Q�5���	��	�	6��������58�	���������6���		����	��	���4� �	����	�	�����5	
�88�
R��Q�
��	�Q�5���	��6	��
�S�	������
�!����	�
�	�����
��	���5���	�
�@6��	�����55
��������	���4� �����	�����	65�������58�	������	���=�:���3���	�����	�����6���
����	������	����	�	�����5	
�88�
R��4�����7�5�����	�9�88����
���		��������
��	���5���	�����	���4� �9�88�������	��6��5
�������� <��=>>�9�	����5�������
����6
�����	���6���
�!��"#$#TU�.'V0,�-*+�.'N1*H)'*/1',#�� <��=>>���
����	��	�����5�����	���6��6���
�	��� 
��	����	
��	����88�����558����	�9�
����������	��
���8��@6�����	��	�����9���	��	����	�	�����=�:��!����WGXMYZ[�\#� Z]̂ Y_̀ MYZ[W�Za�Z̀ _���\#T� L2*102E1*b#��=���4� ����
��5�����8����
�����	�
���� <��=>>�	�����6
��	��������	����������������	�6�������
��	��6����	�������58����	���56
5��������	���� 
��	����	
��	!���\#c� L-d1J)J�̂1-V1N10e�2(�Z̀ _#��=�����:��6��8����8�	�����	���4� �������	���������	���



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

�		������������	����������������	��	��� ��� ! �"����"�	���#�$����!�"�##�#!%%�
	��������&
�		���� ��� ��	�	��	��#�'
��	����	
��	�����!	�����	&����(�'�����')��*������+,-� ./01234�56�78495:;<2=�>5?4?,�*���(�'�#��""������"���	���	��
�� �!
#��')��*�����
��""���	!�"������""�&��"���""����"����#	#����!

������')��*���%!
#!��	�	��	��#�'
��	����	
��	���*���(�'��#���	���"���	���	��%���!��!	��
�@�����#	#����
��
�&
�		����%%
�$�"��
� �	���(�'��#�
�A!�
������')��*�����	���%�	�#��"	�
����	���#��%�����	����
��	B���������!��#�	��%
�$��!#"��!�
�&�
�����!���	���	���
��#B�����������!��#���������&�
�����!���	���	���
����� �
��	������C����	������!�"��!���	����D�
����������&�"�����	� #�	�������&�
�����!���	���	���
������	&�	�#	�������	�����
������B�#��!"��')��*���&�#��	���"	�
�	���#��%�����	����
��	��
��������	������"#����	����
��	������������
��"� ��EFGHI�IJEKL�MNGON�MPQP�GHOKRSPS�GH�FNP�TUVWXYYZL�[GHEK�\]OĴP�J[�]PQ_GOPL̀�GHOKRSPS�GH�]POFGJH�a�EbJ_Pc�LRON�EKFPQEFGJH�JQ�ONEHIP�dEe�JHKe�bP�EONGP_PS������&
�		��B��!"������!	���� ��� ��	�	��	��#�'
��	����	
��	���+,f� >534:/g4�h54�i34;4j21234�5:�k;l94,��)�� �!
#� ��	�&�	�����	
��	��!��#��#���	������	�	"� ��	��
�
���	���)�� �!
#� ��	���%���#B�� �����	��
�	����#B�!%���#	
��	��� %"������&�	���""�	�
 #B������	���#�����%
�$�#���#����	��#�'
��	����	
��	���*���(�'�����')��*�����
���	��	�������	B���	�����
�
�%
�#��	�	���������	��
�%�
	�B�	���
�����	#��
�� %"����#�	��	�%!
%�
	#�	�����
��#��	��� ��� ! �"����"�	�����	���(�'��#�$���B�!�"�##���&
�		���� ��� ��	�	��	��#�'
��	����	
��	��#���
#	�����!	�����')��*�����
��#�	��	���	��������	��#�'
��	����	
��	�&�""������	�
%
�	���	���
��	�������"���	�����
�"����"�	�����	���(�'��������##����	����!��#���"����	������	��#�'
��	����	
��	�����+,+� m83=;3l�n;1;4/4;53,�')��*�����
��#�	��	��!��������
�	��#�'
��	����	
��	��#�#!�o��	�	��	�����	!�"�
����%	����	���(�'�����
��	��!��#�p#	�	�����D�
�����
�"q��%%
�%
��	���	��	���(�'���')��*�����
��#�	��	�	����
��	��!��#B�������B�
����$����
� �	���(�'��
��"� �	������	���	�
 ���������#	�	��������! ��������#%��������%%
�%
��	�����!	��
�	��	������	���#%��������!	��
�	�����	���(�'���
�	���%!
%�#�����	��#�'
��	����	
��	���rk7hsii�/l:22?�49/4�354t;49?4/3=;3l�/30�5492:�u:5v;?;53�56�49;?�r:/34�>534:/g4w�;6�492�x7r�;?�354�/uu:5u:;/42=�492�683=?w�5:�;6�492�x7r�=52?�354�:2g2;v2�492�/uu:5u:;/42=�683=?�65:�49;?�l:/34�u:5l:/1w�5:�;6�492�683=?�/uu:5u:;/42=�45�492�x7r�65:�49;?�l:/34�u:5l:/1�/:2�:2y8;:2=�45�z2�:2/jj5g/42=�45�683=�5492:�?4/42�u:5l:/1?�5:�u8:u5?2?w�492�x7r�;?�354�j;/zj2�45�u/0�492�rk7hsii�/30�:21/;3;3l�z/j/3g2�53�49;?�r:/34�>534:/g4,����{i>s|xh�},� sik~|h7s|xh��},�� s2:1;3/4;53�65:�>53v23;23g2,����	��
���
	�� ��B��	��	#�#�"����#�
�	���B�	�
 ���	��	��#�'
��	����	
��	B�&�	��!	�
���!
#�B�"����"�	���
�%���"	�B�!%���%
�$������&
�		�����	����	��	����	��
���
	��	��
	��p��q���"����
����#�����
��	��������	�$����	�����#!���	�
 ���	������},�� s2:1;3/4;53�65:�>/8?2,�����	����$��	�	��	�')��*������"#�	��%�
��
 ��
��� %"��&�	�������"���	�������	���	�
 #B������	���#�����%
�$�#���#����	��#�'
��	����	
��	B�	���(�'� ��B�!%���&
�		�����	�������	����
�����	��')��*��B��  ����	�"��	�
 ���	���""��
�����%�
	����	��#�'
��	�



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

���	
��	��������� ���� !"# $!�%$#�&'()*+ ,��-���./0�1*�, ,")�$2�����+�"!.�3$!. # $!+���4�
56��	6���67���	�����8�9:76;��
�5�<=�>:	�?699�>��6���<<6	6���	����=��	@�
�
6�@	7���<�
�5�<6�7�A
�;6<�<�6���B:6	=C�>=�9�?C��
�:�<�
�	@67�D
��	����	
��	����4�
56��	6������	@67�D
��	����	
��	���
���=�
��7����
��8A6
�	6������	@67�D
��	����	
��	�7@�99���	�
�9��7��	@����
	6�7��
�5���=�96�>696	=��
��>96��	6���7�	���
	@�6��	@67�D
��	����	
��	�	@�	�67��8A
�779=�7	�	�<�	��7:
;6;����=�7:�@�	�
56��	6����
�>=�6	7���	:
��?�:9<�>��6�	��<�<�	��>���AA96��>9����99�?6�����=�7:�@�	�
56��	6����4@����99�?6���	�
57���<����<6	6��7C�E6���<<6	6���	����=��	@�
7�	@�	���:9<�
��7���>9=�>��6�	�
A
�	�<�	��7:
;6;��>:	��
����	�7A��6�6��99=�6<��	6�6�<FC�7:
;6;��	@��	�
56��	6����
��8A6
�	6������	@67�D
��	����	
��	G����	6��7�HC�IC�JC���C���<���������K� -�2*!.+�#$�LMN�O/�N-M%�&&���P��	@��DQ��4RR�	�
56��	�7���
����;��6�����:�<�
����	6���S��C��
�6��	@��T�D�	�
56��	�7�:�<�
����	6��7�S����
�S���>���
��	@��A:
A�7�����	@67�D
��	����	
��	�67�����5A967@�<C�	@���	@��T�D�5�=�
�B:6
��	@��DQ��4RR���<U�
�	@����
	6�6�<����<�
�	��
��:�<��99��
�7�5�����	@���
��	��:�<7�A�6<�:�<�
�	@67�D
��	����	
��	���:�@��:�<7�6��9:<��	@�7���:�<7�
�A
�7��	6���	@���:5>�
����5��	@7����������7�
;6��7�	@�	�?�
��A
�;6�:79=�6�;�6��<���<�A�6<�>=�	@��T�D�:�<�
�	@67�D
��	����	
��	������V� %$# (�+�#$�3��# 2 �.�W�!.$������=�	�
56��	6������	@67�D
��	����	
��	�?699��97��>����
?�
<�<�>=�	@��	�
56��	6���A�
	=�	��	@����
	6�6�<����<�
�����1&3�XL%�Y�� MZ[X��-XN\�10�-&3L-[1�-&�&%�XL%���Y�]� [*#/�#$�̂" !#" !�-�($�.+���DQ��4RR�7@�99�5�6�	�6���<�B:�	��
���
<7�	@�	����>9��	@��T�D�	��;�
6�=��99�
�A�
	6���5��7:
�7���<�
�B:�7	7���
�
�65>:
7�5��	7�
�9�	�<�	��	@67�D
��	����	
��	���DQ��4RR��97��7@�99�5�6�	�6��7:�@�
���
<7��7��
��<��5�<�����77�
=�>=�	@��T�DC�T�D_7��:<6	�
C�̀ab�c̀d̀b�efgh̀ij_k�lmmhnb�ij�ìabj��:<6	�
7����	@���	�	�����4�8�7C�	@����<�
�9���;�
�5��	C��
�7:�@��	@�
�A�
7��7��
���	6	6�7�<�76���	�<�>=�	@��T�DC�	����7:
��A
�A�
�����:�	6�����
��99���7	7���<�A�
��
5����7�
�9�	�<�	��	@67�D
��	����	
��	����Y�o� -�($�.+�-�#�!# $!���DQ��4RR�7@�99�5�6�	�6����<�
�	�6��
���
<7���
���A�
6�<����7�;���EJF�=��
7���	�
�	@�����	
��	�67���5A9�	�<��
��8A6
�7C��
��99�677:�7�	@�	��
67���
�5���=�96	6��	6��C��9�65C�����	6�	6��C��:<6	C��A���
���
<7�
�B:�7	C��<56�67	
�	6;��
�;6�?C��
��	@�
���	6���6�;�9;6���	@�����	
��	��
�<��:5��	7��
��
�7�9;�<���4@��
���
<7�6��9:<�C�>:	�5�=���	�>��9656	�<�	�C�	@�����	
��	C���=����	
��	�7�96�6	�	6���<��:5��	7C���=�<��:5��	7�	@�	��
������77�
=�	���:99=�<67�9�7��	@���8	��	����7�
;6��7�A
�;6<�<�:�<�
�	@67����	
��	C���=�<�69=���	6;6	=�
�A�
	7���<�	65��<67	
6>:	6�����<��		��<�����
���
<7C���<��	@�
�
���
<7�	@�	�5�=�7@�?�	@��>�767����	@���@�
��7�5�<���
�A�
��
5����7�<�96;�
�<��DQ��4RR�5:7	�6��9:<��	@��7:>7	��������	@67��9�:7��6���99�7:>���	
��	7���Y��� M*. #���" )+���DQ��4RR�7@�99�5�6�	�6���AA
�A
6�	���:<6	�	
�697�	��A
�;6<������:�	�>696	=���
��99�
�A�
	6���5��7:
�7���<�
�B:�7	7���
�
�65>:
7�5��	����:<6	�	
�697�5�6�	�6��<�>=�DQ��4RR�



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

�������	����������������	����	 ��!�""�
	�����������	�	����"
�"�
���#��$%��&''�	��"�
��	��������	�����	!�!�!	��!(��$%��&'')!���	���	���!�!	��!������������!	�"
�*����	 ������!�� �
�#����	 �
�+���"�
!������ �*��	 ���#���	��	������	�����*�
�������	
��	������
�,��
���"�
��
�����!�����	���!	�#��! �����*������������	�#���	����
�������	����	 �	�����"�	��	���������!������!!�	�������
�	���������
���������	���������������	��������
��	���(����-./� 011233�456�07689.���	�	 ��
�,��!	����	 ��:�$��$%��&''�! �����
��	�����!!�	��������;���*����#�������"�"�
���������	
�����
���
�!��#��;!���������	!��������	����"
�����
�!��"
��	���!�����������	 �
��	��!�
���*��	�	��	 ��"�
��
���������	 �!�$
��	����	
��	�����"���������	 ��""����#���!	�	���
�����
������!�����
�����	���!������	 ���"�
�	�����������������	����$%��&''�	��	 ��:�$��
��	!���!�����!���
�	 ��"�
"�!�!������!"��	���������	������
���"�����!�� ��	��!(��$%��&''��������
��	������	 �
���	�	���"�
!�����
����	
��	�
�
����*��������!���
��	�������
�	 �!�$
��	����	
��	��
�	 
��� ���!�#���	
��	�����
�	 �!�$
��	����	
��	�	����;���!��"�
��	�����!!�	�����!"��	������������
�"
����	�����������#��;!��
���
�!�������	 �
�
���*��	�����
��	�������	 ����	�	���"�
!�����
����	
��	�
<!=�	 �	�"�
	����	��	 �!�$
��	����	
��	(������
���
�!��#��;!���������	!��������	����"
�����
�!��"
��	���!�����������	 �
��	��!������ �	�*�
���
���
���*��	�	��	 ��"�
��
���������	 �!�$
��	����	
��	��! ����#��!�#>��	�	���?�����	�����
�����	(��@ ���*�
�"
��	������!���	�
�������	�	 ��!������!�
�	�������	 ��:�$��	 ��:�$�! ����"
�*����$%��&''���	 ��"�	����*��<A=�#�!���!!����!)���	�����������!�� ��?�����	�����
�����	(��-.B� C9492�07689DE.��F������	����	��������	 ��	�����	�	�������	 ���	 �
�����	�"
�*�!���!����	 �!�$
��	����	
��	��"�
!���	�	�����	������G�(�AH�IJ�KLM�NMOPQ�RISMTUVMUK�WIXMY�KLM�ZKPKM�[\X]KIT)Q�:����������������	��������	��
���*�!	���	�������$%��&''��
������	 �
���	�	���
�"�
!���
����*��������!��
���	 ���	�	����
��	�������
�	 �!�$
��	����	
��	��
�����
��	���	 
��� ���!�#���	
��	�����
�	 �!�$
��	����	
��	(��& ������"	������������!�#��$%��&''��
������	 �
���	�	���
�"�
!�����
��	�������
�	 �!�$
��	����	
��	��
�����
��	���	 
��� ���!�#���	
��	�����
�	 �!�$
��	����	
��	���	!��!�P̂ M̂_KPÛM�IJ�KLM�P\KLIT]K̀�IJ�KLM�ZKPKM�[\X]KIT)Q�aJJ]̂MY�\UXMT�KLM�X]T��	�������	 ��b���!��	�*������	������		����	��������	��������	��
���*�!	���	�������������	������	 �	 �!������!(��c���
�	 ����
��	�������	 ��b���!��	�*������	������		����$%��&''��
����	 �
���	�	��	 �	��!�	 ��!�#>��	�����������	��
���*�!	���	����#��	 ���	�	��[\X]KIT)Q�aJJ]̂M�V\QK�_TIS]XM�KLM�ZKPKM�[\X]KIT)Q�aJJ]̂M�d]KL�P̂ M̂QQ�KI�PÙ�]UJITVPK]IU�KLM�ZKPKM�[\X]KIT)Q�aJJ]̂M�̂IUQ]XMTQ�TMeMSPUK�KI�KLM�]USMQK]fPK]IU�IT�P\X]Kg��Rh[iNjj�J\TKLMT�PfTMMQ�KI�̂II_MTPKM�J\eè�d]KL�KLM�ZKPKM�[\X]KIT)Q�aJJ]̂M�]U�KLM�̂IUX\̂K����	 ������	��
���*�!	���	���������������"
�*����������
���
�!�
�,��!	��(��$%��&''�! ������!�
��	 �	�	 �!�"�
��
�" ������
�����	 ����	 �
�	��	������	�����!�
����*�������
��	���#��!�#���	
��	�
!�	 
��� �$%��&''�����	 ��
�,��
����	�	�����"�
�	���!�����������������!�#���	
��	��	����
�!(��& ���	�	��[\X]KIT)Q�aJJ]̂M�QLPee�PK�PÙ�K]VM�LPSM�P̂ M̂QQ�KI�PUX�KLM�T]fLK�KI�MOPV]UMY�P\X]KY�MÔMT_KY�PUX�	
��!�
�#������"�
	����	�#��;!���������	!����
;����"�"�
!������
���
�!����$%��&''�
���	���	��	 �!�$
��	����	
��	(��$%��&''���!��
�"
�!��	!�������

��	!�	 �	��	���������"�����	 ����	�������(�������	 ��&�?�!�$�*�
����	�������� �� �
�,��
�!�	 �	�!�!"��	����
�����������������������	�kM�TM_ITKMX�KI�KLM�ZKPKM�[\X]KIT)Q�aJJ]̂Mg����-.l� mD1498D5.����������	����
���
�!�! ����#��������	����	�$%��&'')!�"
����"���"��������#�!���!!����n�
�	 ������	���<!=����$%��&'')!��"�
�	���!���
����$%��&'')!���
����#�!���!!� ��
!(��$%��&''�! ����"
�*����	��:�$��
��	!���!�����!�����$%��&'')!�"
���!�!�<�
����	 ��



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

����	������������
��
���������������	
��	�
��	 ��������	
��	�
!���
�����������������
"#��
�$�	������������������
��� �����%���&������&��'��&��������	�#��	�&�� ���������������&����
$�������	�&�	���������������

�&�	����(������	��������&���	������
$��������)�*��
��	��������������"�
�������&"�
�(��
��	����
��
��	 ������	������
��������	 ���*
��	����	
��	+����,-./012�34� ,5670,,012�18�028197:/012�/1�/;-�1:<��= ��)�*�>�&&��������	��	 ���
���
���	 ������
�	 ����&�$�
"��������
��	����	��	 ��)�*��"�*?��=@@+��= ��)�*�����
�&&"�
�(��
���������������������
��	����$�������&+�������
���
	����
�(��
����	�����	�����
�$���	 ����	�
��	����A�
���>��
��������	����&&��	������	 ��+�����
����&"���&&�
���
	��
�(��
�������
�	 ���*
��	����	
��	����&��������	���	�&���	���	������
�����&��	�	��	���&�
���
	��������&���
��
������
���
	�����������&��	�	���
���
	���
�(���	����
�
�����
�����	�������&������&�����������&��	�	����	�?���
	��������"��	 �
�
���
	�����	������
�����
��	�������	���������		������	 �������
���
��	����"�	 ��)�*+��= �������
������&�$�
"���"�������B��	�	��� �������
����	 ��	�
�����	 �����	
��	�����	 ����&������
�	�������	 ��)�*+����,-./012��C4�.199-./0D-�:./012�EF:2,�:2G�,:2./012,��= ����
	������
���	����'������������	 �����
	�	������	��"�����������	�������
���&$���
��&�����������"���	 �
�	 ��)�*��
�*?��=@@+����C4H� .IJJKLMNOK�:LMNIP�EQRPS4�T��	 ��)�*�����������������������*?��=@@!U�VWXYZX[\]̂W�����
�	 ���*
��	����	
��	��	 ��)�*���	��	����&������
�	�������"�������������
���
�����	 ����&&�>����
�������������
	��������

��	�$����	�����&��_�����
������������	�
����$���	�̀��
�(��
������	����&��
���
����	��&�����������&����A�
��
��
����	���
���
	����������		��̀�
�(��
���
��
����
�$�&���
��a�����	�
��̀�
�(��
������	����&�	�� ����&��
����������	������	��������A�
���'����������	������������������
��	����̀�
������	 �����	
��	������	̀����A�
�	�
����	��	 ���*
��	����	
��	+��= ����
��������
����	��a�&���$��
�������������	 ��)�*���"���������	 �
�
�(��
����	��	 �	�	 ��)�*���	�
������>�&&�������	 �����	���	�
��	����	 ���	�	�+���C4b� 8NPRPLNRQ�;IQc4����&�
��	������&"�>�	 ����������������&�������
�
�(��
���
���
	�����$��������
��	 �
�
�(���	�������
��	�����
��	 �
>�������&����	������&"�>�	 �	 ��	�
������	 ���*
��	����	
��	���"�
���&	����	 ��)�*���	��	����&������
�	������&������*?��=@@�����������	����������&� �&��>�	 ��	���
	 �
���	����	��*?��=@@�����>�	 ��	���
�	�
�(��
��������

��	�$����	�����&��+�����
�����
�����	��>�&&�����
����������	�&�	 ��
�(���	�������
��	������������		��+�T��*?��=@@�����&����������������&� �&���	 ��)�*���	��	����&������
�	�������"����"�
�����
�����	�
�(���	���������	���>�	 ��a�����������

�����
����	 ��	����*?��=@@�>����&����������������&� �&�+���C4d� ,RPLMNIPS4�T������	����	����������&� �&���	 ��)�*���	��	����&������
�	�������"���������	 �
�����	�����>�	 ��	���
�	�
�(��
��������

��	�$����	�����&��+��= ��)�*���	��	����&������
�	�������"������������	���������&���������	���	�&���	���	���>�	  �&������
��������������������������		�����
�$�����
�����
�����	���
�(��
����
���"���	������&&�>�����&�������
�
�����
�����	��
��������



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

���������	�
����	����	���� 
��	����	
��	����!�
���"��	��
��##
�#
��	������	���$����%&'� ()�*+,-./&���	0�	��	�������	�����#���	���������

��	�1����	��������������2���2������!�
�����	������ 3��455�
�������
��#����62����
����#2"����0�	��	������	
��	�	�
������������	����$���

��	�1����	����#2�������������2���2������!�
�����	����������	��7������
��#�
�	�������0��1�
����#
��
����2�
��	�����#2"�0�	��	���� 
��	����	
��	$�����89:;<=(�>?&��@9(9ABC�;9AD8�B(E�:=(E<;<=(8��>?&>�F.G./+H�+IG�8J+J.�C+KLM�ANH.L�+IG�A.ONH+J,)ILM�E,/.PJ,-.LM�@N,G.H,I.LM�:)G.�)Q�F.G./+H�A.ONH+J,)IL�R:FAS�+IG�=JT./�A.H.-+IJ�BNJT)/,J,.L&� 3��455���
����	�����#2"�0�	���22��##2���62������
�2������	�	��2�0���
�2�������
���2�	��������
��	�1���������2���������2����������3���
	������������"��	��
���	��
�	����
�2�1��	�	��	���#�
��
��������� 3��455�����
�	���� 
��	����	
��	$��U�����	������0��
����2	�#2��
�V��
����	���##2"�	�� 3��455��	�����
��
��	
��	�1��
�V��
����	��##2���$����>?&W�XI,Q)/Y�@/+IJ�D+I+O.Y.IJ�BPJM�;Z@D8�+IG�B[[H,P+\H.�8J+IG+/G�F.G./+H�+IG�8J+J.�:./J,Q,P+J,)IL�+IG�BLLN/+IP.L&�� 3��455���
����	�����#2"�0�	���##2���62��2�0����7���	�1���
��
���
���2�	���������#�2���������2������4�7��� �1�
����	����������#	�
�]̂�������	���4�7��� 
��	�_��������	��	����
���̀47 _�a��������"��	��
��##2���62������
�2��
��	�	���
��	����������	��	����
����
�
�V��
����	�$���
	��
�� 3��455���
����	�����#2"�0�	��	����##2���62��b� ���
	�����	�������������
�������0������
������
#�
�	�����
����6"�
���
���������2�������6�	���	�2���	���	���	����V��2���#2�"���	��##�
	���	"�#
��
�����
	�����	���������2���
��������
	�����	����
���
�����2�66"��������
#
���
����	���6�
���	���
	�����	������
��
�
���0�
c#2������
	�����	����������2�����2������	���
	�����	��������#2������0�	�������2�����#�����	���������2�����	���2����
�V��
����	�����#2������0�	��47 _������	����##2���62������3���
	������
�	�
������
��	����������	����1��	����2�����
�����������������2��	������	�
��	$���>?&d�@.I./+HHe�BPP.[J.G�BPP)NIJ,IO�f/,IP,[H.L�)/�=JT./�A.P)OI,g.G�BPP)NIJ,IO�f/,IP,[H.L&� 3��455����22�����
��	�� ���
�22"�����#	���������	�����
����#2���#
���2��	���6"�	������
�����U��	�	�	�������
	��������62���������	��	�����2�����	��
�
������h���������	����#
����#2����
��
�V��
���6"� 3��455$� 3��455����22���22�0�b� ������2����������	�#�2����������#
�����
������#
���������������6��		����
�V���	����
�
���6�
�����	���������	���������������2�
���
���
�2�	���	��	���� 
��	����	
��	$���>?&'�:)IQH,PJL�)Q�<IJ./.LJi�E,LPH)LN/.�)Q�:)IQH,PJL&� 3��455�
�#
����	������0�

��	��	��	�#�
��
����������
�	������	
��	��
��
��	�0�22���	�����	�	�	�������	��2��
�#�	��	��2�����2��	������	�
��	��
�
������62"��
��	������##��
����������#
�#
��	"$�� 3��455�������	���1�����
�����
���	����1�����
������ 3��455���	����	����1���	���"�	������
���	�
����"�����������##�
	���	"����	�
����#2�"���	�����	��2������
�	��	"���#����2��������	��	
�#����1�
���
���
1����	����#�62�����
1��	��
���#2�"������	���b� ���	���"�	������
����	�������	��	�������	���� 
��	����	
��	��
����������	����0�	��	���� 
��	����	
��	���7��#	�����22�0�������
�
�2�1��	��	�	���
�����
�2�2�0$����
	��
�� 3��455�
�#
����	������0�

��	��	��	����	����������	
�	�������	����
��	���	�0�22����#2"�0�	���22�



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

�������	������	�
��	��
�����	���������������� 
��
�! �
�"��	��
�! �
����#��������������$%�
 ���%�������������%����� ���������	�
��&'����	���(�)���*�����+�,�
�"��	�����-��.����
� "�	�������������� 
����	����� 
������	������	
��	��
��
��	%�+/��(00��������
�"�	�#���	��#�	���1�+-�+/��(00�$������	������������ �
���	���
�����	��	���"���#�����
�"� �����	���
�����	�������
���� 
�����	��	�����	�	 	����
��
����	��	��������
������������
�������
��
����2�	�������������	������	�
��	��
���
����������-�+/��(00�$�������
�	��$�	����"���	���������������������3��	�,�	#�$�	�� 	������	 ��%���	��	�����
�����
��	��������	������	�
��	�$�	��
�����	�	���	����
��
"����� ���
�	����+
��	����	
��	-��+/��(00�" �	���������%����$
�	���%�$�	�������	����4��5��������
���#����������,�
#%���#��)��	�����
���	��	�����������	�������	�
��	�
���	�,��	���	����
��
"����� ���
�	����+
��	����	
��	-���6789�:;<=�>;?�@;AB;??�C=DE<F8��(��	����)	��	�
�! �
����#�(�)���+�,�
�"��	���������	������&�-���%�+/��(00�
��
����	������$�

��	�%�	��	����	��
�+/��(00%���
���#�� ����	
��	�
%���������%��
�� �

�������	����+/��(00%�� 

��	�#���#��		��.�
���%��
�$������#��		�.�
����� 
����	���	�
"����	����+
��	����	
��	-�+/��(00���
����	��	�G�������������
#��	����	����� 
��	������
	�����	����
�"�����	
 ����
���#�� 	 
��� ����	
��	�
��
���������-���
�� 
���������	�����
�,�����%�HIJKLJMM�NOPQRST�OUQSS�UQVR�MUR�WRQXYXZ�QOOYZXR[�\K�]R̂QO�_JVRPXWRXM�̀J[Ra�bRLc�dedceefgfhc��678i�jEk�lmn;DB<o<m?�pqmrsmt8��(��	����)	��	�����������%�+/��(00���G��$�������	��	%� ���
��
	�����.u%����	����v-������	���+���
������
��
��	�������	���
�	���	�
"���,�
����#�	����+
��	����	
��	%�� ����"�#����#�����)������� ���
�	����+
��	����	
��	����+/��(00���������"��������$�	������
 ������,��������#�	�����""����������*�$�0���
��"��	��
����	�����""����������*�$�0���
��"��	�������
	������	��	�+/��(00�������	����
��������������,������"�������-��678w�x<=?DsB?s;m�;m�yz;D?s;m�pqmrsmt8��+/��(00���G��$�������	��	%� ���
��
	�����.u%����	����'-�v����	���+���
������
��
��	�������	���
�	���	�
"���,�
����#�	����+
��	����	
��	%������)���	�����
�,������#�	��	���	%�� ����"�#���	�������	
�� 	��� ���
�	����+
��	����	
��	�	����#�����,�� ����
���	�	#�	��	{�4�5���
��
"��������
	�����
���� 
��	��	������	�
��"� 
������ ���
�	���bMQMR|O�}R[YLQY[�~PJZPQW��g�h�YO�LJWWJXSK�J�XR[a�WQXQZR[a�JP�LJXMPJSSR[�\K�QX�RXMYMK�MUQM�~RP�JPWO�QX�Q\JPMYJX�~PJLR[�PR�MUQM�YO�XJM�PRYW\�POQ\SR��X[RP�MUR�bMQMR|O�}R[YLQY[�~PJZPQW��JP�4�5�������
���������
��������	����������	�	#�	��	���
��
"��������
	�����
���� 
��	��	������	�PRYW\�POQ\SR��X[RP�MUR�bMQMR|O�}R[YLQY[�~PJZPQWc����l��C�>�668���l�Cyj��lx���y>:���>:C�C�>���6686��Cmr<�<mr<m?��;m?DEB?;D��?E?q=��Cmr<oms?A�Emr��;Fr��EDoF<==�ytD<<o<m?8��+/��(00��)�
����#���
����	��	��	�����������������	����	
��	�
-�����
������
� "�	��������������#��$��
%�����
��
�	�
%�������
%���
��	�
%��"���#��%��
�,�� �	��
����+/��(00�����������
������	�	���"���#��%�����	%���
,��	%��
���
	��
���%��
���
	������#�3���	�,��	 
���
�3���	���	�
�
����$�	�%�	���1�+��
�	����	�	�����(�)��-�+/��(00���
����	��	�G��� ����	�������"�#�����������
#�	����� 
��	��	���������	
��	�
����+/��(00�$����������"���	������������������	����	
��	�
�����$������	�����������
����
���
"�		���	������������	%���
,��	%��
���
	��
���%��
���
	������#�3���	�,��	 
���
�3���	���	�
�
����$�	��	���1�+��
�	����	�	�����(�)��-��



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

������
�������
������ ����� �
�	����� ��
���
���!"��
����!���������#$��%&&��
���"����'()*+,,-.����	
��	�
��������!���������
���	��!�������"�	����/���"�����
�����	�����#$��%&&��
�'()*+,,-.����	
��	�
�0�#$��%&&��
�'()*+,,-.����	
��	�
��������!��
�������!�����
�����
����	��	���"������������
��
��	����"/��	���
��/��� ������������/���"/��	 �1�
2�
����/�����	��� ������������
�	" ���"�!�����	��3����!���	�����	�	���/���"���������	�	���/���"�� ������	��
���"
����	�4�����
��������
���� �������������"�
���	���������/��	���
����	
�!�	�����
�5��
���!"���10���6789:;;�<=�><?@=A>@<=B�A=C�=CBD<?BEFGC�H<=�AGG�@IDCB�<H�>GAEJB�KLA@B<CMC=�NOC�@<�A>@E<?B�<=�DC=H<=JA?>C�O?NC=�@LEB�6=A?@�P<?@=A>@Q�E?>GONE?RQ�FO@�?<@�GEJE@CN�@<Q�@LC�OBC�<H�AO@<J<FEGCB�<=�<@LC=�@=A?BD<=@A@E<?�FI�E@B�<K?C=BQ�E?><=D<=A@<=BQ�<HHE>C=BQ�NE=C>@<=BQ�CJDG<ICCBQ�M<GO?@CC=B�<=�A?I�@LE=N�DA=@ECBS�:T�:U;�;V:;9:�W;7XYZZY[\;�]9̂ ;7�:U;�:;V8Z�PT9Z:Y:]:YT9�89̂ �\8_Z�W7TX]\68:;̂ �:U;7;]9̂ ;7Q��6789:;;�ZU8\\�̂;̀ ;9̂ Q�Y9̂ ;X9ỲaQ�89̂ �UT\̂ �U87X\;ZZ�T86�89̂ �:U;�Z:8:;�T̀ �:;V8ZQ�89̂ bT7�:U;Y7�T̀ ỲP;7ZQ�86;9:ZQ�;XW\Ta;;ZQ�7;W7;Z;9:8:Yc;ZQ�PT9:78P:T7ZQ�8ZZY69;;ZQ�89̂ bT7�̂;ZY69;;Z�̀7TX�89a�89̂ �8\\�\Y8[Y\Y:aQ�8P:YT9ZQ�P\8YXZQ�̂;X89̂ ZQ�T7�Z]Y:ZQ�89̂ �8\\�7;\8:;̂ �PTZ:ZQ�8::T79;aZ�̀;;ZQ�89̂ �;VW;9Z;Z�87YZY96�T]:�T̀ Q�T7�7;Z]\:Y96�̀7TX�89a�8P:Z�T7�TXYZZYT9Z�T̀ �6789:;;�T7�Y:Z�86;9:ZQ�;XW\Ta;;ZQ�Z][PT9:78P:T7ZQ�T7̂ ;7�̀ ]\̀ Y\\;7ZQ�T7�Z]WW\Y;7Z�T̀ �Z][PT9:78P:T7Z�Y9�:U;�;V;P]:YT9�T7�W;7̀ T7X89P;�T̀ �:U;�PT9:78P:�89̂ �89a�W]7PU8Z;�T7̂ ;7Z�YZZ];̂ �]9̂ ;7�:U;�PT9:78P:S��:U;�;̂̀ ;9Z;��ZU8\\�[;�PTT7̂ Y98:;̂ �[a�6789:;;�_Y:U�:U;�T̀ ỲP;�T̀ �:U;�:;V8Z�8::T79;a�6;9;87\�_U;9�:;V8Z�Z:8:;�86;9PY;Z�87;�98X;̂ �;̂̀ ;9̂ 89:Z�Y9�89a�\8_Z]Y:�89̂ ���6789:;;�X8a�9T:�867;;�:T�89a�Z;::\;X;9:�_Y:UT]:�̀Y7Z:�T[:8Y9Y96�:U;�PT9P]77;9P;�̀7TX�:U;�T̀ ỲP;�T̀ �:U;�:;V8Z�8::T79;a�6;9;78\S���T86�89̂ �6789:;;�867;;�:T�]̀79YZU�:YX;\a�_7Y::;9�9T:YP;�:T�;8PU�T:U;7�T̀ �89a�Z]PU�P\8YXS������ddSe�WOFGE>E@IS�#$��%&&���������	�����	���f�#-����/���
�
���
�	��	���f�#���
��	�"��
�����
��	�"������"�/�����
������ ���!������
3������������/��	 ��
���!������
3������������
��
���	����	��	����#
��	����	
��	��
���"���5����	������
����	���
�	� ����������������"��
�/�	�������
�/�
2�	����/�	�
���� �1�	���	���
�	��!	�������1
�		���������	��
�/�	���f�#0�%�������	���������	���	������	�������������	���/�	�#$��%&&-.�ghijikl�km�nmopjl�qikr�ik.�mhjisgkimt.�gtu�uvkiw.�vtuwx�	���%�4���f����y��	�������	����z�
�	���%�4�����!����{���
/�	������	0��ddS|�Y?@CGGC>@OAG�W=<DC=@IS�#$��%&&�����
�	�����������
����	��	�#$��%&&�/�"����"
���	���"��
�������!��2� �/������ ����/� ��
��	��
��
�������/�	�
����������	�����	�����
���
	"���3��������
��
���������	�����������!	����������
�	����#
��	����	
��	 ���!}��	�	��	���
�"��	"
�
�� ����
�4�����3� ������

�3���!�����������1����������
�!"�
���
3���!"�	���f�#������
��	���!"�#$��%&&�	��	���f�#��
 �1��
���������!�� �	����	�	�����%�4�� ��
��������
����������
���4������ �	���~��	����	�	���#�3�
�/��	0��#$��%&&���
�!"��
��	��	���f�#������
��	
��	�� �
�"��	"
�
�� ����
�4�����3� ������

�3���!�����������	����� ����" �/����" �
��
����� ���!���� ��
��	��
1������� �������	��
�����	��
��	����������1������
������
	 ��������������������	����1�	����
�3�	�3��1�
2�� ��	�



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

�������	���������	�	��	������ ������!�"����
�	����������"���##
�#
��	�����	����$�
���������	�����������
�	��� ���!���"#����	�����%�����	�����	%���#
�#�
	!&���'��())��������*	�����
�"��%*
���#���	� ����	
��	�
� ������%*���	
��	�
��+�����!,�����
���	������-./.�012133.45�/6�7897:99�/;1�<=>?@AAB3�6C9:D./:603�/6�/;1�E><�80��
�	�����
��	����	
��	&��F����#
�#������%*
���#���	 ����	
��	�
 ��
��%*���	
��	�
�
��%����	������#	�	�
"������
�����	��������%���
���	� ��'��())�������#
�"#	�!�*
�����%���
��%����	��	����		��	�������	��������
��
�"�G�����
���
�	������	
��	�������	�#
������H�	��	�����
��"��	����I%��	����H�	��%	��%
	��
��%	��
�J�	�����
�"�	������&��KKLM�NOPQORS�TUVPSWL��
��������"����
��	�!�����
�	����
�"�	����
��	��%����	�
�%�����#
�X��	��
���	�Y�	!�#�
��
"���%���
�	�����
��	����	
��	�����������
���#
��
�"�����"�&�Z�������	��
H����
�I%�
���%���
�	���	�
"�����	�����
��	����	
��	 ���!�#
��
�"�����"��������*��%����*!��'��())�	���%
	��
�	���#
��
�"��*X��	�Y������	���#
�X��	��
���	�Y�	!��%�����*!�	�����
��	 �����	���#
��
�"�����"��������*���#��	����	�����"��#
�X��	��
���	�Y�	!����H������	�H�������
�	��&��'��())�����������	��!�����
�#�
	�	��������"���������
������H�	��	���E><B3�41[64/:0D�:03/482/:603\��'��())��������$#����#
��
�"�����"���%
����	�����
��	����	
��	�	�
"]�#
��
�"�����"����	��$#���������	�����
��	����	
��	�	�
"�������*��
��%�����	��	������&���KKL̂�_P�̀abbcRUdeUQL��'��())���������	��%##���	��
��	��
H����%����%�����
�"�	�����
��	����	
��	�	��
�#������
��%*�	�	%	���$��	�����%�������
�"��	��
���%
����	��	�������%##�
	��	�����	�Y�	����	��	��
��	����%*X��	����	�����
��	����	
��	&���KKLf�_P�̀PceVedRdePU�PO�gWVWebd�Ph�iaUjk�PU�lWmRch�Ph�nopL��F	�����$#
����!���
����	��	���!�������	�	������
��
�
����#	�����%���������!�	!#��*!��'��())������
�	��������*�����	�����'��())����������	���������	�	������
��
�
����#	�����%�������*���������	��������
�	����		�
��!�����
������	����	�	�����(�$��&��KKLq��_P�̀arVPUdORVdeUQs�okkeQUSWUds�PO�tWcWQRdePU�uedmPad�NOePO�uOeddWU�obbOPvRc�Ph�nopL���'��())�"�!���	��%*���	
��	 ����������!�����	��
���	� ��
�������	����!�����	���%	����%���
�	�����
��	����	
��	�H�	��%	�	���#
��
�H
�		����##
�Y������	������&�����������"���	����	�����"#��	���������������
�	����	���##
�Y���
����!���!�
�I%��	�	���%*���	
��	 ����������!�
���	 ��
�������	����!��%	!�%���
�	�����
��	����	
��	 �����	�������"�!�H�	�������	���##
�Y�����
���!�
�������
����
�����&�F��	����Y��	������##
�Y����%*���	
��	��� �������"��	 ��
�������	����*!��'��()) ��'��())�H�������%
��	��	��	�����	
��	��H�	���	��
��������
�I%�
����"#�������H�	��	���#
�Y����������	�����
��	����	
��	&���'��()) �����%*���	
��	������
���!�#�
��
"�������#����������
��� ��$#
����!�%���
�	�����������
����	��	��	������	�
����Y�������	��
��#����*���	������
����%
����	��	�����#�
��
"�������������"#�������H�	��	�����
��	����	
��	�����	��	�	���������������	�C1�9:.C91�:0�.05�w.0014�/6�<=>?@AAB3�38C260/4.2/64x3y\���'��())�
�#
����	������H�

��	��	��	��	�H����"���	�����Y�
����	�	�����%
��	��	����	
��	�
��#�
��
"��������
������H�	��	���	�
"� ������	���� ������#�������	��������	���
����	
��	���
�#%
�������
��
�&������KKLz��_P�pORUdk�dP�{WOdReU�nOQRUe|RdePUkL���'��())������
"��*!��$��%	����	�����
��	����	
��	�	��	��	��������	�"�}�����	
�*%	�����	����"#��������
�����	�Y����������
�����
����������	��&�



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

������������� !"#��$�%�!"#" &'�())*' +,���-.����
	/�0���
���	.�	����1
�2/0/������	./0�3
��	����	
��	�/0�/����4�5�4�/�	��6�6�	�����0	/	7	����5�/2�
�84�	.��9�3��
�	.���	�	�����-�:�0������4�/;;7�/	/�0��
�;�07/	��
��
�;�</�8/</	4�	.�	�	.��9�3��
�	.���	�	�����-�:�0�;�4�.�2��84��1�
�	/������<�5=�������>�?�!"#' '&�@�AB�C"'*"���-./0�3
��	����	
��	�/0�;�6����6���	�
�6�/�	��/��	.���	�	�����-�:�0=��-./0�3
��	����	
��	���6��<<�6/017	�0��
/0/����7	�����
�
�<�	/���	.�
�	��0.�<<�8����2�
��6�84�	.��<�50����	.���	�	�����-�:�0D�5/	.�7	�
���
6�	����4��	.�
5/0���11</��8<������</�	����<�5�
7<�0��
�
�E7/
�;��	0=��F:��1	�5.�
��0	�	��<�5��0	�8</0.�0�;��6�	�
4�2��7�D�3G��-FF���
��0�	.�	���4���	/��D�07/	D�HIJIKLJIMN�MO�MJPQO�ROMSQQTINK�USMHHQSJIVQHW�XHIJIKLJIMNYZ�LOI[INK�M\J�M]�MO�IN�LNW�̂LW�
�<�	/���	��	./0�3
��	����	
��	�0.�<<�8����;;����6��:�<70/2�<4�/��	.��-
�2/0���7�	4�_/0	
/�	���7
	��
�	.��̀�/	�6��	�	�0�_/0	
/�	���7
	�/��	.��a�0	�
��_/0	
/�	D��70	/��_/2/0/��D���6�	��	.���:	��	��<<�5�6�84�<�5D�.�
�84�/

�2���8<4���6�7����6/	/���<<4����0��	0�	��	.���:�<70/2��b7
/06/�	/������	.�0����7
	0���
�	.��17
1�0�����1
�0��7	/�����6c�
�6����6/���07�.�</	/��	/��=��3G��-FF�.�
�84�5�/2�0���6���
��0���	�	���00�
	�84�5�4����;�	/��D��0���6����0�D��
��	.�
5/0�D�/����4�07/	D���	/����
�1
����6/��D���4��<�/;�	.�	�3G��-FF�/0���	�1�
0���<<4�078b��	�	��	.��b7
/06/�	/������	.���8�2�
��;�6���7
	0d�	.��07/	D���	/����
�1
����6/���/0�8
�7�.	�/�����/����2��/��	���
7;d���6c�
�	.��2��7��/0�/;1
�1�
=�������������efgf�hijklmniom�pq�rpniskot�giuvlwmxyz�{|C"# $,�%,}+")���3G��-FF�5/<<���07
��JPLJ�IJ�\JIHI~Q[�JPQ�������QRLOJ�QNJ�M]��M�QHLNT��QS\OIJW�[��
��
/�4�040	�;�	��6�	�
;/���	.���</�/8/</	4������4���5��;1<�4���./
�6���	�
�	.�������	/2��6�	�����	./0���
��;��	�5.��5/<<�8��5�
�/��������4�;�		�
���2�
�6�84�	./0���
��;��	=�������������}"��$�?#�'+���'",�$�#�@���, '&��3G��-FF�0.�<<���	�70����4��
��	��7�60�1
�2/6�6�84�9�3�	��3G��-FF�	��/��<7�����	.��1�00�����
�6����	������4�<��/0<�	/2��;��07
���
��<��	/��������4����6/6�	����
�178</�����/��=��������� }�*+"��"}��*+ �'��#��"}}���-.��6/017	��
�0�<7	/���1
���00�1
�2/6�6���
�/���.�1	�
���������	.��-�:�0�3�2�
�;��	���6��0.�<<�8��70�6�	��
�0�<2����4�6/017	���
/0/���7�6�
�	./0�3
��	����	
��	�/��<76/���01��/�/��<<4���4��<<���6�8
���.����	.�����	
��	�84�9�3=������������ ���%*���#+���� &�+ �'��$$ #)�+ �'���3G��-FF�
�1
�0��	0���6�5�

��	0�	.�	�/	�5/<<�/��<76��	.����<<�5/����<�70��/��	.���5�
6�6��7;��	0���
��2�
4�078�5�
6���6�078���	
��	���6�5/<<�OQ�\IOQ�[\�OQSIRIQNJ[�LNT�SMNJOLSJMO[�JM�SQOJI]W�LSSMOTINKHW��X�NTQO��QSJIMN�����  ¡�M]�JPQ�¢L�IHW���6�D�	.��2��6�
��
��11</���	���
	/�/�0�	.�	�	.��/�6/2/67�<��
�870/��00���	/	4���;�6�/��	./0����	
��	D�8/6��
��11</��	/���/0���	�/��</�/8<��	��
���/2��	.��01��/�/�6��
��	D�<���D��
�1�4;��	���6������5<�6��0�	.�	�	./0����	
��	�;�4�8��	�
;/��	�6���6�1�4;��	�;�4�8��5/	..�<6�/��	./0���
	/�/��	/���/0�/����7
�	�=���8/6��
�����11</��	/�����
������	
��	D��
��	D��
�<����1�/6��
�;�0	�	���7�60�;70	�/��<76��	.����;����6�0��/�<�0��7
/	4��7;8�
����	.��/�6/2/67�<��
�0�<��1
�1
/�	�
���6����.�1�
	��
D�0.�
�.�<6�
D��
��5��
�5/	.�����5��
0./1�/�	�
�0	�����	�<��0	��£�1�
���	����	.��870/��00�QNJIJW�[\��IJJINK�JPQ��IT�MO�LRRHISLJIMN�Y�



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

����������� !"!�#$%&'"(��)*��+,,���
	-�-�.�	/�	�-	�-.���	�0-.	�1�-��	/��2
�/-3-	�1�4��1�
.�0-.	��5	/�
-6�1�37�,8��5	-4��9
1�
���:�����;<�=>0��?-����
�2�
	7���1��
�/-3-	-���+
��.��	-��.�@-	/�ABCDEFD�GHE�IEJJKLM�NHCBOLBF�LE�IEJJKLM�EC�PQRRECL�NBCCECKDJSM�RQTUKDHBV�TW�LHB�XFKLBV��	�	�.�Y�2�
	Z��	����	/��+
��.5
7<�9��-��������
�-����..�	.����	
�0:������[���"� &'\"�]"$!�̂_�$�̀&$&"�ab"c�d�a__'%e$&'̂c��f������
1��������	/��@-	/����	-���gg�:�������	/��+�8�.�)�4�
�Z��	���1�<�
�0�	-���	�����	
��	-���@-	/�����8��5	-4��/��1������.	�	�������7<�)*��+,,���
	-�-�.�	/�	�-	�-.���	�h�i�	/���8��5	-4��/��1����	/��9�)<�h�i���2�
.���@/���	���7�	-Z��15
-���	/����5
�7��
.�3���
��	/��1�	�����	/�����	
��	��
��
��	�@�.�	/���8��5	-4��/��1����	/��9�)<�h�i���2�
.���@/���Z20�7.����5

��	��
���
Z�
��8��5	-4��/��1����	/��9�):���������j�#̂�'&'�$��#̂��'cb�#%̂k'l'&'̂c��)*��+,,�
�2
�.��	.���1�@�

��	.�	/�	�-	�1��.���	�2�
��
Z�2�0-	-��0�2�00-�����1���?��@0�1��.�	/�	��22
�2
-�	�1��5�1.�Z�7���	�3���
��	�1�	�<��
��82��1�1�37<���7���	-	7�@/-�/�2�
��
Z.�2�0-	-��0�2�00-��:������m�n'c$c�'$��#$%&'�'o$&'̂c�#%̂k'l'&"!�a__'%e$&'̂c��p�1�
����	-�����qq:��;h3i����	/��+�8�.�)�4�
�Z��	���1�<�)*��+,,���
	-�-�.�	/�	�	/��-�1-4-15�0��
�35.-��..���	-	7���Z�1�-��	/-.����	
��	�-.���	�-��0-�-30��	��
���-4��	/��.2��-�-�1����	
��	��
��
��	��5�1-�����1���?��@0�1��.�	/�	�	/�����	
��	�Z�7�3��	�
Z-��	�1���1��00�2�7Z��	.�@-	//�01�-��	/-.���
	-�-��	-���-.�-����5
�	�:������r�] e$c�s%$__'�t'cb�#%̂k'l'&'̂c��p�1�
����	-�����qq:��g�����	/��+�8�.�)�4�
�Z��	���1�<�	/��)*��+,,���
	-�-�.�	/�	�	/��-�1-4-15�0��
�35.-��..���	-	7���Z�1�-��	/-.����	
��	�-.���	�-��0-�-30��	��
���-4��	/��.2��-�-�1����	
��	��
��
��	��5�1-�����1���?��@0�1��.�	/�	�	/-.����	
��	�Z�7�3��	�
Z-��	�1���1��00�2�7Z��	.�@-	//�01�-��	/-.���
	-�-��	-���-.�-����5
�	�:�����uv�#%'̂%�w'($(&"%�x"�'"_�ŷc&%$�&�z'̂�$&'̂c:�p�1�
����	-��.���qq:��g���1���g�:�q�����	/��+�8�.�)�4�
�Z��	���1�<�	/��)*��+,,���
	-�-�.�	/�	�	/��-�1-4-15�0��
�35.-��..���	-	7���Z�1�-��	/-.����	
��	�-.���	�-��0-�-30��	��
���-4��	/��.2��-�-�1����	
��	��
��
��	��5�1-�����1���?��@0�1��.�	/�	�	/-.����	
��	�Z�7�3��	�
Z-��	�1���1��00�2�7Z��	.�@-	//�01�-��	/-.���
	-�-��	-���-.�-����5
�	�:�����u��ydl"%("� %'&d�s%$'c'cb�#%̂b%$e����00�)*��+,,��Z5.	���Z20�	�����73�
.��5
-	7�	
�-�-��:�f��	/��)*��+,,�-.���0���0�5�-	������4�
�Z��	<�)*��+,,�
�2
�.��	.���1�@�

��	.�-	.���Z20-�����@-	/����	-�����q;:q�������	/��+�8�.�)�4�
�Z��	���1��
�0�	-���	��	/���73�
.��5
-	7�	
�-�-���2
��
�Z���
�0���0���4�
�Z��	��Z20�7��.�@/��/�4������..�	����0���0���4�
�Z��	���Z25	�
�.7.	�Z��
�1�	�3�.�:�f��	/��)*��+,,�/�.�����..�	����7�.	�	����Z25	�
�.7.	�Z��
�1�	�3�.�<�)*��+,,�./�00���Z20�	���73�
.��5
-	7�	
�-�-�����1�4�
-�7���Z20�	-������	/��	
�-�-���2
��
�Z�	��	/�������7�25
.5��	�	����1�-������
1�����@-	/����	-�����q;:q�������	/��)�4�
�Z��	���1�:������uu�w"l$%e"c&�$c!�̀ (o"c('̂c:��)*��+,,���
	-�-�.�	/�	�-	���1�-	.�2
-��-2�0.��
����	�.5.2��1�1��
�1�3�

�1��
�Z�1�-���35.-��..�@-	/�	/��.	�	���
���1�
�0���4�
�Z��	��.�0-.	�1����	/��{|}|~�����~�}���~�}��~���~��������|�Z�-�	�-��1�37�	/��+�8�.���Z2	
�00�
�����530-������5�	.���1�	/��{��|~��������}����}�}�~�~�|��{����Z�-�	�-��1�37�	/��)���
�0���
4-��.��1Z-�-.	
�	-��:���



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

������������ �!"#�$" %#�%� &��' "�(#"%)�&�(*)"�%)+�#�,"-)&�.)%� &�/�(*)"�%)+�#�0"!�%�/�)&1�$"�2)%#�3 !&1)%� &���45��677�
�8
�9��	9���:�;�

��	9�	<�	�=	�;=>>���?8>@�;=	<����	=�����A�BC�D����	<��6�E�9�4�F�
�?��	���:��
�>�	=���	��:=9�>�9G
��8
�	��	=��9���
���
	�=���<�
=	�H>���
���=I�	=��9J��<�
=	�H>��	
G9	9J���:�8
=F�	����G�:�	=��9B������K�L#-)��M!%* "�%N���45��677�
�8
�9��	9�	<�	�=	�8�99�99�9�>���>��G	<�
=	@�	����	�
�=�	��	<=9�4
��	����	
��	B����
�9�>G	=��J�?�	=����
�9=?=>�
���	=���<�9�H����:G>@��:�8	�:��
�8�99�:��9����OPPQRQST�SRU�OP�UVW�XYZ[\]]̂_�̀OaWbcQc̀�dOefg�ShUVObQiQc̀�UVW�WjWRhUQOc�OP�UVW�XbScU�kOcUbSRUg�=��>G:=����>>�G�:�
9	��:=��9���:��99G
����9����	�=��:�	<�
�=�J���:�:=
��	=�����:��G	<�
=I=���	<��8�
9���=:��	=�=�:��9�	<�����=�=�>�
�8
�9��	�	=F�J��
�	<��:�9=��������45��677�	����	�=��������	=���;=	<�	<��4
��	����	
��	���:�	��8
�F=:��9G�<��::=	=���>�=���
?�	=����9�?�@�H��
�lG=
�:B������m�L�n�%)%� &�� &�o")&%��% �p&�%�� '�L �)��o 2#"&n#&%���45��677���q��;>�:��9���:���
��9�	<�	��88
�8
=�	�:��G�:9�?�@���	�H���E8��:�:�=��	<����
?�������
��	�	�J��
����	
��	�;=	<J���G�=	����>���>���F�
�?��	�G�>�99�	<��	�
?9����	<���
��	��
����	
��	�
�lG=
��	<�	�	<���G�:9�
���=F�:�G�:�
�	<���
��	��
����	
��	�;=>>�H���E8��:�:�9GHr��	�	��	<��>=?=	�	=��9���:�
�8�
	=���
�lG=
�?��	9�9=?=>�
�	��	<�9��8
�F=:�:�H@�	<����>>�;=��s�� �B���
	9�����:������	<��6�E�9�4���
�>��88
�8
=�	=��9���	J��
	B�tuJ��E��8	�	<�
��=9����
�lG=
�?��	���
�=��
��9�:�9�>�
=�9���
�>���>���F�
�?��	��?8>�@��9v��HB����	=��9�AADB��wJ�AADB��AJ���:�AADB��D����	<��6�E�9�4�F�
�?��	���:�v���:��������	=��9��xx�B�x����:��xx�Bx�x����	<��6�E�9�4�F�
�?��	���:�������y�L ++N�&-�z{|#&1�%!"#�}#�%"��%� &���45��677�
�8
W~WcU~�Sce��SbbScU~�UVSU��ZX̂_��Sf�WcU~�UO�XYZ[\]]�Sce�XYZ[\]]̂_�bWRWQ�U�OP�S��bO�bQSUWe�Ob�OUVWb�Phce~�hceWb�UVW����	
��	��
��
��	��
����	�8
�<=H=	�:�H@����	=��9�w��Bx�D���
�AADB��AA����	<��6�E�9�4�F�
�?��	���:��;<=�<�
�9	
=�	�>�HH@=����E8��:=	G
�9B���������� ��)�2#"� '�� 2#"#�-&��nn!&�%NB��6<����
	=�9��E8
�99>@���
���	<�	����8
�F=9=������	<���
��	��
����	
��	�=9�=����@�;�@�=�	��:�:�	�����9	=	G	����;�=F�
�H@�	<����4��
�	<���	�	�����6�E�9������@�=??G�=	=�9��
�?�9G=	��
��
�?�>=�H=>=	@�	<�	�	<����4��
�	<���	�	�����6�E�9�?�@�<�F��H@��8�
�	=������>�;B����������,|#&��##%�&-�B��t��	<��45��677�=9�����F�
�?��	�>���	=	@J�45��677�
�8
�9��	9���:�;�

��	9�=	9���?8>=�����;=	<��<�8	�
�AAx����	<��6�E�9�4�F�
�?��	���:��;<=�<�
�lG=
�9��>>�
��G>�
J�98��=�>��
���>>�:�?��	=����������F�
�?��	�>�H�:@�	��H���8���	��	<��8GH>=�J��E��8	��9��	<�
;=9��8
�F=:�:�H@�>�;B��������(,�������� �!n#&%)%� &���G
9G��	�	��6�E�9����>	<���:�����	@���:�J����	=���xDxB���A���J���HG9=��99�=��	<=9�9	�	��?�@���	�
�lG=
�����G9	�?�
�	��8
�F=:����@�:��G?��	�	=���RWbUQPfQc̀�UVW�Rh~UO�Wb̂~�k����
xC�F���=��	=����
�8�9	
	
��9?=99=���
���F�
@������	
@�	�J�	����=������99�	�J��
�	��
���=F��9�
F=����
�?�	<��HG9=��99B�6��	<���E	��	��88>=��H>�J�4
��	���
�8
�9��	9���:�;�

��	9�	<�	�=	�=9�=����?8>=�����;=	<�6�E�9����>	<���:�����	@���:�J����	=���xDxB���A���:�=9�



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

������������
����	�	��	��	����	�����	��
���� �����
��	��
��	��
!������	�
���	�������	
��	���"�����!�	���	�	�����#�$���%&'()*+�,-.�'*+%(/0'()*+�*1�'*+(/2'(�2+3�24&+34&+(%���,-.,�'56789:;8<56�5=�'5689>;8.��?����
� �������������	�������
����	��#�#�	�����������
�����	
�#��	����	��	����@
��	����	
��	$��?��	����A	��	�	���	�
B����#����#�	��������	����@
��	����	
��	�#����	��##
��������
	�����
���
��B�	������
��
���	��
!����������
��
��B��������������	�
B����#����#�	������
��	���������	
��#�������	��	�!�	��	�������
�����C��	� �����A���	�	�������#���
���������	����@
��	����	
��	$���,-.-�&68<9D�2E9DDFD68G�<6;H:I<6E�2HH�&JK<L<87.��?����@
��	����	
��	�������#���������A����	���
�����	��	�����	�
����
��B��	���	!����	�����
	����!�	��
�����	�	��	������C��	�B�		�
�	��
����#���
���#����#�	��
���
������	��
�
��
����	�	�����M �
�����
�!
�		��N��#�
��	� �������#�����������	��������#�
�	��#������
���
��B��	����	!����	�����
	����
���	�#�	����������C��	�B�		�
$�O"��A���	����	����@
��	����	
��	��@P��?QQ���
����	���	
��	�"���B��"�!�	��	���
�R��
�B��	����#�������	��������	����@
��	����	
��	�������#���������A����	�$����,-.S�2FD6IFD68.��?����@
��	����	
��	���������	����B�#����#��
��B��#�#��A���	����!
�	����������#��"���	����
	���$���"��
���
�"��A���	�#��B��#B��	����	����@
��	����	
��	�������������#���������	�����
	������#��
���B�#�	����������
	�#��"��#�R��	�������#�
�	���$���,-.T�U>98<>H�)6V>H<I<8W.��X����"�	�
B��
��
� ���������	����@
��	����	
��	��������#�	��������������
�������
�����������������	
��	������������	������	�	���������	"��
� ���#�	"������"�����	���	��
��
� ������$�?������������
��� ���#��
� ���������������#��B�#��� �
�������#��	
��Y����
�B�	������	
��	��������	���#��� �
����������
��
�	�#���
�������	������	��
��
� ����������������	���������������
�����#������	$����,-.Z�+56[\><VD9.�?��������
�������"���
	"�	�������	�������	
��	���
��
B����������"����	���	�
B���
����#�	�������
������

�����	� �����	�������	�����	�B���������������
�����������	������!�� �
����	��	���
	"]��
���	�	��#�B��#��	
��	���B�����������	�����	�
�$�����������	��
�!�� �
���A�
�����
��B����#��	���
������"��
������
�#�����	����	�����
��
B����������"�������	������#�
�	����@
��	����	
��	�����������	�	�	����������	��
�!�� �
�	���
������"��
������
�#�����	����	�����
��
B��������	�����B���
���"��	��
�������	�������	����@
��	����	
��	$��,-.̂��*==<;<>H�'>_>;<8W.��?�����
	�����	�����	����#���
���	��	�	��������	�
������
�	���
������������A���	������#���
��
B����	����@
��	����	
��	����"����	���
����������������	"$��,-.̀�%<E6>8:9D�2:8K59<8W.��?�����#�
�����#���
	����
��
����	���#�!�

��	�	��	�	�����#� �#��������B�		����	����#���B��	��
����	��
�a�#�	������������#���B��	���������������	���
�����	� ����
	���$������



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

���������������� !�����"#�������#$����%��&�#�&��'�()��&������(����#(�����*)+��"+��(�)����"#���,�����  �(��� �����#������-��%����#+�� ����.............................� .................................���
/�	�0���1�2�.....................� �
/�	�0���1�2�.....................� �3��/������	4���		�
��5�6���
�7� �8	4�
/9�0�3��/�/�7�� :;<<��=>?@A<<B;<<;?CDEF�GEHFIJ



����������	
��	�
�����������������������

������������������ !�����"��!������ "� ��#$%&'(%��#)��� ���*+�,������-#./0'%1#$��1234�55555555555555��67��	�	�8�89�:989	;����	7��<�=���
���;�	;>�����89�:989	;�?9
��	8;��
�9�?9
��	8;��
9@9����A	����	79@�=
��	����	
��	�BCD�EC�FGCHEDIJBKEGC�GL�MNOPQRRST�LUVVW�HBKEHLBFKGJX�BCD�KEYIVX�ZIJLGJYBCFI�GL�BVV�EKH�?A	9�@[�
�@>��@9:989	9�@[��:89��	9��@[�89�:989	;[���?���
�
�9\:A
@�\��	�:;�	7��<�=���
��]>��@�@[�9����;[��@�@�	���
	7�9��	79@�=
��	����	
��	��
��
9@9����A	������;�>�
��
\�����7�
�9��@7�88���	��]���?�	7����88�̂9��_����$$/'0��#̀%�a#&�b'10���$$/'0��#̀%�a#&��#/&%̀�� �$$/'0��c�1$3�d.e&'f3��#̀%�� ����*��d��!���,d!��,g���"������� � � ����67�����A�8���@	@�89@	�?��:�h��̂988�:��:988�?�:;�	7�����?�
������iA�
	�
8;�:�@9@�>A
@A��	�	��	7��	�
\@������
	9�9>�	9�����	9	;���
h9�����
��\��	�jk]79:9	�lmn��67��<�=�9@���	��:89��	�?�	��>�;���
�@�
h9��@�>
9�
�	��	7����\\����\��	��
���	�
�	7��	�
\9��	9������	79@�=
��	����	
��	n��
opqrstusr

vwxyz
o{q|}su}r o~rq{p~usso�pqp�tu{s

��{}�{|



�����������	
���	����
��

	����

��������������	������
�	���������	������
�������
����
������������������
�������	�������
������������������� !"!#$%�&'(�)**+,(�-*�&'(�#&&-./(0�1(/(.23�4)#15�+6�&'(�7(826�$&2&(�29(/,0�&26:(;�<+&'�,(.&+*0+/9�2�6&2&(<+;(�=(/;-.�&-�>.-=+;(�2�$&2&(<+;(�#?&-@2&(;�A+,&+@�B-&+*+,2&+-/�$(.=+,(�4$#AB$5�&-�2�=2.+(&0�-*�>-3+&+,23�6?C;+=+6+-/6�-*�&'(�$&2&(�-*�7(826%�+/,3?;+/9�,-?/&+(6%�,-?/&0�$'(.+**6%�,3(.:6�2/;�2&&-./(06%�;+6&.+,&�DEEFGHIJKL�DHM�NFOGEK�PQRDGESNSTDESHU�VHESESIKWXY�� !"!#$�)#1�,(.&+*+(;�2/;�,-/&.2,&(;�<+&'�Z[[\]̂̂�_̀ab�cdef̀gh\ij�26�&'(�6&2&(<+;(�=(/;-.�&-�>.-=+;(�$#AB$�&-�(2,'�-*�&'(�k2.&+,+>2&+/9�!/&+&+(6�PQlmn�oIGESpSNDESFH�mUGIIqIHEWXY�� !"!#$�rB#s!t�!B7u7vw�26�2�k2.&+,+>2&+/9�!/&+&0�2/;�A!Bt)"�(8(,?&(;�2�k2.&+,+>2&+/9�$(.=+,(6�#9.((@(/&�+;(/&+*+(;�26�x-/&.2,&�B-y�ruB$!"7�x)B7"#x7�Bzs{!"w�?/;(.�<'+,'�A!Bt)"�<-?3;�>.-=+;(�$#AB$�&-�rB#s!t�!B7u7vw�PE|I�QoFHEGDNEWXY�� !"!#$�$!x7u)B�}�-*�&'(�x-/&.2,&�>(.@+&&(;�&'(�rB#s!t�!B7u7vw�&-%�+/�+&6�6-3(�2/;�2C6-3?&(�MSKNGIESFHL�GIHI~�E|I�oFHEGDNEL�pFG�pFOG�P�X�DMMSESFHD��FHI�P�X�JIDG�GIHI~D��EIGqK�PIDN|�D�Q�IHI~D���IGqWX�&-�&'(�(8&(/&�&'(�)#1�x(.&+*+,2&+-/�#9.((@(/&%�.(@2+/6�+/�(**(,&��� !"!#$�&'(�)#1�(8(.,+6(;�+&6�->&+-/�&-�.(/(<�&'(�)#1�x(.&+*+,2&+-/�#9.((@(/&%�(8&(/;+/9�&'(�&(.@�&'(.(-*�&-�#?9?6&��}%�������B)�%�7 !"!�)"!%�7 u$������������	
���	����
��+6�(8(.,+6(;�C0�rB#s!t�!B7u7vw�26�*-33-<6��7'(�x-/&.2,&�&(.@+/2&(;�-/�#?9?6&��}%�����%�2/;�<26�.(/(<(;�&'.-?9'�#?9?6&��}%����}y�7'(�x-/&.2,&�+6�'(.(C0�GIHI~IML�~SE|�E|SK��INFHM�oFHEGDNE��IHI~D���IGq�PQ�INFHM��IHI~D���IGqWX�EF��IUSH�FH��ITEIq�IG��L������2/;�(/;�-*�#?9?6&��}%�����y�k?.6?2/&�&-�$(,&+-/�}�-*�&'(�x-/&.2,&%�&'+6�$(,-/;�"(/(<23�7(.@�2/;�2/0�6?C6(�?(/&�.(/(<236%�6'233�C(�6?C�(,&�&-�233�6>(,+*+,2&+-/6�2/;�&(.@6�2/;�,-/;+&+-/6�-*�&'(�x-/&.2,&%�&'(�)#1�x(.&+*+,2&+-/�#9.((@(/&%�2/;�&'(�u/,-.>-.2&(;�t-,?@(/&6�26�;(*+/(;�+/�$(,&+-/���&'(.(+/y���
�������������������������� ������� �� ¡��¢��
�£��¤¥¦§̈¦§����
©©�ª««¬���������������� ������� �� ¡��¢��

­®̄ °±°²�±



�����������	
�	���
��������������	���	��������� � �!� "�#!"$$�#�$��"�$ %&'&()�	%��&%(*+�,&�	-��')�	 �,(%./��	�0	$�$$	%123%	45'�&	6��&5',&7�8��'&�	� �	7�8��'&�	� 	9)'/�	75',:.�/�	 .�.).��	 �)./���	7�8��'&�)�	%�(5,�	���������	 �,(8��&	-'/�)�	$; %./�'&(5�)�	� ��������	<5./.�'&�5�	6�5&.=.,'&�	-'/�)�	� ��.&.'�)�	� >'5�?	@'&)��1(&�3'��	��'*�������������	%&'8�.�/�	 .)'*���7.8�	A����	B976C�����D	6��&5'�	7.8�	B9%	E	6'�'�'D -<	#�F	!$;��1()&.�G	7H		���!!C$;��>'5�?I@'&)��J�'/I&�F')I/���-	1��5�))�	$��I��I;�I!�			K����L	M���N��O%&'&()�	<5./.�'�													�P!�P$�$!	Q�$$�;;	-R S����5�	>'5�?	@'&)��													>'5�?I@'&)��J�'/I&�F')I/�� T�,'&.���	 �,(%./�U�O���	VW���X U�O���Y�� M���X���
#.��		45'����,&?+(�/�JZ.�,�I�5/%�,(5.&?	T�����	�8'.�G	1,,�(�&	1(&[��&.,'&.��	B3���D %��&�	�P!�P$�$!	Q�$Q�!!	-R2.�Z���	�P!�P$�$!	!!�����;	1R	V���������	K����L	��L	U�O���Y��	\�X���XY��]							1,,��&���	�P!�P$�$!	!!�����;	1R						� �	!"=!",!"C��!"C�Q=,C*=�,C�",�Q�'�!;�'45'�&)	1�8.�.)&5'&.��	 .�.).��	6[.�=%./�.�/	45�(��	45'�&)	1�8.�.)&5'&.��	 .�.).��	6[.�=%�,(5.&?	T�����	�8'.�G	1,,�(�&	1(&[��&.,'&.��	B3���DV���������	K����L	��L	U�O���Y��	\�X���XY��]							3�&	<==�5��	�.'	 �,(%./�65.8�	2.,&.8	%�5�.,�)	C	 .5�,&�5%./�.�/	45�(��	65.8�	2.,&.8	%�5�.,�)	C	 .5�,&�5%�,(5.&?	T�����	�8'.�G	1,,�(�&	1(&[��&.,'&.��	B3���DV���������	K����L	��L	U�O���Y��	\�X���XY��]							3�&	<==�5��	�.'	 �,(%./�_̂̀_abc	def̀g_c	h	dèiabji	kiieà_lgmnòǹo	̂aefpq	̂_̀_abc	def̀g_c	h	dèiabji	kiieà_lg%�,(5.&?	T�����	�8'.�G	1,,�(�&	1(&[��&.,'&.��	B3���DV���������	K����L	��L	U�O���Y��	\�X���XY��]							3�&	<==�5��	�.'	 �,(%./�4���5'�	6�(�)��G	6��&5',&)%./�.�/	45�(��	4���5'�	6�(�)��G	6��&5',&)%�,(5.&?	T�����	�8'.�G	1,,�(�&	1(&[��&.,'&.��	B3���DV���������	K����L	��L	U�O���Y��	\�X���XY��]							3�&	<==�5��	�.'	 �,(%./�



��������	��
� �����

�� �����
����������������������� !"#"$��$���%&��'(��������������������� !"#"�)�&$���*�+��(�,-�$�.��))��������/���$)��$��������#�0�1
�2��1�3�12�4���4������

���5��102�
��6�����������788�&���+$��9�)�"$��9�'��������&����%���&���8�&�!&$-$����:���$)�"$��$���%&��'(�9�'��������&����%���&���8�&�!&$-$����:���$)�"�)�&$���*�+��(�,-�$�.��))��������/���$)��$��������#�0�1
�2��1�3�12�4���4������

���5��102�
��6�����������788�&���+$��9�)�"$��;��<���2����������	��
� �����

�� �����
����4�
2��5�0�	��=��	��
� �
�

� �����
���>���
�5�0�	��=��	��
� �
�

� �����
���;�
����4���=�5�0�	��=��	��
� �
�

� �����
���?��
�@��4�5�0�	��=��	��
� �
�

� �����
���?��A2��?2�=��	��
� �
�

� �����
���B�&���C�����D�&��EF�����G���E��H��E��+"�)�&$���*�+��(�,-�$�.��))��������/���$)��$��������#�0�1
�2��1�3�12�4���4������

���5��102�
��6�����������788�&���+$��9�)�"$���))����$��� �9�)�"$���!���&�)���!!I9�)�"$��I!���&�)��G���E��H��E��+"$��$���%&��'(��))����$��� �9�)�"$���!���&�)���J�K�H"�)�&$���*�+��(�,-�$�.��))��������/���$)��$��������#�0�1
�2��1�3�12�4���4������

���5��102�
��6�����������788�&���+$��9�)�"$��%!9�!���&�)��%!9!���&�)��G���E��H��E��+"�)�&$���*�+��(�,-�$�.��))��������/���$)��$��������#�0�1
�2��1�3�12�4���4������

���5��102�
��6�����������788�&���+$��9�)�"$��:��/������H����&:��/��E���H����&G���E��H��E��+"�)�&$���*�+��(�,-�$�.��))��������/���$)��$��������#�0�1
�2��1�3�12�4���4������

���5��102�
��6�����������788�&���+$��9�)�"$��L�
������	��
� �����

�� �����
���



��������	
��� 
�������
 ���
�������	
���
�
��������	
��� 
����� ���
������������������� �� !�"#��$%&���" '#()#*+*(�,-*,-(*�./0���
����	
��� 
����� ���
��������
1�����1�2
1��3���3�
�������
�4��1�����




��������	
���������		
���	����	��	�����	������	��	���	��������	�������	� ��	!"	��	#��$���%	���	&�	��'!���(	&�	�� 	��	$��)�(�	��	��!	�������	 ������	������"	��	(�"���"!��"*	+�"���&�(	&��� 	���	���	����"	��(	���(�����"	���	$��)�(��,	��	��!	"!��	������"	��(	(�"���"!��"	��������������	����!,�	���	+��!-�,��	.��*	�+��!-�,�%	����������	"�,���,	"�"���*	/���"�	���(	���	�����������	&��� 	�����!���	��(	�����!,����	��(	��	��!	���	����""	���"	�����������	��������������	��	��!�	"���"�������	��(	�,���	��	���"�	����"	��(	���(�����"�	$���"�	�������	��!�	�,�������	&�	����0��,	123	45	678339	:;11<=	61	123	:<11<>	<?	12@A	B<C;>3=1D		�EFGHIJKLG	MLNKOHPIF		��	����������	"�,���!��	�"	��	����������	�(���������	������(	&�	�	���$!����	�������(	��	��	��,������	�""������(	 ���	��	����������	�����(�	�Q��!��(	��	�(�$��(	&�	�	$��"��	 ���	���	������	��(	 ���	���	���!��	�!�������	��	"�,�	���	�����(*	R�!�	����������	"�,���!��	��"	���	"���	��,��	�����	��(	������	�"	�	���!��	"�,���!��*	R�!�	����������	"�,���!��	���"���!��"	��!�	"�,���!���	����$������	��(	�,�������	�"	��	��!	"�,��(	��	 �����,*		�FGPILHS	MHOKTOITM		+��!-�,�	$��)�(�"	"��!����	�""!�����	 ���	�����$��"�U �(�	.-�	VWXXYZVXY[	��������������	Q+\]	���$�������	�"	 ���	�"	--�̂ 	Y_�	-�#	Y	\�$�	V�	-�#	V	\�$�	V	��$���"*	+��!-�,�	(���)��"	(���	�����(���������	 ���	�$$��������	��)��	�̂ -	V̀_	&��	�����$����*		�FKTLKN	LKaJIbOHLJK	HJ	OKT	IFGFLcLKN	LKaJIbOHLJK	aIJb	PM		\��	/!&���	.����������	����	���$���	̀̀V	��	���	\�Q�"	��)�������	#�(��	�$$���"	��	���	�����������	 �	"��(	��(	�����)�*	\��	/!&���	.����������	���	$������"	�����������	����	$!&���	(�"���"!��	��	��	�"	�����(������	&�	���	�� 	��	�!��*	.�	 �	�����)�	�	 ������	��'!�"�	���	������������	���	/!&���	.����������	���	��'!���"	!"	��	$!&�����	(�"���"�	��'!�"��(	�����������	����	�"	���	�����(������	&�	�� 	��	�!��	��	����� �"�	�Q��$��(	����	$!&���	(�"���"!��*	.�	��!	�����)�	���	�����������	����	!"	��	������	��!	���	���	�!�����d�(	��	���(�	$�����	�������	��$��	��	(�""�������	���	�����������*	���	�����������	��!	�����)�	��	�����	���	&�	�����(������	�����������	����	������	&�	(�"���"�(	 ����!�	)�������,	���	��������	$��)�"���"	��	���	/!&���	.����������	���	��	\�Q�"	/����	#�(�	"������	[e*X_*	.�	��!	�����)�	�����������	��	������	$���"�	����(������	"��(	��	�U����	��	"��)���(�"0f��,*��Q�"*,�)	��	������	!"	��	���	�����	��(	(�����	���	��$��"	��	���	�����������	��!	�����)�(*		gFHHLKN	hOhFI	GJhLFM		��	���	�����	��!	���	��'!�"�	����	!"	�	$�$��	��$�	��	���	�����(	 �	$��)�(�(	��	��(�	�)����&��	��������������	��	��!	����!,�	���	+��!-�,�	"�"���*	R�!	 ���	��)�	���	�&�����	��	(� ����(	��(	$����	(��!����"	 �	"��(	��	��!	����!,�	���	+��!-�,�	"�"���	(!���,	��(	����(������	�����	"�,���,	"�""���	��(�	��	��!	�����	��	������	�	+��!-�,�	"�,���	����!���	��!	���	����""	����	���	�	������(	$����(	��	����	�!"!����	[X	(��"%	�����	"!��	(��!����"	���	���"�	"���	��	��!*	�����	"!��	�����	��	��!	 �"�	���	!"	��	"��(	��!	$�$��	��$��"	��	���	"!��	(��!����"	����	�!�	������	��	��!�	��!	 ���	&�	����,�(	�	iX*XX	$��U$�,�	���*	R�!	���	��'!�"�	(���)���	��	"!��	$�$��	��$��"	����	!"	&�	����� ��,	���	$����(!��	(�"���&�(	&��� *		jLHkTIOlLKN	SJPI	GJKMFKH		.�	��!	(���(�	��	�����)�	������"	��(	(�"���"!��"	����	!"	���������������	��!	���	��	���	����	����,�	��!�	���(	��(	����	!"	����	����������	��!	 ���	��	�����)�	��'!���(	������"	��(	(�"���"!��"	����	��	$�$��	������*	m� 	��!	�!"�	������	!"	��	��!�	(���"���	��	�����)�	�!�!��	������"	��(	(�"���"!��	��	$�$��	������	��(	 ���(�� 	��!�	���"���	��	�����)�	������"	��(	(�"���"!��"	��������������	�"	(�"���&�(	&��� *		�JKMFnPFKGFM	Ja	GkOKNLKN	SJPI	bLKT		

opqrstuvwr	xqruty	zvy	{w|vzs}tq	~w�rpu�}tq	rtqzsqy	uv�	��������	�������	���ztswq�	z|tqqy	su�	�wpp		�tz�qpp



����������	
�
����	��
�������������
�	����������	���������������������������
���
�����������
����������
����	�����	���	�����
��	��
�����
�������
�����	
�������
��������������
���������
�	���
��������	����������������������
�
�������
��������������
�	���������	��������
��������������������
������
�������
���
��������	��
����	�����������������	�����������
�����������	���
������	����������
�	���������	����������������	�
��
�����
��
���������	��������������������������
���� !"#��$%&"�'%()*(��&)�(+�� *�,%'&-�+(�./�� !"#��0%()*(�1�2%"3�%(�� *�)�+(�(+�4#+*�%����5�	�6������
���������
����������������
����������������	�
��
�����
��
�������
����
������������	�����
�
����	��
�������������
�	����������	�����������	
����	��������������������������������������������
������
���5�	�6�������
���
����	��
�������������
�	�������	�����
�����	
����	����������������
����������	
����	�������	����
������������788�9:;<=>?�@9A�A<?=8:?BC>?�D<88�E>�?>9;�;:�F:B�>8>=;C:9<=@88F��G����������
��������
������������		�����	����
��
������	����������	�������������������������
�������	
����	�����
������
�������
���5�	�6�������
������������������
�	�������	�����������
����H�
�������	������������
��������
������	����
��
��
��������������
��������
��������������
��������
�������������
���	�����������������
����������
��������������	��
���	���	�������������
��
��
�����
���	��
����������
�	��������	������������������
�����
�����������
��������������
�	����������	��������
���������
����������
��������
��
����������������
��
�������
����
�����������������	�����	��
������
������	��������������
�	������	
����	����������������������
�
�������
������������������
�������
����������������
���������
��
�������	��������������
���������������	�������������I���������������
��������������������
�������
��
��
����	������
���	��������	��������������	
������
�
����	��
������
�������
�����
�	����������	�����������	
����	���������������J:D�;:�=:9;@=;�KLL<=>�:L�;M>�7;;:C9>F�N>9>C@8��O�������	��
�	
����
����
�����������������	����������
�������������	��
�	
��������	
����	������
��������
�������	���������	��
�����������
�����������������
����
�����������������	�����
�
����	��
����
�	����������	�����������	
����	���������������P����	��
�	
���������������������������
�P����
�	�����Q����
�R�����
��S:�@AT<?>�KLL<=>�:L�;M>�7;;:C9>F�N>9>C@8�:L�F:BC�9>D�>UV@<8�@AAC>??�������
��������������	���������������W������������������������������������
�	����������	�����������	
����	�����
��������������
�����������������������
������
����
�	�����Q����
�R�����
��������
�������������	��������
��������
��
�
�P���������
������W������������������������W��������������X�������
��������������
�����������
�������������
��	����������������������������������
������������
���
����5�	�6�������	��
�������������������������������������
����������	
�����������5�	�6�����		���
��������������
������	��������	���������W��������
���5�	�6�������
�����S:�C>YB>?;�Z@Z>C�=:Z<>?�LC:V�KLL<=>�:L�;M>�7;;:C9>F�N>9>C@8�����������
�����
���������������������	���������
�����
�	����������	��������������
����������
�����
���������	
����	�������������
�������������W�����
�����
�	�����Q����
�R�����
��������
�������������	��������
��������
��
�
��������W�������������������������G6�I��
����������������
�����������������X������������������������������
�
��
�
��������������S:�D<;MAC@D�F:BC�=:9?>9;�D<;M�KLL<=>�:L�;M>�7;;:C9>F�N>9>C@8��



����������	
���
����	������������
���������������	�	���������
�
�����
���
	��
�������������������
����	��
�����������������
����
����	�������������������	�����	�����
�

�����
����������
	�
��	�����
����
������������������ ������
�������	���
�����������
����	�����
����������	��
�!�����
����	
�
�����
������
��������
�"�
���� 

�����
������������������
	������	�
����	��	
��
�
�����	�����
�����	����
����#��$�
�
��%����

��
��������������	������&��������������
���������������
������������	����������
�����
������������
��	����
������	��������
��������
������������������	����
�����������
����
�

�����
��
���
�����������������������

���'()*+,(-�./,-0/,(�/1-�23450/,(���	��������6���
��
�� ���	�����
	�����
������
��
��
�
��������

��7� ����������������8����������������������
��
��9�������:����� ���
�
����;��������< �������==>��&�����
�<����$�:�?�
�����%����
�@����
����
��
����
����
��������	�������������
���������$�:�����
��������?�
��	������ =ABC� �DEF������	��7������
����
�
����
����
�<�
��������	������������
�� %���������
�

����������
��#
��
�
���

��������;���������������
�$�� ����������	
����
����G��$�=�=�
������
���
���� ��������������:����
���
������
��	
��
�����
���

������������������
�����������
�HH���	����
�
�
�
������������	����������
��
�%�
�
��

�
������������������
�������������
�����	��
�����
����I
��������
�����JJ����
�������	�����	�������
�
���
	�K���������
�����;�����
�����	�������
���
�������	���������

����������
������������
���
	����$�������

��7��������
8����
���
��������
�����
�
���
�
�������
��
�
�������
	����������LMN130O(-P+1P�Q3*,�/MM(22�/1-�M312(15�53�,(M(+R(�S/5(,+/O2�(O(M5,31+M/OOQ����������������	
���
����	��
��
���

����
�������
���������������
�������������������
����
����������������������������
�
�����
���
	��
���
�����������������������	�����

�����������
����	������
���������
�����
��������������
���
	���
�����
����	�
�
�������
�����������������
�����������������
����

������
��
���������	���	�	�������������
���
���

������
����	������
����������
������
���
���
	���
������
�������
��
����

���������	���������
�����������������
�������

������������	���	�	�������������
���
���

��:	������������	����
�����������������������
�
�����
���
	��
�� ��	
������������������������
�������������
�
������������
���
�������
���������

������	
������TU�VWXVYXZ[�\]̂�_̀�a[b̂̂c�Td\\eZ�T̂Wefg��hU�V]̂VYXZ[�\]̂�_̀�a[b̂̂c�Teij�̀�VeZkXbl�\]a\m��n� ;��
��
���

�
�����
�����
�<����������9op�<p���o�<q<9�?op;9�?<9<;$��o:�<q<9�?op;9�9op�#r<?��;�9qo�#?<�����	����!�
���n� ;��
������������
����������
���
	������

������
����������
���
	������
���
���������;��
�����������������	�	�������������
���
���

!�
���n� #��������	���

�;��������o�������������%��������s����
��

���
�������
������;����
��������������������� ��	
����������	����������������
�
�
���������
����
���
	��
��
	�����t
����
��
��������������
��
������������	����
���
��
������	������������������������
���



�����������	�
������

����	
��������	�������������������������	�����	
�
��������	������������	���



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 43.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

DOI Projects and Issues
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Vicky Edwards,

Infrastructure
Department: Infrastructure
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 07/29/2021 10:01 AM
Form Started By: Vicky Edwards Started On: 07/29/2021 09:49 AM
Final Approval Date: 07/29/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 44.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Awarding IFB #T4442 S. San Gabriel Ranches Subdivision Rd & Drainage Improvements
Submitted For: Joy Simonton  Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,

Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #T4442 S. San Gabriel
Ranches Subdivision Road & Drainage Improvements to Terra Path, Inc. and authorizing the
execution of the agreement. 

Background
The Purchasing Department solicited sealed bids for IFB #T4442 S. San Gabriel Ranches
Subdivision Road & Drainage Improvements. Two-Hundred (200) vendors were invited to bid
and twelve (12) vendors participated in the solicitation of which four (4) submitted a bid.  Terra
Path, Inc. is the lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $1,870,000.00.  The low base bid is
$65,294.00 below the Engineer's Estimate, a cost decrease of 3.5%.  Point of contact is Terron
Evertson.  Funding Source is P489.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Award Letter 
agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Joy Simonton 08/19/2021 08:31 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:33 AM
Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 08/04/2021 02:02 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 





 Agreement for Construction Services 
 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) between Williamson County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of 
Texas (“Owner”) and Terra Path Inc (“Contractor”) is entered into in accordance with the following terms 
and conditions: 
 
ARTICLE 1 SCOPE OF WORK:  The Owner desires to retain Contractor to provide the construction 
services described herein.  The Contractor shall have the overall responsibility for and shall provide complete 
construction services and furnish all materials, equipment, tools and labor as necessary or reasonably inferable 
to complete the following described construction services, or any phase of such services, in accordance with 
the Owner’s requirements and the terms of this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Work”): 
 
As described in the IFB Solicitation # T4442, S San Gabriel Ranches Sub Rd & Drainage 
Improvements; including the specifications set forth therein, which is incorporated herein as if 
copied in full.  
 
ARTICLE 2 CONTRACT PRICE:  Owner agrees to pay to the Contractor, for the satisfactory 
performance of the Work, the not-to-exceed amount of One million eight hundred seventy thousand dollars 
and no cents ($1,870,000.00) in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 3 PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:  The Work shall be performed pursuant to and in 
accordance with the following described plans and specifications, as well as any revisions made thereto: 
 
As described in the IFB Solicitation # T4442, S San Gabriel Ranches Sub Rd & Drainage 
Improvements; including the specifications set forth therein, which is incorporated herein as if 
copied in full.  
 
Additional Work:  Should Owner choose to add additional work, such additional work shall be described 
in a separate written amendment to this Agreement wherein the additional work shall be described, and the 
parties shall set forth the amount of compensation to be paid by Owner for the additional work.  Contractor 
shall not begin any additional work and Owner shall not be obligated to pay for any additional work unless 
a written amendment to this Agreement has been signed by both parties. 

 
ARTICLE 4  SUBSTANTIAL AND FINAL COMPLETION:   
 
4.1 Commencement of Work.  Contractor shall commence the Work upon instruction to do so from 
the Owner and Construction shall be deemed to have commenced on the date of such instruction. 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
4.2 Substantial Completion. “Substantial Completion” means the stage in the progress of the Work 
when the Work, or designated portions thereof, may still require minor modifications or adjustments but, 
in the Owner’s opinion, the Work has progressed to the point such that all parts of the Work under 
consideration are fully operational and usable for intended purposes, as evidenced by a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion approved by the Owner.  If a Certificate of Occupancy is required by public 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Work, said certificate shall be issued before the Work or any portion 
thereof is considered substantially complete.  When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion 
thereof which the Owner agrees to accept separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall notify 
Owner’s Designated Representative (sometimes referred to as the “ODR”) and request a determination as 
to whether the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete.  If the ODR does not consider 
the Work substantially complete, the ODR will notify the Contractor giving reasons, therefore.   Failure on 
the Owner’s part to list a reason does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  After satisfactorily completing items identified by Owner’s 
Designated Representative, the Contractor shall then submit another request for the ODR to determine 
Substantial Completion.  If The ODR considers the Work substantially complete, The ODR will prepare 
and deliver a certificate of Substantial Completion which shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, 
shall include a punch list of items to be completed or corrected before final completion and final payment, 
shall establish the time within which the Contractor shall finish the punch list, and shall establish 
responsibilities of the Owner and the Contractor  for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the 
Work, warranty and insurance.  Failure to include an item on the punch list does not alter the responsibility 
of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The 
certificate of Substantial Completion shall be signed by the Owner and the Contractor to evidence 
acceptance of the responsibilities assigned to them in such certificate. 
 
Substantial Completion (as defined in this agreement) for all stages of the Work shall be achieved on or 
before the following Substantial Completion date: 
 
DATE FOR SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION:   115 Calendar Days from Notice to Proceed 
 
Under no circumstances will the time for Substantial Completion exceed this date without a written 
amendment to this Agreement.  THE TIMES SET FORTH IN THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 
ARE AN ESSENTIAL ELEMENT OF THE AGREEMENT.  TIME LIMITS STATED IN THE 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS ARE OF THE ESSENCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.     
 
4.3 Final Completion. The Work shall be fully and finally completed 120 Calendar Days; provided, 
however, Owner may extend said time period in the event bad weather affects the progress of the Work.  
Owner shall, at its sole discretion, determine when the Work has been fully and finally completed to its 
satisfaction. 
 
4.4 Liquidated Damages.  For each consecutive calendar day after the date of Substantial Completion 
that the Work is not Substantially Complete, the Owner may deduct the amount of Five Hundred Dollars 
per day ($500/day) from any money due or that becomes due the Contractor, not as a penalty but as 
liquidated damages representing the parties' estimate at the time of contract execution of the damages that 
the Owner will sustain for late completion.  The parties stipulate and agree that calculating Owner’s actual 
damages for late completion of the Work would be impractical, unduly burdensome, and cause unnecessary 
delay and that the amount of daily liquidated damages set forth is reasonable. 
 



3 
 

 
ARTICLE 5  PAYMENT:   
 
Contractor shall have a duty to submit to the ODR by the end of each month a statement showing 
the total value of the Work performed during such month.  The statement shall also include the 
value of all sound materials delivered on the Work site and to be included in the Work and all 
partially completed Work, whether bid as a lump sum or a unit item, which in the opinion of the 
ODR is acceptable.  The ODR shall examine and approve or modify and approve such statement.  
The Owner shall then pay the Contractor pursuant to Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code 
(“Texas Prompt Payment Act”), as set forth in Article 11.1 of this Agreement, the total amount of 
the approved statement less all previous payments and all further sums that may by retained by the 
Owner under the terms of this Agreement or under the law.  Statements are not considered 
“received” until reviewed by the ODR and an approved statement is submitted to the 
Williamson County Auditor’s Office; therefore, Contractor must ensure timely delivery of 
statements for review and processing. 
 
At any time following the completion of all Work, including all punch list items, cleanup, and the 
delivery of record documents, the Contractor shall submit a certified application for final payment, 
including all sums held as retainage if any, to the ODR for its review and approval.  Contractor shall 
submit, prior to or with the application for final payment, final copies of all close out documents, 
including maintenance and operating instructions, guarantees and warranties, certificates, and all 
other items required by this Agreement. Contractor shall also submit consent of surety to final 
payment, an affidavit that all payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, subcontracted work and 
other indebtedness connected with the Work, except as specifically noted, have been paid or will be 
paid or otherwise satisfied within the period of time required by Chapter 2251, Texas Government 
Code.  Contractor shall furnish documentation establishing payment or satisfaction of all such 
obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of claims arising out of the Agreement.  Owner is 
entitled to rely upon this affidavit and the Contractor may not submit a claim on behalf of a 
subcontractor or vendor if that claim has not been noted as an exception in the affidavit. 
 
Owner may deduct from the final payment all sums due from Contractor for any reason, Liquidated 
Damages and all other deductions authorized by this Agreement.   
 
Final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the Contractor except those specifically 
identified in writing and submitted to the ODR prior to the application for final payment. Provided, 
however, that the Work shall not be deemed fully performed by the Contractor and closed until the 
expiration of all warranty periods. 
 
ARTICLE 6 CONTRACTOR’S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND COVENANTS:   

 
6.1 Contractor shall perform all services specifically allocated to it hereunder, as well as those services 
reasonably inferable and necessary for completion of the Work.  The Contractor shall keep the Owner 
informed of the progress and quality of the Work.  Contractor agrees and acknowledges that Owner is 
entering into this Agreement in reliance on Contractor's represented expertise and ability to provide the 
Work described in this Agreement. Contractor agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to 
perform its obligations in accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the 
interests of Owner in accordance with Owner’s requirements and procedures.   



4 
 

6.2 Contractor’s duties as set forth herein shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any 
approval by the Owner nor shall the Contractor be released from any liability by reason of such approval 
by the Owner, it being understood that the Owner at all times is ultimately relying upon the Contractor’s 
skill and knowledge in performing the services required hereunder. 

 
6.3 Contractor is responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the Work.  The safety program shall comply with all applicable requirements 
of the current federal Occupational Safety and Health Act and all other applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations.  

 
6.4  Contractor shall be an independent contractor under this Agreement and shall assume all of the 
rights, obligations, liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions 
in this agreement which may appear to give Owner the right to direct Contractor as to details of doing the 
Work herein covered or to exercise a measure of control over the Work shall be deemed to mean that 
Contractor shall follow the desires of Owner in the results of the Work only.  Owner shall not retain or have 
the right to control the Contractor’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Contractor’s performance 
of the Work described herein, nor shall Owner have the power to direct the order in which Contractor’s 
Work is performed under this agreement.  Owner and Contractor hereby agree and declare that Contractor 
is an Independent Contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an Independent Contractor under Texas 
Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Contractor is not an employee 
of Owner for purposes of this Agreement, and that the Contractor and its employees, agents and sub-
subcontractors shall not be entitled to worker’s compensation coverage or any other type of insurance 
coverage held by Owner.  
 
6.5 As part of Contractor obligation to coordinate the Work, Contract shall:  

a. cooperate with the ODR and endeavor to further the interests of the Owner and the Work; 
b. provide an on-site, full-time superintendent for the duration of the Work; 
c. visit the Work site and inspect the existing facilities, systems and conditions to insure an 

accurate understanding of the existing conditions as required; 
d. at Owner’s request, attend public meetings and hearings concerning the development of the 

Work; 
e. review all drawings, specifications, and other plans as they are developed by the Owner and/or 

its architect and advise Owner of any error, inconsistency or omission discovered in the 
drawings, specifications, and other plans; 

f. review the drawings, specifications, and other plans for compliance with all applicable laws 
and code requirements; 

g. advise Owner of any tests that should be performed; 
h. organize and maintain a competent, full-time staff at the Work site with clearly defined lines 

of authority and communication as necessary to coordinate construction activities, monitor and 
direct progress of the Work; 

i. attend Owner’s regularly scheduled Work progress meetings and fully advise the ODR of the 
Work status including schedule, costs, quality and changes; 

j. assist Owner in obtaining building permits and obtain special permits for permanent 
improvements as required by law; and 

k. shall coordinate, monitor and inspect the Work of subcontractors to ensure conformance with 
the drawings, specifications, other plans and with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
 
 

 



5 
 

6.6 Contractor shall identify every subcontractor it intends to use for the Work to the Owner in writing 
at least ten (10) days before entering into any subcontract.  Contractor shall not use any subcontractor to 
which Owner has a reasonable objection.  If Owner does not object to a particular subcontractor with said 
ten (10) days, such subcontract may be considered acceptable to Owner.  Following Owner’s acceptance of 
a subcontractor, that subcontractor shall not be changed without Owner’s written consent, which shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. 
 
6.7  Contractor’s designated representative, which is set forth below Contractor’s signature herein 
below, shall be responsible for the day-to-day management of the Work on behalf of Contractor.  The 
designated representative shall be the Owner’s primary contact during the Work and shall be available as 
required for the benefit of the Work and the Owner.  The contractor’s designated representative shall be 
authorized to act on behalf of and bind the Contractor in all matters related to the Work including, but not 
limited to, execution of Change Orders.   

 
6.8 NO ALTERATIONS OR CHANGES SHALL BE MADE, HOWEVER, EXCEPT UPON 
THE WRITTEN ORDER OF THE OWNER, OR THE ODR.  
 
6.9 Contractor shall promptly correct any defective Work at Contractor’s sole expense, unless the 
Owner specifically agrees, in writing, to accept the Work.   

 
6.10 Contractor shall maintain and deliver the close out documents that describe changes or deviations 
from the original drawings, specifications and plans that occurred during construction and that reflect the 
actual “As Built” conditions of the completed Work. 
 
COMMISSIONING AND WARRANTY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
6.11 Contractor shall provide commissioning, starting and check-out services for the systems installed 
as a part of the Work prior to completion and acceptance.  Operation manuals and instructions will be 
provided to the Owner, the systems will be demonstrated and training provided to Williamson County’s 
operators upon completion and prior to acceptance. 
 
6.12 Contractor hereby warrants that the materials and equipment provided for the Work will be of good 
quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Owner; that the construction will be free 
from faults and defects; and that the construction will conform with the requirements of the plans, 
specifications, drawings and the terms of this Agreement. 

 
6.13 Contractor shall provide warranty services for the Work for a full 12 months (30 months for Work 
involving mechanical services, if any) following Final Completion and final payment.  Just before the 
warranty period expires, Contractor shall attend an on-site meeting with the Owner to ensure that all 
warranty issues have been identified and properly remedied. 
 
ARTICLE 7 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
7.1 The Owner shall: 

a. provide the general schedule for the Work provided Owner is of the opinion such schedule is 
necessary.  The general schedule will set forth the Owner’s plan for milestone dates and 
completion of the Work; 

b. identify a person as its ODR who is authorized to act in the Owner's behalf with respect to the 
Work.  The ODR shall examine the documents submitted by the Contractor and shall render 
decisions on behalf of the Owner to the extent allowed by Texas law; 



6 
 

c. at Owner’s cost, will secure the services of surveyors, soils engineers, existing facility surveys, 
testing and balancing, environmental surveys or other special consultants to develop such 
additional information as may be necessary for the design or construction of the Work; 

d. furnish required information and services and shall render approvals and decisions as 
expeditiously as is consistent with reasonable skill and care and the orderly progress of the 
Contractor's services and of the Work; 

e. shall have the right to reject any defective Work.  Should Contractor refuse or neglect to correct 
any such Work within a reasonable time after notice, Owner may have the Work corrected and 
recover all expenses incurred from Contractor on demand; and 

f. Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a sufficient number of plans, drawings and specifications 
sets.   

 
ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY 
 
8.1 Insurance.  The Contractor shall carry insurance in the types and amounts indicated below for the 
duration of the Agreement, which shall include items owned by Owner in the care, custody and control of 
Contractor prior to and during construction. Contractor must also complete and file the declaration pages 
from the insurance policies with Owner whenever a previously identified policy period expires during the 
term of the Agreement, as proof of continuing coverage.  Contractor shall update all expired policies prior 
to submission of any payment requests hereunder.  Failure to update policies shall be reason for payment 
to be withheld until evidence for renewal is provided to the Owner. 

 
8.1.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain, until the Work covered in this Agreement is 
completed and accepted by the Owner, the minimum insurance coverage in the minimum amounts as 
described below.  Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis by companies authorized and 
admitted to do business in the State of Texas and rated A- or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise 
acceptable to Owner. 

 
 Type of Coverage Limits of Liability 

 
a.  Worker's Compensation Statutory 
 
b. Employer's Liability   
 Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident 

Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee  
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit 
 

c. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations and 
contractual liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages in 
the following amounts: 

 
COVERAGE  PER PERSON  PER OCCURRENCE 

 
Comprehensive   
General Liability  $ 1,000,000  $  1,000,000 
(including premises, 
 completed operations 
 and contractual)    
   
Aggregate policy limits:   $1,000,000 
 
 



7 
 

 
 

d. Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering owned, 
hired, leased and non-owned vehicles): 
 
COVERAGE  PER PERSON  PER OCCURRENCE 
   
Bodily injury  $1,000,000  $1,000,000  
(including death) 
 
Property damage  $1,000,000  $1,000,000  
 
Aggregate policy limits   No aggregate limit 
 

e. Builder’s Risk Insurance 
 (all risks) 
 
An all risks policy shall be in the amount equal at all times to 100% of the 
Contract Sum.  The policy shall include coverage for loss or damage caused 
by certified acts of terrorism as defined in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act.  
The policy shall be issued in the name of the Contractor and shall name his 
Subcontractors as additional insureds.  The Owner shall be named as a loss 
payee on the policy.  The builders risk policy shall have endorsements as 
follow: 
 

1. This insurance shall be specific as to coverage and not considered 
as contributing insurance with any permanent insurance 
maintained on the present premises.  If off-site storage is 
permitted, coverage shall include transit and storage in an amount 
sufficient to protect property being transported or stored. 

 
2. For renovation projects and or portions of work contained within 

an existing structure, the Owner waives subrogation for damage 
by fire to existing building structure(s), if the Builder’s Risk 
Policy has been endorsed to include coverage for existing building 
structure(s) in the amount described in the Special Conditions.  
However, Contractor shall not be required to obtain such an 
endorsement unless specifically required by the Special 
Conditions., in this Agreement.  The aforementioned waiver of 
subrogation shall not be effective unless such endorsement is 
obtained. 

 
f. Umbrella coverage in the amount of not less than $1,000,000. 
 

8.1.2 The above insurance requirements are not intended to be compounded with the Contractor's 
standing insurance policies.  If the Contractor already has in force insurance policies which provide the 
required coverage, there is no need to purchase duplicate coverage for this Work. 

 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

 
 

8.1.3 Policies must include the following clauses, as applicable. 
 

a. “This insurance shall not be canceled, limited in scope or coverage, or non-renewed 
until after thirty (30) days prior written notice, or ten (10) days for non-payment of 
premium, has been given to Williamson County.” 

b. “It is agreed that the Contractor’s insurance shall be deemed primary with respect to 
any insurance or self-insurance carried by Williamson County for liability arising out 
of operations under the Agreement with Williamson County.” 

c. “Williamson County, its officials, directors, employees, representatives, and 
volunteers are added as additional insured as respects operations and activities of, or 
on behalf of the named insured performed under Agreement with the Owner.”  This is 
not applicable to the workers’ compensation policy. 

d. “The workers’ compensation and employers’ liability policy will provide a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of Williamson County.” 

 
8.1.4 Workers' Compensation Insurance Coverage: 
 

In the event that Contractor employs any individual to perform any portion of the Work, Contractor 
shall comply with Texas Labor Code, §406.096, which requires workers' compensation insurance 
coverage for all employees providing services on a building or construction project for a 
governmental entity. 

 
a. Definitions: 

(1) Certificate of Coverage ("certificate") - A copy of a certificate of insurance, a 
certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the Texas Workers' Compensation 
Commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82, TWCC-83, or TWCC-84), 
showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the person's or entity's 
employees providing services on a project, for the Duration of the Work. 
(2) Duration of the Work - includes the time from the beginning of the Work until the 
Work has been completed and accepted by the Owner. 
(3) Coverage – Workers’ compensation insurance meeting the statutory requirements of 
the Texas Labor Code, §401.011(44). 
(4) Persons providing services relating to the Work ("subcontractor") - includes all 
persons or entities performing all or part of the services the Contractor has undertaken to 
perform the Work, regardless of whether that person contracted directly with the Contractor 
and regardless of whether that person has employees.  This includes, without limitation, 
independent contractors, subcontractors, leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, 
employees of any such entity, or employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide 
services in relation to the Work.  "Services" include, without limitation, providing, hauling, 
or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service 
related to a project.  "Services" does not include activities unrelated to the Work, such as 
food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets. 

b. The Contractor shall provide Coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and 
payroll amounts and filing of any Coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of 
Texas labor Code, §401.011(44) for all employees of the Contractor providing services in relation to 
the Work, for the Duration of the Work. 
c. The Contractor must provide a Certificate of Coverage to the Owner prior to or 
contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement. 

 



9 
 

 
d. If the Coverage period shown on the Contractor’s current Certificate of Coverage ends during 
the Duration of the Work, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the Coverage period, file a new 
Certificate of Coverage with the Owner showing that Coverage has been extended. 
e. The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services in relation to the Work, and 
provide to the Owner: 

(1) a Certificate of Coverage, prior to that person beginning any of the Work, so the 
Owner will have on file Certificates of Coverage showing Coverage for all persons providing 
services in relation to the Work; and 
(2) no later than seven days after receipt by the Contractor, a new Certificate of 
Coverage showing extension of Coverage, if the Coverage period shown on the current 
Certificate of Coverage ends during the Duration of the Work. 

f. The Contractor shall retain all required Certificates of Coverage for the Duration of the Work 
and for one year thereafter. 
g. The Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 
10 days after the Contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the 
provision of Coverage of any person providing services in relation to the Work. 
h. The Contractor shall post on the Work site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed 
by the Texas Workers’ Compensation Commission, informing all persons providing services in 
relation to the Work that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify 
Coverage and report lack of Coverage. 
i. By signing this Agreement or providing or causing to be provided a Certificate of Coverage, 
the Contractor is representing to the Owner that all employees of the Contractor who will provide 
services in relation to the Work and all persons providing services in relation to the Work will be 
covered by workers' compensation coverage for the Duration of the Work, that the coverage will be 
based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage 
agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with 
the commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation.  Providing false or misleading information 
may subject the Contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other 
civil actions. 
j. The Contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of Agreement by 
the Contractor which entitles the Owner to declare the Agreement void if the Contractor does not 
remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of breach from the Owner. 

 
8.1.5 The furnishing of the above listed insurance coverage must be tendered prior to execution 
of the Agreement, and in no event later than ten (10) calendar days from Notice of Award.  
Failure to provide the insurance in a timely fashion may result in loss of Contractor’s bid bond. 
 
8.1.6 The Contractor shall not cause or allow any of its required insurance to be canceled, nor 
permit any insurance to lapse during the term of the Agreement or as required in the Agreement.  If the 
Contractor fails to obtain, maintain or renew any insurance required by this Agreement, the Owner 
may, among other remedies available hereunder or at law, obtain insurance coverage directly and 
recover the cost of that insurance from the Contractor or declare this Agreement void if the Contractor 
does not remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of breach from the Owner. 

 
 
 

 
8.1.7  The Owner reserves the right to review the insurance requirements set forth in this Article 
during the effective period of the Agreement and to make reasonable adjustments to the insurance 



10 
 

coverage and their limits when deemed necessary and prudent by the Owner based upon changes in 
statutory law, court decisions, or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 

 
8.1.8 The Owner shall be entitled, upon request, and without expense, to receive complete copies 
of the policies with all endorsements and may make any reasonable requests for deletion, or revision 
or modification of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions, except where policy 
provisions are established by law or regulation binding upon the Parties or the underwriter of any of 
such polices.  Damages caused by the Contractor and not covered by insurance shall be paid by the 
Contractor. 

 
8.1.9 Contractor shall be responsible for payment of premiums for all of the insurance 
coverages required under this Agreement. Contractor further agrees that for each claim, suit or 
action made against insurance provided hereunder, with respect to all matters for which the 
Contractor is responsible hereunder, Contractor shall be solely responsible for all deductibles 
and self-insured retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions over $t0,000 in the 
Contractor’s insurance must be declared and approved in writing by Owner in advance. 

 
8.1.10 The Contractor shall contractually require each person or entity with whom it 
contracts to provide services in relation to the Work, to comply with each and every insurance 
requirement that Contractor must comply with hereunder.  More specifically, each person or entity 
with whom Contractor contracts to provide services on the in relation to the Work must comply 
with each insurance requirement under this Article 8 just as if such person or entity was the 
Contractor.  Thus, every reference to Contractor under each insurance requirement of this Article 
8 shall mean and include each person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide services 
in relation to the Work.  If any such person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide 
services in relation to the Work fails to obtain, maintain or renew any insurance required by this 
Agreement, the Owner may, among other remedies available hereunder or at law, obtain 
insurance coverage directly and recover the cost of that insurance from the Contractor or declare 
this Agreement void if the Contractor does not remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt 
of notice of breach from the Owner. 

 
 
8.2 INDEMNITY.   
 

8.2.1 INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS.  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY LAW, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH COUNSEL OF 
OWNER’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS OWNER, AND OWNER’S EMPLOYEES, 
AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, 
THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY 
(OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY CLAIM OR 
ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY 
EMPLOYEE OF THE CONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER 
ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED 
TO HAVE OCCURRED ON THE  WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE 
OF THE WORK.  CONTRACTOR HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE 
EXTENT THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED 
BY THE SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY 
OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTY.  THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO 
DAMAGES, COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, 



11 
 

WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES 
BENEFIT ACTS. 
 

8.2.2 INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS.  TO THE 
FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH 
COUNSEL OF OWNER’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS OWNER, AND OWNER’S 
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS 
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LOSSES 
AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT OF OR 
ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 
WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, 
ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS OF CONTRACTOR OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE 
EMPLOYED BY THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS 
OF WHETHER OR NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR 
IN PART BY A PARTY INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER. 

 
8.3 Except for the obligation of Owner to pay Contractor the Contract Price pursuant to the terms of 
this Agreement, and to perform certain other obligations pursuant to the terms and conditions explicitly set 
forth herein, Owner shall have no liability to Contractor or to anyone claiming through or under Contractor 
by reason of the execution or performance of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any obligation or liability 
of Owner to Contractor, no present or future partner or affiliate of Owner or any agent, officer, director, or 
employee of Owner, Williamson County, or of the various departments comprising Williamson County, or 
anyone claiming under Owner has or shall have any personal liability to Contractor or to anyone claiming 
through or under Contractor by reason of the execution or performance of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 9 BONDS 
 
9.1 Performance Bond.  Upon execution of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide a Performance 
Bond in the amount of 100% of the Contract Price.  The surety for a Performance Bond shall meet the 
requirements of Texas law.   
 
 
9.2 Payment Bond.  Upon execution of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide a Payment Bond in 
the amount of 100% of the Contract Price, as security for the true and faithful payment in full of all 
subcontractors and persons performing labor, services, materials, machinery, and fixtures in connection 
with the Work. The surety for a Payment Bond shall meet the requirements of Texas law.  

 
9.3 Warranty Bond.  Upon execution of this Agreement, Contractor shall provide a Warranty Bond 
in the amount of 20% of the Contract Price, as security for the true and faithful performance of all warranties 
set forth in Bid Documents and this Agreement.   

 
ARTICLE 10 TERMINATION 
 
10.1 Termination for Cause.  If either party commits an Event of Breach (a breach of any of the 
covenants, terms and/or conditions of this Agreement), the non-breaching party shall deliver written notice 
of such Event of Breach to the breaching party.  Such notice must specify the nature of the Event of Breach 
and inform the breaching party that unless the Event of Breach is cured within three (3) business days of 
receipt of the notice, additional steps may be taken to terminate this Agreement.  If the breaching party 
begins a good faith attempt to cure the Event of Breach within three (3) business days, then and in that 
instance, the three (3) business day period may be extended by the non-breaching party, so long as the 
breaching party continues to prosecute a cure diligently to completion and continues to make a good faith 



12 
 

attempt to cure the Event of Breach.  If, in the opinion of the non-breaching party, the breaching party does 
not cure the breach within three (3) business days or otherwise fails to make any diligent attempt to correct 
the Event of Breach, the breaching party shall be deemed to be in breach and the non-breaching party may, 
in addition to seeking the remedies available hereunder and under the law, terminate this Agreement. 
 
10.2 Termination for Convenience.  The Owner may terminate this Agreement for convenience and 
without cause or further liability upon thirty (30) days written notice to Contractor.  In the event of such 
termination, it is understood and agreed that only the amounts due to Contractor for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable.  No 
penalty will be assessed for Owner’s termination of this Agreement for convenience.  
 
ARTICLE 11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
11.1 Interest and Late Payments. Except as otherwise specifically set forth herein, Owner’s payment 
for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.  Interest charges 
for any overdue payments shall be paid by Owner in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 
2251.025.  More specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on 
September 1 of Owner’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due.  The said rate in effect on 
September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall 
Street Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.   
 
In the event that an error appears in an invoice/application for payment submitted by Contractor, Owner 
shall notify Contractor of the error not later than the twenty first (21st) day after the date Owner receives 
the invoice/application for payment.  If the error is resolved in favor of Contractor, Contractor shall be 
entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice/application for payment submitted by 
Contractor beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice/application for payment became overdue.  
If the error is resolved in favor of the Owner, Contractor shall submit a corrected invoice/application for 
payment that must be paid in accordance with the time set forth above.  The unpaid balance accrues interest 
as provided by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice/application for 
payment is not paid by the appropriate date. 
 
11.2 Assignment; Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is a personal service contract for the services 
of Contractor, and Contractor’s interest in this Agreement, duties hereunder and/or fees due hereunder may not 
be assigned or delegated to a third party.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  
 
11.3 Captions.  The captions of paragraphs in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be 
considered or referred to in resolving questions of interpretation or construction. 
 
11.4 Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement and all of the rights and obligations of the parties 
and all of the terms and conditions shall be construed, interpreted and applied in accordance with and 
governed by and enforced under the laws of the State of Texas without reference to its conflicts of law 
provisions.  Williamson County where the Work site is located shall be the sole place of venue for any legal 
action arising from or related to this Agreement or the project in which the Owner is a party. 
 
11.5 Waivers.  No delay or omission by either party in exercising any right or power arising from 
non-compliance or failure of performance by the other party with any of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall impair or constitute a waiver of any such right or power.  A waiver by either party of any covenant or 
condition of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of that or of any 
other covenant or condition of the Agreement. 
 



13 
 

11.6 Interpretation.  In the event of any dispute over the meaning or application of any provision of 
the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents shall be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and neither 
more strongly for or against any party, regardless of the actual drafter of the Contract Documents. 
 
11.7 Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and 
their respective permitted assigns and successors. 
 
11.8 Appointment.  Owner hereby expressly reserves the right from time to time to designate by notice 
to Contractor a representative(s) to act partially or wholly for Owner in connection with the performance 
of Owner's obligations.  Contractor shall act only upon instructions from the designated representative(s) 
unless otherwise specifically notified to the contrary. 
 
11.9 Audits.  Contractor agrees that Owner or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the 
expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement, have access to and the right to 
examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which are directly 
pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  Contractor agrees that Owner shall have access during normal 
working hours to all necessary Contractor facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate 
workspace in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this section.  Owner shall give 
Contractor reasonable advance notice of intended audits. 
 
11.10 Severability.  Should any term or provision of this Agreement be held invalid or unenforceable in any 
respect, the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected and this Agreement shall be construed as if 
the invalid or unenforceable term or provision had never been included. 
 
11.11 No Waiver of Immunities.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend 
any legal defense available at law or in equity to Owner, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, 
nor to create any legal rights or claim on behalf of any third party.  Owner does not waive, modify, or alter 
to any extent whatsoever the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the 
State of Texas and of the United States. 
 
11.12 Current Revenues.  Under Texas law, a contract with a governmental entity that contains a claim 
against future revenues is void; therefore, each party paying for the performance of governmental functions 
or services must make those payments from current revenues available to the paying party.  
 
11.13  Compliance with Laws.  Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or 
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, Worker’s 
Compensation laws, minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and 
regulations.  When required, Contractor shall furnish the County with certification of compliance with said 
laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified. 
 
11.14 Sales and Use Tax Exemption.  Owner is a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State 
of Texas and claims exemption from sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as 
amended. 
 
11.15 Texas Public Information Act.  To the extent, if any, that any provision in this Agreement is in 
conflict with Tex. Gov’t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act”), the same shall 
be of no force or effect.  Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Owner, its officers and 
employees may request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in 
regard to the application of the Public Information Act to any information or data furnished to Owner 



14 
 

whether or not the same are available to the public.  It is further understood that Owner, its officers and 
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and 
that Owner, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to Contractor for the disclosure 
to the public, or to any person or persons, of any software or a part thereof, or other items or data furnished 
to Owner by Contractor in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State 
of Texas. 

 
11.16 Force Majeure.  If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, 
order of legal authority, act of God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of 
said party, the other party shall grant such party relief from the performance of this Agreement.  The burden 
of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the party obligated to perform.  To obtain release based 
on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a written request with the other party. 

 
11.17 Equal Opportunity in Employment.  The parties to this Agreement agree that during the 
performance of the services under this Agreement they will not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The parties to this 
Agreement will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are 
treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin. Such action 
shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  
 
11.18 Reports of Accidents.  Within 24 hours after Contractor becomes aware of the occurrence of any 
accident or other event which results in, or might result in, injury to the person or property of any third 
person (other than an employee of the Contractor), whether or not it results from or involves any action or 
failure to act by the Contractor or any employee or agent of the Contractor and which arises in any manner 
from the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor shall send a written report of such accident or other 
event to the County, setting forth a full and concise statement of the facts pertaining thereto.  The Contractor 
shall also immediately send the County a copy of any summons, subpoena, notice, or other documents 
served upon the Contractor, its agents, employees, or representatives, or received by it or them, in 
connection with any matter before any court arising in any manner from the Contractor’s performance of 
work under this Agreement. 

 
11.19 Relationship of the Parties.  Each party to this Agreement, in the performance of this Agreement, 
shall act in an individual capacity and not as agents, employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one 
another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the employees or 
agents of the other party for any purposes whatsoever. 

 
11.20 Appropriation of Funds by Owner.  Owner believes it has sufficient funds currently available 
and authorized for expenditure to finance the costs of this Agreement.  Contractor understands and agrees 
that the Owner’s payment of amounts under this Agreement is contingent on the Owner receiving 
appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to allow the Owner, in the exercise of reasonable 
administrative discretion, to continue to make payments under this Agreement.  

 
11.21 Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which, 
when executed and delivered, shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same document. 
 
11.22 Entire Agreement.   This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the 
parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either oral or written.  
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by each party to this Agreement. NO 



15 
 

OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF THE OWNER HAS ANY 
AUTHORITY, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND THIS AGREEMENT, EXCEPT 
PURSUANT TO SUCH EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED BY THE WILLIAMSON 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT. 
 
BY SIGNING BELOW, the Parties have executed and bound themselves to this Agreement to be effective as 
of the date of the last party’s execution hereof (Effective Date). 
 
OWNER:  
 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS,  
a political subdivision of the state of Texas 
 

CONTRACTOR: 
 
Terra Path Inc 

By:      
               
Printed Name:      
 
Title:          
 
Date:                         
 
Party Representatives 
 
Owner’s Designated Representative (“ODR”): 
 
_________________________________ 
_________________________________ 
_________________________________ 
____________ 
Phone _____________________ 
Fax _______________________ 
 

By:                                    
               
Printed Name:                                             
 
Title:                                                          
 
Date:                                      
 
 
 
Contractor’s Designated Representative: 
 
_________________________________ 
_________________________________ 
_________________________________ 
____________ 
Phone _____________________ 
Fax _______________________ 
 

  
         
 

 
 
  
 

aida
Typewriter
Marcos Gutierrez

aida
Typewriter
Owner

aida
Typewriter
08/04/2021

aida
Typewriter
Major Davenport

aida
Typewriter
512-964-5599

aida
Typewriter
major@terra-path.com

aida
Typewriter
5811 Blue Bluff Rd

aida
Typewriter
Austin, TX 78724

aida
Typewriter
Marcos Gutierrez



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 45.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

SE Loop- Resolution for Condemnation
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a resolution determining the necessity and
authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn (0.744 acres) required for the construction of
SE Loop, and take appropriate action. (Diane Barr, Clyde Barr, Charles R. Barr and Edna
Guenzel Barr/ Parcel 69)

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Resolution 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:42 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:26 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



Southeast Loop- Parcel 69 

00479584.DOC 

IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT 
OF WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has found 

and determined that in order to promote the public safety, to facilitate the safety and 

movement of traffic, and to preserve the financial investment of the public in its 

roadways, public necessity requires acquisition of fee simple title to that certain tract of 

land being 0.744 acre (Parcel 69) described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A” owned 

by DIANE BARR, CLYDE BARR, CHARLES R. BARR and EDNA 

GUENZEL BARR (deceased) for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, 

maintaining, and operating Corridor A-1 (Southeast Loop) roadway improvements 

(“Project”), excluding all the oil, gas, and sulphur which can be removed from beneath 

said real property, without any right whatever remaining to the owner of such oil, gas, 

and sulphur of ingress to or egress from the surface of said real property for the purpose 

of exploring, developing, or mining of the same, as a part of the improvements to the 

Project, at such locations as are necessary and that such constructing, reconstructing, 

maintaining, and operating shall extend across and upon, and will cross, run through, and 

be upon the hereinafter described real properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, Texas, has, 

through agents employed by the said office, entered into bona fide good faith negotiations 

with the owners of the hereinafter described properties and has failed to agree with the 

owners on the compensation and damages, if any, due to said owners to acquire the 

property voluntarily.  Now, therefore, the Commissioners’ Court of Williamson County, 

Texas is authorizing the use of its power of eminent domain to condemn property. 



 

 
 

2 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS’ COURT OF THE COUNTY 

OF WILLIAMSON, that the County Attorney or his designated agent be and he is hereby 

authorized and directed to file or cause to be filed against the owners of any interest in, 

and the holders of any lien secured by, the following described tracts of land, described in 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto, a suit in eminent domain to acquire the property interests for 

the aforesaid purposes; and 

It is the intent of the Commissioners’ Court that this resolution authorizes the 

condemnation of all property interests required to complete the construction and 

maintenance of the Project and associated public purposes.  If it is later determined that 

there are any errors in the descriptions contained herein or if later surveys contain more 

accurate revised descriptions, the County Attorney is authorized to have such errors 

corrected or revisions made without the necessity of obtaining a new resolution of the 

Commissioners’ Court authorizing the condemnation of the corrected or revised Property. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Attorney or his designated agent 

be and he is hereby authorized and directed to incur such expenses and to employ such 

experts as he shall deem necessary to assist in the prosecution of such suit in eminent 

domain, including, but not limited to, appraisers, engineers, and land use planners or 

other required expert consultants. 

 Adopted this ______ day of __________________________, 2021. 

 
      ____________________________ 
      Bill Gravell, Jr. 
      Williamson County Judge 



A









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 46.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Sam Bass Road- Rule 11 Agreement
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Rule 11 Condemnation Settlement
Agreement with John W. Speck III and Glenda Neans-Speck for right of way needed on the
Sam Bass Road Project. (Parcel 35) Funding Source: Road Bonds P462

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:43 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:29 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 47.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

SE Loop Relocation Claim
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a claim for actual moving expenses with
Travis and Jennifer Betak for ROW acquired for the SE Loop project (Parcel 95). Funding
Source: Road Bonds P463

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Relo Claim 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:43 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:32 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 

















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 48.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

CR 366 WL Agreement
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Letter Agreement with D&L Land
Development, LLC for a waterline easement needed on CR 366 (Parcel 7WE). Funding Source:
Road Bonds P296

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Agreement 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:44 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:36 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 49.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Liberty Hill Bypass- Bill of Sale
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Bill of Sale with Fidel Loza for retained
improvements in the acquired right of way for the Williamson County Parkland acquisition. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Bill of Sale 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:45 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:41 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 50.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Sam Bass Rd.- Relocation Claims
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on 3 separate relocation claims with Bryant Peck,
Phillip Sharpnack and Lisa Turner for moving expenses in relation to the right of way acquisition
on Parcel 13 (Sam Bass Storage). Funding Source: Road Bonds P 462.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Peck Claim 
Sharpnack Claim 
Turner Claim 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 08:59 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:44 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 











































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 51.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

August 24th 2021 Budget Modification Voting Workshop
Submitted By: Ashlie Holladay, Budget Office
Department: Budget Office
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
2021 - 2022 Budget Modification Voting Session

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
August 24th 2021 BMVS 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 11:49 AM
Form Started By: Ashlie Holladay Started On: 08/18/2021 02:44 PM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   General Fund Budget Office Recommendations 243,337,737.00$       

SUBTOTAL 243,337,737.00$       

SPONSORED ITEMS FOR COURT CONSIDERATION 8/24/21

   SO New Position in Relation to SB111 81,271.43$                     -$                            

   SO Tahoes Not Received in FY 21 105,755.00$                   

 Detective Stipend / Removal of Detective L2 Grade from L Chart 14,275.64$                     -$                            

 Const Pct #2 / Computer Not Received in FY 21 1,100.00$                       -$                            

SPONSORED ITEMS FOR COURT CONSIDERATION 8/17/21

 Supplemental Pay 232,181.25$                   232,181.25$               Approved 8/17/2021

    SO - Assistant Chiefs 10% Increase 32,335.00$                     24,000.00$                 Approved 8/17/2021

    Civil Service Fiscal Impact / Professional Svcs. 50,000.00$                     50,000.00$                 Approved 8/17/2021

    HR - Generalist I B26 $48,226.35 or $50,155.40 with 4% COLA to assist with Lateral Moves 409/Misc. 80,760.43$                     80,760.43$                 Approved 8/17/2021

    Non Departmental - Professional Services / Investment Advisory Contract w/Hilltop Services / Prof Svcs 80,000.00$                     80,000.00$                 Approved 8/17/2021

    Additional Bilingual Stipends (countywide) 409 /Misc. 112,000.00$                   112,000.00$               Approved 8/17/2021

 Remove Pay Increase for PCN 0641 First Assistant County Auditor salary increase; Grade B38 (9,134.68)$                      (9,134.68)$                  Approved 8/17/2021

 Additional Pay Increase for PCN 0639 County Auditor 3,634.78$                       3,634.78$                   Approved 8/17/2021

 FTO Pay 30,090.69$                     30,090.69$                 Approved 8/17/2021

SPONSORED ITEMS FOR COURT CONSIDERATION 8/10/21

    Constable Pct #4 - Defibrillators $1495 each + $75 Shipping 15,025.00$                     15,025.00$                 Approved 8/10/2021

    SO - Additional 2% COLA for a total of 6% COLA on L Chart (in addition to step) 400,873.45$                   400,873.45$               Approved 8/10/2021

    HR - Generalist II for Civil Service B28 $53,279.74 or $55,410.93 with 4% COLA 89,268.35$                     89,268.35$                 Approved 8/10/2021

    HR - Generalist I B26 $48,226.35 or $50,155.40 with 4% COLA 80,760.43$                     80,760.43$                 Approved 8/10/2021

    JP#3 Staffing - Court Clerk II B19 or $34,126.47 with  4% COLA 57,627.16$                     57,627.16$                 Approved 8/10/2021

    County Clerk - Remote Birth Certificate Printing 3,000.00$                       3,000.00$                   Approved 8/10/2021

Non Departmental - Additional Funding for Personal Liability and Property Insurance 1,000,000.00$                1,000,000.00$            Approved 8/10/2021

    DA - Appellate Prosecutor B37 at 15% above the bottom of the grade $95,566.70 + 4% COLA or $99,389.37 148,951.86$                   148,951.86$               Approved 8/10/2021

    DA - Child Abuse Prosecutor B37 at 15% above the bottom of the grade $95,566.70 + 4% COLA or $99,389.37 148,951.86$                   148,951.86$               Approved 8/10/2021

    DA - Remove 4% COLA on above DA Positions (9,467.24)$                      (9,467.24)$                  Approved 8/10/2021

PCN 0641 First Assistant County Auditor salary increase; Grade change to B39 9,134.68$                       9,134.68$                   Approved 8/10/2021

PCN 0969 Senior Director Infrastructure salary increase 10,434.96$                     12,932.46$                 Approved 8/10/2021

EMS - Two Tahoes Not Received in FY 21 104,700.00$                   104,700.00$               Approved 8/10/2021

Constable Pct. #4 - 2 Tahoes Not Received in FY 21 121,922.00$                   121,922.00$               Approved 8/10/2021

    Elected Officials' Salary Increase 116,215.12$                   116,215.12$               Approved 8/3/2021

    IT - IT System Support Specialist for Extended Service Hours B25 $45,886.76 or $47,722.23 with 4% COLA 73,072.44$                     73,072.44$                 Approved 8/10/2021

ITEMS REMAINING FOR SPONSORSHIP

   None

2021 - 2022 GENERAL FUND PRELIMINARY PROPOSED BUDGET



ITEMS REMOVED FROM DISCUSSION

    SO - L Chart for SO Only / 1% Above the Median 2,507,926.00$                -$                            

    Transfer Court Clerk II from JP Office -$                                -$                            

    All Other L Chart Departments / 1% Above the Median 969,531.00$                   -$                            

    L Chart - Removal of 4% Increase (796,194.19)$                  -$                            

    DA - Remove 15% above bottom of the grade to stay within policy B37 at $83,101.48 + 4% COLA (32,106.24)$                    -$                            

    SO - Chiefs and Assistant Chiefs 107,567.00$                   -$                            

    SO - Additional 2% COLA for L Chart 400,873.45$                   -$                            Motion Failed 8/17/2021

SUBTOTAL 6,342,336.63$                2,976,500.04$            

GRAND TOTAL 246,314,237.04$       

   Road & Bridge Fund Budget Office Recommendations 44,298,593.00$          

SUBTOTAL 44,298,593.00$          

SPONSORED ITEMS FOR COURT CONSIDERATION 8/10/21

   Transfer to Capital Projects 000777 564,168.00$                   564,168.00$               Approved 8/10/2021

ITEMS REMAINING FOR SPONSORSHIP

    CIP (Sand Shed) 1,500,000.00$                

SUBTOTAL 2,064,168.00$                564,168.00$               

GRAND TOTAL 44,862,761.00$          

   Debt Service Fund Budget Office Recommendations 152,869,074.00$       

TOTAL 152,869,074.00$       

GENERAL FUND, ROAD & BRIDGE FUND and DEBT SERVICE FUND TOTAL 444,046,072.04$       

2021 - 2022 ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND PRELIMINARY PROPOSED BUDGET

2021 - 2022 DEBT SERVICE FUND PRELIMINARY PROPOSED BUDGET



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 52.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

FY 2021/2022 Proposed Budget Order
Submitted For: Bill Gravell  Submitted By: Andrea Schiele, County

Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the FY 21/22 Budget Order.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
FY 2021/2022 Proposed Budget Order - Track Changes 
FY 2021/2022 Proposed Budget Order - No Markup 

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. (Originator) Becky Pruitt 08/18/2021 12:36 PM
Form Started By: Andrea Schiele Started On: 08/18/2021 11:13 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/18/2021 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 1

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 

AN ORDER ADOPTING THE 2021/2022 COUNTY BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the Williamson County Commissioners Court is authorized and required to adopt 
an annual budget for all Williamson County officials and their departments after due 
consideration;  
 
WHEREAS, the Williamson County Commissioners Court did invite and encourage public 
participation from county officers, precinct officers, department heads, and the general public, 
as to the various needs of the citizens of Williamson County for the fiscal year 2021/2022; 
  
WHEREAS, the Williamson County Commissioners Court, after a full discussion of the needs, 
did make changes in the proposed budget filed by the County Judge in accordance with law; 
NOW  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
COURT that the proposed budget filed by the County Budget Officer and amended by the 
Commissioners Court be adopted with the following provisions:  
 
POLICIES RELATED TO COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS  
 
I. SALARIES  

 
1. Salaries for County and Precinct Officials are set as follows:  
 
 a) Judge of the County Court     136,276.40 per year  

b) Judge of the County Court at Law #1    156,999.96 per year  
c) Judge of the County Court at Law #2    170,999.96 per year 
d) Judge of the County Court at Law #3    184,999.88 per year 

 e) Judge of the County Court at Law #4    184,999.88 per year 
 f) County Attorney      168,178.14 per year 
 g) County Sheriff       137,673.64 per year
 h) County Clerk       112,883.16 per year 
 i) County Tax Assessor/Collector    117,386.36 per year 
 j) District Clerk       112,883.16 per year 
 k) County Treasurer      108,609.28 per year 
 l) Each County Commissioner     110,967.48 per year 
 m) Each Justice of the Peace        98,785.96 per year  
 n) Each Constable        98,785.96 per year  
 
 
2. The number of employee positions established and authorized for each official and/or 
department, the maximum allowable salary for each position, and the job titles are reflected in 
the annual approved county budget filed with the County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 2

II. HOLIDAYS  
 

The established holiday schedule for paid holidays for the 2021/2022 budget year is as follows:  
 

Veterans Day    Thursday  November 11, 2021 
 

Thanksgiving Holiday   Thursday  November 25, 2021 
Friday   November 26, 2021 

 
Christmas Holiday   Thursday  December 23, 2021 

Friday   December 24, 2021 
 

New Year’s Holiday   Friday   December 31, 2021 
      
Martin Luther King Day  Monday  January 17, 2022 

 
President’s Day   Monday  February 21, 2022 

 
Good Friday    Friday   April 15, 2022 

 
Memorial Day    Monday  May 30, 2022 

  
Independence Holiday   Monday  July 4, 2022 

 
Labor Day    Monday  September 5, 2022 

 
 

See Addendum:  The Williamson County Employee Policy Manual (December 15, 
2020).  Contains the policies for employee usage of paid holiday time as well as other 
policies affecting payroll related matters. 
 

III. SUPPLEMENTAL PAY 
 
Williamson County recognizes the following supplemental pay additives. The 
departments/offices are responsible for ensuring that the employees selected meet all of the 
requirements established by their offices.  Please note that total amounts may not be exact due 
to the rounding within our systems. 
  
1. Field Training Officer Pay (FTO) –Designated positions listed below will be paid $150 
per month.  

 
Sheriff’s Office – Maximum of 19 positions, including two CID 
Corrections – Maximum of 24 positions 
Emergency Medical Services – Maximum of 20 positions 
Mobile Outreach Team – Maximum of 2 positions 
            -  Maximum of 1 position to train medical students for 
     6 months 

 
 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 3

2.  Supplemental Pay - Designated positions will be paid amount listed per month. 
 

Sheriff’s Office – Maximum of 10 positions for CIT at $250 per month                   
              -   Maximum of 32 positions for Detectives at $350 per month  
          
Corrections – Maximum of 16 positions for Bailiff at $250 per month 
                -  Maximum of 2 positions for Detective at $350 per month. 
     – Maximum of 4 positions for Lead Control Room Officer at  
            $250 per month 
     – Maximum of 1 position for Paramedic at $700 per month 

 
                                
3.  Training Specialist Supplemental Pay - Designated positions will be paid $100 per pay 
period.  
   

Emergency Communications – Maximum of 16 positions 
 

4. On-Call Pay – Specific positions listed below are classified as eligible for on-call pay 
due to the demand for after hour services. All Corrections and Sheriff’s Office positions are to 
be paid by the Sheriff Office’s State and Local Forfeiture Fund and aAll District Attorney 
positions are to be paid by the District Attorney’s Asset Forfeiture Funds.  
 

District Attorney’s Office – Maximum of 1 Asst. District Attorney, $600 per week  
Facilities Maintenance – Maximum of 2 non-exempt positions, $100 per week 
Technology Services – Maximum of 1 position, $200 per week   
Emergency Management – Maximum of 1 non-exempt position, $100 per week 
Sheriff’s Office – Maximum of 215 positions Detectives, $100 per week 
             Maximum of 1 Sergeant, $100 per week    
            Maximum of 1 Crime Scene, $100 per week 

Maximum of 1 Animal Control Officer, $100 per week 
Maximum of 1 Livestock Deputy, $100 per week 
Maximum of 1 Victims Assistance, $100 per week 

Corrections - Maximum of 4 Commissioned Corrections Officers, $100 per        
         week 
  
 

5.   Board Certification by the Texas Board of Legal Specialization Supplemental Pay - This 
supplement is paid  by the office listed below to all attorneys who maintain certification  by the 
Texas Board of Legal Specialization.  
 

District Attorney – Maximum of  18 positions, $5,000 per employee to be paid 
equally over 26 pay periods out of the District Attorney Asset Forfeiture Fund 

 
6.         Board Supplements – Designated positions will be paid for serving on a specific 
board(s). 

Juvenile Board – County Judge and District Judges (5), $400 per month. 
Judicial Board – Maximum of 1 position in the Magistrate Office, $2500 per year, 
paid equally over 26 pay periods. 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 4

 
7.         County Supplements – Williamson County portion of elected state positions. 
 

District Attorney – 1 position, $18,000, paid equally over 26 pay periods 
District Judges – 5 positions, $13,200 per year, paid equally over 26 pay periods. 
 

8.         Court Admin Supplement – Paid to the Court Admin of the presiding District Judge, for 
additional duties. 1 position, $5,500 per year, paid equally over 26 pay periods.          
 
9.  Senior Associate Judge Stipend – A Judge, designated by the District and County 
Court at Law Judges, who oversees Pre-Trial Services shall receive a  stipend of $2,500, 
paid equally over 26 pay periods. 
 

IV. CATASTROPHIC EVENT PAY 
 
PURPOSE 
Establish a policy for Williamson County setting forth the compensation of exempt and 
non-exempt employees for an activation of the Williamson County Emergency Operation Plan 
during a declared disaster, catastrophic event, or qualifying event. Nothing in this policy shall 
be construed as changing the "at will" status of any person employed by Williamson County. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Williamson County will compensate those essential employees who are required to work 
outside of their normal work schedule when assisting in the management of a local 
qualifying event, or when necessary to assist other agencies  in managing events outside of the 
local jurisdiction. Examples of qualifying events  include, but are  not limited to, the 
following: 
 

A. Certain catastrophic local events including, but not limited to: floods, hurricanes, 
tornados, and other Acts of God, nuclear, chemical, and biological emergencies, 
terrorist attack(s), or any other emergency declared by a federal, state or local 
authority. 

 
B. When assigned to support an event, internal or external, to the County’s jurisdiction; 

For personnel assigned and deployed to select teams, including, but not limited to: 
Williamson County Emergency Operations Center and Local, Regional, State and 
Federal Deployments.  

 
POLICY 

1. Non-exempt Compensation 
Any non-exempt employee who is recalled to duty during a catastrophic event, who 
works in- excess of forty (40) hours in a work week, or 86-hours in the pay period for 
those on the law enforcement pay plan, will be paid overtime for additional hours 
worked.  Note that the general rules of compensable time apply to work performed 
under the circumstances covered by this policy. Refer to the Williamson County 
Handbook or contact Human Resources if you have questions about what is considered 
compensable time. 

 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 5

 
2. Exempt Compensation 

At the Commissioners Court discretion, any salaried exempt employee who is 
required to work hours in-excess of their normal work schedule (eighty hours in a 
pay period) during a declared disaster, Catastrophic Event, or qualifying event as 
outlined in this procedure may be compensated during the declaration period at a 
determined hourly rate.  Only pay periods with hours worked that equal or exceed 88 
hours and at least 8 hours for the event, should be submitted for possible 
compensation.    

 
V. FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 
1. Fund Balance Policy: Williamson County recognizes the financial importance of 
maintaining an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance. A formalized Fund Balance 
Policy demonstrates to the taxpayer fiscal prudence and the ability to meet its obligations in a 
timely manner. Independent financial analysts rate the county’s financial stability. The county’s 
credit strength and strong management control reported by these analysts is, in part, a result of 
this Fund Balance Policy.  

 
Williamson County will maintain reservations of Fund Balance, in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This Policy shall only 
apply to the County’s governmental funds. Fund Balance shall be composed of non-
spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned amounts.   

 
2. General Fund: Unassigned Fund Balance represents the difference between assets and 
liabilities that is available for appropriation.  
 
Williamson County will maintain an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance in the 
General Fund to protect against a reduction of services due to temporary revenue shortfalls or 
unexpected one-time expenditures. It also helps to ensure stable tax rates. The level of 
Unassigned Fund Balance for the General Fund shall not be less than 35% of total General Fund 
budgeted expenditures. 
  
The goal of each year’s budget process will be to adopt a budget that maintains compliance with 
the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance Policy.   If it is determined there is a surplus (an 
amount exceeding the target limit), the funds may be designated or appropriated for the 
following, including, but not limited to:  

 
◦ Tax rate stabilization.  
◦ Only one-time, non-recurring expenditures, such as capital improvement needs.  
◦ Address any shortfall in related funds, i.e. Road and Bridge Fund.  
◦ Reduction of debt; to include capital leases. 
  

If it is determined there is a deficit (an amount below the lower limit), the County must develop 
a plan to rebuild the Unassigned Fund Balance to 35%.  
 
3. Tobacco Fund: The initial distribution of Williamson County’s share of the settlement 
established the fund in 1999. Revenues to the fund consist of interest income and the annual 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 6

distribution by the state of the state trust earnings. To ensure continuation of the fund, the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court has designated the portion of fund balance 
representing the amount of the original settlement ($2.5M). Designation means that this amount, 
or “principal” balance, cannot be expended. In addition to the original settlement amount, each 
year, 20% of the revenues from both interest income and the annual distribution from the state 
will be added to the designated fund balance in order to allow the fund to grow over time. Only 
80% of revenues earned from interest and the earnings distributed annually by the state will be 
budgeted and expended. When determining the next year’s budget, the amount available to 
expend will be calculated using actual revenue and interest revenue amounts from May 1st of the 
previous year to April 30th of the current year. Any unspent funds at the end of the fiscal year 
will be available to budget in the next year.  If Tobacco Fund expenditures are budgeted to offset 
expenditures in other funds, the actual program cost to the other Funds will be determined prior 
to transferring in any dollars from the Tobacco Fund.  This available balance will be tracked 
annually by the County Auditor’s office. 
 
4.        Self-Insured Health Plan Fund Policy:  Unassigned Fund Balance represents the 
difference between assets and liabilities that is available for appropriation.  Williamson County 
will maintain an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance in the Benefits Fund to protect 
against an inability to pay for claims and administration associated with the self- insured health 
plan due to temporary revenue shortfalls.  It also helps to ensure stable employer and employee 
contribution rates. 
 
The Self-Funded Health Plan Fund currently has a “goal of reaching and maintaining 25% of 
expected claims”. The goal of each year’s budget process will be to endeavor to adopt a budget 
that maintains compliance with the Benefits Fund Unassigned Fund Balance Policy. 
 
If it is determined there is a surplus (an amount exceeding the target limit), the funds may be 
designated or appropriated for contribution rate stabilization. 
 
If it is determined there is a deficit (an amount below the lower limit), the County may develop 
a plan to rebuild the Unassigned Fund Balance to 25% of expected claims. 
 
5. Radio Communication Systems (RCS) Fund Policy:  Unassigned Fund Balance 
represents the difference between assets and liabilities that is available for appropriation.  
Williamson County will maintain an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance in the 
Radio Communications Systems Fund to protect against unforeseen operating issues.  These 
unforeseen issues can result from environmental or project related items.  It also helps to 
ensure stable radio user fees for the user community. 

The Radio Communication Systems Fund has a “goal of reaching and maintaining 30% of total 
Radio Communication Systems expenditure budget.   

If it is determined there is a surplus (an amount exceeding the target limit), the funds may be 
designated or appropriated for: 

 Only one-time, non-recurring expenditures, such as tower improvements 
 Fee stabilization 

 
If it is determined there is a deficit, the Radio Communication Systems Board will develop and 
recommend a plan to the County to rebuild the Unassigned Fund Balance to 30%. 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 7

 
Use and Distribution of Specific Special Revenue Funds and Accounts 
 
6. Child Safety Fund: – This fund is used to deposit a $1.50 fee collected on each 
vehicle registration and court costs collected by justice, county, or district courts for 
violations that occur within a school-crossing zone of $25 per violation. This fund is used 
to provide a school crossing guard program and/or programs designed to enhance child 
safety, health, or nutrition.  The Commissioners Court, by an order adopted in October 
2010, has directed these funds to be distributed in the following manner:  10% of Total 
Collections less an administrative fee shall be distributed to the Williamson County’s 
Children’s Advocacy Center.  The remainder shall be distributed to the school districts on 
a pro rata basis based on attendance.  These funds will be distributed annually after the 
close of the prior fiscal year. 
 
7. School Fund: Williamson County maintains a working interest ownership in two natural 
gas producing properties located on what was formerly county-owned property. The mineral 
rights that have been retained are designated to be distributed to school districts within the county 
based on the number of students who reside in the county. This distribution will occur annually 
at the close of each fiscal year and will coincide with the distribution of the Child Safety Fund 
proceeds.  
 
8. Employee Fund: The Employee fund is proceeds collected from Williamson 
County’s vending machine contract.  Use of these funds must be pre-approved by the County 
Judge. 
 
These funds may be used for the following purposes: 
 
a) To offset the cost of county employee events 
b) Flowers for the death of a county employee only 
c) An award or plaque upon retirement for employee recognition. All purchases must display 

(i.e. engraving) information regarding the purpose of the employee recognition. (Purchasing 
guidelines must be adhered to): 

i. The employee must be vested (8 years of service) 
ii. $60.00 allowed for employees with up to 15 years of service 

iii. $120.00 allowed for employees with over 15 years of service 
d) Employee recognition events and programs 
e) Maximum of $300.00 allowed towards a reception/light refreshments for the retirement or 

departure of an: 
i. Elected Official serving in his/her capacity for at least 1 term 

ii. Department Head who must be vested (8 years of service) 
iii. Employee with 20 years of service or more 

 
No reimbursement of sales tax will be allowed. 
The amount allowed for use may never exceed the actual balance in the fund. 
 
9.     WM-City of Hutto and Hutto ISD Fund: The WM-City of Hutto and Hutto ISD Fund 
consists of proceeds paid by Waste Management annually.  Per the agreement, these funds 
represent 2% of the Tip Fee and are to be expended for the benefit of the City of Hutto and Hutto 
ISD.  The expenditures are at the County’s sole option.  The annual distribution will be allocated 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 8

50% to the City of Hutto and 50% to Hutto ISD.  Each entity is required to request any 
disbursements from the fund. 

10.  Williamson County Community Facility Fund: This fund consists of fees 
collected through the Williamson County Landfill. Community organizations, groups, and 
individuals may submit a funding request to the Williamson County Commissioners Court 
for the construction, improvement, or remodel of community facilities located in 
Williamson County that serve a public purpose. 

11.  Use of Flex Funding Account for Mental Health Mobile Outreach Team:  In order 
to mitigate the incidence of public mental health crisis and save the taxpayers from spending 
additional funds on costs that could otherwise be limited for public health-related services, the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court finds there is compelling need to establish and 
authorize the use of a mental health Flex Funding Account by the Mobile Outreach Team. 

Therefore, pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code, § 111.068(b) (citing the “interest of 
the tax payers” in budget matters), the Texas Health and Safety Code, § 121.003(a) 
(authorizing commissioners court to “enforce any law that is reasonably necessary to protect 
the public health.”), and the common law granting the County authority to regulate the public 
health and safety, the Williamson County Commissioners Court approves the Mental Health 
Mobile Outreach Team Flex Funding Account.  Typical Flex Funding expenditures may 
include, but are not limited to transportation vouchers, payment for medical appointments, 
medication/pharmacy vouchers/payments, payment for therapy sessions (short to mid-term), 
food and motel vouchers, payment toward utility or other essential household bills.  The 
Mobile Outreach Team has Policies and Procedures to ensure compliance with this policy.  
The fund is subject to further oversight, including, but not limited to, auditing by the 
Williamson County Auditor’s Office. 

12. Financial – General Procedures 
 
a) Any mailings sent by a county department or official using county funds must be in 

furtherance of legitimate county business and must comply with all state ethics rules and 
other laws and regulations. 
 

b) All county meetings should be held in county facilities whenever feasible and such facilities 
are available. If the county meeting space is not available, other publicly owned facilities, 
such as those owned by cities, utility districts, or school districts, should be utilized as the 
rental of these facilities is often at little or no cost. 
 

c) Transfer of funds out of the following line items will not be allowed:  
 

i)    Training  
ii)  Gasoline  
iii)  Cell Phones  
iv) RCS Radio Fees 

 
d) Transfer of funds into any of the above line items may be allowed. 
e) Transfer of funds out of, within, or to the following line items will not be allowed, with the 

exception of line item 1107/Temp-Seasonal: 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 9

 
i) Salaries- This pertains to salary line items that are budgeted based on position 

control. This includes object codes 1100, 1101, and 1105. Line item transfers 
between 8000 accounts and salary lines for the purpose of merit money 
allocation/re-allocation are permissible and will be placed on the agenda for 
Commissioners Court approval/review.  

ii) Fringe Benefits.  
 

f) All recruitment items purchased must comply with Article III, section 52 of the Texas 
Constitution.  Thus, the predominant purpose of any expenditures on recruitment 
materials must be to accomplish a “direct” public purpose and be in compliance with the 
provisions of this policy in order to ensure that Williamson County receives a return of 
public benefit from said expenditures.  Williamson County recognizes the need to 
identify, recruit and hire qualified employees.  

 
i) Funds for recruitment items must be approved during the annual budget 

process. 
ii) Items must not state the name of any individual, but instead the name of the 

county and/or department or office. 
iii) “Give way” items such as pens, pencils, etc. should not exceed $2.00 per item. 

 
All purchases must follow procurement guidelines. 

 
VI. PURCHASING – GENERAL PROCEDURES  
 
1. Williamson County Purchasing and Procurement Card (P-Card) policies are intended to 
provide consistent procedures for the acquisition of materials, supplies, and services required by 
Williamson County. The responsibility to adhere to all Purchasing and P-Card policies rests with 
the employee, supervisor, department head, or elected officials who certifies conformance to 
them.  

2. The Williamson County Purchasing Manual as well as other more detailed information 
directing specific purchasing procedures and processes can be located on the SharePoint 
Purchasing Portal at: https://wilco365.sharepoint.com/purchasingportal. 
 
This site provides county departments access to: 
 

a. Policies, Procedures and Manuals 
b. Training Materials 
c. Forms 
d. Guides and other tools to assist in the purchasing process 

 
3. The County Auditor’s Office will audit Expense Reports monthly.  Cardholder 
infractions will be addressed and may result in disciplinary action as recommended by the 
Purchasing Department and the County Auditor’s Office. Actions may include: 
 

a. Retraining 
b. Reduction of credit limits 
c. Suspension of account 

 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 10

Theft, fraud or intentional policy violations may result in permanent closure of account or 
termination of employment, based on severity of violation. 

 
4. Any questions related to compliance with intent of county Purchasing Policies should be 
directed to the Purchasing Department prior to making a purchase.  
 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing 
 
VII. COUNTY VEHICLES   
 
1. It is prohibited by law to utilize county owned vehicles for personal use.  Any county 
employee that resides outside the county and utilizes a county owned vehicle during their 
workday, is required to return that vehicle to their primary work location following their 
assigned work shift. Elected Officials or Senior Directors may grant an employee the ability 
to take a County vehicle home for a specific occasion or an event, if it is in the business 
interest of the County to do so.  
 
The following is an all-inclusive list of positions that may be required to respond to 
emergencies outside of their normal work assignments, and may, with the concurrence of 
their department head or elected official, take a county vehicle to their residence, within 
Williamson County, at the end of their shift to allow them to respond as required.   
 

a) The Sheriff and paid law enforcement as follows: Sheriff’s Patrol Deputies, 
Sheriff’s Detectives, on call Crime Scene Technician, on call Animal Control 
Officers, Sergeants, Lieutenants, Commander and Chiefs 

b)  Each Constable and Deputy Constables  
c)  Investigators in the District Attorney and County Attorneys offices  
d)  Two on call maintenance employees designated by the Maintenance Division 

Director 
e)  Division Commanders, and Operation Commander(s) approved by EMS 

Director  
f)  The Fire Marshal Special Operations Chief, Asst. Fire Marshal, Special 

Operations Asst. Chief, and On Call Hazmat Special Operations Captain, when 
on call 

g)  The Assistant County Engineer for Maintenance Operations, the Director of 
Field Operations, (9) Senior Foremen and Foreman 

h) The Director of Emergency Management and the Deputy Director of Emergency 
Management 

i) The Wireless Communications Tower Technician 
 
The Senior Director of Emergency Services and the Sheriff have the discretion to assign a 
vehicle to an appropriate member of their department to facilitate a specific response to 
emergency scenes or events, on a case by case basis, where the resources are requested and 
needed.  This shall only be done in times of high risk, high probability events, or during 
scheduled special “large scale” events where response is likely.  This assignment shall be 
tracked and reported to the Commissioners Court. 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 11

The following list has been grandfathered by the court, will not be expanded, unless approved 
by the Commissioners Court, and shall show significant decreases in each budget year until 
phased out.  
 
Sheriff’s Office  
S. Zion   
D. Garrett  
  
Constable Office Pct. 2  
S. Holt 
 
Emergency Services 
R. Williams 
M. Reyna 
H. Clark 
T. Allen 
I. Oyedokun 
 
The following list has been exempted from the out of county policy for take home vehicles by 
the court.  
  
Sheriff’s Office 
W. Steffen 
J. Sapien 
J. Helm 
J. Guinn 
J. Foster 
 
County vehicles assigned to departments or individuals that are not take-home vehicles, shall 
be returned and parked at the end of each workday at the facility where the primary office is 
located. It is expressly forbidden under this order for any county vehicle to be used for 
personal use at any time.  
 
2. A County Fleet Committee will review fleet policies and purchases and make 
recommendations for budgeting purposes.  This committee will consist of one representative 
from each Constable’s Office, the Budget Office, Emergency Services, Fleet Department, 
Human Resources, Infrastructure, Purchasing, and the Sheriff’s Office. The Auditor’s Office is 
a non-voting member. 
 
All accidents involving County vehicles and equipment must be reported to the Risk and Safety 
Coordinator in Human Resources to ensure appropriate claims processing, including any 
corrective action taken. Vehicles removed from service are reported on the Court agenda and 
accident reports are sent to the court when applicable. Also, new vehicles, equipment, and 
buildings must be reported to the Risk and Safety Coordinator immediately in order to ensure 
that proper insurance coverage is in place. 
 
VIII.  CELL PHONE POLICY 
 
Williamson County may purchase/lease cell phones for departments in the county that deal with 
sensitive data or for security reasons, example law enforcement, and provide cell phone service 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 12

for individual use.  The departments should have this money approved and budgeted in line item 
004209.  For the majority of County employees, a Stipend Policy has been implemented and is 
laid out below. These dollars are approved and budgeted in line item 001109. 
 
Procedures for the Stipend Policy  
 
1. Each department head or elected official will identify who they require to maintain a cell 
phone account in order to conduct official county business. Only regular full-time employees 
and department heads will be allowed a stipend. The funds for cell phone stipends must be 
submitted and approved as part of each department’s annual budget process. 
 
2. Seven levels of cell phone stipends will be established:  

 
$10.00 Per Month – ($5.00 per pmt) 
$15.00 Per Month -  ($7.50 per pmt)  
$20.00 Per Month – ($10.00 per pmt) 
$25.00 Per Month – ($12.50 per pmt)  
$30.00 Per Month – ($15.00 per pmt) 
$35.00 Per Month – ($17.50 per pmt) 
$40.00 Per Month – ($20.00 per pmt)  

 
3.  Stipends will be paid semi-monthly for each approved employee or department head 
(will not be included on the third paycheck that is received twice each year).  The cell phone 
stipend shall be removed by the department whenever an employee is on Administrative Leave 
with pay. 
 
4.  The cell phone stipend is considered supplemental income subject to IRS taxes and 
reporting requirements and will be processed through Payroll and will be included in the 
employee’s gross income. Retirement contributions will also be deducted and matched in 
accordance with TCDRS.  
 
5.  Expenditures over the allowed stipend will not be reimbursed.  
 
6.  An approved cell phone stipend will not follow an employee if the employee changes 
positions.  
 
7.  Each department head or elected official is responsible for verifying and monitoring that 
their employees receiving a cell phone stipend has obtained the required service. Disciplinary 
action up to and including termination may result in an employee who receives a stipend and 
does not provide their department head or elected official with the proper documentation of cell 
phone service, if requested. Each department will maintain a list of cell phone numbers for those 
individuals with stipends for audit purposes.  
 
8.  To minimize the risk of incurring unpaid time worked, Offices and Departments should 
carefully monitor phone and e-mail access outside of scheduled time worked for non-exempt 
employees.  Failure to comply with this policy may result in termination. 
 
IX.  COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 
This order designates the Commissioners Court will meet on Tuesdays each month. 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 13

 
WHEREUPON MOTION MADE AND SECONDED, the ORDER ADOPTING THE 
AMENDED WILLIAMSON COUNTY BUDGET ORDER was passed on a vote of ___ 
for, and ___  against on the ____ of August 2021. 
 
This ORDER being adopted, the County Judge is authorized to sign the ORDER and the 
County Clerk is instructed to record the ORDER and the Budget in the official minutes of 
the Commissioners Court. 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Bill Gravell, County Judge    Nancy E. Rister, County Clerk 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 1

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 

AN ORDER ADOPTING THE 2021/2022 COUNTY BUDGET 
 

WHEREAS, the Williamson County Commissioners Court is authorized and required to adopt 
an annual budget for all Williamson County officials and their departments after due 
consideration;  
 
WHEREAS, the Williamson County Commissioners Court did invite and encourage public 
participation from county officers, precinct officers, department heads, and the general public, 
as to the various needs of the citizens of Williamson County for the fiscal year 2021/2022; 
  
WHEREAS, the Williamson County Commissioners Court, after a full discussion of the needs, 
did make changes in the proposed budget filed by the County Judge in accordance with law; 
NOW  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
COURT that the proposed budget filed by the County Budget Officer and amended by the 
Commissioners Court be adopted with the following provisions:  
 
POLICIES RELATED TO COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS  
 
I. SALARIES  

 
1. Salaries for County and Precinct Officials are set as follows:  
 
 a) Judge of the County Court     136,276.40 per year  

b) Judge of the County Court at Law #1    156,999.96 per year  
c) Judge of the County Court at Law #2    170,999.96 per year 
d) Judge of the County Court at Law #3    184,999.88 per year 

 e) Judge of the County Court at Law #4    184,999.88 per year 
 f) County Attorney      168,178.14 per year 
 g) County Sheriff       137,673.64 per year
 h) County Clerk       112,883.16 per year 
 i) County Tax Assessor/Collector    117,386.36 per year 
 j) District Clerk       112,883.16 per year 
 k) County Treasurer      108,609.28 per year 
 l) Each County Commissioner     110,967.48 per year 
 m) Each Justice of the Peace        98,785.96 per year  
 n) Each Constable        98,785.96 per year  
 
 
2. The number of employee positions established and authorized for each official and/or 
department, the maximum allowable salary for each position, and the job titles are reflected in 
the annual approved county budget filed with the County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 2

II. HOLIDAYS  
 

The established holiday schedule for paid holidays for the 2021/2022 budget year is as follows:  
 

Veterans Day    Thursday  November 11, 2021 
 

Thanksgiving Holiday   Thursday  November 25, 2021 
Friday   November 26, 2021 

 
Christmas Holiday   Thursday  December 23, 2021 

Friday   December 24, 2021 
 

New Year’s Holiday   Friday   December 31, 2021 
      
Martin Luther King Day  Monday  January 17, 2022 

 
President’s Day   Monday  February 21, 2022 

 
Good Friday    Friday   April 15, 2022 

 
Memorial Day    Monday  May 30, 2022 

  
Independence Holiday   Monday  July 4, 2022 

 
Labor Day    Monday  September 5, 2022 

 
 

See Addendum:  The Williamson County Employee Policy Manual (December 15, 
2020).  Contains the policies for employee usage of paid holiday time as well as other 
policies affecting payroll related matters. 
 

III. SUPPLEMENTAL PAY 
 
Williamson County recognizes the following supplemental pay additives. The 
departments/offices are responsible for ensuring that the employees selected meet all of the 
requirements established by their offices.  Please note that total amounts may not be exact due 
to the rounding within our systems. 
  
1. Field Training Officer Pay (FTO) –Designated positions listed below will be paid $150 
per month.  

 
Sheriff’s Office – Maximum of 19 positions, including two CID 
Corrections – Maximum of 24 positions 
Emergency Medical Services – Maximum of 20 positions 
Mobile Outreach Team – Maximum of 2 positions 
            -  Maximum of 1 position to train medical students for 
     6 months 

 
 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 3

2.  Supplemental Pay - Designated positions will be paid amount listed per month. 
 

Sheriff’s Office – Maximum of 10 positions for CIT at $250 per month                   
              -   Maximum of 32 positions for Detectives at $350 per month  
          
Corrections – Maximum of 16 positions for Bailiff at $250 per month 
                -  Maximum of 2 positions for Detective at $350 per month. 
     – Maximum of 4 positions for Lead Control Room Officer at  
            $250 per month 
     – Maximum of 1 position for Paramedic at $700 per month 

 
                                
3.  Training Specialist Supplemental Pay - Designated positions will be paid $100 per pay 
period.  
   

Emergency Communications – Maximum of 16 positions 
 

4. On-Call Pay – Specific positions listed below are classified as eligible for on-call pay 
due to the demand for after hour services. All District Attorney positions are to be paid by the 
District Attorney’s Asset Forfeiture Funds.  
 

District Attorney’s Office – Maximum of 1 Asst. District Attorney, $600 per week  
Facilities Maintenance – Maximum of 2 non-exempt positions, $100 per week 
Technology Services – Maximum of 1 position, $200 per week   
Emergency Management – Maximum of 1 non-exempt position, $100 per week 
Sheriff’s Office – Maximum of 2 Detectives, $100 per week 
              Maximum of 1 Sergeant, $100 per week   
             Maximum of 1 Crime Scene, $100 per week 

Maximum of 1 Animal Control Officer, $100 per week 
Maximum of 1 Livestock Deputy, $100 per week 
Maximum of 1 Victims Assistance, $100 per week 

Corrections - Maximum of 4 Commissioned Corrections Officers, $100 per        
         week 
  
 

5.   Board Certification by the Texas Board of Legal Specialization Supplemental Pay - This 
supplement is paid  by the office listed below to all attorneys who maintain certification  by the 
Texas Board of Legal Specialization.  
 

District Attorney – Maximum of  18 positions, $5,000 per employee to be paid 
equally over 26 pay periods out of the District Attorney Asset Forfeiture Fund 

 
6.         Board Supplements – Designated positions will be paid for serving on a specific 
board(s). 

Juvenile Board – County Judge and District Judges (5), $400 per month. 
Judicial Board – Maximum of 1 position in the Magistrate Office, $2500 per year, 
paid equally over 26 pay periods. 
 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 4

7.         County Supplements – Williamson County portion of elected state positions. 
 

District Attorney – 1 position, $18,000, paid equally over 26 pay periods 
District Judges – 5 positions, $13,200 per year, paid equally over 26 pay periods. 
 

8.         Court Admin Supplement – Paid to the Court Admin of the presiding District Judge, for 
additional duties. 1 position, $5,500 per year, paid equally over 26 pay periods.          
 
9.  Senior Associate Judge Stipend – A Judge, designated by the District and County 
Court at Law Judges, who oversees Pre-Trial Services shall receive a  stipend of $2,500, 
paid equally over 26 pay periods. 
 

IV. CATASTROPHIC EVENT PAY 
 
PURPOSE 
Establish a policy for Williamson County setting forth the compensation of exempt and 
non-exempt employees for an activation of the Williamson County Emergency Operation Plan 
during a declared disaster, catastrophic event, or qualifying event. Nothing in this policy shall 
be construed as changing the "at will" status of any person employed by Williamson County. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Williamson County will compensate those essential employees who are required to work 
outside of their normal work schedule when assisting in the management of a local 
qualifying event, or when necessary to assist other agencies  in managing events outside of the 
local jurisdiction. Examples of qualifying events  include, but are  not limited to, the 
following: 
 

A. Certain catastrophic local events including, but not limited to: floods, hurricanes, 
tornados, and other Acts of God, nuclear, chemical, and biological emergencies, 
terrorist attack(s), or any other emergency declared by a federal, state or local 
authority. 

 
B. When assigned to support an event, internal or external, to the County’s jurisdiction; 

For personnel assigned and deployed to select teams, including, but not limited to: 
Williamson County Emergency Operations Center and Local, Regional, State and 
Federal Deployments.  

 
POLICY 

1. Non-exempt Compensation 
Any non-exempt employee who is recalled to duty during a catastrophic event, who 
works in- excess of forty (40) hours in a work week, or 86-hours in the pay period for 
those on the law enforcement pay plan, will be paid overtime for additional hours 
worked.  Note that the general rules of compensable time apply to work performed 
under the circumstances covered by this policy. Refer to the Williamson County 
Handbook or contact Human Resources if you have questions about what is considered 
compensable time. 

 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 5

2. Exempt Compensation 
At the Commissioners Court discretion, any salaried exempt employee who is 
required to work hours in-excess of their normal work schedule (eighty hours in a 
pay period) during a declared disaster, Catastrophic Event, or qualifying event as 
outlined in this procedure may be compensated during the declaration period at a 
determined hourly rate.  Only pay periods with hours worked that equal or exceed 88 
hours and at least 8 hours for the event, should be submitted for possible 
compensation.    

 
V. FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 
1. Fund Balance Policy: Williamson County recognizes the financial importance of 
maintaining an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance. A formalized Fund Balance 
Policy demonstrates to the taxpayer fiscal prudence and the ability to meet its obligations in a 
timely manner. Independent financial analysts rate the county’s financial stability. The county’s 
credit strength and strong management control reported by these analysts is, in part, a result of 
this Fund Balance Policy.  

 
Williamson County will maintain reservations of Fund Balance, in accordance with 
Governmental Accounting and Financial Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund 
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This Policy shall only 
apply to the County’s governmental funds. Fund Balance shall be composed of non-
spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned amounts.   

 
2. General Fund: Unassigned Fund Balance represents the difference between assets and 
liabilities that is available for appropriation.  
 
Williamson County will maintain an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance in the 
General Fund to protect against a reduction of services due to temporary revenue shortfalls or 
unexpected one-time expenditures. It also helps to ensure stable tax rates. The level of 
Unassigned Fund Balance for the General Fund shall not be less than 35% of total General Fund 
budgeted expenditures. 
  
The goal of each year’s budget process will be to adopt a budget that maintains compliance with 
the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance Policy.   If it is determined there is a surplus (an 
amount exceeding the target limit), the funds may be designated or appropriated for the 
following, including, but not limited to:  

 
◦ Tax rate stabilization.  
◦ Only one-time, non-recurring expenditures, such as capital improvement needs.  
◦ Address any shortfall in related funds, i.e. Road and Bridge Fund.  
◦ Reduction of debt; to include capital leases. 
  

If it is determined there is a deficit (an amount below the lower limit), the County must develop 
a plan to rebuild the Unassigned Fund Balance to 35%.  
 
3. Tobacco Fund: The initial distribution of Williamson County’s share of the settlement 
established the fund in 1999. Revenues to the fund consist of interest income and the annual 
distribution by the state of the state trust earnings. To ensure continuation of the fund, the 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 6

Williamson County Commissioners Court has designated the portion of fund balance 
representing the amount of the original settlement ($2.5M). Designation means that this amount, 
or “principal” balance, cannot be expended. In addition to the original settlement amount, each 
year, 20% of the revenues from both interest income and the annual distribution from the state 
will be added to the designated fund balance in order to allow the fund to grow over time. Only 
80% of revenues earned from interest and the earnings distributed annually by the state will be 
budgeted and expended. When determining the next year’s budget, the amount available to 
expend will be calculated using actual revenue and interest revenue amounts from May 1st of the 
previous year to April 30th of the current year. Any unspent funds at the end of the fiscal year 
will be available to budget in the next year.  If Tobacco Fund expenditures are budgeted to offset 
expenditures in other funds, the actual program cost to the other Funds will be determined prior 
to transferring in any dollars from the Tobacco Fund.  This available balance will be tracked 
annually by the County Auditor’s office. 
 
4.        Self-Insured Health Plan Fund Policy:  Unassigned Fund Balance represents the 
difference between assets and liabilities that is available for appropriation.  Williamson County 
will maintain an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance in the Benefits Fund to protect 
against an inability to pay for claims and administration associated with the self- insured health 
plan due to temporary revenue shortfalls.  It also helps to ensure stable employer and employee 
contribution rates. 
 
The Self-Funded Health Plan Fund currently has a “goal of reaching and maintaining 25% of 
expected claims”. The goal of each year’s budget process will be to endeavor to adopt a budget 
that maintains compliance with the Benefits Fund Unassigned Fund Balance Policy. 
 
If it is determined there is a surplus (an amount exceeding the target limit), the funds may be 
designated or appropriated for contribution rate stabilization. 
 
If it is determined there is a deficit (an amount below the lower limit), the County may develop 
a plan to rebuild the Unassigned Fund Balance to 25% of expected claims. 
 
5. Radio Communication Systems (RCS) Fund Policy:  Unassigned Fund Balance 
represents the difference between assets and liabilities that is available for appropriation.  
Williamson County will maintain an appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance in the 
Radio Communications Systems Fund to protect against unforeseen operating issues.  These 
unforeseen issues can result from environmental or project related items.  It also helps to 
ensure stable radio user fees for the user community. 

The Radio Communication Systems Fund has a “goal of reaching and maintaining 30% of total 
Radio Communication Systems expenditure budget.   

If it is determined there is a surplus (an amount exceeding the target limit), the funds may be 
designated or appropriated for: 

 Only one-time, non-recurring expenditures, such as tower improvements 
 Fee stabilization 

 
If it is determined there is a deficit, the Radio Communication Systems Board will develop and 
recommend a plan to the County to rebuild the Unassigned Fund Balance to 30%. 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 7

 
Use and Distribution of Specific Special Revenue Funds and Accounts 
 
6. Child Safety Fund: – This fund is used to deposit a $1.50 fee collected on each 
vehicle registration and court costs collected by justice, county, or district courts for 
violations that occur within a school-crossing zone of $25 per violation. This fund is used 
to provide a school crossing guard program and/or programs designed to enhance child 
safety, health, or nutrition.  The Commissioners Court, by an order adopted in October 
2010, has directed these funds to be distributed in the following manner:  10% of Total 
Collections less an administrative fee shall be distributed to the Williamson County’s 
Children’s Advocacy Center.  The remainder shall be distributed to the school districts on 
a pro rata basis based on attendance.  These funds will be distributed annually after the 
close of the prior fiscal year. 
 
7. School Fund: Williamson County maintains a working interest ownership in two natural 
gas producing properties located on what was formerly county-owned property. The mineral 
rights that have been retained are designated to be distributed to school districts within the county 
based on the number of students who reside in the county. This distribution will occur annually 
at the close of each fiscal year and will coincide with the distribution of the Child Safety Fund 
proceeds.  
 
8. Employee Fund: The Employee fund is proceeds collected from Williamson 
County’s vending machine contract.  Use of these funds must be pre-approved by the County 
Judge. 
 
These funds may be used for the following purposes: 
 
a) To offset the cost of county employee events 
b) Flowers for the death of a county employee only 
c) An award or plaque upon retirement for employee recognition. All purchases must display 

(i.e. engraving) information regarding the purpose of the employee recognition. (Purchasing 
guidelines must be adhered to): 

i. The employee must be vested (8 years of service) 
ii. $60.00 allowed for employees with up to 15 years of service 

iii. $120.00 allowed for employees with over 15 years of service 
d) Employee recognition events and programs 
e) Maximum of $300.00 allowed towards a reception/light refreshments for the retirement or 

departure of an: 
i. Elected Official serving in his/her capacity for at least 1 term 

ii. Department Head who must be vested (8 years of service) 
iii. Employee with 20 years of service or more 

 
No reimbursement of sales tax will be allowed. 
The amount allowed for use may never exceed the actual balance in the fund. 
 
9.     WM-City of Hutto and Hutto ISD Fund: The WM-City of Hutto and Hutto ISD Fund 
consists of proceeds paid by Waste Management annually.  Per the agreement, these funds 
represent 2% of the Tip Fee and are to be expended for the benefit of the City of Hutto and Hutto 
ISD.  The expenditures are at the County’s sole option.  The annual distribution will be allocated 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 8

50% to the City of Hutto and 50% to Hutto ISD.  Each entity is required to request any 
disbursements from the fund. 

10.  Williamson County Community Facility Fund: This fund consists of fees 
collected through the Williamson County Landfill. Community organizations, groups, and 
individuals may submit a funding request to the Williamson County Commissioners Court 
for the construction, improvement, or remodel of community facilities located in 
Williamson County that serve a public purpose. 

11.  Use of Flex Funding Account for Mental Health Mobile Outreach Team:  In order 
to mitigate the incidence of public mental health crisis and save the taxpayers from spending 
additional funds on costs that could otherwise be limited for public health-related services, the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court finds there is compelling need to establish and 
authorize the use of a mental health Flex Funding Account by the Mobile Outreach Team. 

Therefore, pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code, § 111.068(b) (citing the “interest of 
the tax payers” in budget matters), the Texas Health and Safety Code, § 121.003(a) 
(authorizing commissioners court to “enforce any law that is reasonably necessary to protect 
the public health.”), and the common law granting the County authority to regulate the public 
health and safety, the Williamson County Commissioners Court approves the Mental Health 
Mobile Outreach Team Flex Funding Account.  Typical Flex Funding expenditures may 
include, but are not limited to transportation vouchers, payment for medical appointments, 
medication/pharmacy vouchers/payments, payment for therapy sessions (short to mid-term), 
food and motel vouchers, payment toward utility or other essential household bills.  The 
Mobile Outreach Team has Policies and Procedures to ensure compliance with this policy.  
The fund is subject to further oversight, including, but not limited to, auditing by the 
Williamson County Auditor’s Office. 

12. Financial – General Procedures 
 
a) Any mailings sent by a county department or official using county funds must be in 

furtherance of legitimate county business and must comply with all state ethics rules and 
other laws and regulations. 
 

b) All county meetings should be held in county facilities whenever feasible and such facilities 
are available. If the county meeting space is not available, other publicly owned facilities, 
such as those owned by cities, utility districts, or school districts, should be utilized as the 
rental of these facilities is often at little or no cost. 
 

c) Transfer of funds out of the following line items will not be allowed:  
 

i)    Training  
ii)  Gasoline  
iii)  Cell Phones  
iv) RCS Radio Fees 

 
d) Transfer of funds into any of the above line items may be allowed. 
e) Transfer of funds out of, within, or to the following line items will not be allowed, with the 

exception of line item 1107/Temp-Seasonal: 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 9

 
i) Salaries- This pertains to salary line items that are budgeted based on position 

control. This includes object codes 1100, 1101, and 1105. Line item transfers 
between 8000 accounts and salary lines for the purpose of merit money 
allocation/re-allocation are permissible and will be placed on the agenda for 
Commissioners Court approval/review.  

ii) Fringe Benefits.  
 

f) All recruitment items purchased must comply with Article III, section 52 of the Texas 
Constitution.  Thus, the predominant purpose of any expenditures on recruitment 
materials must be to accomplish a “direct” public purpose and be in compliance with the 
provisions of this policy in order to ensure that Williamson County receives a return of 
public benefit from said expenditures.  Williamson County recognizes the need to 
identify, recruit and hire qualified employees.  

 
i) Funds for recruitment items must be approved during the annual budget 

process. 
ii) Items must not state the name of any individual, but instead the name of the 

county and/or department or office. 
iii) “Give way” items such as pens, pencils, etc. should not exceed $2.00 per item. 

 
All purchases must follow procurement guidelines. 

 
VI. PURCHASING – GENERAL PROCEDURES  
 
1. Williamson County Purchasing and Procurement Card (P-Card) policies are intended to 
provide consistent procedures for the acquisition of materials, supplies, and services required by 
Williamson County. The responsibility to adhere to all Purchasing and P-Card policies rests with 
the employee, supervisor, department head, or elected officials who certifies conformance to 
them.  

2. The Williamson County Purchasing Manual as well as other more detailed information 
directing specific purchasing procedures and processes can be located on the SharePoint 
Purchasing Portal at: https://wilco365.sharepoint.com/purchasingportal. 
 
This site provides county departments access to: 
 

a. Policies, Procedures and Manuals 
b. Training Materials 
c. Forms 
d. Guides and other tools to assist in the purchasing process 

 
3. The County Auditor’s Office will audit Expense Reports monthly.  Cardholder 
infractions will be addressed and may result in disciplinary action as recommended by the 
Purchasing Department and the County Auditor’s Office. Actions may include: 
 

a. Retraining 
b. Reduction of credit limits 
c. Suspension of account 

 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 10

Theft, fraud or intentional policy violations may result in permanent closure of account or 
termination of employment, based on severity of violation. 

 
4. Any questions related to compliance with intent of county Purchasing Policies should be 
directed to the Purchasing Department prior to making a purchase.  
 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing 
 
VII. COUNTY VEHICLES   
 
1. It is prohibited by law to utilize county owned vehicles for personal use.  Any county 
employee that resides outside the county and utilizes a county owned vehicle during their 
workday, is required to return that vehicle to their primary work location following their 
assigned work shift. Elected Officials or Senior Directors may grant an employee the ability 
to take a County vehicle home for a specific occasion or an event, if it is in the business 
interest of the County to do so.  
 
The following is an all-inclusive list of positions that may be required to respond to 
emergencies outside of their normal work assignments, and may, with the concurrence of 
their department head or elected official, take a county vehicle to their residence, within 
Williamson County, at the end of their shift to allow them to respond as required.   
 

a) The Sheriff and paid law enforcement as follows: Sheriff’s Patrol Deputies, 
Sheriff’s Detectives, on call Crime Scene Technician, on call Animal Control 
Officers, Sergeants, Lieutenants, Commander and Chiefs 

b)  Each Constable and Deputy Constables  
c)  Investigators in the District Attorney and County Attorneys offices  
d)  Two on call maintenance employees designated by the Maintenance Division 

Director 
e)  Division Commanders, and Operation Commander(s) approved by EMS 

Director  
f)  The Fire Marshal Special Operations Chief, Asst. Fire Marshal, Special 

Operations Asst. Chief, and On Call Hazmat Special Operations Captain, when 
on call 

g)  The Assistant County Engineer for Maintenance Operations, the Director of 
Field Operations, (9) Senior Foremen and Foreman 

h) The Director of Emergency Management and the Deputy Director of Emergency 
Management 

i) The Wireless Communications Tower Technician 
 
The Senior Director of Emergency Services and the Sheriff have the discretion to assign a 
vehicle to an appropriate member of their department to facilitate a specific response to 
emergency scenes or events, on a case by case basis, where the resources are requested and 
needed.  This shall only be done in times of high risk, high probability events, or during 
scheduled special “large scale” events where response is likely.  This assignment shall be 
tracked and reported to the Commissioners Court. 
 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 11

The following list has been grandfathered by the court, will not be expanded, unless approved 
by the Commissioners Court, and shall show significant decreases in each budget year until 
phased out.  
 
Sheriff’s Office  
S. Zion   
D. Garrett  
  
Constable Office Pct. 2  
S. Holt 
 
Emergency Services 
R. Williams 
M. Reyna 
H. Clark 
T. Allen 
I. Oyedokun 
 
The following list has been exempted from the out of county policy for take home vehicles by 
the court.  
  
Sheriff’s Office 
W. Steffen 
J. Sapien 
J. Helm 
J. Guinn 
J. Foster 
 
County vehicles assigned to departments or individuals that are not take-home vehicles, shall 
be returned and parked at the end of each workday at the facility where the primary office is 
located. It is expressly forbidden under this order for any county vehicle to be used for 
personal use at any time.  
 
2. A County Fleet Committee will review fleet policies and purchases and make 
recommendations for budgeting purposes.  This committee will consist of one representative 
from each Constable’s Office, the Budget Office, Emergency Services, Fleet Department, 
Human Resources, Infrastructure, Purchasing, and the Sheriff’s Office. The Auditor’s Office is 
a non-voting member. 
 
All accidents involving County vehicles and equipment must be reported to the Risk and Safety 
Coordinator in Human Resources to ensure appropriate claims processing, including any 
corrective action taken. Vehicles removed from service are reported on the Court agenda and 
accident reports are sent to the court when applicable. Also, new vehicles, equipment, and 
buildings must be reported to the Risk and Safety Coordinator immediately in order to ensure 
that proper insurance coverage is in place. 
 
VIII.  CELL PHONE POLICY 
 
Williamson County may purchase/lease cell phones for departments in the county that deal with 
sensitive data or for security reasons, example law enforcement, and provide cell phone service 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 12

for individual use.  The departments should have this money approved and budgeted in line item 
004209.  For the majority of County employees, a Stipend Policy has been implemented and is 
laid out below. These dollars are approved and budgeted in line item 001109. 
 
Procedures for the Stipend Policy  
 
1. Each department head or elected official will identify who they require to maintain a cell 
phone account in order to conduct official county business. Only regular full-time employees 
and department heads will be allowed a stipend. The funds for cell phone stipends must be 
submitted and approved as part of each department’s annual budget process. 
 
2. Seven levels of cell phone stipends will be established:  

 
$10.00 Per Month – ($5.00 per pmt) 
$15.00 Per Month -  ($7.50 per pmt)  
$20.00 Per Month – ($10.00 per pmt) 
$25.00 Per Month – ($12.50 per pmt)  
$30.00 Per Month – ($15.00 per pmt) 
$35.00 Per Month – ($17.50 per pmt) 
$40.00 Per Month – ($20.00 per pmt)  

 
3.  Stipends will be paid semi-monthly for each approved employee or department head 
(will not be included on the third paycheck that is received twice each year).  The cell phone 
stipend shall be removed by the department whenever an employee is on Administrative Leave 
with pay. 
 
4.  The cell phone stipend is considered supplemental income subject to IRS taxes and 
reporting requirements and will be processed through Payroll and will be included in the 
employee’s gross income. Retirement contributions will also be deducted and matched in 
accordance with TCDRS.  
 
5.  Expenditures over the allowed stipend will not be reimbursed.  
 
6.  An approved cell phone stipend will not follow an employee if the employee changes 
positions.  
 
7.  Each department head or elected official is responsible for verifying and monitoring that 
their employees receiving a cell phone stipend has obtained the required service. Disciplinary 
action up to and including termination may result in an employee who receives a stipend and 
does not provide their department head or elected official with the proper documentation of cell 
phone service, if requested. Each department will maintain a list of cell phone numbers for those 
individuals with stipends for audit purposes.  
 
8.  To minimize the risk of incurring unpaid time worked, Offices and Departments should 
carefully monitor phone and e-mail access outside of scheduled time worked for non-exempt 
employees.  Failure to comply with this policy may result in termination. 
 
IX.  COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 
This order designates the Commissioners Court will meet on Tuesdays each month. 



 
 

Budget Order 2021/2022 13

 
WHEREUPON MOTION MADE AND SECONDED, the ORDER ADOPTING THE 
AMENDED WILLIAMSON COUNTY BUDGET ORDER was passed on a vote of ___ 
for, and ___  against on the ____ of August 2021. 
 
This ORDER being adopted, the County Judge is authorized to sign the ORDER and the 
County Clerk is instructed to record the ORDER and the Budget in the official minutes of 
the Commissioners Court. 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Bill Gravell, County Judge    Nancy E. Rister, County Clerk 
 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 53.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Executive Session
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)

A.    Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
   Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned
by third parties
    a)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop. 
    b)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243
    c)    Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278
    d)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
    e)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop. 
    f)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.
    g)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366. 
    h)    Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.
    i)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.
    j)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H
    k)    Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor. 
    l)     Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at IH 35.
    m)   Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.
    n)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.
    o)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.
    p)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A. 
    q)    Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.
    r)     Discuss the acquisition of real property near Justice Center. 
    s)    Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North of
WMCO Juvenile Detention Center
    t)     Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way
    u)    Discuss acquisition of drainage easement in relation to County Road 176
    v)    Discuss acquisition of right of way for Corridor E. 
B.   Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
      Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by
the County
    a)    Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
    b)    Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St. between 3rd
and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)



    c)    Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction
    d)    Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave. 
    e)    Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
    f)     Discuss the sale of property located at 900 S Main St., Taylor, 76574
C.     Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of San
Gabriel Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1
D.     Discuss the Cobb Cavern Conservation Easement Amendment and potential acquisition. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 09:01 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:49 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 54.        
Meeting Date: 08/24/2021  

Economic Development
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road

Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government
Code, Section 551.087:
    a)   Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
    b)   Project Crystal
    c)   Project Winston
    d)   Project Solo
    e)   Project Stamp
    f)    Project Cutting Edge
    g)   Project Red Hot Chili Pepper
    h)   Project Nirvana
    i)    Project Soundgarden
    j)    Project Darwin
    i)    Project Flex Power

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Becky Pruitt 08/19/2021 09:02 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 08/19/2021 08:50 AM
Final Approval Date: 08/19/2021 


	Agenda
	AI_27293_Line Item Transfer for Mobile Outreach Team
	AI_27294_LIT - Medical Supplies
	AI_27301_Line Item Transfer for the County Sheriff, Corrections Bureau
	AI_27303_Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a Line Item Transfer for the District Courts
	AI_27308_Line item transfer for the Road and Bridge Division
	AI_27309_Line item transfer for the Road and Bridge Division
	AI_27312_Line Item Transfer for District Attorney
	AI_27334_Line Item Transfer for the Parks Department
	AI_27343_Line Item Transfer
	AI_27306_L chart
	       ATT_Lchartproposal
	AI_27296_V/E Assets for Auction 8.24.21
	       ATT_V_E Assets for Auction 8.24.21
	AI_27297_V/E Assets Sale to Insurance 8.24.21
	       ATT_V_E Assets for Sale to Insurance 8.24.21
	AI_27313_County Attorney July 2021 Monthly Report
	       ATT_July report
	AI_27317_Deputy Appointment
	AI_27326_Child Welfare Reappointment
	       ATT_Letter
	AI_27329_Constable Pct 3 Agreement with TransUnion Risk and Alternative Data Solutions, Inc.
	       ATT_Pct 3 Constable TRADS
	       ATT_TransUnion Redacted
	AI_27333_Juvenile Justice LiveScan Ruggedized Mugshot Capture and Printer
	       ATT_Idemia Redacted Agreement
	       ATT_Idemia
	AI_27319_District Attorney Westlaw Subscription Upgrade
	       ATT_Agreement
	AI_27299_Award RFP #T3838 Queuing Software to Nemo-Q, Inc.
	       ATT_Evaluation Scores
	Sheet1

	       ATT_Recommendation Letter
	       ATT_Sales Agreement 
	       ATT_Addendum
	AI_27292_Cedar Park Tax Annex Camera Installation with Knight Security Systems
	       ATT_Cedar Park Tax Office Camera Addition
	AI_27300_Deed without Warranty
	       ATT_
	AI_27323_ Consider Authorizing Active Network Purchase and Online Transaction Fee Agreement
	       ATT_transaction fee agreement
	       ATT_Hardware agreement 
	AI_27302_Authorize Purchase of Office Furniture for District Attorney's Office from Facilities Resource, Inc.
	       ATT_QUOTE
	       ATT_QUOTE
	AI_27330_1806-243 Renewal 3 - ATM Services with Preferred ATM Services, LLC
	       ATT_1806-243 Automated Teller Machine Location Agreement - original
	       ATT_1806-243 - renewal 1
	       ATT_1806-243 - renewal 2
	       ATT_1806-243 - renewal 3
	AI_27327_Alliance 2576 Traffic Engr Contract Amendment No 2
	       ATT_Alliance 2576 Traffic Engr Contract Amendment No 2
	CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. __2___
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	I. Amendment to Exhibit ___D___ - Rate Schedule
	Pursuant to the CPI Rate Adjustments provisions set forth in the original Rate Schedule of the Contract, County and Engineer hereby agree the Rate Schedule attached hereto as Attachment 1 shall supplant and replace the current Rate Schedule and become...
	II. Terms of Contract Control and Extent of Amendment No. __2____
	III. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Engineer have executed this Amendment No. __2___, in duplicate, to be effective as of the date of the last party’s execution below.
	Engineer:  COUNTY:

	AI_26886_Rifeline 1812-284 WA27 Subdivision Regulations
	       ATT_Rifeline 1812-284 WA27 Subdivision Regulations
	AI_27344_T2910 County Road Seal Coat Change Order No 1
	       ATT_T2910 County Road Seal Coat Change Order No 1
	Change Order 
	Contract Items pg1
	Code Chart

	AI_27321_Authorize issuing 21RFSQ14 RFQ Design Engineering Services for Small Drainage and Small Roadway Projects f
	AI_27347_Final plat for the Piper Run subdivision – Pct 4
	       ATT_final plat - Piper Run
	HPSCANNER1694
	HPSCANNER169

	AI_27348_Preliminary plat for the Northgate Ranch Phase 2 Sections 6-10 subdivision – Pct 2
	       ATT_preliminary plat - Northgate Ranch Ph 2 Sec 6-10
	Sheets and Views
	1 OVERALL PROPERTY BOUNDARY
	2 PRELIMINARY PLAT (SHEET 1 OF 3)
	3 PRELIMINARY PLAT (SHEET 2 OF 3)
	4 PRELIMINARY PLAT (SHEET 3 OF 3)
	5 EXISTING DRAINAGE AREA MAP
	6 PROPOSED DRAINAGE AREA MAP
	7 PROPOSED UTILITIES (SHEET 1 OF 2)
	8 PROPOSED UTILITIES (SHEET 2 OF 2)


	AI_27331_WCCHD Board Member Replacement 
	AI_27328_Crisis Center Substantial Amendment
	AI_27304_Park Donations BA Rev 08.24.21
	AI_27305_Park Donations BA Exp 08.24.21
	AI_27310_Radio Communication System (RCS) Budget Amendment 8.24.21
	AI_27311_Radio Communication System (RCS) Budget Amendment 8.24.21
	AI_27242_retention
	AI_27346_Upper Forty Economic Development
	       ATT_Chapter 381 Agreement
	AI_27320_SAVNS Maintenance Grant Contract FY'22
	       ATT_SAVNS Maint Grant Contract
	AI_27164_DOI Projects and Issues
	AI_27205_Awarding IFB #T4442 S. San Gabriel Ranches Subdivision Rd & Drainage Improvements
	       ATT_Award Letter
	       ATT_agreement
	ARTICLE 4  SUBSTANTIAL AND FINAL COMPLETION:
	4.1 Commencement of Work.  Contractor shall commence the Work upon instruction to do so from the Owner and Construction shall be deemed to have commenced on the date of such instruction.
	4.2 Substantial Completion. “Substantial Completion” means the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work, or designated portions thereof, may still require minor modifications or adjustments but, in the Owner’s opinion, the Work has progressed t...
	4.3 Final Completion. The Work shall be fully and finally completed 120 Calendar Days; provided, however, Owner may extend said time period in the event bad weather affects the progress of the Work.  Owner shall, at its sole discretion, determine when...
	ARTICLE 5  PAYMENT:
	ARTICLE 6 CONTRACTOR’S GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND COVENANTS:
	ARTICLE 9 BONDS
	ARTICLE 10 TERMINATION
	ARTICLE 11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

	AI_27335_SE Loop- Resolution for Condemnation
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_27336_Sam Bass Road- Rule 11 Agreement
	       ATT_Agreement
	AI_27337_SE Loop Relocation Claim
	       ATT_Relo Claim
	AI_27338_CR 366 WL Agreement
	       ATT_Agreement
	AI_27339_Liberty Hill Bypass- Bill of Sale
	       ATT_Bill of Sale
	AI_27340_Sam Bass Rd.- Relocation Claims
	       ATT_Peck Claim
	       ATT_Sharpnack Claim
	       ATT_Turner Claim
	AI_27332_August 24th 2021 Budget Modification Voting Workshop
	       ATT_August 24th 2021 BMVS
	AI_27318_FY 2021/2022 Proposed Budget Order
	       ATT_FY 2021_2022 Proposed Budget Order - Track Changes
	       ATT_FY 2021_2022 Proposed Budget Order - No Markup
	AI_27341_Executive Session
	AI_27342_Economic Development



